

## FRONTIER LEAGUE PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL 2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE Official Media Guide

## EAST

Aigles de Trois-Rivières Québec Capitales Empire State Greys New Jersey Jackals New York Boulders Ottawa Titans Sussex County Miners Tri-City ValleyCats

## WEST

Evansville Otters Florence Y'alls Gateway Grizzlies Joliet Slammers Lake Erie Crushers Schaumburg Boomers Washington Wild Things Windy City ThunderBolts



## COMMISSIONER EMERITUS: BILL LEE

## DEPUTY COMMISSIONER – OPERATIONS: STEVE TAHSLER stahsler@frontierleague.com

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER – STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT: KEVIN WINN kwinn@frontierleague.com

DIGITAL MARKETING ASSISTANT / EAST BEAT REPORTER: JENN MALTI jenn@frontierleague.com

DIGITAL MARKETING ASSISTANT / WEST BEAT REPORTER: ANDRÉS TEJEDA andres@frontierleague.com

> MAILING ADDRESS: 23 Don Mattingly Way Evansville, IN 47711-3000

PHONE: (812) 437-8709

FAX: (708) 286-6481

WEBSITE: <u>www.frontierleague.com</u> LEAGUE OFFICE: <u>office@frontierleague.com</u>

LEAGUE STATISTICIAN

PrestoStats PO Box 2376 Gilbert, AZ 85234

OFFICIAL BASEBALL Rawlings ROM-FL



## TABLE OF CONTENTS

MLB Partner Announcement	3
2022 Frontier League Milage Chart	4
Frontier League Board of Directors	5
Frontier League History	6-22
Can-Am League History	23-25
Frontier League Front Office	26-28
Evansville Otters	29
Florence Y'alls	30
Gateway Grizzlies Joliet Slammers	31 32
Lake Erie Crushers	33
New Jersey Jackals	34
New York Boulders	35
Ottawa Titans	36
Québec Capitales	37
Schaumburg Boomers	38
Sussex County Miners	39
Tri-City ValleyCats	40
Trois-Rivières Aigles	41
Washington Wild Things	42
Windy City Thunderbolts	43
Past Frontier League Award Winners	44-45
Frontier League Alumni Active in MLB Organizations	46
Former Frontier League Players Who Played in MLB	47-48
Former Frontier League Personnel Working in Affiliated Pro Ball	49-50
Frontier League Post Season Awards	51-52
2022 Player Eligibility Rules	53
Frontier League Hall of Fame 2022 Schedule	54-60 61-63
2022 Schedule 2021 Frontier League Statistics	64-66
2019 Frontier League Statistics	67-69
2018 Frontier League Statistics	70-72
2017 Frontier League Statistics	73-75
2016 Frontier League Statistics	76-78
2015 Frontier League Statistics	79-81
2014 Frontier League Statistics	82-84
2013 Frontier League Statistics	85-87
2012 Frontier League Statistics	88-90
2011 Frontier League Statistics	91-93
2010 Frontier League Statistics	94-96
2009 Frontier League Statistics	97-99
2008 Frontier League Statistics	100-102
2007 Frontier League Statistics	103-105
2006 Frontier League Statistics 2005 Frontier League Statistics	106-108
2005 Frontier League Statistics	109-111 112-114
2003 Frontier League Statistics	112-114
2002 Frontier League Statistics	118-120
2001 Frontier League Statistics	121-123
2000 Frontier League Statistics	124-126
1999 Frontier League Statistics	127-129
1998 Frontier League Statistics	130-132
1997 Frontier League Statistics	133-135
1996 Frontier League Statistics	136-138
1995 Frontier League Statistics	139-141
1994 Frontier League Statistics	142-144
1993 Frontier League Statistics	145
Frontier League Records	146-147
1993-2021 All-Time Frontier League W-L Percentages	148-150
Frontier League All-Time Wins by Manager	151
1993-2021 All Time Frontier League W-L Records 1993-2021 All-time Frontier League Homerun Totals	151
2022 Frontier League Umpires	152 153
Frontier League Extra Inning Tie-Breaker	155
Longue Lana mining The Distance	1 101

## FRONTIER LEAGUE DESIGNATED AS PARTNER LEAGUE OF MLB

Major League Baseball (MLB) announced in September of 2020 that it named the Frontier League as a "Partner League" of MLB.

As a Partner League, the Frontier League will collaborate with MLB on initiatives to provide organized baseball to communities throughout the United States and Canada.

Morgan Sword, MLB's Executive Vice President, Baseball Economics & Operations, said: "We welcome the Frontier League as a Partner League, and look forward to working with them toward our shared goal of expanding the geographic reach of baseball."

Frontier League Commissioner Emeritus Bill Lee says, "The Frontier League is honored to become a Partner League with Major League Baseball. This partnership will be beneficial in growing our great game of Baseball in all of our United States and Canadian markets. Our teams and fans will all be excited to see the League grow in years to come. The Frontier League began in 1993, to have a relationship with Major League Baseball, is one of the greatest moments in League history."



7707				200	Ì		ć								
	EVN	FLO	GAT	JOL	LE	Ŋ	ΝY	OTT	90	SCH	SC	T-C	TR	MSH	WC
EVN		201	163	342	451	867	870	919	1165	390	843	935	1090	473	346
FLO	201		344	314	251	667	694	744	993	329	643	733	915	272	301
GAT	163	344		260	549	949	969	997	1248	297	940	1029	1169	572	282
JOL	342	314	260		335	788	810	770	1019	41	764	832	941	497	26
LE	451	251	549	335		468	489	544	761	353	444	498	683	175	319
ΓN	867	667	849	788	468		35	432	508	808	43	146	428	379	754
٨Y	870	694	696	810	489	35		417	493	829	51	123	413	406	800
OTT	919	744	<u> 6</u> 87	770	544	432	417		277	790	392	293	193	573	754
00	1165	993	1248	1019	761	508	493	277		1039	513	371	80	789	1005
SCH	390	329	297	41	353	808	829	790	1039		784	851	961	515	38
SC	843	643	940	764	444	43	51	392	513	784		143	434	352	754
T-C	935	733	1029	832	498	146	123	293	371	851	143		304	497	818
TR	1090	915	1169	941	683	428	413	193	80	961	434	304		711	927
MSH	473	272	572	497	175	379	406	573	789	515	352	497	711		483
WC	346	301	282	26	319	754	800	754	1005	38	754	818	927	483	

2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE MILEAGE CHART



Ottawa Titans	Québec Capitales	Schaumburg Boomers	Sussex County Miners	Tri-City ValleyCats	Trois-Rivières Aigles	Washington Wild Things	Windy City ThunderBolts
011	8	SCH	SC	1-C	TR	MSH	WC
Evansville Otters	Florence Y'alls	Gateway Grizzlies	Joliet Slammers	Lake Erie Crushers	New Jersey Jackals	New York Boulders	
EVN	FLO	GAT	JOL	Щ	R	٨	

## FRONTIER LEAGUE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

President: Brian Lyter	Schaumburg
First Vice-President: Al Dorso, Sr.	Sussex County
Second Vice-President: Tom Kramig	Lake Erie
Third Vice-President: Michel Laplante	Québec
Director: John Stanley	Evansville
Director: David DelBello	
Director: Rich Sauget, Jr.	Gateway
Director: John Wilson	Joliet
Director: Greg Lockhard	New Jersey
Director: Shawn Reilly	
Director: Regan Kats	Ottawa
Director: Rick Murphy	
Director: Rene Martin	
Director: Stu Williams	
Director: Mike VerSchave	Windy City



# FRONTIER LEAGUE

## **2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE DIVISIONS**

## EAST DIVISION

Empire State Greys New Jersey Jackals New York Boulders Ottawa Titans Québec Capitales Sussex County Miners Tri-City ValleyCats Trois-Rivières Aigles

## WEST DIVISION

Evansville Otters Florence Y'alls Gateway Grizzlies Joliet Slammers Lake Erie Crushers Schaumburg Boomers Washington Wild Things Windy City ThunderBolts

## HISTORY OF THE FRONTIER LEAGUE

In the winter of 1992-1993, several men got together and decided to start an independent professional baseball league to serve the West Virginia, eastern Kentucky and southeast Ohio areas. They believed they could bring professional baseball to areas that would never have a chance of affiliated professional baseball coming to their communities. The seed was planted and they named their project The Frontier League.

These founders approached business people and interested individuals in many different cities to own and operate the franchises. College players quickly heard of the fledgling league and mostly came from the Midwest and east coast to chase their dreams of playing pro ball. The Lancaster Scouts chose LHP Chris Smithers out of Valdosta State University with the first pick in the inaugural Frontier League Draft. On June 30, 1993, the Frontier League played its first games, with Tri-State hosting West Virginia, Kentucky hosting Ohio Valley, Zanesville hosting Lancaster, and Chillicothe hosting Portsmouth. Two weeks into the inaugural season, Tri-State and West Virginia folded their operations and the remaining six owners fought to keep the League above water. They made it through that first year with six teams and immediately began to make plans for 1994 by adding teams in Newark, Ohio and Erie, Pennsylvania. Portsmouth's Jim Ridenour was the first player to sign with a

MLB organization, as the Chicago White Sox picked up the catcher during the Explorers' spring training, while Chillicothe's Buck Wells was the first player to be signed during the season. Chillicothe's VA Memorial Stadium hosted the first All-Star Game, which the West Division won 3-2 on August 2. The Zanesville Greys were the first champion and swept the post-season awards with Kyle Shave as MVP, Tom Crowley as Pitcher of the Year, Tom Venditelli as Manager of the Year and Bob Wolfe as Executive of the Year.

Prior to the 1994 season, the owners of the League made a commitment to move forward and they hired Bill Lee as the first and only Commissioner the League has seen. Lee had been in the professional sports business since 1980 and the owners hoped he could help the League grow and flourish in the future. The League got through the 1994 season with all eight teams intact. Outfielder Kendra Hanes became the first modern woman to play professional baseball, appearing in ten games for the Kentucky Rifles. Ohio Valley's .746 winning percentage (50-17 record) remains the best single-season mark in league history, while the Redcoats' Corey Morris was named Most Valuable Player by putting up one of the most dominant offensive seasons in league history, hitting .394 with 19 home runs, 63 RBI, and 21 stolen bases in 66 games. The Erie Sailors won the League Championship and the future was looking brighter.

During the off-season between the 1994 and 1995 seasons, several changes took place that helped the League gain credibility and recognition. Teams were relocated to Richmond and Evansville, Indiana as well as Johnstown, Pennsylvania. The stadiums were major upgrades to the caliber of fields that were in existence. The markets were larger and as a result, crowds that attended games were larger. The Johnstown Steal won the 1995 title and Evansville's attendance was greater than the entire League attendance in 1993. The moves to Richmond and Evansville ultimately opened the door to the western expansion of the League.

In 1996, two more cities were added to the League by purchasing and relocating existing franchises. They were Springfield, Illinois and Kalamazoo, Michigan. Again, with bigger markets and better stadiums, the League attendance took a major leap forward. The caliber of play got better and the geographics from which players were coming to the League also continued to expand. The Springfield Capitals won the championship in their first season, but it was the third championship in a row for Manager Mal Fichman.

Several major changes took place in the League Rules in 1997 that led to a stronger level of competition in the League. First, the League went to an 80-game schedule. Second, the League allowed older players with more experience to play in the League. It also allowed for players who were popular in their cities to play in the League longer. The Canton Crocodiles, who had replaced the Zanesville Greys franchise, won the League Championship in their inaugural season. The Evansville Otters were the first franchise to draw over 100,000 fans in a season, including their playoff games.

1998 probably saw the greatest level of overall talent of any year in League history. Richmond's Morgan Burkhart established almost every single season hitting record including 36 homers in 80 games. Other great players such as Chillicothe's Gator McBride, Scott Pinoni and Mitch House, Springfield's Joe Ronca and Jason Simontacchi made the League extremely exciting. The Springfield Capitals became the first franchise to win two championships.

In spite of all of the tremendous on field exploits of 1998, it was the winter of 1999 that saw the greatest changes in the League and elevated it to another level. The League expanded by two teams, making a total of ten teams, by adding the River City Rascals and the Cook County Cheetahs. This was important because it took the League into major metropolitan areas (St. Louis and Chicago) and both franchises were building new facilities. These were the first facilities built specifically for Frontier League franchises. The schedule expanded to 84 games and the River City Rascals in O'Fallon, Missouri, led the way in attendance reaching an unparalleled 151,000 fans. During the season, League attendance went to over 711,000 fans, more than ten times what it drew in 1993. The Dubois County Dragons also entered the League in 1999 by purchasing the Ohio Valley Redcoats. This purchase also meant that only the Chillicothe Paints remained from the original eight franchises that began in 1993. Also, the League became international in flavor by moving from Kalamazoo to London, Ontario, Canada. The Werewolves would set numerous team records on their way to becoming the 1999 League Champions.

The year 2000 propelled the League to even greater heights in publicity and notoriety, when in June, former Chillicothe Paint Brian Tollberg was called up to the Major Leagues with the San Diego Padres. Tollberg responded by winning the National League Player of the Week honors in his first week in the big leagues. Six days after Tollberg, Frontier League legend Morgan Burkhart received his call to the Boston Red Sox. Burkhart singled in his first at bat off of Baltimore's Mike Mussina. Other great moments in 2000 included London's Brett Gray striking out a League Record 25 batters on opening night. This almost unheard of feat drew national attention and even saw memorabilia of the event going to the Baseball Hall of Fame in Cooperstown. Gray was signed by the Cincinnati Reds two days later. There were also two no-hitters during the year, one by Chillicothe's Andy Lee and the other by Johnstown's Matt Sheets. The Johnstown Johnnies, who had barely played .500 ball in June, slugged their way to the League Championship. The River City Rascals eclipsed their own League attendance record by attracting in excess of 157,000 fans.

In 2001, the Gateway Grizzlies and Kalamazoo Kings were added to the League. These additions gave the League 12 teams. Gateway is based in Sauget, Illinois, a suburb east of St. Louis. They played their games in a temporary park in 2001 but opened a brand new \$6.5 million ballpark in 2002. In Kalamazoo, a group of local businessmen led by automobile dealer Bill Wright brought baseball back in a big way. The Kings drew over 103,000 fans on their way to being named Frontier League Organization of the Year. The League saw its first former manager, Jack Clark of the River City Rascals, advance to the Major Leagues as the Hitting Coach for the Los Angeles Dodgers. A tremendous pennant race that was settled on the last night of the season led to the Richmond Roosters claiming their first FL crown. Attendance reached an all-time high of 719,000 fans.

The League again saw changes for the 2002 season. Rockford, Illinois replaced Springfield. Rockford is the second largest city in Illinois and the RiverHawks had the highest average in professional baseball history in Rockford. Washington, Pennsylvania was also added by purchasing the Canton Crocodiles. The Wild Things opened new Falconi Field with a bang as they established a League Record for wins in a single season and took the powerful East Division crown. Also, Canton native Mark Haidet purchased the London franchise and moved it to Canton and Thurman Munson Stadium.

The Richmond Roosters won their second consecutive FL title, the first franchise to do that. The League set a record for attendance by drawing in excess of 950,000 fans to its parks. The League saw five more graduates reach the Major Leagues as Zanesville's Terry Pearson made the Detroit Tigers roster, Ohio Valley's Brendan Donnelly was called up by the Anaheim Angels and eventually gained a World Series win, J.J. Trujillo advanced to the Padres, and the Cardinals called up both Jason Simontacchi and Matt Duff. The Frontier League received national publicity in July, when media outlets such as The New York Times, the Washington Post, Fox Sports Radio, and Yahoo News covered the Home Run Derby that was used to break a tie in the All-Star Game at Kalamazoo. Footage of River City's Brody Jackson hitting the winning shot was featured as the Spotlight Segment on ESPN's SportsCenter the following night.

2003 was a record year for the League at the turnstiles. It was the first time in League history that the League attracted more than 1.1 million fans. The Gateway Grizzlies led the League in attendance and also claimed the League Championship en route to garnering the Organization of the Year award. The All-Star Game was a huge success and was televised by Fox Sports Midwest. In 2003, the League entered three new markets. Canton relocated to Columbia, Missouri, Dubois County relocated to Kenosha, Wisconsin and Johnstown ended an eight-year run in the League by selling to Florence, Kentucky. The Florence club played their games in Hamilton, Ohio while their new stadium was constructed and ready for play in 2004. Former Ohio Valley Redcoat Brendan Donnelly became the first former Frontier League player selected to the MLB All-Star Game. Donnelly, pitching for the Anaheim Angels, retired all three batters that he faced in the 8th inning and was the winning pitcher in the game.

In 2004, the League again took a dramatic jump in attendance. Nearly 1.3 million fans entered the turnstiles of Frontier League stadiums. The Gateway Grizzlies led the charge, being the first team to draw over 200,000 fans in a single season and average more than 4000 fans per night. The League expanded its schedule to 96 games with the majority of those games as intradivisional play. Also, the first round of playoffs was expanded to a best-of-5 game series. The Rockford RiverHawks claimed their first League title, sweeping the Evansville Otters 3 games to 0. Rockford's Richard Austin was named the League's MVP. Former Evansville Otters left-hander George Sherrill was the tenth former FL player to advance to the Major Leagues as he pitched for the Seattle Mariners. Plans for new Frontier League stadiums were announced in Rockford, Illinois and Traverse City, Michigan.

In 2005, the League attracted close to 1.2 million fans to its ballparks. The Kalamazoo Kings claimed their first League title in one of the most exciting playoff series in League history, defeating the Chillicothe Paints 3 games to 2. The Washington Wild Things hosted the All-Star Game to a sellout crowd at Falconi Field. Frontier League clubs moved 25 players to MLB clubs, and Kalamazoo's Pete Pirman won the Morgan Burkhart Award as the League's Most Valuable Player, eclipsing the League RBI record in the process. Following the season, the League suspended operations of the Ohio Valley and Mid-Missouri clubs for 2006. John and Leslye Wuerfel purchased the Richmond Roosters and relocated the club to their home town of Traverse City.

In 2006, the Frontier League drew almost 1.3 million fans to its 10 clubs. This translated to an average attendance of 2,713, the highest per game attendance in League history. The Evansville Otters opened their home schedule on May 27, when they became the first Frontier League team to draw 1,000,000 fans in their history. Much of the attendance increase was due to new facilities in Rockford, Illinois and Traverse City, Michigan. The Frontier League's 14th Annual All-Star Game was played in Evansville's historic Bosse Field and was televised into more than 14 million homes on Fox Sports Net. The West Division won the game in a Home Run Derby tie-breaker when Evansville's Beau Blacken slammed the game winner. Kalamazoo's Ian Church was the MVP of the All-Star Game as well as the League MVP. He was only the second player in League history to hit more than 30 homers in a season. In a battle of the League's two oldest teams, the Evansville Otters defeated the Chillicothe Paints 3 games to 0 to claim their first League championship. Former River City Rascal, Josh Kinney, was the 13th former FL player to play in the Major Leagues. He was an integral part of the St. Louis Cardinals run to the World Series Championship.

In 2007, the Frontier League drew a record 1.5 million fans to its 12 clubs. It was the highest per game average for attendance in League history. Much of the attendance increase was due to the addition of the Southern Illinois Miners that drew more than 5000 fans per game and a League Record total attendance of 259,392 fans to Rent One Park. The League's 15th Annual All-Star Game was played in Florence, Ky., and was the first game ever sold out for the Freedom organization. The South All-Stars won the game, as Florence's Reggie Watson garnered MVP honors. In a tremendous FL Championship Series, the Windy City Thunderbolts came from a 2 game deficit to defeat the Washington Wild Things in one of the greatest Championship Series in League history. It was the first championship for the ThunderBolts in their club history. Chillicothe Paints shortstop Travis Garcia earned the League's Morgan Burkhart Award as the Most Valuable Player.

In 2008, the Frontier League drew 1.46 million fans to its 11 home clubs, as the Midwest team operated as a road team the entire year. The Southern Illinois Miners again paced the League by attracting over 218,000 fans. The League's 16th Annual All-Star Game was played in beautiful Wuerfel Park in Traverse City, Michigan, and saw in excess of 9,000 fans in attendance for two nights of festivities. The East All-Stars won the game, in a tie-breaking All-Star Home Run Derby. Florence's Angel Molina garnered MVP honors. The Kalamazoo Kings were featured prominently in a story-line of the nationally syndicated comic strip Gil Thorp that ran for several weeks in July. In the League Championship Series, Homer Stryker Field in Kalamazoo was flooded with over 3 feet of water due to storms. The entire series was moved to Windy City's Standard Bank Stadium. The ThunderBolts took advantage of the situation and swept the Kings 3 games to 0 to claim their second FL Championship in a row and became only the second team in League history to win back-to-back titles. Windy City First Baseman Phillip Hawke claimed the League's Most Valuable Player Award. Ryan Bird of Southern Illinois was the Most Valuable Pitcher. Kalamazoo Manager Fran Riordan was honored as the Manager of the Year. Three additional Frontier League graduates made their Major League Baseball debuts, as outfielder Justin Christian (River City Rascals, 2003-04) and right-handed pitcher Scott Patterson (Gateway Grizzlies, 2002-05) spent time with the New York Yankees (Patterson later appeared in games for the San Diego Padres, as well) and infielder Mike Cervenak (Chillicothe Paints, 1999-2000) was called up by the Philadelphia Phillies. In addition, former Evansville Otter George Sherrill became the second Frontier League alum to be named an MLB All-Star, as the left-hander tossed 2.1 scoreless innings in the game.

The 2009 season saw the opening of another new ballpark with All Pro Freight Stadium in Avon, Ohio, hosting the Lake Erie Crushers, while the Midwest Sliders set up camp in Ypsilanti, Michigan, to give their players a home for the season and introduce Frontier League baseball to the metro Detroit market. Two major League milestones were set. Rockford outfielder Jason James hit safely in 40 consecutive games from June 2 to July 18 to break the record set by former Johnstown Steal and Richmond Rooster Kevin Holt, while Kalamazoo's Fran Riordan overtook Greg Tagert as the all-time winningest field manager in Frontier League history. Other individual accomplishments included Florence's Preston Vancil tossing a no-hitter in only his second professional appearance, Windy City's Robert Perry tying the League record with a six-hit game, and Traverse City's John Alonso hitting for the cycle. Both the Gateway Grizzlies and Lake Erie Crushers received national television exposure, the Grizzlies on the Travel Channel's Man v. Food for their "Baseball's Best" line-up of concession items while the Crushers had an ESPN crew follow the team to document the story of pitcher Josh Faiola, who spent the season living at the Belvedere of Westlake, as assisted living facility located just down I-90 from the Crushers' ballpark. The East Division captured the All-Star Game, helped by back-to-back home runs from game MVP Ryan Basham of the Florence Freedom and Home Run Derby champion Grant Psomas of the Washington Wild Things. In a playoff race where none of the participants clinched berths until the final weekend of the regular season, the Windy City ThunderBolts became only the third team to qualify in three consecutive seasons while the Kalamazoo Kings repeated as East Division champions. Both were knocked out in the first round, however, as Frontier League Manager of the Year Chad Parker led the River City Rascals against the expansion Crushers in the Championship Series. After dropping the first two games in the best-of-five series, Lake Erie rebounded to win the final three games and join the 1997 Canton Crocodiles as the only expansion team from the last 15 years to win the title. Joey Metropolous of the Southern Illinois Miners was selected League MVP, with Paul Fagan of the Lake Erie Crushers as the Pitcher of the Year and Windy City's Vinnie Scarduzio the Rookie of the Year. Two more former players made their Major League Baseball debuts, with former Florence Freedom and Ohio Valley Redcoat pitcher Chris Jakubauskas (the first pick in the Frontier League's 2003 draft) making the Opening Day roster for the Seattle Mariners and Clay Zavada getting called up to the Arizona Diamondbacks' bullpen less than one year after suiting up for the Southern Illinois Miners.

The 2010 season saw the opening of another new ballpark (The Corn Crib, home of the Normal CornBelters), two record winning-streaks, and a new Frontier League all-time home run king. Over 5,800 fans were at The Corn Crib on June 1 when professional baseball returned to the Bloomington-Normal area for the first time in 70 years. The Southern Illinois Miners shattered the league record for a consecutive game winning streak, posting 20 consecutive victories from June 9-28. The Miners 39-9 record at the All-Star Break was the best ever in the Frontier League, and Southern Illinois placed a league-record 10 players in the All-Star Game, which they hosted at Rent One Park in Marion. In the East Division, the Oakland County Cruisers won 29 of 37 games, despite playing all but six on the road, to give first year field manager Gera Alvarez the All-Star nod. The extensive travel for the Cruisers, who played 78 games on the road, combined by a league-record 20 home game winning streak for the Windy City ThunderBolts from July 22-August 25, gave Windy City their third division title in four seasons. The ThunderBolts joined the 1997-2000 Evansville Otters and the 2002-2007 Washington Wild Things as the only teams to make the playoffs in at least four consecutive seasons. While Southern Illinois maintained their lead in the West the entire season, both wild card races came down to the season's final weekend with River City edging out Gateway in the West and Traverse City reaching the playoffs for the first time in their five seasons in the East. The Divisional Series matchups both featured comebacks, as the Beach Bums dropped game 1 to Windy City before taking the next three and Southern Illinois took the first two games from River City before the Rascals rebounded to game the final three games, including a 10-inning victory in the deciding game. In the Championship Series, Traverse City took the opening game with River City winning the next three for their first title. Championship Series MVP Josh Lowey threw a complete game in game 3, which was spread out over two days due to rain, including retiring all 15 batters that he faced after the game restarted. Gateway's Charlie Lisk won the regular season MVP award in a year that saw him break the career home run record. Joe Augustine from Southern Illinois was the Pitcher of the Year, while Windy City's Dustin Williams won Rookie of the Year. Between the regular season and the playoffs, over 1.52 million fans saw Frontier League baseball in 2010, setting a new record.

2011 brought another new market to the Frontier League with the expansion Joliet Slammers and saw the return of the Rockford RiverHawks under new ownership led by Frontier League founder Dr. Chris Hanners. The River City Rascals used a stretch of 12 wins in 13 games in late June to jump to the top of the West Division where they would remain for the remainder of the season. River City's 68 victories tied them with the 2007 Windy City ThunderBolts for the most in one season. The Slammers played .660 baseball from July 1 through the end of August to become the first expansion team to win their division. Southern Illinois comfortably won the West wild card,

while the East wild card came down to the final series with Lake Erie and Traverse City facing each other for the right to advance to the playoffs. After the teams split the first two games, it took ten innings on the final day of regular season for the Crushers to notch a 3-1 victory. Joliet and River City both advanced in the Divisional round leading to a Championship Series between the two division winners. After the Rascals took game 1 in River City, Joliet rebounded to win the next three games to bring the Frontier League Cup to the City of Champions.

2011 saw several on-field achievements highlighted by Joliet's Andrew Moss tossing the 15th no-hitter in Frontier League history against the Lake Erie Crushers. Moss' gem came just a few hours after the Cleveland Indians were no-hit by the Los Angeles Angels of Anaheim 20 miles to the east of All Pro Freight Stadium and resulted in national coverage of two professional games featuring no-hitters by the visiting clubs on the same day in the same metropolitan area. Joliet's Ryan Quigley recorded 28 saves to set a new record while Windy City's Dustin Williams set a new mark by striking out 157 batters. River City swept the MVP and Pitcher of the Year awards with Stephen Holdren finishing in the top 5 in home runs, RBI, and batting average while Josh Lowey was in the top 5 in victories, strikeouts, and ERA. Joliet's Erik Lis had a triple and drove in two runs to lead the East Division to an All-Star Game victory in front of the largest crowd in All Pro Freight Stadium history. Two more Frontier League alumni made their MLB debuts in 2011 as former Washington Wild Thing Tom Cochran was called up by the Cincinnati Reds for a nationally televised game in late May and former Windy City ThunderBolt Dylan Axelrod made four appearances (three starts) for the Chicago White Sox in September, finishing with a 1-0 record, 2.89 ERA, and 19 strikeouts in 18.2 innings.

The Frontier League added to their presence in the Chicago area in 2012 with the debut of the Schaumburg Boomers. The Boomers brought an outstanding operation to the Frontier League both on and off the field, starting with over 6,000 fans to watch their inaugural home game. In his first managerial job, the Boomers' Jamie Bennett, who spent time in Dubois County, Kenosha, and Springfield/Ozark during his playing career, managed the West Division in the All-Star Game where he battled Traverse City's Gregg Langbehn, who set a record by having 10 of his players selected for the game. Over 5,000 fans attended the game at The Corn Crib in Normal where London's Joash Brodin was named MVP. Going into the final weekend of the regular season, only Traverse City had clinched a playoff berth, with Florence, Gateway, Lake Erie, Schaumburg, Southern Illinois, and Windy City all in the running for the three remaining spots. The Gateway Grizzlies won 16 out of 20 games in late July to jump into the race and finished with nine victories in their final 12 games to take the West Division title. The Florence Freedom won 13 of their final 14 games to take the top Wild Card spot while the Southern Illinois Miners qualified for the playoffs for the fourth time in the past five seasons. The Miners swept the Beach Bums in the first round while the Freedom defeated the Grizzlies in a series that went the full five games, setting up a Championship Series featuring two first-time participants. Southern Illinois captured their first title behind an 8-for-16 hitting performance from Championship Series MVP Cannon Lester. Seven of the 14 teams had a former Frontier League player as their field manager.

Individual achievements included a no-hitter by Windy City's Tyson Corley, Gateway's Jonathan Johnson reaching base safely in 65 consecutive games,

Rockford's Javier Herrera hitting for the cycle, Traverse City's Ryan Still becoming the first player to walk 100 times in a season, and Darian Sandford setting the stolen base record with 71 for Southern Illinois and Washington. League MVP Jose Vargas tied the single-season mark with 100 RBI for Traverse City while Windy City's Mike Recchia broke the records for strikeouts (177) and shutouts (5) in a season in being voted Pitcher of the Year. Former Evansville and Windy City pitcher Andrew Werner made his Major League debut with the San Diego Padres, becoming the 23rd player to advance to the big leagues. Following the season, former Zanesville Grey and Springfield Capital Darren Bush was named Bullpen Coach for the Oakland Athletics, becoming the first former Frontier League player to be part of a Major League coaching staff. Following the 2012 season, Rockford announced a rebranding of the team with Aviators selected following a name-the-team contest.

The 2013 season was one of the most competitive in Frontier League history. For the first time since 2009 no club won 60 games while nine clubs reached the 50-victory plateau. Entering the final three games of the regular season, only the Schaumburg Boomers had clinched a playoff berth while six clubs were in the running for the final four spots, and two different scenarios would have resulted in a four-way tie. The Boomers won 26 of their final 35 regular season games to take the West Division title while in the East the battle came down to a head-to-head series between Lake Erie and Traverse City to end the season. The Crushers won the first two games to clinch their first division crown after a run of 19-2 to begin August launched them into the playoff race. Schaumburg won the title, becoming the first club in the ten seasons that the Frontier League has used a best-of-five format for both playoff rounds to sweep both series. More impressively, the Boomers were either tied or trailing at some point after the start of the 7th inning in all six games. Mike Giovenco was named Championship Series MVP, pitching in all three games, and winning two while not allowing any runs.

For individual accomplishments, Traverse City's Scott Dunn became the first pitcher in league history to win his first 14 decisions of the season, including a stretch of victories in nine consecutive starts, to run away with the Pitcher of the Year award. The Most Valuable Player vote was once of the closest in history, with league RBI leader Jacob Tanis of Florence winning the balloting. River City catcher Danny Canela led the Frontier League with a .360 batting average and was voted Rookie of the Year. Gateway's Landon Hernandez hit three home runs in a game on August 3, Joliet's Niko Vasquez hit for the cycle on September 4, and the Grizzlies' Tim Brown tossed a nohitter on July 20. On August 31, Chase Doremus, Lucas Goodgion, Jason Sullivan, Corey Kimes, Matt Dillon, and Brett Zawacki of the Slammers combined to toss a 10-inning no-hitter. It is believed that this game was the first time in professional baseball history that six pitchers combined to hold another club hitless. Florence's Junior Arrojo broke his own single-season record by getting hit by 38 pitches while Evansville's Eric Massingham set the career mark for saves. In a game that was suspended due to rain the previous night, Washington and Windy City battled for 5:53 and 19-innings on June 1-2 for what turned out to be the first game of a double-header to mark the longest Frontier League contest by both innings and time.

Two more Frontier League alumni made their Major League debuts in 2013. Former Washington Wild Thing Vidal Nuno won the James P. Dawson Award as the best rookie in New York Yankees' spring training and pitched in five games (three starts) with a 1-2 record and 2.25 ERA during the regular season. Former Southern Illinois Miner Tanner Roark saw action in 14 games (five starts) for the Washington Nationals, winning his first seven decisions as part of a 7-1 record and 1.51 ERA. Steve Delabar of the Toronto Blue Jays, who spent part of the 2008 season with the Florence Freedom, became the third former Frontier League player to be selected a MLB All-Star when he won the fan's Final Vote contest for the American League. Delabar struck out the only batter whom he faced, Buster Posey of the San Francisco Giants, in the game.

In the press box, Robert Ford (Houston Astros) and Aaron Goldsmith (Seattle Mariners) became the first two former Frontier League broadcasters to become full-time MLB play-by-play voices. Both Robert and Aaron began their professional careers in the Frontier League, Robert with the 2003-04 Kalamazoo Kings and Aaron with the 2007 Gateway Grizzlies.

The 2014 season was a banner one for the Frontier League. With the playoff field expanding from four teams to six, a tight playoff race ensued. The West Division race ended with both the River City Rascals and Schaumburg Boomers holding 61-35 records, with the Rascals taking the division title and advancing to the divisional playoff round by virtue of a head-to-head advantage. The East Division sent four teams to the playoffs, the Southern Illinois Miners (60-36), Evansville Otters (57-37), Washington Wild Things (57-39) and Lake Erie Crushers (52-43). Evansville reached the postseason for the first time since 2006, while Washington's postseason appearance was their first since 2007. In the Wild Card matchups, the Boomers knocked off the Crushers while the Wild Things beat the Otters. The divisional round saw the Rascals beat the Wild Things and the Boomers beat the Miners, setting up an all West Division championship series, with Schaumburg looking to repeat as Frontier League Champions. The championship series began in O'Fallon with a 5-1 victory for the home team. In game 2 Schaumburg found success as shortstop Gerard Hall homered for the second straight game and Justin Erasmus went 5.2 strong innings, leading the Boomers to a 6-2 win and a split in O'Fallon before heading home for games 3 and 4. Game 3 saw an offensive explosion for the Boomers, who hung 11 runs on Rascals pitching and took a commanding 2 games to 1 lead with an 11-2 victory. Game 4 ended triumphantly for the Boomers as well, as they won 6-2 and made the Boomers the third team in the league's history to win consecutive championships. Hall was selected as the Championship Series MVP.

The 2014 season also saw numerous historic individual performances in the Frontier League. Reliever Patrick Crider of the Rascals broke his own record by appearing in 65 games and Washington closer Jonathan Kountis set a new league record with 32 saves. Southern Illinois' Chris Burke tied a Frontier League record with 9 RBI in a July 30 game that saw him also hit for the cycle and Gateway's Richard Seigel (June 28) and Ryan Cavan of Southern Illinois (August 19) both tied a league record with 6 hits in games. Frank Florio of the Frontier Greys had a big day on July 30 as well, joining Burke in hitting for the cycle. Windy City's Mike Torres became the Frontier League's Iron Man when he appeared in his 287th consecutive game on May 25. Torres' streak, which began on June 1, 2011, eventually ended on July 29 at 339 games. Entering the last couple of weeks of the season, four no-hitters had taken place. Rick Teasley of Southern Illinois threw a 7 inning no hitter on June 5, Travis Tingle of Windy City threw a pair of no-hitters on June 19 (5 innings) and August 20 (7 innings) and Evansville's Chad James threw a 7 inning no-no on August 20. Matt Sergey of Washington, however, took impressive pitching performances to another level on August 24 against Gateway, throwing the first perfect game in Frontier League history in a full 9 inning game. Shayne Houck of the Otters was named the season's MVP, while Southern Illinois' Matt Bywater won Pitcher of the Year and Rockford Aviators' Tanner Witt won the Rookie of the Year award.

A historic number of Frontier League players were picked up by MLB organizations, as over 50 players got the call to affiliated baseball since the beginning of the 2014 season. Drew Rucinski, who played for the Rockford RiverHawks and Aviators, made his big league debut for the Angels, becoming the 26th former Frontier League player to reach the show. Also representing the Frontier League in the big leagues in 2014 were Dylan Axelrod (Reds), Steve Delabar (Blue Jays), Vidal Nuno (Yankees and Diamondbacks), Tanner Roark (Nationals) and Joe Thatcher (Diamondbacks and Angels). Prior to the 2014 season, former Traverse City Beach Bums manager Gregg Langbehn was hired by the Cleveland Indians as their first MLB Replay Coordinator, followed just days later by former Windy City ThunderBolts manager Mike Kashirsky, who was hired to the same position by the Chicago White Sox. Following the season alumnae Darren Bush was promoted by the Oakland Athletics to hitting coach.

The 2014 season saw the initial class of Frontier League Hall of Famers inducted at All-Star week, hosted by the Gateway Grizzlies. Players Morgan Burkhart, Aaron Ledbetter, Scott Pinoni, Fran Riordan and Kirk Taylor were selected for induction, as were special contributor Dr. W. Chris Hanners and the special moment of Brett Gray's 25 strikeout game for the London Werewolves.

2015 featured playoff races that were not decided until the final day of the regular season and another MLB debut. Brandon Cunniff, who played for River City and Southern Illinois, spent the bulk of 2015 in the Atlanta Braves' bullpen, setting a Braves' rookie record for the most games pitched at the start of a MLB career without allowing a hit. The Normal CornBelters made the playoffs for the first time by winning the West Division, while the Southern Illinois Miners defended their East Division title. The Rockford Aviators and Florence Freedom edged out Evansville for the final two playoff spots. The River City Rascals defeated Florence then Southern Illinois to return to the Championship Series for the fifth time in the last seven seasons. The Rascals' Josh Silver hit two grand slams in the deciding game over the Miners, becoming the first player in either regular or post-season history to achieve this feat. The finals were a rematch of the 2010 season, with a Traverse City sweep giving the Beach Bums their first title. River City's Taylor Ard led the league in both home runs (30) and RBI (83) to capture the MVP award while Southern Illinois' Adam Lopez was voted Pitcher of the Year and Brandon Tierney of the Frontier Greys selected Rookie of the Year. Normal's Patrick McKenna posted one of the best single games in league history on August 2 with three home runs and nine RBI, both tying league records. A leaguerecord crowd of 6,572 saw the West Division top the East in the All-Star Game in Schaumburg, with Rockford's Michael Hur selected as game MVP.

The Greys received national attention through a feature story in Maxim Magazine, and six members of their pitching staff went on to be signed by MLB organizations. The Washington Wild Things also received national publicity, as a story on Pete Rose featured pictures of the Hit King wearing a Wild Things uniform during an appearance at CONSOL Energy Park. Former Grey Balbino Fuenmayor became the first FL alum to be selected for the MLB

Futures Game and following the season former Rockford Aviators Jose Martinez (Royals) and Josh Smoker (Mets) were added to their club's 40-man MLB roster. The Chicago White Sox hired Jason Benetti, who broke in as the radio broadcaster for Windy City in 2006, as their TV announcer for home games. The second Frontier League Hall of Fame Class was inducted as part of the All-Star festivities, with former players Mike Breyman, Bobby Chandler, Stephen Holdren, Jason James, and Chris Sidick inducted along with special contributor Bob Wolfe. The 2002 All-Star Game Home Run Derby, the highlights of which were featured as the Spotlight Segment on ESPN's SportsCenter, was honored as the significant moment in league history.

The 2016 season was the tightest since the Frontier League schedule expanded to 96 games, as with three weeks left in the regular season all 12 clubs were within 2.5 games of a playoff berth. Southern Illinois used a 20-3 run from June 4-July 1 to vault to the top of the West Division where they remained for the rest of the season to claim their third consecutive division title. In the East, Joliet used a streak of 12 wins in 15 games in early June and spent the bulk of the season in first place to qualify for the playoffs for the first time since 2011. Evansville won 10 of their final 14 games to claim the top Wild Card spot, while River City's victory on the final day of the regular season edged them past Lake Erie for the remaining position. The Rascals advanced to their sixth championship series in the past eight seasons to face the Otters, who advanced for the first time since their 2006 Championship. The series went the maximum five games for the first time since the 2009 season, with the Otters pulling out a 1-0 victory in front of the home Bosse Field crowd in what was described as the tightest deciding game in Frontier League history.

On-field excitement began early as Kramer Champlin celebrated receiving his 2015 Championship ring at Traverse City's home opener by tossing the first no-hitter in Beach Bums' history. Gateway's Brandon Thomas hit a grand slam on August 21 against Joliet with the ball leaving the stadium and crashing through the front windshield of Thomas's own pickup. Video of the shot and resulting damage received national publicity, and Thomas was interviewed live on ESPN from GCS Ballpark the following evening. Evansville's long-time Flag Chairman Marvin Gray, a fixture at Bosse Field and sporting events throughout Indiana for over 60 years, passed away on July 27. Four more players made their Major League debuts in 2017, starting with Josh Smoker, the 2nd overall pick in the 2014 Frontier League draft, who was called up to be the 26th player for the New York Mets' doubleheader on July 26. Smoker did not appear that day but was recalled on August 19 and saw action in 20 games with a 3-0 record. Former London Ripper and Florence Freedom outfielder Stephen Cardullo was promoted by the Colorado Rockies on August 26 and celebrated his 29th birthday five days later by hitting home runs in both games of a double-header, including a grand slam. Jose Martinez from the 2014 Rockford Aviators got the call from St. Louis on September 6 and hit .438 over 12 games for the Cardinals. Chris Smith, who came out of the 2010 Frontier League draft and saw action with the Lake Erie Crushers, Traverse City Beach Bums, and Washington Wild Things, was promoted by the Toronto Blue Jays as bullpen support for the last week of the regular season. Off the field, Jason Benetti, who began his broadcasting career as the voice of the Windy City ThunderBolts in 2005, became the first former Frontier League broadcaster to be named the television voice of a Major League team when he was hired by the Chicago White Sox for the 2016 season.

The Florence Freedom hosted the All-Star Game for the second time in their history, with the host West Division posting a 11-4 victory aided by game MVP Nik Balog's 3-run home run. The All-Star events also saw the induction of Richard Austin, Willie Edwards, Charlie Lisk, Joey Metropoulos, and Matt Schweitzer along with recognition of long-time umpire Max McLeary as a Special Contributor and acknowledgement of Brian Tollberg becoming the first former Frontier League player to advance to the Major Leagues as the Significant Moment.

The 2017 off-season started with former Frontier Grey Ariel Hernandez being added to the Cincinnati Reds' 40-man roster. 12 former Frontier League players were part of World Baseball Classic rosters, including Tanner Roark, who made his professional debut with the Southern Illinois Miners in 2008 and became the first former FL player to play for Team USA. Roark, whose 16 wins in 2016 for the Washington Nationals tied him for fifth in the National League, started the WBC semi-final game against Japan and tossed four scoreless innings.

The 2017 Frontier League season began with early excitement as Evansville's Shane Weedman tossed only the second no-hitter in the Otters' 22-season history on May 13, striking out 11 Southern Illinois Miners in the process. The Florence Freedom won their first eight games of the season to jump to the top of the West Division, a spot that they held for the bulk of the season in winning their first division title. The Schaumburg Boomers also started the season hot, winning 24 of their first 32 games. The Boomers rebounded from a leagueworst 41-55 record in 2016 to a 66-30 mark, the third most wins in Frontier League history. While the two division winners were set with more than a week remaining in the regular season, five clubs entered the final series of the year within reach of a wild card spot. Washington won seven of their final eight games to claim only the Wild Things' second playoff berth in the past ten seasons while the defending champion Evansville Otters used an 8-2 streak at the end of August to get the second wild card. Schaumburg and Florence both won 3-1 first round series to create a Championship Series featuring the two All-Star Game managers. Schaumburg's Jamie Bennett and Florence's Dennis Pelfrey were teammates in the Frontier League from 2002-04, making 2017 the first time that former teammates managed against each other in either the All-Star Game and the Championship Series. Jamie (pitcher) and Dennis (catcher) both made the 2003 All-Star Game while with the Kenosha Mammoths. Schaumburg prevailed in the finals to give the Boomers their third title in the past five seasons.

Key individual achievements included Traverse City's Will Kengor tying the record with three home runs on July 9 while both David Harris of Schaumburg (June 22) and L.J. Kalawaia from Lake Erie (July 22) hit for the cycle. On the pitching side, River City's Nick Kennedy became the career leader for games pitched with 255 outings over his six seasons with the Rascals. Southern Illinois set a new record for runs scored in an inning with 15 in the 4th at Normal on June 4, a mark that Evansville tied on July 25 against Traverse City (also the 4th inning). Harris had a quality all-around season by hitting .344 with 13 home runs, 65 RBI, and 13 stolen bases to become the first Boomer named Most Valuable Player. Evansville's Max Duval won Pitcher of the Year after leading the league in ERA by a quarter of a run and had the most strikeout when the Miami Marlins purchased his contract. Kyano Cummings, also of Evansville, became the second player in three

years out of the California Winter League to claim Rookie of the Year honors while Washington's All-Star outfielder Rashad Brown earned the Citizenship Award.

The Cincinnati Reds promoted Ariel Hernandez of the 2015 Frontier Greys on April 23, making the first from the Greys teams and the 32nd overall to advance. Hernandez made his MLB debut the following night, retiring all eight batters that he faced, five by strikeout. Hernandez was one of nine former Frontier League players to appear in Major League games in 2017, which included former Florence Freedom hurler Aaron Wilkerson whose debut with the Milwaukee Brewers included holding the St. Louis Cardinals to only two hits and one run in seven innings. The path to MLB continued at the beginning of the 2018 season as Trevor Richards, who made his professional debut with Gateway in 2015, continued the work that had him named Minor League Pitcher of the Year for the Miami Marlins by making their starting rotation.

Several former Frontier League personnel received significant achievements in MLB as well. Robert Ford, the Broadcaster of the Year in 2003 and 2004 with the Kalamazoo Kings, was able to call the final out of the 2017 World Series as the Houston Astros' radio play-by-play man. Former Dubois County hitting coach and Windy City manager Andy Haines was promoted to the Chicago Cubs' Major League staff for 2018 as their assistant hitting coach. Jeff Albert from the 2002 Washington Wild Things was named to the same role for the Houston Astros. Fran Riordan, a former All-Star player and the Frontier League's winningest manager, was promoted to manage Oakland's Triple-A club, the Nashville Sounds. Former Schaumburg Boomer and two-time Frontier League champion Frank Pfister was named Mental Skills Coach for the Cincinnati Reds. Two former FL pitching coaches, Mark Dewey (Washington) and Chris Hook (Florence) were named co-pitching coordinators for the Milwaukee Brewers while former Evansville pitcher and long-time FL pitching coach Brendan Sagara was hired as the Chicago Cubs' pitching coordinator. Jason Simontacchi, the 1998 Pitcher of the Year while with the Springfield Capitals, was hired for the same role with Kansas City while his former Springfield teammate Steve Barningham was promoted to Global Crosschecker by the New York Mets.

The 2018 season featured a new all-time hit leader, two more Major League debuts, a record number of alumni in the Majors, and the closest championship series since the best-of-five format was introduced for the 2000 season. Normal's Santiago Chirino lined a single to left-center in his first at bat at Gateway on June 24 to tie former Washington Wild Thing Chris Sidick. After walking in his next two at bats, Chirino drove a single to right field in the sixth inning to earn the record. Chirino led the league with a .367 average and finished his six-season Frontier League career with 726 hits. Other individual milestones included Washington's James Harris hitting for the cycle on May 17; Windy City's Tyler Straub tying the single-game hit record with six on July 6; Evansville's Ty Hensley and Matt Chavarria combining for a no-hitter on August 11; and Lake Erie's Alex Romero setting a record with 38.1 scoreless innings (from August 1 to August 31).

The publicity highlight from 2018 occurred on June 21, when former Indianapolis Colts' Pro Bowl punter Pat McAfee started in right field for the Washington Wild Things. McAfee, a native of nearby Plum High School and West Virginia University, brought the national audience from his Barstool Sports show to Wild Things Park. The game, which was billed as "Dingers Only Night", was used to benefit the "It's About the Warrior Foundation." The It's About the Warrior Foundation is a post-9/11 veteran's organization that assists and empowers all tri-state area post-9/11 veterans and their families with its various programs.

August began with no team no more than three games out of a playoff spot, and the tight races continued to the final weekend. Washington used a 21-9 streak starting on July 27 to finish with the same record as Joliet, where the Wild Things' 7-5 head-to-head mark gave them their first division title since 2007. River City won 11 of their final 14 contests to hold off Evansville for the West title. After Washington swept Evansville and Joliet knock off the Rascals in five games in the divisional series, the Slammers took a decisive game 5 of the Championship Series giving manager Jeff Isom his first professional title in his 19-year managerial career. The five games were decided by a total of eight runs, with no game featuring more than a 2-run differential.

Former Windy City ThunderBolt Ryan Bollinger became the 35th former Frontier League player to get the call to MLB when the New York Yankees promoted him on May 23. Along with Bollinger, Robert Stock, the top pick in the 2015 Frontier League draft by the Normal CornBelters, made his MLB debut, appearing in 32 games for San Diego and posting a 2.50 ERA. A total of ten former Frontier League players saw MLB time in 2018, the most in any single season.

During the off-season several former Frontier League players and coaches were promoted in their MLB organizations. Andy Haines, who started his professional career as hitting coach for Dubois County in 2002 and later managed the 2007 Windy City ThunderBolts to their first championship, was hired as hitting coach by the Milwaukee Brewers. Joining Andy on the Brewers' MLB staff is pitching coach Chris Hook, who served in the same role for the Florence Freedom for their first five seasons. Guillermo Martinez from the 2009-10 Windy City ThunderBolts was promoted to hitting coach by the Toronto Blue Jays and Jeff Albert was named hitting coach for the St. Louis Cardinals. Former ThunderBolts and Gateway Grizzlies third baseman Donnie Ecker was named assistant MLB hitting coach for Cincinnati as well. The 2019 season began with another MLB debut, as former Rockford Aviator and Frontier Greys hurler Nick Anderson retired the only batter he faced in the Miami Marlins' opening game. Anderson became the 22nd player who began his career in the Frontier League to advance to the Majors.

Nick was traded to Tampa Bay along with former Gateway Grizzlie Trevor Richards at the MLB trade deadline on July 31 and both helped lead the Rays to a Wild Card berth. Nick was named the relief pitcher on Baseball America's All-Rookie Team following the season. On the same date as the Anderson/Richards trade the Seattle Mariners promoted former Washington Wild Things' to their MLB roster. Grotz saw action in 14 games for the Mariners, recording a 1-0 record and 4.15 ERA while striking out 18 batters in 17.1 innings.

Inside the Frontier League, Most Valuable Player Ryan Long led the Evansville Otters to their first division title in 20 years. The Otters used a 17-5 stretch in August to catch Florence and claimed first place due to their 7-5 head-to-head record over the Freedom. Florence used a stretch of 13 wins in 14 games during late June to earn their second playoff spot in the past three

seasons. The Lake Erie Crushers won their first division title in six seasons, while the River City Rascals claimed the final playoff spot. 2019 marked the eight time in eleven seasons that the Rascals' advanced to the playoffs. Sweeps in the Divisional Series put Florence and River City in the Championship Series. River City took a 2-1 series lead when Tanner Murphy and Nick Anderson hit back-to-back solo home runs in the bottom of the 9th to tie then win the game. A Florence victory in game 4 shifted the action back to UC Health Stadium, making the third time in the past four years that the Championship Series went the maximum five games. The Rascals scored six times in the top of the 7th inning to take the lead and hold on for the title, giving manager a title in his final season as River City manager to go along with the one from his inaugural season in 2010.

Schaumburg first baseman Quincy Nieporte posted the top single-game performance of 2019 on August 12 at Gateway. Nieporte came to the plate in each of the first three innings, producing a three-run home run in the first, a bases-clearing double in the second, and a grand slam in the third. The ten RBI set a new league single-game record. 24 players were sold to MLB organizations during the regular season, led by Evansville's five and four each from Florence and River City. Another nine players had their contracts purchased following the season.

The media highlight came when Florence's "Dad Bod" replica jerseys worn on Father's Day were subsequently featured on MLB Network.

The biggest event of 2019 came when the Frontier League traveled to Rockland County, New York, to face the Can-Am League in the All-Star Game. Game MVP J.J. Fernandez and his Washington teammate Hector Roa combined to go five-for-eight with a double, home run, four runs scored, and four RBI while ten pitchers combined to strike out 13 Can-Am batters while walking only two and surrendering only six hits in the 7-0 victory.

The All-Star festivities were just a precursor to the biggest announcement in the Frontier League's 27-year history. A press conference on October 17 streamed on-line and viewed by over 500 media outlets announced that the New Jersey Jackals, Quebec Capitales, Rockland Boulders, Sussex County Miners, and Trois-Rivieres Aigles from the Can-Am League would be merging into the Frontier League. The additional clubs make the Frontier League the largest independent league while stretching the borders from the Mississippi River to the Atlantic Ocean and from the Ohio River to the Saint Lawrence Seaway.

Changes continued to occur leading up the 2020 season. Rebranding efforts led to the newly named Florence Y'alls and New York Boulders. Playoff managers Dennis Pelfrey (San Francisco Giants) and Cam Roth (Detroit Tigers) were hired to manage affiliated teams. Former Windy City pitcher Dylan Axelrod was named assistant pitching coordinator for the Los Angeles Angels while his former ThunderBolt teammates Donnie Ecker was named hitting coach for San Francisco and Ricky Meinhold was promoted to pitching coordinator for the New York Mets. Former Chillicothe and Lake Erie infielder Drew Saylor was hired as hitting coordinator for the Kansas City Royals and former Kalamazoo infielder and manager Chris Newell was hired to manage in the New York Mets' system. The planned debut of the newly expanded Frontier League had to wait a year after the impacts of the COVID-19 resulted in the suspension of the 2020 season. The Frontier League grew by two additional clubs at the end of 2020, adding the Ottawa Titans as an expansion team plus the Tri-City ValleyCats from the former New York-Penn League. The Titans return professional baseball to Canada's capital city and will call Raymond Chabot Grant Thornton Park, former home of the Triple-A Ottawa Lynx, to the Frontier League. Tri-City brings a tremendously successful operation to the Frontier League, serving the fans of the Capital District of New York.

The closure of the Canada-United States border resulted in pushing the Ottawa Titans' first game to the 2022 season. Ottawa, Québec, and Trois-Rivières were replaced in the 2021 season by Équipe Québec—a team that used the Canadian players from the Capitales, Aigles, and Titans to craft the base of their roster. They spent the first half of the season on the road and returned to Québec July 30 to face the Sussex County Miners. Their home games were split between Stade Canac in Québec City and Stade Quillorama in Trois-Rivières.

The 2021 season was the first for the Frontier League as a Partner League of Major League Baseball and featured the debut of FrontierLeagueTV.com, a live-streaming service powered by Vimeo that allowed fans to watch every Frontier League game live and follow their teams both at home and on the road. The season also saw the debut of the new home run derby tiebreaker rule, which determined the outcome of games if still tied after an extra inning of play. In total, there were 27 home run derbies that took place.

Several milestones were reached during the 2021 season. The Windy City ThunderBolts broke a league stolen base record as a team, stealing 204 bases in the season, and the Evansville Otters broke the league record for strikeouts (pitching), recording 843 as a team. Trey Hair of the Sussex County Miners tied the Frontier League game record with three home runs on June 1 against New Jersey. Matt McGarry hit for the cycle for the Schaumburg Boomers on June 18 against Southern Illinois. There were three no-hitters—one by Michael Austin of the Southern Illinois Miners, and two combined no-hitters by the Tri-City ValleyCats and the Joliet Slammers. Zach Strecker of the Washington Wild Things became the All-Time Frontier League Saves Leader, surpassing Eric Massingham's previous record of 70 career saves and finishing the season with 74 career saves. Also notable, Evansville Otters manager and Frontier League Manager of the Year Andy McCauley picked up his 1000th professional managerial victory with an Otters win over Gateway.

Led by Frontier League MVP Quincy Nieporte, the Schaumburg Boomers were the first team to clinch a playoff spot, winning the Central Division title with nearly a week to go in the season. They spent much of the regular season at the top of the Central Division but stayed there for good after a series win over Lake Erie in mid-July. The Washington Wild Things followed by taking the Northeast Division after a four-game sweep over the Sussex County Miners.

Washington started the season struggling, with a record of just 13-20 after July 4. From there, they won six straight and went on to go 43-20 over the final two and a half months of the season to claim the Northeast Division title. The other two division races came down to the final weekend of the season.

The Florence Y'alls—with a league-leading 57-38 record—clinched the loaded West Division by half a game over Evansville. Florence began the year winning their first seven games and spent much of the year neck-and-neck with the Otters for the top spot in the West. These two teams finished with the two best records in the Frontier League in 2021. Meanwhile, Équipe Québec won the Atlantic Division title on the final day, finishing just two games ahead of the Tri-City ValleyCats. Québec used a season-high eleven-game winning streak in August —which included a three-game sweep of the ValleyCats—to vault themselves into first place.

In the playoffs, Schaumburg faced off against Florence and Washington battled Québec in the Divisional Round. The Boomers rolled over the Y'alls, winning in four games and outscoring them 27-12. Meanwhile, the Wild Things were down 2-1 in their series before winning games four and five in Québec and advancing to play Schaumburg in the Championship Series. In the FLCS, the Boomers and Wild Things split the first two games in Schaumburg, with Schaumburg taking the first 4-0 and Washington taking game two 6-5 after an Andrew Czech two-run homer in the ninth inning. The series then shifted to Washington, where the Wild Things took game three after a walk-off single by Grant Heyman in the tenth inning. Facing elimination, the Boomers won game four 3-1 and forced a winner-take-all game five. In that game five, Schaumburg took an early lead with three runs in the first inning and never looked back, winning 10-4 to claim their fourth Frontier League title since joining the league in 2012-the most in league history. Kyle Arjona was named series MVP, winning games one and five while allowing just three earned runs and striking out eleven over 16.2 innings.

48 players were signed to MLB organizations in 2021, the second highest total in league history behind the 2015 season. There were also a few former Frontier League players that made it to the MLB level. Most notably, Jake Cousins (Milwaukee Brewers), Mickey Jannis (Baltimore Orioles), Tommy Nance (Chicago Cubs), and Brandyn Sittinger (Arizona Diamondbacks) all made their MLB debuts in the 2021 season. Cousins helped the Brewers win the National League Central Division with a 2.70 ERA in 30 relief appearances. Andrew Bellatti also returned to MLB for the first time since 2015 after a brief stint in spring training with the Tri-City ValleyCats led him to the Miami Marlins—the shortest time for a player to be signed out of the Frontier League.



#### HISTORY OF THE CAN-AM LEAGUE

The Can-Am League was created when the Northeast League was renamed in 2005. The Northeast League was formed in 1995 and played four seasons as an independent league. At the end of the 1998 season, the Northeast League was merged with the Northern League and became that league's East Division. Although the East Division did not play the teams that were already in the Northern League during the regular season, the respective divisions played each other in an all-star game every summer and in a league championship series every fall from 1999 until 2002. The Northeast League became its own entity again for the 2003 season and continued play for one additional year before the renaming of the league.

The Allentown Ambassadors folded days before the 2004 season began, forcing the Northeast League to field a traveling team called the Aces. For the 2005 season, the Northeast League accepted the Worcester Tornadoes as a new eighth team. However, three weeks before the start of the 2005 season, the Bangor Lumberjacks folded, forcing the team to create another traveling team, this time called The Grays.

The league operated a traveling team whenever necessary to provide an even number of teams. However, doing so forced the other franchises to host more home games to provide a season of the same length. To obviate such disruptive last-minute schedule changes in the future, the Northeast League adopted a new charter, giving the league new powers to ensure that its franchises were solvent, and renamed itself the Canadian-American Association.

For 2006, the Can-Am League added two teams. The new Sussex Skyhawks replaced the Elmira Pioneers, which moved into the amateur New York Collegiate Baseball League; and the Nashua Pride joined the league from the Atlantic League. There were now eight teams without a traveling team.

For 2007, the Atlantic City Surf joined from the Atlantic League, and the league re-established The Grays, after a year of dormancy, as a tenth team. At the end of that season, both the New Haven County Cutters and the North Shore Spirit suspended operations, reducing the league to eight teams. Many New Haven player contracts were sold to Nashua, while many Spirit players were placed on waivers.

For 2008, Ottawa, which had lost its franchise in the International League, joined the Can-Am League as the Rapidz, an eighth franchise, displacing the Grays.

After the 2008 season, Rapidz management declared bankruptcy. The league declared its intention to operate the Ottawa franchise in 2009. The league changed the team's name back to Rapids, a spelling used during the team's founding (Rapides in French). Later, however, the Commissioner stated the need for a "fresh start" and opened a contest to select a new name for the team. The winning name was "Voyageurs".

Still later, the Atlantic City franchise was terminated, as a sale fell through. On March 30, 2009, the league announced that it would shrink to six teams rather than having two league-operated teams. The Nashua Pride franchise was sold and was known in 2009 as the American Defenders of New Hampshire because of the military tie-ins of its new ownership group. During the 2009 season the Defenders were locked out of Holman Stadium and forced to play their last home games on the road, bringing doubt to the future of baseball in Nashua. The Quebec Capitales would go on to win their second League Championship.

On December 19, 2009, league directors preliminarily gave approval to transfer the membership of the American Defenders of New Hampshire from Nashua, New Hampshire, to Pittsfield, Massachusetts for play in the 2010 season. Final approval was granted by the city for use of Wahconah Park on February 1. The ownership group headed by Buddy Lewis had a lease on Wahconah Park for a team in the New England Collegiate Baseball League, and transferred the current lease for play in the Can-Am League. Dan Duquette, current Executive Vice-President of Baseball Operations for the Baltimore Orioles, is also part of the ownership group, which is known as Boston Baseball All-Stars LLC. The team was renamed the Pittsfield Colonials.

After the 2010 season the Sussex franchise was folded after its ownership group decided to focus its resources on the New Jersey Jackals, their primary team, and could not find a buyer. In its place, the league awarded the Rockland Boulders a franchise, added the Newark Bears from the Atlantic League, and formed the New York Federals as a traveling team. Pittsfield's franchise charter was rescinded after the 2011 season and the Colonials folded after ownership could not find partners.

The Brockton Rox moved to the Futures Collegiate Baseball League after the 2011 season. At the end of the 2012 season the Worcester charter was rescinded, and the league decided to try to find new owners for the Tornadoes, but failed to do so and awarded the franchise instead to a Trois-Rivières, Quebec, group. Beginning in 2012, Can-Am League clubs played 18 to 20 games per season against opponents from the American Association of Independent Professional Baseball, with which it shares a commissioner. After the 2013 season, Newark announced it would not compete in the 2014 season and the team was eventually folded altogether.

In 2014, the Can-Am League announced that a fifth team, based in Ottawa, would join the league for 2015. The league later announced it would be returning to Sussex County, New Jersey as well, and announced that a traveling team would join the Ottawa Champions and the Sussex County Miners to create a balanced schedule and continued to include matchups with the American Association. Interleague play ended after the 2015 season, though the Can-Am League continued to send players to the American Association's All-Star Game. Starting with the 2015 season, the league hosted international clubs as part of its regular season schedule. Each of the regular clubs of the league played a series of 3 or 4 games against these international teams and the results of those games counted in the regular season standings. Over the years, the league hosted teams from Cuba, Japan and the Dominican Republic.

On October 16, 2019, the independent Frontier League announced that it was merging with the Can-Am League for the 2020 season. New Jersey, Sussex County, Quebec, and Trois-Rivieres all joined, as did a renamed Rockland

franchise (now known as the New York Boulders). The Ottawa Champions were left out of the expanded league for 2020, but the Frontier League granted the Ottawa Titans as an expansion franchise to begin play in 2022.

#### NOTABLE ALUMNI

RHP Tim Adleman (New Jersey 2013) LHP Andrew Albers (Quebec 2010) LHP Craig Breslow (New Jersey 2004) OF Stephen Cardullo (Rockland 2013-15) OF Chris Colabello (Worcester 2005-11, Nashua 2007) RHP Steve Delabar (Brockton 2008-09) RHP Wilmer Font (Ottawa Champions 2015-16) RHP Luis García (Newark 2012) Umpire Adam Hamari (2006) RHP Jeff Harris (Quebec 2003-04) 1B John Lindsey (New Jersey 2005-06) Umpire Will Little (2007) RHP Stu Pomeranz (New Jersey 2009) RHP Ken Ray (North Shore 2005) LHP Raúl Valdés (New Jersey/Nashua 2006) RHP Joe Winkelsas (Grays 2005) RHP Mat Latos (New Jersey 2018) PAST CHAMPIONS 2005 Worcester Tornadoes over Québec Capitales 3-0 2006 Québec Capitales over Brockton Rox 3-2 Nashua Pride over North Shore Spirit 3-0 2007 Sussex Skyhawks over Québec Capitales 3-0 2008 Québec Capitales over Worcester Tornadoes 3-1 2009 Québec Capitales over Pittsfield Colonials 3-1 2010 Québec Capitales over New Jersey Jackals 3-1 2011 Québec Capitales over New Jersey Jackals 4-1 2012 Québec Capitales over New Jersey Jackals 4-3 2013 2014 Rockland Boulders over New Jersey Jackals 4-2 Trois-Rivières Aigles over New Jersey Jackals 3-2 2015 Ottawa Champions over Rockland Boulders 3-2 2016 Québec Capitales over Rockland Boulders 3-0 2017 Sussex County Miners over Québec Capitales 3-1 2018

2019 New Jersey Jackals over Sussex County Miners 3-1



## FRONTIER LEAGUE FRONT OFFICE

#### ERIC KRUPA – PRESIDENT

Eric Krupa joins the Frontier League as President beginning with the 2022 season. Eric brings decades of professional baseball experience to the Frontier League. He was most recently Major League Baseball's Regional Supervisor for the South Atlantic League and Florida State League. Prior to working in MLB's front offices, Mr. Krupa enjoyed a very successful 13-year tenure as President of the South Atlantic League and a 10-year term as Director of Business and Finance for Minor League Baseball

#### **BILL LEE – COMMISSIONER EMERITUS**

Bill Lee transitioned to the role of Commissioner Emeritus on March 1, 2021. Bill had been the Commissioner of the Frontier League since 1994, the League's second year of operation.

After graduating from Southern Illinois University Edwardsville with a degree in Mass Communications, Bill played in the Atlanta Braves organization and the independent Lone Star League. He was selected to the Gulf Coast League All-Star Game in 1976. Bill also led SIUE to a runner-up finish in the 1976 NCAA Division II World Series, where he was named to the All-Tournament Team. Along with the other members of the 1976 baseball team, Bill was inducted into the SIUE Athletics Hall of Fame. He then worked for the Birmingham Barons as their Assistant General Manager and Public Relations Director before moving on to become the General Manager of the Chattanooga Lookouts. While with the Lookouts, Bill was the Southern League's Executive of the Year in 1989. Just before joining the Frontier League, he was the Vice-President of Sales and Marketing for the Seattle Thunderbirds Hockey Club in the Western Hockey League. Bill was chosen as Marketing Executive of the Year of that League in 1991.

While Bill has been the Frontier League Commissioner, the League has enjoyed great success, expanding to the largest independent professional baseball league while annually moving the most players of any independent league into Major League Baseball organizations. Bill lives in Shiloh, Illinois

## STEVE TAHSLER – DEPUTY COMMISSIONER – OPERATION

Steve Tahsler was promoted to Deputy Commissioner for the Frontier League following the 2009 season. Steve is entering his 25th season in the Frontier League, previously serving as the General Manager for the Windy City ThunderBolts, Slippery Rock Sliders, Evansville Otters, and Dubois County Dragons along with serving as Director of Operations for the Otters. Steve was selected Frontier League Executive of the Year in 2005 and 2006, while his teams won the Organization of the Year award in 1997 and a Commissioner's Award of Excellence in 2004 and 2009. His teams set 11 club single-season attendance records and advanced to the Frontier League playoffs in 11 out of 13 seasons, including seven appearances in the Frontier League Championship Series and winning championships in 2006, 2007, and 2008. With the ThunderBolts, Steve was selected the Minor League

Executive of the Year by the Pitch & Hit Club of Chicago in 2008, received the Hospitality Award of Merit from the Chicago Southland Chamber of Commerce in 2008, and was voted Member of the Year by the Crestwood Chamber of Commerce in 2009.

Steve is a graduate of Georgia State University where he worked in the Sports Information Department. Prior to joining the Frontier League, he also worked with the Atlanta Glory of the American Basketball League and was a member of the Results Staff for Baseball for the 1996 Olympics. Steve, originally from Bay Village, Ohio, resides in Evansville, Indiana, with his wife, Jodi.

### KEVIN WINN – DEPUTY COMMISSIONER – STRATEGIC DEVELOPMEN

Kevin Winn joins the Frontier League after serving as Executive Director for the Can-Am League during their 2019 season. Winn will oversee strategic planning, expansion, and marketing for the Frontier League.

Prior to assuming his current position, Winn served as the Director of Baseball Operations for the Can-Am League from 2005-2018 as well as with the American Association from 2006-2018. He also has served in similar capacities in the Central Baseball League from 2002-2005 and the Texas-Louisiana League from 2000-2001. In October 2018, he took over as Executive Director of the Can-Am League and led negotiations to merge the league into the Frontier League in 2019.

Prior to moving into League management, Winn umpired in the Big South, Texas-Louisiana League and Northern Leagues. Under his tutelage, 135 umpires have been hired by Minor League Baseball, including two of his umpires — Adam Hamari (Can-Am League, 2006) and Will Little (Can-Am League 2007) who are currently umpiring in Major League Baseball. Before going into professional baseball, Winn attended the Joe Brinkman Umpire School in 1985.

A graduate of Central Connecticut State University, Winn resides in North Granby, Connecticut, with his wife, Colonel Lori Winn, USAF and their two daughters, Kendall and Reagan.

### JENNIFER MALTI – DIGITAL MARKETING ASSISTANT: EAST BEAT REPORTER

Jennifer Malti is from Jersey City, NJ, and graduated from Fairleigh Dickinson University with a degree in Broadcasting Communications and a minor in Sports Media. She was the Sports Editor of her university's newspaper, The Equinox where she covered all the university's sports teams. She also worked as an intern and radio host at Fairleigh Dickinson's radio station, 89.1 WFDU where she worked alongside hosts and taking listener's requests. Jennifer would also host her own radio show called Jen's Jailhouse of Rock once a week where she would play classic rock music.

## ANDRÉS TEJEDA – DIGITAL MARKETING ASSITANT: WEST BEAT REPORTER

Andrés Tejeda joins in his first year with the Frontier League after serving as the 2022 California Winter League PxP broadcaster in Palm Springs, California. Andrés will oversee the Frontier League's social media presence, report on breaking news, write game recaps, and work with Frontier League team's broadcast and media relations departments.

Andrés is from Chicago, Illinois, and graduated from the University of St. Thomas - MN with a degree in Emerging Media with a background in journalism and TV/Radio broadcasting. He was the PxP broadcaster and fill in producer/director with the St. Thomas Athletic Department - Tommie Sports Network. He also held roles at the student run media team, TommieMedia, as a multimedia journalist, studio show host and podcast host. Andrés was also part of the Minnesota Twins Radio Network for the 2021 season as a production assistant working alongside broadcasters, directors and producers.



## FRONTIER LEAGUE PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL

## PROFESSIONAL PARTNER LEAGUE

## **EVANSVILLE OTTERS**

Address	. 23 Don Mattingly Way, Evansville, IN 47711
Phone:	
Fax:	
Press Box Phone:	
Visiting Radio Phone:	
First Year in the League:	
Team Colors: Royal Blue (PMS 654	C), Light Blue (PMS 543 C), Red (PMS 179 C)
Ownership Group:	Evansville Baseball LLC
President:	John Stanley

#### Front Office Staff

Vice President of Sales:	Joel Padfield
General Manager:	Travis Painter
Director of Communications:	Preston Leinenbach
Account Executive:	. Keith Millikan & Nolan Vandergriff
Director of Operations/Food & Beverage:	KJ Thomas
Director of Marketing/Community Relations:	Brittany Skinner
Gift Shop Manager:	Rhonda Trail

#### **Field Personnel**

Field Manager:	Andy McCauley
Pitching Coach:	Max Peterson
Hitting Coach:	Bobby Segal
Assistant Coach/Player Procurement:	Rob Watson
Assistant Coach/Player Procurement:	Billy Easley
Catching Instructor:	Phil Britton
Special Assistant:	JR Seymour
Athletic Trainer	Mandy Flaig
Clubhouse Managers	Ben Garrett, Cameron Ellison
Team Chaplain	Tyrone Edwards

#### Stadium/Game Information

Stadium Name:	Bosse Field
Year Opened:	
Seating Capacity:	5,110
Outfield Dimens	
Grounds Maintenance:	Otters Staff
Public Address Announcer:	Zane Clodfelter

#### Media Information:

Newspaper:	Evansville Courier and Press
	Chad Lindskog 567-215-7711, clindskog@courierpress.com
Television:	WTVW (CW Local 7)/WEHT (ABC 25)
Rai	ndall Parmley 812-319-3652, rparmley@tristatehomepage.com
Television:	WFIE (NBC 14)
	Tamar Sher 812-459-2762 tamar.sher@14news.com
Television:	WEVV (FOX 44)/(CBS 44)
	Joe Downs 812-893-3636, jdowns@wevv.com
Visiting Team Hotel:	Comfort Inn & Suites
	3901 US-41 N
	Evansville, IN 47711
	Phone: 812-423-5818
XX7.1.1	

Website: ......www.evansvilleotters.com Email: .....evansvilleottersbaseball@evansvilleotters.com

## **FLORENCE Y'ALLS**

Address:	
Phone:	
Year in League:	
Colors:	Y'alls Blue and Red
Operated by:	Freedom Baseball Club, LLC

#### Front Office

riont onke	
President/CEO	David DelBello
General Manager	Max Johnson
Marketing & Fan Experience Manager	Erin Claybaugh
Director of Amateur Baseball & Ticket Sales	Aaron Luken
Director of Stadium Operations	Brennan Hatten
Box Office Manager	Gabe Parsons
Broadcaster/Media Relations	Anthony Mazzini
Marketing and Fan Experience	Samantha Cyrus
Director of Social Media & Merchandise	Nick Theuerling
Hospitality and Group Sales	Zach Mollaun
Food & Beverage Manager	Connor Quinlan
Clubhouse Manager:	Hayden Stamm
Transportation:	Miller Transportation

#### **Field Personnel**

Manager:	Brian White
Assistant Coach	Taylor Bryant
Pitching Coach:	Eric Minshall
Hitting Coach	Chris Mongiardo
First Base Coach	Dave Heilbrunn
Trainer:	Tanner Harned

#### Stadium/ Game Information

Stadium Name:	Thomas More Stadium
Year Opened:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF: 325, CF: 395, RF: 325
Seating Capacity:	
2021 Attendance:	
PA Announcer:	Arron Luken
Directions to Thomas More Stadium	I-71/75 at exit 180

## Visiting Team Hotel: ..... La Quinta Inns & Suites

350 Meijer Dr. Florence, KY 41042 Phone: 859.282.8212 Fax: 859.282.8285

Standard Game Times: .....Tuesday 6:32pm ET; Wednesday 6:31pm ET, Thursday 6:34pm ET, Friday 7:03pm, Sat 6:36pm. & Sun. 1:07 pm ET

#### Radio:

Radio Broadcaster:	Anthony Mazzini
Radio Broadcaster:	Corey Berberuian
No. of Games Broadcast:	96, on <u>www.florenceyalls.com</u>
Website:	www.florenceyalls.com
E-Mail Address:	info@florecneyalls.com

## GATEWAY GRIZZLIES

Mailing Address	2301 Grizzlie Bear Blvd., Sauget, IL 62206
Telephone	
Fax	
Press Box Phone	
First Year In League	
Team Colors	Navy Blue and Grizzlie Green
Ownership Group	Gateway Baseball, LLC
Managing Officer	Richard Sauget Sr.

#### Front Office Staff

GM	Kurt Ringkamp
Business Development Manager	James Caldwell
Director of Stadium Operations and Events	Sam Kehrer
Director of In-Game Entertainment	Nate Owens
Team Store Director and Sales Rep	Garrett Murphy
Director of Group Sales and Hospitality	Nick Clemens
Director of Food and Beverage	Christian Schaub
Box Office Manager	TJ Zobrist
Promotions Director	Hannah Radden
Director of Broadcasting and Media Relations	Jason Guerette

#### **Field Personnel**

Manager	Steve Brook
Pitching Coach	Nick Kennedy
Hitting Coach	Clint Freeman
Assistant Coach	Dave Garcia
Bench Coach	Alex Ferguson
Clubhouse Manager	Matt Mooney
Trainer	Geoff Manzo

#### Stadium/Game Information

GCS Credit Union Ballpark
LF: 317, CF: 385, RF: 301
Tom Calhoun
Alex Gruberman
Located directly off I-255 at exit #15
Mon-Sat: 7:05 p.m.; Sun: 6:05 p.m.
Casino Queen
200 South Front St.
East St. Louis, Illinois 62201
Phone - (618) 261-8236 Fax - (618) 874-8404

#### Media Information

Newspaper.....Belleville News Democrat

Dean Criddle – (618) 239-2663 St. Louis Post-Dispatch Ken Roberts – (618) 257-0745

## JOLIET SLAMMERS

Address:
Phone:
Website:www.jolietslammers.com
Email:info@jolietslammers.com
First Year in League:
Team Colors:Green, Orange, Black and White
Operated By:Joliet Community Baseball& Entertainment, LLC
Ownership Group:Joliet Community Baseball & Entertainment, LLC
President:Nick Semaca
Chief Financial OfficerHeather Mills
Executive VP /Chief Revenue OfficerJohn Wilson
Assistant General ManagerLauren Rhodes
Director of Community RelationsKen Miller
Director of Marketing & Corporate SalesLauren Baca
Director of PromotionsBrianna Avalos
Box Office Manager:Troy Walters
Group Sales RepresentativeLuis Morales
BroadcastersLonnie Wilkins & Bill Downing

#### **Field Personnel**

Field Manager:	Dan Schlereth
Pitching Coach	Wes Anderson
Quality Assurance Coach	
Team Trainer:	Samamtha DesJardine, Duly Health and Care
Team Doctor:	Dr. Michael Murphy & Dr. Michael
Clubhouse Manager	Sean Michalak

#### Stadium/Game Information

Stadium Name:	Duly Health and Care Field
Year Opened:	
Seating Capacity:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF: 347 ft CF: 400 ft RF: 327 ft
PA Announcer:	Kurt Gustafson
2021 Attendance	
Official Scorer:	Dave Laketa
Game Times:	Tuesday-Friday: 6:35 p.m.,
	Saturday: 6:05 p.m., Sunday: 1:05 p.m.
	Exceptions: May 18 & 19, June 22, & July 27: 10:05 a.m.
	July 3 & September 4: 6:05 p.m.

Directions to Field

From I-80: Chicago St. (Rt. 53) north (exit 132 B) to Washington (just after railroad viaduct). Turn right on Washington and follow parking signs. From I-55: Take I-80 east to Chicago St. (Rt. 53) north (exit 132 B). Follow above directions.

#### **Media Information**

Newspaper:	
Visiting Team Hotels:Harrah's	Clarion Hotel & Conference Center Joliet
151 N Joliet Street	411 South Larkin Avenue
Joliet, IL 60432	Joliet, IL 60436
Phone (815) 740-22	Phone: (815) 729-2000
Fax: 815-740-7805	5 Fax: 815-730-0470
Contact: Mark Gar	rgiulo Contact: Chris Greenwood

## LAKE ERIE CRUSHERS

Mailing Address:	2009 Baseball Boulevard, Avon, OH 44011
Telephone:	
Fax:	
First Year In League:	
Team Colors:	Purple & White
Ownership Group:	Blue Dog Baseball, LLC
Managing Member/Owner	

#### Front Office Staff

Consultant	Ron Way
Director of Sales & Marketing	Bryan Ralston
Director of Food & Beverage	Branden Hyde
Food & Beverage Assistant	Holli Laymon
Business Manager	Brian Wentzel
Director of Promotions & Community Affairs	Alyssa Pisani
Digital Content Manager	Alyssa Bozin
Director of Stadium Operations:	Wayne Loeblein
Corporate Sales Account Executive	Forrest Hage
Ticketing Account Executive	Andrew Fish
Ticketing Account Executive	Jarrett Griebeler
Box Office Manager	Nathan Parker

#### **Field Personnel**

Manager:	Cam Roth
Hitting Coach	
Bench Coach:	Maikol Gonzalez
Trainer:	Jennifer Hawk
Clubhouse Attendant	Jeremy Bishop

#### Stadium/Game Information

Stadium Name:	Mercy Health Stadium
Year Opened:	
Outfield Dimensions:	
Capacity:	
2021 Attendance:	

#### Directions to the Stadium

Mercy Health Stadium is located off I-90 at the Route 611/Colorado Ave. exit (#151). Proceed north from the off-ramp on Route 611. The entrance to Mercy Health Stadium is approximately  $\frac{1}{2}$  mile down on the left.

Standard Game Times:	Mon-Fri: 7:05 p.m.; Sat. 6	:05 Sun: 2:05 p.m/5:35 p.m
Visiting Club Hotel:	DoubleTree by H	lilton Cleveland-Westlake
Kim Barker Senior Sales Manager		
	Direct (440) 617	2361   Fax (440) 871 7910
	1100 Crocker	Road, Westlake, OH 44145
Clevelandwes	tlake.DoubleTree.com	Kim.Barker@hilton.com
Media Information		
Radio Broadcaster:		
Radio Broadcaster:		Zackory Langin
Website:	W	ww.LakeErieCrushers.com
E-Mail:	Inf	fo@LakeErieCrushers.com

## NEW JERSEY JACKALS

Office Address:	535 Route 46 East, Little Falls, NJ 07424
Phone:	
Fax:	
Established:	
Owner/President:	Al Dorso, Sr.
President, Baseball Operations:	Greg Lockard
Vice President, Operations:	Al Dorso, Jr.
Vice President, Marketing:	Mike Dorso

#### Front Office Staff

Director of Sales and Media Relations:	Reed Keller
Sales and Operations Executive	Ryan McMahon
Senior Designer:	William Romano
Social Media Coordinator:	Carolyn Clites
On-Field Entertainment Host:	Jim Whalen
Director of Digital Content:	Bill Pinckney

#### **Field Personnel**

Field Manager:	Brooks Carey
Hitting Coach:	Jared Lemieux
Trainer:	TBD
Clubhouse Manager:	Owen Reith

#### **Stadium Game Information**

Stadium Name:	Yogi Berra Stadium
Stadium Address:	8 Yogi Berra Drive, Montclair, NJ 07424
Year Opened:	
Seating Capacity:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF: 308, CF 398, RF 308
2019 Attendance:	

#### 

41-01 Broadway (Route 208 North) Fair Lawn, NJ 07410 Phone: 201-475-3888 Fax: 201-475-3889

Email:	contact(	@jackals.com
Website:		vw.jackals.com

## **NEW YORK BOULDERS**

Address: 1 Palisades C	redit Union Park Drive
	Pomona, NY 10970
Phone:	
Fax:	
First Year in the League:	
Team Colors: Blue (PMS 286), Red (PMS186) & Gray	y (PMS 428, PMS 877)
Ownership Group:	NY BB LLC
President:	Shawn Reilly

#### Front Office Staff

Team President/General Manager:	Shawn Reilly
Executive Vice President:	Rob Janetschek
Director of Business Development:	Seth Cantor
Box Office Manager	Jessica Wilson
Ticket Sales Manager:	Karen McCombs
Account Executive	Chris Perich
Account Executive & Broadcaster	Jacob Kronberg
Account Executive	Dante Brown
Director of Finance	Michele Almash
Director of Creative Services & Marketing:	Julie Trainor
Promotions Coordinator	Sara Bayles
Media Relations Director	Ken Kostik
Media Coordinator & PA Announcer	Steve Balsan
Audio/Visual Specialist	Jim Houston
Educational Director	
Team Ambassador	John Thompson

#### **Field Personnel**

Field Manager:	TJ Stanton
Assistant Coach:	Robby Rowland
Assistant Coach	Tucker Nathans
Assistant Coach	Bubber Birdsong
Head Scout/Analytics	Kevin Tuve
Athletic Trainer:	Lori Rahaim

#### **Stadium Game Information**

Stadium Name:	Clover Stadium
Year Opened:	
Seating Capacity:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF: 323, CF 403, RF 312
2019 Attendance	

#### Visiting Team Hotel

Sonesta Select Mahwah 140 NJ-17 South Mahwah, NJ 07430 Phone: (201) 509-5200

Website:	.www.nyboulders.com
Email:	info@nyboulders.com

## **OTTAWA TITANS**

Mailing Address: Ot	
	Ottawa, ON, K1K 4S3
Telephone:	
Fax:	
Founded	
First Year In League:	
Team Colors:	Red, White, Black, Silver
Operated by:	Ottawa Titans Baseball Club Inc.
Principal Owner/President/CEO:	Sam Katz
Co-Owners:Ottawa Sports & Entert	ainment Group, Jacques J.M. Shore
Vice President/COO:	Regan Katz
CFO:	Jason McRae-King
General Manager	Martin Boyce
Assistant General Manager	Sebastien Boucher
Media Manager / Broadcaster:	Davide Disipio
Box Office Manager	Mattnew Rose
Food & Beverage Manager	AJ Scarcella
Administrative & Merchandise Manager	Nelson Mahmoudi
Corporate Sales Executive	
Business Development:	Melissa Schlichting
Digital Media Coordinator:	Nathan Pavao
Tickets/Game Day Production:	Lily Raaflaub
Tickets/Fan Services:	Trevor Wakayama
Tickets/Social Media:	Kolten Kudrinko
Tickets/Concessions:	Shemar Opoku
Tickets/Box Office:	Malcolm Goveas
Jr. Accountant:	TJ Singh
IT & Misc.:	Jason Young, Ed Doiron

#### **Field Personnel**

Field Personnel Manager and Director of Baseball Ops:	Bobby Brown
Pitching Coach:	Tom Carcione
Assistant Hitting / First Base Coach	Garrett Fisher
Clubhouse Manager:	Marc Leduc
Head Athletic Therapist	Landon Veenstra

### Stadium/Game Information

Stadium Name:	Ottawa Stadium
Year Opened:	
	LF: 325, CF: 404, RF: 325
Capacity:	
Official Scorers:	Monique St-Laurent, Francine Marleau, Denis Viau
PA Announcers:	Richard Gauthier, Christian Gauthier

### **Media Information**

English Announcer:	Davide Disipio
English Broadcast Outlet:	CKDJ 107.9
French Announcer:	Jadrino Huot
French Broadcast Outlet:	Unique 94.5
English Media Information Newspapers:	Ottawa Citizen 613.596.1950
	Ottawa Sun 613.739.7200
French Media Information Newspapers:	Le Droit 613.562.0111
Standard Game Times:	. M-F: 6:30p.m.; Sa: 6:00p.m; Su: 1:00p.m.
Visiting Club Hotel:	Courtyard by Marriott
	200 Coventry Road
	Ottawa, ON, K1K 4S3, 613.741.9862

Website:	www.ottawatitans.com E-
Mail:	contact@ottawatitans.com
Facebook:	/ OttawaTitans
Twitter & Instagram:	@Ottawa_Titans

# QUÉBEC CAPITALES

Meiling Addresses Stade Canas 100 me	the Condinal Maurice Day, Outher, OC
Mailing Address: Stade Canac, 100 rue	
<b>T</b> 1 1	G1K 8Z1
Telephone:	
Fax:	
First Year In League:	
Team Colors:	
Operated by:	Les Capitales de Québec S.E.C.
Principals Owners:	John Tremblay, Philippe Tremblay
Co-Owners:	Pierre Tremblay, Marie-Pierre Simard
President:	Michel Laplante
General Manager	Charles Demers
Assistant General Manager:	Jean Grignon-Francke
Director of Stadium Infrastructure :	Alexandre Harvey
Sales Manager:	Denis Desbiens
Director of La Fondation des Capitales :	Janel Laplante
Partnerships and Sponsorship Coordinator	Francine Gendron
Sales Representative	Felix Gagnon
Administrative Technician	Beatrice Desbiens
Administrative Consultant:	Julie Lafrancois
Director of Promotions and Events	Yannick Tremblay
Promotions Coordinator:	Alie-Anne Laplante
Souvenir Shop Manager	Marc-Andre Langlois
Ticket Office Manager	
Graphic Designers:	
Social Media Coordinator:	1 2
Assistant, Communications & Marketing	Victor Roland
Clubhouse Manager:	
5	

### **Field Personnel**

Manager:	Patrick Scalabrini
Pitching Coach:	
Hitting Coach:	Josh McAdams
Athletic Trainers	Gabriel Imbeau, Jerome Lizotte

#### **Stadium/Game Information**

Stadium Name:	Stade Canac
Year Opened:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF: 315, CF: 400, RF: 315
Capacity:	
2019 Attendance	

### **French Media Information**

Newspapers:	Le Soleil
• •	Le Journal de Québec
Standard Game Times:	M-F: 7:00 p.m.; Sa:6:00 p.m.; Su:1:00 pm
Visiting Club Hotel:	.Hôtel Le Concorde, 1225 Cours du Général de
-	Montcalm, Québec, QC G1R 4W6, 418.647.2222

Website:	www.capitalesdequebec.com
E-Mail:	info@capitalesdequebec.com
Facebook:	/CapitalesQuébec
Twitter & Instagram:	· ·

## SCHAUMBURG BOOMERS

Physical and Mailing Address	Wintrust Field
	1999 South Springinsguth Road
	Schaumburg, IL 60193
Phone	
Fax	
Press Box Phone	
Visiting Radio Phone	630-635-2218
First Year in the League	
Team Colors	Black and Orange (166C)
Owners	Pat and Lindy Salvi

### Front Office Staff

Vice President & General Manager	Michael Larson
Assistant General Manager	Hanna Olson
Director of Facilities	Mike Tlusty
Director of Promotions	Lexi Fiolka
Director of Media and Marketing	Alyson Kobler
Director of Stadium Operations	Ryan Veith
Director of Food and Beverage	Julia Fasiang
Director of Community Relations	Peter Long
Box Office Manager	Chris Salazar
VP of Corporate Partnerships	David Kay
Director of Stadium Operations	
Director of Food and Beverage	Julia Fasiang
Broadcaster	
Official Scorer	Brad Riva

### **Coaching Staff**

Manager	Jamie Bennett
Hitting Coach	
Pitching Coach	Dylan Stutsman
Pitching Coach	Jake Joyce
Assistant Coach	Bill Fratto
Athletic Trainer	Samantha Fluck
Clubhouse Manager	Ricky Rapp
Team Doctor	Dr. Michael Chiu, M.D.
Team Chiropractor	Dr. Tom Mitchell, C.D
Team Optometrist	Dr. Bruce Peterson, O.D.

### Stadium/Game Information

Stadium Name	Wintrust Field
Year Opened	
Seating Capacity	
Outfield Dimensions	LF: 365, CF: 400, RF: 353
2021 Attendance	
Public Address Announcer	Brendan Green

Media Information	Daily Herald	Eric Peterson, (847) 427-4482
	Chicago Tribune	Jim Jaworski, (312) 752-5750
Visiting Team Hotel	Courtya	rd by Marriott Schaumburg
		Contact: Carrie Provost
		1311 American Ln
		Schaumburg, IL 60173
		(847) 619=8100

## SUSSEX COUNTY MINERS

Mailing Address	Skylands Stadium
	94 Championship Place
	Box 11
	Augusta, NJ 07822
Owner, President	Al Dorso Sr.
Vice President, Operations	Al Dorso Jr. Vice
President, Marketing	Mike Dorso
General Manager	Justin Ferrarella
Director, Broadcasting and Media Relations	
Manager, Corporate Sales	Joann Ciancitto
Senior Graphic Design	Will Romano
Broadcasting, PXP, & Media Relations	
Social Media Coordinator	
Manager, Facilities	Shane White
Head Groundskeeper	LJ Black
Group Sales Manager	Alex Kashmann

### **Coaching Staff**

Field Manager/Director of Baseball Operations	Bobby Jones
Bullpen Coach	
Assistant Coach	Simon Walters
Athletic Trainer	Joe Bruno
Team Doctor	Dr. Casey Pierce
Clubhouse Manager	Dave Connolly

### **Stadium/Game Information**

Broadcaster	Bret Leuthner
Broadcaster	Sean Bretherick
No. of Games Broadcast	
Webcast Address	
Stadium Name	Skylands Stadium
	94 Championship Place
	Box 11
	Augusta, NJ 07822
2021 Attendance	

Location: In New Jersey, I-80 to exit 34B (Route 15 North) to Route 565 North; From Pennsylvania, I-84 to Route 6 (Matamoras) to Route 206 North to Route 565 North. Standard Game Times: Mon.-Fri., 7:05 pm, Sat., 6:05 pm, Sun., 2:05 pm Phone: 973-383-7644

Twitter	@scminers
Instagram	sussexcountyminers
Facebook	Sussex County Miners

## TRI-CITY VALLEYCATS

Address:	80 Vandenburgh Ave, Troy, NY 12180
Phone:	
Fax:	
Press Box Phone:	
Visiting Radio Phone:	
Established:	
Team Colors:	Red/Scarlet (a5333a), Black (000000),
	Grey (a8afb5), White (ffffff), Tan (c8ae7f)
Ownership Group:	.Doug Gladstone, Rick Murphy, Martin Barr,
	Steve Siegel, Jane G. Burton
President:	Rick Murphy
Vice President:	Matt Callahan

### Front Office Staff

General Manager:	Matt Callahan
Assistant General Manager:	Michelle Skinner
Ticket Sales and Operations Manager:	Jess Guido (Kaszeta)
Media and Production Manager	Jacob LaChapelle
Food and Beverage Manager:	Missy Henry
Stadium Operations Manager	Ed Krajewski
Special Events:	Maggie Stalter

### **Field Personnel**

Field Manager:	Pete Incaviglia
Bench Coach:	Thomas Incaviglia
Pitching Coach:	Scott Budner
Assitant Coach:	
Athletic Trainer	Johan Mussa
Clubhouse Manager	Mike Heffner

### **Stadium Game Information**

Stadium Name:	Joseph L. Bruno Stadium
Year Opened:	
Seating Capacity:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF: 325, CF 400, RF 325
2021 Attendance	
Grounds Maintenance:	Hudson Valley Community College
Public Address Announcer:	Anthony Pettograsso
Broadcaster	Eric Belyea
Official Scorer	Pat Barry

### Media Information

Newspaper:
Sports Staff,
sports@troyrecord.com
The Daily Gazette
Mike Macadam, 518-395-3148
Times Union
Mark Singelais, 518-454-5509, msingelais@timesunion.com

### Visiting Team Hotel: Crowne Plaza Albany - The Desmond Hotel, an IHG Hotel

660 Albany Shaker Rd Albany, NY 12211 518-869-8100

Website:	www.tcvalleycats.com
Email:	info@tcvalleycats.com

# TROIS-RIVIÈRES AIGLES

Mailing Address:	Stade Quillorama
e	0 Avenue Gilles-Villeneuve C.P. 1236
	Trois-Rivières, QC, G9A 5K8
Telephone:	
First Year of Play:	
Team Colors:	
Operated by:	
Co-Owners:	
President:	
General Manager	
Operations Director:	e
Director of Business Development & Events:	
Marketing & Communications Coordinator:	
Sales Representative / Customer Experience M	anagerStephane Rousseau
Clubhouse Manager:	Joey Beaulieu
Field Personnel Manager and Director of Baset	all Ops: Matthew Rusch
Assistant Coach:	
Athletic Trainer:	
Stadium/Game Information Stadium	
Name:	Stade Quillorama
Year Opened:	
Outfield Dimensions:	
Capacity:	
2019 Attendance	
French Announcer:	
French Media Information Newspapers:	
Official Scorer	Annie-Pier Taillon
Standard Game Times:I	F: 7:05 p.m.; Sa: 6:05 p.m.; Su: 1:05 pm
Visiting Club Hotel:	Holiday Inn Express Trois- Rivières
	2000 rue Des Grandes-Marches
	Trois-Rivières, QC G8Z 1B7
	-
Website:	www.lesaiglestr.com
E-Mail:	
Facebook:	e
Instagram:	8
Twitter:	e
I witter.	@Aigles_1R

## WASHINGTON WILD THINGS

Address: 1 Washington Federal	Way, Washington, PA 15301
Phone:	
Fax:	
First Year in League:	
Team Colors: Red, Black, with a	ccents of White & Periwinkle
Operated By: Washing	ton Frontier League Baseball
Owner:	
Executive Director:	Steven Zavacky
President/ General Manager:	
Vice President Corporate Partnerships:	Christine Blaine
Vice President Finance	JJ Heider
Assistant General Manager, Baseball Operations	Kyle Dawson
Assistant General Manager, Facility Operations	Travis Pettit
Creative Services and Production Manager:	Sean Seaman
Community Relations and Promotions Manager	Stephanie Keller
Account Executives	Jeaus Baez & Erik Stouter
Box Office Manager	Carson Zaremski
Clubhouse Manager:	Ray Paquet

### **Field Personnel**

Manager:	
Pitching Coach:	
Hitting Coach:	Aharon Eggleston
Trainer:	Austin Pascarella

### Stadium/ Game Information

Stadium Name:	Wild Things Park
Year Opened:	
Outfield Dimensions:	LF 325; CF 400; RF 325
Seating Capacity:	
2021 Attendance:	
PA Announcer:	Bill DiFabio
Official Scorer:	Andrew Lorenzi

#### **Directions to Field:**

I-70 to Exit 15 (Chestnut Street). Right on Chestnut to the Washington
Crown Center Mall. Right into the mall.
Right to stadium entrance road (1/10 mile on right)
Game Times: Tuesday-Saturday 7:05p.m.; Sunday 5:35 p.m.

### Media Information:

Broadcaster:	Kyle Dawson
No. of Games Broadcast:	
Television	WTAE (ABC) 412-242-4300
	× /
	KDKA (CBS) 412-575-2200
	WPXI (NBC) 412-237-1100
Newspapers:	Washington Observer Reporter
	724-222-2200 Chris Dugan
Visiting Clash Hatal	Henryton Im and Suites Dittelands Mandam Lands
Visiting Club Hotel:	Hampton Inn and Suites Pittsburgh-Meadow Lands
	475 Johnson Road, Washington, PA 15301
	Matt Blume 412-310-0409
Website	www.washingtonwildthings.com
Email:	info@washingtowildthings.com

## WINDY CITY THUNDERBOLTS

Address:	14011 S. Kenton Avenue, Crestwood, IL 60418
Phone:	
Fax:	
Press Box Phone:	
Visiting Radio Line:	
First Year in League:	
	2004 (Windy City ThunderBolts)
Team Colors:	Cobalt blue, black, and white
Operated By:	Franchise Sports, LLC
Owner:	Brian Kahn
Front Office Staff	
General Manager:	Mike VerSchave
	Bill Waliewski
Director of Community Relations:	Johnny Sole
Director of Not-for-Profit Events	Karen Engel
Director of Operations	Chris Koll
Media Relations	Terry Bonadonna

### Field Personnel

Field Manager:	Brian Smith
Hitting Coach	Kevin Santiago
Athletic Trainer	Ryan Sucmaci

### Stadium/Game Information

Stadium Name:	Ozinga Field
Year Opened:	
Seating Capacity:	
Outfield Dimensions:	Lines: 330 / Gaps: 375 / Center: 390
2021 Attendance:	
Official Scorer:	Christopher Gbur
Public Address Announcer	Terry Bonadonna
Game Times:	
Special Game Times:	6:05 pm, Wed. June 15
-	10:35 am, May 18, 19, 25, 26; July 12, 13, 15

### **Directions to Field**

I-294 to Cicero Avenue; south on Cicero 1.5 miles; east on Midlothian Turnpike; south on Kenton Avenue

### Media Information

	Connor Onion 
	Peter Kreten - 773.298.3375
Newspaper:	Daily Southtown
Visiting Team Hotel:	Georgio's Quality Inn & Suites
	8800 West 159th Street, Orland Park, IL 60462
	Phone: 708.403.1100 / Fax: 708.403.1105
	Contact: Alex Georgiou (acgeorgiou@georgios.com)
	www.georgios.com
Website:	
E-mail:	info@wcthunderbolts.com

## **ORGANIZATION OF THE YEAR**

1993	Award not given
1994	Ohio Valley Redcoats
1995	Richmond Roosters
1996	Chillicothe Paints
1997	Evansville Otters
1998	Chillicothe Paints
1999	River City Rascals
2000	River City Rascals
2001	Kalamazoo Kings
2002	Washington Wild Things
2003	Gateway Grizzlies
2004	Kalamazoo Kings (tie)
	Washington Wild Things (tie)
2005	East: Washington Wild Things (tie)
	Florence Freedom (tie)
	West: Kalamazoo Kings
2006	East: Traverse City Beach Bums
	West: Gateway Grizzlies
2007	Southern Illinois Miners
2008	Traverse City Beach Bums
2009	Southern Illinois Miners
2010	Southern Illinois Miners
2011	Lake Erie Crushers
2012	Traverse City Beach Bums
2013	Schaumburg Boomers
2014	Gateway Grizzlies
2015	Florence Freedom
2016	Schaumburg Boomers
2017	Schaumburg Boomers
2018	Lake Erie Crushers
2019	Evansville Otters
2020	Award not given
2021	Schaumburg Boomers

## **EXECUTIVE OF THE YEAR**

1993	Bob Wolfe	Zanesville Greys
1994	Pat Brown	Erie Sailors
1995	Jim Miller	Evansville Otters
1996	Bryan Wickline	Chillicothe Paints
1997	Jim Miller	Evansville Otters
1998	Bryan Wickline	Chillicothe Paints
1999	Pat Daly	River City Rascals
2000	John Wallenstein	Springfield Capitals
2001	Greg Blair	Kalamazoo Kings
2002	Joe Rosenhagen (tie)	Kalamazoo Kings
	Matt Jones (tie)	River City Rascals
2003	Tony Funderburg	Gateway Grizzlies
2004	Ross Vecchio	Washington Wild Things
2005	East: Steve Tahsler	Evansville Otters
	West: Tony Funderburg	Gateway Grizzlies
2006	East: Bryan Wickline	Chillicothe Paints
	West: Steve Tahsler	Evansville Otters
2007	Tony Funderburg	Gateway Grizzlies
2008	Bryan Wickline	Chillicothe Paints
2009	Kari Rumfield	Florence Freedom
2010	Ryan Gates	Lake Erie Crushers
2011	John Ditterich/Bill Waliewski	Joliet Slammers
2012	Mike Lucas	Windy City Thunderbolts
2013	Joel Padfield	Evansville Otters
2014	Steve Gomric	Gateway Grizzlies
2015	Josh Anderson	Florence Freedom
2016	Mike Lucas	Windy City Thunderbolts
2017	Steve Gomric	Gateway Grizzlie
2018	Kim Brown	Florence Freedom
2019	Michael Larson	Schaumburg Boomers
2020	Award not given	N/A
2021	Michael Larson	Schaumburg Boomers

### FRONTIER LEAGUE ALUMNI ACTIVE IN MAJOR LEAGUE ORGANIZATIONS AS OF 5/1/2022

### 2021 Season - Frontier League Alumni in Affiliated Baseball

#### MLB

Nick Anderson - Rockford 2012-13, Frontier Greys 2015 - Tampa Bay Rays (American League)

Jake Cousins - Schaumburg 2019 - Milwaukee Brewers (National League)

Tyler Danish - Sussex County 2021 - Boston Red Sox (American League)

Adam Oller - Windy City 2019 - Oakland Athletics (American League)

Trevor Richards - Gateway 2015-16 - Toronto Blue Jays (American League)

#### AAA

Taylor Ahearn - River City 2019 - Salt Lake, Triple-A Pacific Coast (Angels) Luke Barker - Traverse City 2016 - San Antonio, Triple-A East (Brewers) Andrew Bellatti - Tri-City 2021 - Lehigh Valley, Triple-A International (Phillies) Grant Black - Gateway 2018-19 - Memphis, Triple-A East (Cardinals) Ben Bracewell - River City 2014 - Las Vegas, Triple-A West (Athletics) Jordan Brink - River City 2017 - Southern Illinois 2018-19 - El Paso, Triple-A Pacific Coast (Padres) Nick Duron - Southern Illinois 2019 - Lehigh Valley, Triple-A International (Phillies) Zac Grotz - Washington 2016 - Worchester, Triple-A International (Red Sox) Jared Koenig - Lake Erie 2019 - Las Vegas, Triple-A Pacific Coast (A's) David Kubiak - Evansville 2012, Southern Illinois 2014-15, Joliet 2015 - Round Rock, Triple-A West (Rangers) Brian McKenna - Joliet 2017-18, Florence 2018-19 - Jacksonville, Triple-A International (Marlins) Tommy Nance - Windy City 2015 - Jacksonville Jumbo Shrimp (Marlins) Chris Nunn - Evansville 2017 - St. Paul, Triple-A International (Twins) Kaleb Ort - Joliet 2016-17 - Worcester, Triple-A East (Red Sox) J.T. Perez - Lake Erie 2021 - Toledo, Triple-A International League (Tigers) Dalton Pompey - Équipe Québec 2019 - Salt Lake, Triple-A West (Angels) Jacques Pucheu - Evansville 2019 - Louisville, Triple-A International (Reds) Tanner Roark - Southern Illinois 2008 - Gwinnett, Triple-A East (Braves) Brandyn Sittinger - Evansville 2019 - Gwinnett, Triple-A International (Braves) Robert Stock - Normal 2015 - Iowa, Triple-A East (Cubs) Austin Warner - River City 2016-17 - Tecoma, Triple-A Pacific Coast (Cardinals) Aaron Wilkerson - Florence 2013 - Oklahoma City, Triple-A Pacific Coast (Dodgers) Luke Westphal - Gateway 2013-14 - El Paso, Triple-A West (Padres) Randy Wynne - Evansville 2018-19 - Louisville, Triple-A International (Reds)

#### AA

Jacob Condra-Bogan - Washington 2017 - Harrisburg, Double-A Northeast (Nationals) Jake Haberer - Florence 2018 - Arkansas, Double-A South (Mariners) Trey Hair - Sussex County 2021 - Frisco, Double-A Texas (Rangers) Matt Hearn - Gateway 2018 - Hartford, Double-A Northeast (Rockies) Ronald Herrera - New Jersey 2021 - Harrisburg - Double-A Eastern (Nationals) Micah Kaczor - River City 2019 - Hartford, Double-A Eastern (Rockies) Sean Kealey - Washington 2021 - Springfield, Double-A Texas (Cardinals) Alec Kenilvort - Schaumburg 2017 - Biloxi, Double-A South (Brewers) Steve Moyers - Joliet 2021 - Arkansas, Double-A Central (Mariners) Quincy Nieporte - Schaumburg 2021 - Erie, Double-A Central (Mariners) Luc Rennie - Evansville 2018 - Wichita, Double-A Central (Twins) Luc Rennie - Evansville 2016-18 - Binghamton, Double-A Northeast (Mets) Dalton Roach - River City 2018-19 - Springfield, Double-A Central (Cardinals) Acentral (Twins)

Michael Stryffeler - Lake Erie 2019 - Arkansas, Double-A Central (Mariners)

#### A

Benjamin Dum - Southern Illinois 2019 - Rome, High-A South Atlantic (Braves) Karl Ellison - Lake Erie 2021 - Jersey Shore, High-A South Atlantic (Phillies) Kent Hasler - Lake Erie 2018-19 - Wisconsin, High-A Midwest (Brewers) Eric Jones - Gateway 2021 - Modesto, Single-A California (Mariners) James Meeker - Washington 2018-19, 21 - Wisconsin, High-A Midwest (Brewers) Bobby Milacki - Joliet 2021 - Cedar Rapids, High-A Midwest Cody Mincey - Windy City 2017, River City 2018-19 - Beloit, High-A Central (Marlins) Matt Mullenbach - Lake Erie 2021 - Cedar Rapids, High-A Midwest (Twins) Alex Nolan - Équipe Québec 2021 - Vancouver, High-A West (Blue Jays) Cam Opp - Evansville 2019 - Brooklyn, High-A South Atlantic(Mets) Orlando Rodriguez - Schaumburg, 2019-21 - Cedar Rapids, High-A Midwest (Twins) Kipp Rollings - Joliet 2021 - Columbia, Single-A Carolina (Royals) Evy Ruibal - Lake Erie 2019, Florence 2021 - Brooklyn, High-A South Atlantic (Mets) Dalton Stambaugh - Evansville 2021 - South Bend, High-A Midwest (Cubs) Gavin Stupienski - Lake Erie 2019 - Quad City, High-A Central (Royals) Christian Tripp - Florence 2021 - Carolina, Single-A Carolina (Mets) Matt Wivinis - Evansville 2016 - Hickory, High-A South Atlantic (Rangers) Jarod Wright - Gateway 2021 - Myrtle Beach, Single-A East (Cubs)

#### ROOKIE

Cole Bellair - Windy City 2021 - Florida Complex League Twins Cameron Brown - Windy City 2021 - Florida Complex League Tigers Joe Deluca - Evansville 2018 - Arizona Complex League Reds Ryan Hennen - Washington 2021 - Arizona Complex League Royals Kyle Johnson - Windy City 2021 - Arizona Complex League Cubs Mike Pascoe - New York/New Jersey 2021 - Florida Complex League Marlins Isaiah Rivera - Schaumburg 2021 - Florida Complex League Twins Braden Scott - Evansville 2021 - Florida Complex League Blue Jays Jack Snyder - Schaumburg 2021 - Florida Complex League Rays Andres Sosa - Tri-City 2021 - Florida Complex League Blue Jays

## FORMER FRONTIER LEAGUE PLAYERS WHO HAVE PLAYED IN THE MAJOR LEAGUES

(Listed in order of MLB appearance)

	Listed in order of MLB		
Player Bryan Tollberg	FL Club (Years) Chillicothe (1994)	MLB Debut 2000	MLB Debut Club San Diego Padres
Morgan Burkhart	Richmond (1995-98)	2000	Boston Red Sox
Terry Pearson	Zanesville (1995-96)	2000	Detroit Tigers
Brendan Donnelly	Ohio Valley (1994)	2002	Anaheim Angels
Jason Simontacchi	Springfield (1998)	2002	St. Louis Cardinals
Matt Duff	Springfield (1997)	2002	St. Louis Cardinals
J.J. Trujillo	Johnstown (1999)	2002	San Diego Padres
Brian Schmack	Newark (1995)	2003	Detroit Tigers
D.J. Carrasco	Johnstown (1999)	2002	Kansas City Royals
George Sherril	Evansvill (1999-2000)	2002	Seattle Mariners
Chris Oxspring	Cook County (2000)	2005	San Diego Padres
Jason Childers	Richmond (1997)	2006	Tampa Bay Rays
Josh Kinney	River City (2001)	2006	St. Louis Cardinals
Joe Thatcher	River City (2004-05)	2000	San Diego Padres
Justin Christian	River City (2003-04)	2008	New York Yankees
Scott Patterson	Gateway (2002-05)	2008	New York Yankees
Mike Cervenak	Chillicothe (1999-2000)	2008	Philadelphia Phillies
Chris Jakubauskas	Florence (2003-04)	2009	Seattle Mariners
	Ohio Valley (2005)		
Clay Zavada	Southern Illinois (2008)	2009	Arizona Diamondbacks
Tom Cochran	Ohio Valley (2005) Washington (2006-07)	2011	Cincinnati Reds
Dylan Axelrod	Windy City (2009)	2011	Chicago White Sox
Steve Delabar	Florence (2008)	2011	Seattle Mariners
Andrew Werner	Evansville (2009-10)	2012	San Diego Padres
Vidal Nuno	Windy City (2010) Washington (2011)	2013	New York Yankees
Tanner Roark	Southern Illinois (2008)	2013	Washington Nationals
Drew Rucinski	Rockford (2011-13)	2014	Los Angeles Angels
Brandon Cunniff	River City (2011-12)	2015	Atlanta Braves
Josh Smoker	Southern Illinois (2012-13) Rockford (2014)	2016	New York Mets
Stephen Cardullo	London/Florence (2012)	2016	Colorado Rockies
Jose Martinez	Rockford (2014)	2016	St, Louis Cardinals
Chris Smith	Lake Erie (2010) Traverse City (2011) Washington (2011-12)	2017	Toronto Blue Jays
Ariel Hernandez	Frontier Greys (2015)	2017	Cincinnati Reds
Aaron Wilkerson	Florence (2013)	2017	Milwaukee Brewers
Trevor Richards	Gateway (2015-16)	2018	Miami Marlins
Ryan Bollinger	Windy City (2010)	2018	New York Yankees
Robert Stock	Normal (2015)	2018	San Diego Padres
D.J. Johnson	Travers City (2011)	2018	Colorado Rockies
Nick Anderson	Rockford (2012-13)	2019	Miami Marlins
	Frontier Greys (2015)		
Zac Grotz	Washington (2016)	2019	Seattle Mariners
Tommy Nance	Windy City (2015)	2021	Chicago Cubs
Jake Cousins	Schaumburg (2019)	2021	Milwaukee Brewers
Mickey Jannis	Lake Erie (2012-14)	2021	Baltimore Orioles
Andrew Bellatti	Tri-City (2021)	2021	Miami Marlins

Brandyn Sittinger	Evansville (2019)	2021	Arizona Diamondbacks
Kaleb Ort	Joliet (2016-17)	2021	Boston Red Sox
Adam Oller	Windy City (2019)	2022	<b>Oakland Athletics</b>
Tyler Danish	Sussex County (2021)	2022	Boston Red Sox

### FORMER FRONTIER LEAGUE PERSONELWORKING IN AFFILIATED PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL

Jeff Albert (Hitting Coach) Dylan Axelrod (Asst. Pitching Coord.) Travis Barbary (Field Manager) Steve Barningham (Dir Int. Scouting) Drew Benes (Pitching Coach) Ricky Bennett (MLB Advance Scout) Jason Bennetti (TV broadcaster) Quincy Boyd (Area Scout) Jeff Brooks (MLB China) Jason Broussard (Hitting Coach) Josh Bunselmeyer (Hitting Coach) Morgan Burkhart (Asst. Hitting) Darren Bush (Hitting Coach) Jet Butler (Area Scout) Chris Calciano (Area Scout) Taylor Cameron (Area Scout) Brian Chattin (Assistant General Mgr.) Jake Ciarrachi (Major League Scout) Jim Coffman (Area Scout) Alex Cohen (Broadcaster) Tyler Coolbaugh (Hitting) Jamie Del Valle (Field Coordinator) Devin DeYoung (Hitting Coach) Ryan Dorsey (Area Scout) Alex Eckelman (Director Hitting Dev.) Donnie Ecker Hitting Coach) Ryan Egisti (Bullpen Catcher) Chad Epperson (Catching Instructor) Darin Everson (Hitting Coordinator) Peter Faste (Asst. Hitting Coach) Robert Ford (Play-by-Play broadcaster) David Forst (General Manager) Paul Fournier (MLB Strength Coach) James Frisbie (Pregame Instructor) Bryan Gale (Asst. Dir. Pro Scouting) Tripp Gibson (Umpire) Roberto Giron (Pitching Coach) Sean Godfrey (Hitting Coach) Jesse Goldberg-Strassler (Broadcaster) Aaron Goldsmith (Broadcaster) Carlos Gomez (Director, Intl. Scouting) Kris Gross (Domestic Supervisor) Andy Haines (Hitting Coach) Kyle Haines (Director of Player Dev.) Josh Handler (Replay Operator) Dan Hasty (Broadcaster) Stephen Head (Area Scout) Chris Hook (Pitching Coach) Andrew Jefferson (Midwest Supervisor) Cale Johnson (Pitching Analyst) Zack Jones (Hitting Coach) K.C. Judge (Hitting Coach) Mike Kashirsky (Pregame Instructor) Billy Killian (Amateur Liasion) Bob Kipper (Pitching Coach) John Kovalik (Pitching Coach) Jeremiah Knackstadt (Fundamentals) Wade LaMont (Strength Coach) Scott Leo (Broadcaster)

Washington Windy City Ohio Valley Springfield River City Erie/Chillicothe Windy City Ohio Valley Rockford Evansville Gateway/River City Richmond/Windy City Zanesville/Springfield Rockford/Gateway Tri-State Chillicothe Evansville Rockford Johnstown Gateway Joliet Evansville Windy City Evansville Richmond Windy City/Gateway Southern Illinois Cook County Ohio Valley/Wash. Florence Kalamazoo Springfield Kenosha Chillicothe/Rockford River City Umpire Kalamazoo Kodiaks Schaumburg Windy City Gateway Gateway Mid-Missouri Dubois Co/Windy City Frontier Greys FL office Traverse City Southern Illinois Florence Evansville/River City Gateway Windy City Normal/Schaumburg Schaumburg/WC/CC Evansville Evansville Frontier Greys Frontier Greys/RC Windy City Richmond

St. Louis Cardinals Los Angles Angels Oklahoma City (LAD AA. New York Mets Altoona (Pirates - AA) Pittsburgh Pirates Chicago White Sox Boston Red Sox MLB office DSL Reds (R) DSL Orioles (R) San Diego Padres Oakland A's New York Mets Cleveland Indians Minnesota Twins Miami Marlins Chicago Cubs Oakland Athletics Iowa (Cubs - AAA) DSL Rangers (R) DSL Diamondbacks (R) AZL White Sox(CWS-R) Chicago White Sox Cleveland Indians San Francisco Giants Kansas City Royals Boston Red Sox Colorado Rockies Boston Red Sox Houston Astros Oakland Athletics Philadelphia Phillies Detroit Tigers Milwaukee Brewers Major League Baseball DSL Dodgers (R) Fayetteville (Astros - A) Lansing (Blue Jays - A) Seattle Mariners Los Angeles Angels Houston Astros Milwaukee Brewers San Francisco Giants MLB office West Michigan (Tigers - A Los Angeles Dodgers Milwaukee Brewers San Francisco Giants St. Louis Cardinals GCL Phillies (Phillies - R) Hillsboro (ARI - A) Chicago White Sox Cincinnati Reds Greenville (Red Sox - A) GCL Astros (Astros – R) AZL Giants Orange (R) Round Rock (TEX - AAA Columbus (Indians - AAA

2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE MEDIA GUIDE | 49

Sam Levitt (Broadcaster) Justin Lord (Pitching Coach) Craig Maddox (Hitting Coach) Guillermo Martinez (Hitting Coach) Craig Massoni (Hitting Coach) Dylan Mazzo (Defensive Coach) Ricky Meinhold (Asst. Pitching Coach) Ryan Mitchell (Broadcaster) Chris Newell (Field Manager) Michael O'Neal (Development Coach) Patrick O'Sullivan (Hitting Coach) Jim Paduch (Pitching Coach) Rich Pasquale (Scout) Tyger Pederson (Hitting Coach) Dennis Pelfrey (Field Manager) Wynn Pelzer (Area Scout) J.R. Perdew (Asst. Pitching Coord.) Jamie Pogue (Bullpen Catcher) Jeff Pohl (Area Scout) Steven Pollakov (Hitting Analytics) David Popkins (Hitting Coach) Joe Pott (Pre & Postgame host) Alain Quijano (Pitching Coach) Fran Riordan (Manager) Francisco Rosario (Scout) Drew Rossi (Professional Scout) Brendan Sagara (Pitching Coach) Drew Saylor (Hitting Coordinator) Dick Schofield (Development Coach) Josh Seligman (MLB Strength/Condit.) Ryan Sienko (Catching Coord.) Jason Simontacchi (Pitching Coord.) Spenser Smith (Broadcaster) Tyler Stubblefield (Area Scout) Charlie Sullivan (Area Scout) Alex Sunderland (Professional Scout) John Tamargo, Jr. (Field Coordinator) Terry Tripp Jr. (Midwest Crosschecker) Casey Upperman (Throwing Coach) Mike Ventola (Broadcaster) Dominic Viola (Assignment Scout) (Assignment Scout) Keronn Walker Ryley Westman (Dir. of Instruction) Brant Whiting (Bullpen Catcher) Jon Williams (Pro Scout)

Gateway Southern Illinois Lake Erie Windy City LE/Gateway/So Illinois AZL Indians (Indians – R) Gateway Windy City Chillicothe Kalamazoo Florence/Gateway Rock/SIL/Schaumburg Evansville/Rockford Slippery Rock/Wash. Rockford Dubois/Kenosha/Flo. Evansville Chillicothe London Evansville Joliet Washington Gateway Florence/Windy City OV/DC/Rich/Kal/Flo Greys/So. Illinois Traverse City/Wash. Ev/DC/Ken/Oz/WC/SI Chillicothe/Lake Erie River City/Springfield Kenosha Kalamazoo Kodiaks Springfield Florence Southern Illinois Johnstown/Evansville River City/Evn/Rock. Traverse City River City Normal Southern Illinois Ports/Johns/Dubois Co. Miami Marlins Evansville/Windy City Slippery Rock/MW Evansville River City

Amarillo (Padres – AA) Wilmington (Nationals - A DSL Giants (Giants – R) Toronto Blue Jays AZL Angles (Angels – R) New York Mets Columbus (Indians - AA. Gulf Coast Mets (Mets - F Carolina (Brewers - A) Lake Elsinore (Padres - A) Bowling Green (Rays - A) Baltimore Orioles Springfield (STL – AA) Eugene (Giants - A) Milwaukee Brewers Chicago White Sox St. Louis Cardinals Minnesota Twins DSL Cubs (R) Great Lakes (Dodgers - A St. Louis Cardinals Eugene (Giants - A) Las Vegas (OAK - AAA) **Baltimore Orioles** Chicago Cubs Texas Rangers Kansas City Royals Daytona (Reds - A) Milwaukee Brewers Los Angeles Dodgers Kansas City Royals Bradenton (Pirates - A) San Diego Padres Milwaukee Brewers New York Yankees Toronto Blue Jays Atlanta Braves Oakland Athletics Lehigh Valley (PHI - AA Chicago Cubs San Diego Padres San Francisco Giants Kansas City Royals



## F.L. POST-SEASON AWARDS

## THE MORGAN BURKHART MOST VALUABLE PLAYER AWARD

Given each year to the Most Valuable Player in the League. Named in honor of Morgan Burkhart of the Richmond Roosters who won three consecutive MVP's from 1996- 1998. He is also the first Frontier League position player to reach the Major Leagues, joining the Boston Red Sox in 2000. Morgan is currently the assistant hitting coach for the San Diego Padres.

## THE BRIAN TOLLBERG MOST VALUABLE PITCHER AWARD

Given each year to the Most Valuable Pitcher in the League. Named in honor of former Chillicothe Paint Brian Tollberg, who was the first former Frontier League player to reach the Major Leagues with the San Diego Padres in 2000. He was named National Player of the Week in his first week.

## THE JASON SIMONTACCHI ROOKIE OF THE YEAR AWARD

This award was started in 2002 and given to the League's top rookie player. The award is named in honor of Jason Simontacchi, former Springfield Capital and League Pitcher of the Year in 1998. Jason reached the Major Leagues with the St. Louis Cardinals in 2002 and was named the Rookie of the Month for June in the National League. He was elected to the Frontier League's Hall of Fame in 2019. Jason is currently the Minor League Pitching Coordinator for the Kansas City Royals.

## THE ROGER HANNERS MANAGER OF THE YEAR AWARD

Given to the League's top manager each year. Named in honor of Roger Hanners who passed away in 2002. Roger took over as Chillicothe Paints manager midway through the 1993 season and skippered them until the end of the 2000 season. Roger was voted Manager of the Year for 1996 and led the Paints to the 1996, 1998, and 1999 Championship Series. Upon his retirement, Roger had more wins than any manager in League history. His class and dignity both on and off the field will forever be remembered in the Frontier League.

## THE BOB WOLFE EXECUTIVE OF THE YEAR AWARD

Given to the team operator who does the best job running his/her team throughout the year from the business, marketing, and operations perspective as voted by the other clubs. Named in honor of league cofounder Bob Wolfe, who was the inaugural winner while serving as General Manager for the Zanesville Greys in 1993.

## THE FRAN RIORDAN CITIZENSHIP AWARD

Given to the player that best exemplifies good citizenship off the field and in his community in the League. It is named for former Richmond Rooster and Dubois County Dragon first baseman, Fran Riordan. He was one of the first players to play in the League for six seasons and held numerous offensive records at the end of his playing career. Fran was a Post-Season All-Star in 2000, 2001, and 2002. He also managed the Roosters to consecutive League Championships in 2001 and 2002 as player-manager, won again with the Kalamazoo Kings in 2005, and led the Florence Freedom to their first two playoff appearances in 2012 and 2013. He was voted Manager of the Year in 2008. Fran was part of the inaugural Hall of Fame class in 2014. He is currently managing the Las Vegas Aviators, Oakland's Triple-A team.

## THE DARREN BUSH COACH OF THE YEAR AWARD

Given to the assistant coach voted as having the biggest impact on his team. The award is named for former Darren Bush. Darren was an outfielder for the Zanesville Greys in 1996 and for the Springfield Capitals in 1997 and 1998. He was a starting outfielder in the 1997 and 1998 All-Star Games. Darren became the first former Frontier League player to named as a coach for a Major League team when the Oakland Athletics named him Bullpen Coach for the 2013 season. Darren was promoted to Hitting Coach for the 2015 season, a role that he still holds.

## THE ROBERT FORD BROADCASTER OF THE YEAR AWARD

Given to the top broadcaster each season as selected by the other broadcasters, general managers, and field managers. Named for Robert Ford, who was voted Broadcaster of the Year for the 2003 and 2004 seasons when he called games for the Kalamazoo Kings. Robert became the first Frontier League broadcaster to be hired as a full-time MLB play-by-play announcer when the Houston Astros tabbed him to replace Hall of Fame broadcaster Milo Hamilton for the 2013 season.

## THE SAM HARTSFIELD CLUBBIE OF THE YEAR AWARD

Given to the clubhouse manager who does the best job servicing both the home and visiting clubs throughout the season. Named for longtime Evansville Otters' clubhouse manager Sam Hartsfield, who retired following the 2015 season. Sam's baseball career spanned six decades as a player, coach, and mentor to thousands. As a player, Sam played in the Negro Leagues for the famed Kansas City Monarchs and Indianapolis Clowns.

## **2022 PLAYER ELIGIBILITY RULES**

Regular season and playoff rosters will be composed of a minimum of 22 active players and a maximum of 24 active players.

Each club must carry a minimum of ten (10) rookies (combination of Rookie-1 and Rookie-2 players) with no professional experience other than specified below and may carry a maximum of fourteen (14) players classified as Experienced or Veteran during the regular season and playoffs on their active roster. For the 2022 season, no more than four of these players may be Veteran classification.

**Rookie Classification:** The Rookie classification will be split into two subclassifications, Rookie-1 and Rookie-2. The Rookie-1 sub-classification will be for players who made their professional debut in the current season and therefore have no prior professional experience, or whose experience does not meet the minimum appearances listed below. The Rookie-2 sub-classification is for players who have one year of professional experience.

**Experienced Classification:** The Experienced classification is for all players who do not meet the requirements to be classified under the Rookie or Veteran classifications.

<u>Veteran Classification</u>: The Veteran classification is for a player who is over twenty-nine (29) years of age prior to October 1 of that playing season. For the 2022 season, any player born on or before September 30, 1993 will be a Veteran classification regardless of their prior playing experience.

<u>Minimum Appearance Exception</u>: A player must have accrued more than 75 at bats, 15 games pitched, or 30 innings pitched in a season for that season to count toward the classifications.

**<u>21-year Old Exemption</u>**: Any player who is twenty-one (21) years of age or younger on or after October 1st of any season and is entering his first year in the Frontier League, regardless of any prior professional baseball experience, will be considered no higher than a Rookie-2 by Frontier League Rules. For the 2022 season, a birthdate of October 1, 2000 will be the cutoff to qualify under this provision.

<u>Military Exemption</u>: Players who have served on active military duty will receive an exemption to the age limit to avoid the Veteran classification of one year for each year of active duty that was served.

**Position Change Exemption:** Starting with the 2016 season, position players who are switching to pitching and pitchers who are switching to playing a position will have their classifications reset to Rookie-2 provided that they do not appear in any games at their previous position (batting/running or pitching, depending on the switch).

## FRONTIER LEAGUE HALL OF FAME

The Frontier League Hall of Fame was established in 2014 to honor and celebrate the players, people, and special moments that helped us become the longest-running and premier Independent Professional Baseball league.

In order to qualify for the Frontier League Hall of Fame, a player must have been out of the Frontier League for three full seasons and have retired from professional baseball for at least one full season. Voting is done by a committee composed of a field manager, team front office, and ownership representative in conjunction with the league office. The proposed slate is then affirmed by the Board of Directors. Previous inductees are:

### 2014 - Inaugural Class

**Morgan Burkhart** – Richmond Roosters, 1995-98 – Post-season All-Star all four season, and league MVP in 1996, 1997, and 1998. Morgan was the first position player to play Major League Baseball, playing for the Boston Red Sox and Kansas City Royals. The MVP award is named for Morgan.

Aaron Ledbetter – River City, 2003-06; Washington 2006-08 – Pitcher of the Year in 2007. Aaron retired as the career leader in games started, innings pitched, victories, complete games, and strikeouts.

Scott Pinoni – Chillicothe, 1996-99 – Post-season All-Star in 1996, 1997, and 1999, and league MVP in 1999.

**Fran Riordan** – Richmond, 1997-98 and 2001-02; Dubois County 1999-2000 – Post-Season All-Star in 2000, 2001, and 2002. Also served as manager for Richmond in 2001-02 and Kalamazoo from 2004-09 winning three championships (2001, 2002, and 2005), and is the all-time winningest manager. The Citizenship award is named for Fran.

**Kirk Taylor** – Ohio Valley, 1998; Johnstown 1999-2001 – Post-Season AllStar in 1998, 2000, and 2001, and league MVP in 2001. Kirk finished his FL career 2nd all-time in home runs. He also managed Johnstown in 2002.

**Dr. Chris Hanners (special contributor)** – Co-founder of the Frontier League in 1993, Chris served as President from 1994-2003 and Chairman of the Board from 2004-2008 as owner of the Chillicothe Paints and Rockford Aviators.

**Brett Gray strikes out 25 batters (significant moment)** – June 3, 2000, was the home opener for the defending champion London Werewolves. Brett struck out 25 batters as London defeated the Chillicothe Paints with MLB Hall of Famer Bob Feller in attendance. Following the game, the Baseball Hall of Famer requested memorabilia from the game, and two days later the Cincinnati Reds signed Brett.

### Class of 2015

**Mike Breyman** – Gateway Grizzlies, 2004-08 – Post-Season All-Star in 2007 and 2008. Mike retired as the Frontier League's career leader in hits, tied for the lead in RBI, and second in home runs. He also managed Joliet in 2013.

**Bobby Chandler** – Chillicothe, 1998-99; Richmond, 2000; Johnstown, 2001-02. Bobby was the pre-eminent closer of the league's first decade, retiring with a then-record 56 saves.

Class of 2015

Stephen Holdren – Windy City, 2006; Rockford, 2006; Gateway, 2007-09; Southern Illinois, 2009; River City, 2010-11 – Post-Season All-Star in 2010 and 2011, MVP in 2011. Retired as second all-time in runs scored, hits, home runs, and RBI.

Jason James – Rockford, 2006-09, 2011; Windy City, 2011 – Post-Season All-Star in 2007, 2008, and 2009. Jason hit safely in 40 games during the 2009 season, which is still the league record. His .347 career batting average is the highest of any player to play at least three full seasons.

**Chris Sidick** – Washington, 2005-11 – Post-Season All -Star in 2006. Chris still holds the career records for games played, at bats, runs scored, and hits. Bob Wolfe (special contributor) – Bob was one of the co-founders of the Frontier League and owned the Zanesville Greys from 1993-95. He served as league Treasurer until his retirement in 2011. Bob was the inaugural winner of the Executive of the Year award, which is now named for him.

**2002** All-Star Game Home Run Derby (significant moment) – The morning following a controversial tie in the MLB All-Star Game, the Board of Directors voted to use a home run derby if the Frontier League game scheduled for that night was tied after 9 innings. After a home run by Dubois County's Joe Kalczynski tied the game at 4 in the top of of the 9th, the home East division stranded a runner on 3rd base to end the game. Brody Jackson from River City hit the home run in the derby to give the West a victory. Following the game, Fox Sports Radio dedicated a 30-minute segment to the Frontier League, while footage of Brody's home run was featured as the "Spotlight Segment" on ESPN's SportsCenter the following evening.

### Class of 2016

**Richard Austin** – Springfield Capitals, 2001; Rockford RiverHawks 2002-04 – 2004 Frontier League Most Valuable Player when he led the RiverHawks to their only championship. Richard also managed the RiverHawks /Aviators from 2011-13.

Willie Edwards – Kalamazoo Kodiaks, 1998; London Werewolves, 1999-2001; Kalamazoo Kings, 2001; Chillicothe Paints, 2002 – 1998 PostSeason All-Star outfielder who led London to the 1999 championship. Willie finished his Frontier League career with a .310 batting average, 44 home runs, and 216 RBI.

**Charlie Lisk** – 2006, Windy City ThunderBolts; 2007-11, Gateway Grizzlies, 2012, River City Rascals – 2010 Most Valuable Player and 2008, 09, 10, and 11 Post-Season All-Star catcher. Charlie is the Frontier League's career home run and RBI leader.

**Joey Metropoulos** – 2007-10, Southern Illinois Miners – 2009 Frontier League Most Valuable Player and a 2008-09 Post-Season All-Star outfielder. Joey finished his Frontier League career with a .305 batting average, 70 home runs, and 208 RBI.

**Matt Schweitzer**  $\neg$  2000-05, Richmond Roosters – 2003 Post-Season AllStar and member of the 2002 and 2003 champion teams. Matt completed his Frontier League career with a 29-22 record, 13 saves, and 3.44 ERA with 434 strikeouts in 196 games. Matt was the Frontier League career leader in games pitched when he retired and still ranks 2nd all-time in strikeouts.

**Max McLeary (special contributor)** – Max umpired in the Frontier League from 1995-2005, becoming what is believed to be the only one-eyed person to ever umpire professional baseball, according to the Baseball Hall of Fame. Max's Frontier League umpiring career was the subject of articles in the New York Times, Cincinnati Enquirer, Sports Illustrated, and by the Associated Press, and he was the subject of the book "Everything Happens in Chillicothe: A Summer in

the Frontier League with Max McLeary, the One-Eyed Umpire", covering the 2000 season.

**Brian Tollberg's Major League Baseball debut (significant moment)** – Brian Tollberg gave the Frontier League national publicity on June 20, 2000 when he became the first former player to appear in a Major League Baseball game. Brian was the starting pitcher for the San Diego Padres and earned the win over the Arizona Diamondbacks by tossing seven shutout innings and allowing only one hit. Five days later, Brian won his second start lasting 7.1 innings against the Cincinnati Reds. He was named National League Player of the Week that week along with being named National League Rookie Pitcher of the Month. Brian appeared in 53 games (52 starts) for the Padres over four seasons, compiling a 15-16 record and 4.84 ERA. Brian made his professional debut with the Chillicothe Paints in 1994, finishing with a 7-4 record and 2.85 ERA before having his contract purchased by the Milwaukee Brewers, who traded him to San Diego prior to the 1997 season. The Frontier League Pitcher of the Year award is named in Brian's honor.

### Class of 2017

**Chase Burch** – Traverse City Beach Bums, 2010-13 – 2012 Post-Season AllStar first baseman who finished his Frontier League career with .283 batting average, 68 home runs, and 235 RBI. Chase helped the Beach Bums to the 2010 Frontier League Championship Series.

**Travis Garcia** – Ohio Valley Redcoats, 2005; Chillicothe Paints 2006-08 – 2007 Most Valuable Player and 2005, 06, and 07 Post-Season All-Star as a shortstop and third baseman. Travis finished his time in the Frontier League with a .304 batting average, 57 home runs, and 275 RBI and led Chillicothe to the 2006 Championship Series. Gator McBride – Chillicothe Paints, 1998-99 – 1998 Post-Season All-Star outfielder who led the Paints to the Championship Series. Gator hit .423 with 27 home runs and 111 RBI in 108 career games before signing with the Boston Red Sox.

**Pete Pirman** – Evansville Otters, 2002; Richmond Roosters 2003; Kalamazoo Kings 2004-06 – 2005 Most Valuable Player who led Kalamazoo to their only Frontier League title. Pete is tied for the singleseason record with 100 RBI in 2005 and posted a .300 batting average with 47 home runs and 247 RBI in his Frontier League tenure.

**Steve Sturgill (special contributor)** – Steve was the first President of the Frontier League and one of the original league owners. Steve ran the Portsmouth Explorers in 1993 and 1994, later serving as the City Council President/Mayor of Portsmouth. Aside from Bill Lee, Steve is the only person to have his signature stamped on a Frontier League baseball.

June 30, 1993 (significant moment) – After months of planning, the Frontier League became the first fully independent professional baseball league to operate since the late 1970s when the eight original teams took the field for their first official games. The Tri-State Tomahawks hosted the West Virginia Coal Sox; the Kentucky Rifles hosted the Ohio Valley Redcoats; the Zanesville Greys hosted the Lancaster Scouts; and the Chillicothe Paints hosted the Portsmouth Explorers. Among the players from the inaugural games are Ohio Valley's Darin Everson (currently the Triple-A hitting coach for the Colorado Rockies) and Travis Barbery (currently the Catching Coordinator for the Los Angeles Dodgers); Portsmouth's Dominic Viola (currently an Assignment Scout for the Miami Marlins); and TriState's Chris Calciano (currently an Area Scout for the Boston Red Sox).

**Andy Clark** – Florence Freedom, 2008-13 – Finished his Frontier League career with a 37-12 record, 3.72 ERA, 2.85:1 strikeout/walk ratio over 94 career games. Andy ranks in the top five for career wins, games started, and innings pitched.

Andrew Davis – Lake Erie Crushers, 2009-14 – Andrew ranks in the top three in career games played, at bats, hits, and RBI. A Post-Season All-Star as a third baseman in 2009 and as a shortstop in 2011 Andrew led the Crushers to the Frontier League Championship during their inaugural season.

**Scott Dunn** – Traverse City Beach Bums, 2010-13; Washington Wild Things, 2014. The 2013 Frontier League Pitcher of the Year, Scott finished with a 38-15 career record for the second most victories in FL history to go with a 2.83 ERA over 445.1 innings.

**Eric Massingham** – Evansville Otters, 2011-14 – Eric's 70 career saves are the most for any Frontier League player. He posted a 1.68 ERA over 116 games and was the 2013 Post-Season All-Star Relief Pitcher.

**Terry Pearson** – Zanesville Greys, 1995-96 – Terry became the third former Frontier League player to advance to Major League Baseball when he made the Detroit Tigers' opening day roster in 2002. He was a 1996 Post-Season All-Star after leading the league with 20 saves to go along with a 4-1 record, 0.50 ERA, and 43 strikeouts in 35.2 innings.

**Duke Ward (special contributor)** – Duke was instrumental in bringing the Richmond Roosters into the Frontier League for the 1995 season and was part of the ownership group for their 11 seasons. Duke served several years as Vice-President for the Frontier League while his Richmond team was the 1995 Organization of the Year and hosted the 1996 and 1998 All-Star Games.

Unveiling of Baseball's Best Burger (significant moment) – When former Gateway Grizzlies' general manager Tony Funderburg unveiled Baseball's Best Burger prior to the 2006 season, the team had no idea how well known the product would become. The sandwich, which features a thick hamburger with bacon and sharp cheddar cheese served on a grilled Krispy Kreme donut, received national publicity from the moment that it was introduced. The burger has been featured on ESPN, The Travel Channel, and in Fortune Magazine and Sports Illustrated along with many other places.

### Class of 2019

**Ryan Bird** – Southern Illinois Miners, 2008-10 – The 2008 Pitcher of the Year when he led the Frontier League in wins (13) and strikeouts (152). Ryan finished with a 28-12 career record, 2.96 ERA, and 308 strikeouts in 289.1 innings over 49 games.

Landon Hernandez – Gateway Grizzlies, 2010-14 – One of the top defensive catchers in league history, including a record 55% caught stealing in 2013. Landon was a Post-Season All-Star in 2011, 2012, and 2013 who finished with 64 home runs and 214 RBI.

Mitch House – Chillicothe Paints, 1996-98 – Post-Season All-Star at third base in 1996 and 1998 and at first base in 1997. Mitch led the Frontier League in hits, home runs, and RBI in 1996 and compiled career numbers of a .300 batting average, 50 home runs, 181 RBI, and a .997 ops.

**Gilberto Mejia** – Windy City ThunderBolts, 2007-10 – Another 3-time PostSeason All-Star, honored at second base in 2008, 2009, and 2010. Gilberto finished with a .295 batting average, 21 home runs, 156 RBI, 139 stolen bases (including a league-leading 49 in 2009), and a .820 ops.

Jason Simontacchi – Springfield Capitals, 1998 – The 1998 Pitcher of the Year when he posted a 10-2 record and 2.95 ERA with 92 strikeouts over 16 starts against the best offensive season in league history. Jason has his contract purchased following the season, making his way to Major League Baseball for the St. Louis Cardinals (2002-04) and Washington Nationals (2007). The Frontier League's Rookie of the Year award is named for Jason, as he was the National League's Rookie of the Month for June 2002.

**Clint Brown (special contributor)** – Clint purchased the Florence Freedom out of bankruptcy prior to the 2005 season and owned and operated the club until his passing in January 2018. Clint was an active member of multiple committees during his time in the Frontier League, including the Executive Committee, the By-Laws Committee, and the Membership/Expansion Committee. Clint's passion for the Freedom and the Frontier League was infectious and he was a mentor to hundreds of employees throughout his career. Florence was voted Organization of the Year in 2005 and 2015 while General Managers Kari Rumfield (2009) and Josh Anderson (2015) won Executive of the Year during Clint's tenure. The Freedom hosted the 2007 and 2016 All-Star Games while on the field the team won the 2017 West Division title and advanced to the Championship Series in 2012 and 2017. Former Freedom players Steve Delabar, Stephen Cardullo, and Aaron Wilkerson all advanced to MLB after playing under Clint, while current Milwaukee Brewers' pitching coach Chris Hook and Oakland Athletics' Triple-A field manager Fran Riordan were part of his on-field staff.

**Opening of Hawkinson Ford Field and T.R. Hughes Ballpark for the 1999 season (significant moment)** – 1999 was one of the milestone years in the history of the Frontier League as the Cook County Cheetahs and River City Rascals began play, bringing the league to 10 teams for the first time. Cook County and River City were notable for being the first two ballparks built specifically for Frontier League teams plus being the first entry into a suburban MLB market for the Frontier League. Hawkinson Ford Field (now Ozinga Field) and T.R. Hughes Ballpark (now CarShield Field) drastically jumped the standard of ballpark for a Frontier League team while the offfield success of the Rascals and Cheetahs led to future suburban markets such as Gateway, Washington, Florence, and Lake Erie.

### Class of 2021

**Corey Morris -** Ohio Valley Redcoats, 1994 - Although limited to only one season due to playing rules at the time, former Ohio Valley Redcoats Outfielder Corey Morris, made the most of 1994. The season was only 68 games. He registered a .394 avg, with 19 home runs, 63 RBI, 67 runs scored, 22 doubles, 47 walks, and a 1.252 OPS. He led the Frontier League in home runs, RBI, runs, doubles, and walks, and was 2nd in average. He was named the 1994 league Most Valuable Player, and still possesses the second highest OPS in league history.

**Joe Pass** - Richmond Roosters, 1996-98, Dubois County Dragons, 1999 - A Second Baseman and Leftfielder, Joe spent time with the Richmond Roosters from 1996-1998, where he played with Frontier League Hall of Famers Morgan Burkhart and Fran Riordan. He then served as player-manager for the Dubois County Dragons in 1999. He played in 4 Frontier League All-Star games. Pass had a .325 career avg, with 133 RBI and a .391 OBP. He was also named a PostSeason All-Star in both the 1996 and 1999 seasons.

**Josh Loggins** - Washington Wild Things, 2002-03 - Playing the majority of games as an Outfielder and Catcher, Josh posted a .339 career average, with 31 doubles, 29 home runs, and 117 RBI. His .347 batting average in 2002 ranked 4th in the League. He had a season to remember in 2003. That year, he ranked 3rd in average (.331), 1st in home runs (24) and 4th in RBI (72). He won the 2003 League MVP Award, despite signing with the Colorado Rockies in mid-August of that year. He then played 2 more years professionally.

**Jared Howton** - Washington Wild Things, 2002-03, Richmond Roosters, 2005 - A starting left-handed pitcher with the Washington Wild Things in 2002 & 2003 and the Richmond Roosters in 2005. Jared posted a 21-8 career record with a 2.94 ERA. 2002 was his greatest season. He led the league in ERA (1.89) and tied for most wins (11). He had 89 strikeouts and only 38 walks in 109 innings of work. He was named 2002 Pitcher of the Year as well as a Mid-Season and Post-Season All Star. He also served as a Pitching Coach for the Richmond Roosters.

**Jonathan Kountis** - Lake Erie Crushers, 2012, Frontier Greys, 2013, Washington Wild Things 2014-15 - A right-handed relief pitcher with the Lake Erie Crushers in 2012, Frontier Greys in 2013, and Washington Wild Things in 2014-15, Jonathan ranks second all-time in saves with 59. He also currently holds the Frontier League record for single season saves with 32. Along with his saves total, in his 162 innings pitched over 113 games played, he posted a 3.00 ERA and 188 strikeouts. He was named a Post-Season All-Star Relief Pitcher in 2012 and 2014.

**Mike Torres** - Windy City Thunderbolts 2010-15 - Mike was a complete player for the Windy City Thunderbolts and a fixture in their lineup for 6 seasons. He played second base, shortstop, and third base for the ThunderBolts. He racked up a .294 career average, 207 RBI, and 153 stolen bases over 565 career games. Torres rarely missed a game. He played in a league-record 339 consecutive games from 6/1/11 to 7/29/14, and 565 out of a possible 575 games in his six seasons. He was named an All-Star as a Second Basemen in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2015.

Kevin Rouch - Kevin Rouch first joined the Frontier League as the radio broadcaster for the Zanesville Greys from 1993-96. He then was the voice of the Chillicothe Paints from 1997 to 2000. He was selected as the Frontier League Broadcaster of the Year in 1998. Kevin then was appointed Deputy Commissioner and League Counsel in 2001, serving in these roles through the 2009 season. Kevin created the first Frontier League website and was responsible for the Frontier League qualifying for P-1 work visas for international players.

**Rich Sauget Sr.** - The owner of the Gateway Grizzlies joined the Frontier League in 1999. From 2003 through 2020, he served as the President of the League Board of Directors. During Sauget's tenure, the League experienced tremendous growth. Annually, the League attracts approximately 1.5 million fans. Throughout his Presidency, six new stadiums were built. Also, he helped to oversee the admission of the teams from the Can-Am League after the 2019 season. In 2020, MLB named the Frontier League as a Partner League, one of the most important moments in League history.

### Class of 2022

**Tom Crowley** - Tom Crowley played 3 seasons in the Frontier League. He was the true leader of the Zanesville Greys. He led the team to the inaugural FL Championship in 1993, with a 7-1 record and a 2.05 ERA. He garnered the Pitcher of the Year award for his efforts. Throughout his career, he proved his versatility. Besides pitching, he played every position other than 1B and catcher.

**Steve Ruckman** - Steve Ruckman was the most dominant 3B of his era in the Frontier League. He played for Newark in 1994 and Richmond in 1995 and 1997. He was a consistent hitter that produced a career .316 average. He also was a tremendous defender compiling a career .940 fielding percentage. He was twice named to the Frontier League Post Season All-Star Team at 3B.

**Perry Cunningham** - Perry Cunningham was a workhorse for the Chillicothe Paints for 4 seasons from 2004-2007. Perry led the Paints to the 2005 and 2006 Championship Series. His statistics in that period place him among the career League leaders in Wins (37), Games Started (78) and Innings Pitched (497.2). He also had 7 complete games and posted a career ERA of 3.56. Perry was selected for the 2006 All-Star Game.

**Jacob Dempsey** - Jacob Dempsey was one of the most feared hitters in the Frontier League during his career. He was a tremendous run producer or the Washington Wild Things from 2008-2010. In his 257 games played, he had 62 doubles, 57 home runs, and 221 RBI. Almost half of his 264 hits went for extra bases. He was named to the Frontier League Post Season All-Star team as the Designated Hitter in both 2008 and 2009.

**Aaron Dudley** - Aaron Dudley spent 5 seasons with the Normal CornBelters from 2013-2017. Throughout his career with the club, he was the anchor at 1B and the clean-up spot in the order. His 120 doubles, 57 homers, 290 RBI and OPS of .951 are all Normal team records. He was named to the Frontier League Post Season All-Star Team at 1B in 2015 and 2016.

**Patrick McKenna** - Patrick McKenna was a standout Shortstop with the Normal CornBelters from 2012-2015. He was a slick fielder and compiled a .962 fielding percentage while in Normal. At the plate, he produced great numbers as well. His 59 home runs is a team record. During his career, he played as high as AAA with the Padres. He was a Post-Season All-Star shortstop in 2013 and 2015.

#### Special Moment - 25th anniversary of the first no-hitter in league history

It took until the Frontier League's fourth season for our first no-hitter. 2022 marks the 25th anniversary of Christian Hess' performance. Hess, pitching for the Richmond Roosters, held the Kalamazoo Kodiaks hitless during the June 8, 1997, game at Mayor's Riverfront Park in Kalamazoo. His Richmond teammates that game included Frontier League Hall of Famers Morgan Burkhart, Joe Pass, and Steve Ruckman. Hess tied for the team lead in wins with Evansville in 1996 before moving to Richmond for the 1997 season.

## 2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE OFFICIAL SCHEDULE

					20	)22 OF	FICIA	L FRO	NTIER	LEAGUE		DULE					
DATES	DAYS	QC	3R	OTT	ES	SC	NJ	NY	T-C	WSH	LE	FLO	EVN	WC	JOL	SCH	GAT
May 12	Thurs							SC				T-C		JOL			
May 13	Fri					SCH				NY	3R	T-C	NJ	QC	отт		ES
May 14	Sat					SCH				NY	3R	T-C	NJ	QC	OTT		ES
May 15	Sun					SCH				NY	3R		NJ	QC	OTT		ES
May 16	Mon																
May 17	Tues					WSH		SCH	LE			NJ	ES	ΟΤΤ	QC		3R
May 18	Wed					WSH		SCH	LE			NJ	ES	OTT	QC		3R
May 19	Thurs					WSH		SCH	LE			NJ	ES	OTT	QC		3R
May 20	Fri						GAT	JOL	wc	ES	SC	OTT	QC			3R	
May 21	Sat						GAT	JOL	WC	ES	SC	OTT	QC			3R	
May 22	Sun						GAT	JOL	WC	ES	SC	OTT	QC			3R	
May 23	Mon																
May 24	Tues	GAT	FLO	EVN			JOL			T-C	NY			SC		ES	
May 25	Wed	GAT	FLO	EVN			JOL			T-C	NY			SC		ES	
May 26	Thurs	GAT	FLO	EVN			JOL			T-C	NY			SC		ES	
May 27	Fri	FLO	EVN	GAT		JOL				NJ	ES			NY		T-C	
May 28	Sat	FLO	EVN	GAT		JOL				NJ	ES			NY		T-C	
May 29	Sun	FLO	EVN	GAT		JOL				NJ	ES			NY		T-C	
May 30	Mon			0/11													
May 31	Tues	ES					3R	отт	SC		_	WSH	LE		SCH		wc
June 1	Wed	ES					3R	OTT	SC			WSH	LE		SCH		WC
June 2	Thurs	ES					3R	OTT	SC			WSH	LE		SCH		wc
June 3	Fri					отт	QC	ES	3R			LE		SCH	WSH		EVN
June 4	Sat					OTT	QC	ES	3R			LE		SCH	WSH		EVN
June 5	Sun					OTT	QC	ES	3R			LE			WSH		EVN
June 6	Mon					•			0.1								
June 7	Tues	ES	ΟΤΤ			NY				T-C	NJ		wc		FLO	GAT	
June 8	Wed	ES	OTT			NY				T-C	NJ		WC		FLO	GAT	
June 9	Thurs	ES	OTT			NY				T-C	NJ		WC		FLO	GAT	
June 10	Fri		SC	ES			NY		QC	SCH	JOL	wc	GAT				
June 11	Sat		SC	ES			NY		QC	SCH	JOL	WC	GAT				
June 12	Sun		SC	ES			NY		QC	SCH	JOL	wc	GAT				
June 13	Mon																
June 14	Tues			3R		ES		QC	NJ					LE	WSH	EVN	FLO
June 15	Wed			3R		ES		QC	NJ					LE	WSH	EVN	FLO
June 16	Thurs			3R		ES		QC	NJ					LE	WSH		FLO
June 17	Fri		ES			QC	отт	T-C					LE	FLO		WSH	JOL
June 18	Sat		ES			QC	OTT	T-C					LE	FLO		WSH	JOL
June 19	Sun		ES			QC	OTT	T-C					LE			WSH	JOL
June 20	Mon																
June 21	Tues	NY		SC			ES		3R	LE		EVN			wc		SCH
June 22	Wed	NY		SC			ES		3R	LE	-	EVN			wc		SCH
June 23	Thurs	NY		SC			ES		3R	LE		EVN			WC		SCH
June 24	Fri	NJ	SC	NY					ES		EVN	GAT		WSH		JOL	
June 25	Sat	NJ	SC	NY					ES		EVN	GAT		WSH		JOL	
June 26	Sun	NJ	SC	NY					ES		EVN	GAT		WSH		JOL	
June 26	oun	NJ	30	NT					EO		CVN	GAI		Noff		301	

- \* traditional double-header
- ^ day/night double-header

day game

#### 2022 OFFICIAL FRONTIER LEAGUE SCHEDULE

										LEAGUE							
DATES	DAYS	QC	3R	ΟΤΤ	ES	SC	NJ	NY	T-C	WSH	LE	FLO	EVN	wc	JOL	SCH	GAT
June 27	Mon																
June 28	Tues		T-C			QC	OTT	ES		FLO	SCH		JOL	GAT			
June 29	Wed		T-C			QC	OTT	ES		FLO	SCH		JOL	GAT			
June 30	Thurs		T-C			Q	OTT	ES		FLO	SCH		JOL	GAT			
July 1	Fri	3R				NJ		ΟΤΤ	ES		WSH				WC	FLO	EVN
July 2	Sat	3R					SC	ΟΤΤ	ES		WSH				WC	FLO	EVN
July 3	Sun	3R				NJ		ΟΤΤ	ES		WSH				WC	FLO	EVN
July 4	Mon							SC	OTT	WC						FLO	EVN
July 5	Tues		ES	NJ					QC	WC		LE	SCH		GAT		
July 6	Wed		ES	NJ				SC	QC	wc		LE	SCH		GAT		
July 7	Thurs		ES	NJ				SC	QC			LE	SCH		GAT		
July 8	Fri	NY		ES		T-C	3R			JOL	GAT		FLO			WC	
July 9	Sat	NY		ES		T-C	3R			JOL	GAT		FLO			WC	
July 10	Sun	NY		ES		T-C	3R			JOL	GAT		FLO			WC	
July 11	Mon																
July 12	Tues	ES	OTT				SC	T-C			JOL			FLO		EVN	WSH
July 13	Wed	ES	OTT				SC		NY		JOL			FLO		EVN	WSH
July 14	Thurs	ES	OTT				SC		NY		JOL			FLO <sup>^</sup>		EVN	WSH
July 15	Fri		ES	QC			T-C	SC				JOL	WSH	LE			SCH
July 16	Sat		ES	QC			T-C	SC				JOL	WSH	LE			SCH
July 17	Sun		ES	QC			T-C					JOL	WSH	LE			SCH
7/18-21	MTWT				ALL-S	TAR E	VENTS	5				ALL-S	TAR E	VENTS	5		
July 22	Fri	SCH	WSH	LE		EVN	WC	FLO	GAT						ES		
July 23	Sat	SCH	WSH	LE		EVN	wc	FLO	GAT						ES		
July 24	-					E3 (3)	wc	FLO	GAT								
	Sun	SCH	WSH	LE		EVN		LO I							ES		
July 25	Sun Mon	SCH	WSH	LE		EVN		T LO	U.I.I						ES		
		SCH LE	WSH WC	LE WSH		EVN						ES	NY		ES T-C	NJ	SC
July 25	Mon					EVN						ES ES	NY NY			NJ NJ	SC SC
July 25 July 26	Mon Tues	LE	wc	WSH		EVN									T-C	_	
July 25 July 26 July 27	Mon Tues Wed	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH		EVN				QC	NJ	ES	NY	ES	T-C T-C	NJ	SC
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28	Mon Tues Wed Thurs	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH						QC	NJ NJ	ES ES	NY	ES	T-C T-C T-C	NJ NJ	SC SC
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH								ES ES SC	NY NY T-C		T-C T-C T-C 3R	NJ NJ OTT	SC SC NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH						QC	NJ	ES ES SC SC	NY NY T-C T-C	ES	T-C T-C T-C 3R 3R	NJ NJ OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R		QC	NJ	ES ES SC SC	NY NY T-C T-C	ES	T-C T-C T-C 3R 3R	NJ NJ OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH						QC QC	NJ NJ	ES ES SC SC SC	NY NY T-C T-C	ES ES	T-C T-C T-C 3R 3R	NJ NJ OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R	ΟΤΤ	QC QC GAT	NJ NJ EVN	ES ES SC SC SC SCH	NY NY T-C T-C	ES ES	T-C T-C T-C 3R 3R	NJ NJ OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 3	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed	LE	WC WC	WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R 3R		QC QC GAT GAT	NJ NJ EVN	ES ES SC SC SC SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C	ES ES JOL	T-C T-C T-C 3R 3R	NJ NJ OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 3 Aug. 4	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs		WC WC	WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R 3R 3R		QC QC GAT GAT	NJ NJ EVN	ES ES SC SC SC SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C T-C	ES ES JOL	T-C T-C T-C 3R 3R 3R	NJ NJ OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 3 Aug. 4 Aug. 5	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri	LE LE LE	WC WC	WSH WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R 3R 3R ES	110 110 110	QC QC GAT GAT LE	NJ NJ EVN	ES ES SC SC SC SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C GAT	ES ES JOL	T-C T-C 3R 3R 3R FLO	NJ NJ OTT OTT OTT	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 3 Aug. 4 Aug. 5 Aug. 6	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat	LE LE LE 3R 3R	WC WC	WSH WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R 3R 3R ES ES	E E B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	QC QC GAT GAT LE LE	NJ NJ EVN	ES ES SC SC SC SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C T-C GAT GAT	ES ES JOL	T-C T-C 3R 3R 3R FLO FLO	NJ NJ OTT OTT OTT WC WC	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 3 Aug. 4 Aug. 5 Aug. 6 Aug. 7	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun	LE LE LE 3R 3R	WC WC	WSH WSH WSH		ES	QC	3R 3R 3R ES ES	E E B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	QC QC GAT GAT LE LE	NJ NJ EVN	ES ES SC SC SC SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C T-C GAT GAT	ES ES JOL	T-C T-C 3R 3R 3R FLO FLO	N C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	SC SC NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 4 Aug. 5 Aug. 6 Aug. 7 Aug. 8	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon	LE LE 3R 3R 3R	WC WC	WSH WSH WSH SC SC		ES ES	QC QC QC	3R 3R 3R ES ES	E E B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	QC QC GAT GAT LE LE	NJ NJ EVN	ES SC SC SC SCH SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C T-C GAT GAT	ES ES JOL JOL	T-C T-C 3R 3R 3R FLO FLO	NJ OTT OTT OTT WC WC WC JOL	SC SC NY NY NY
July 25 July 26 July 27 July 28 July 29 July 30 July 30 July 31 Aug. 1 Aug. 2 Aug. 3 Aug. 4 Aug. 5 Aug. 6 Aug. 7 Aug. 8 Aug. 9	Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun Mon Tues	LE LE 3R 3R T-C	WC WC	WSH WSH WSH SC SC SC		ES ES SR	QC QC QC ES	3R 3R 3R ES ES	E E B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	QC QC GAT GAT LE LE	NJ NJ EVN	ES SC SC SC SCH SCH SCH SCH SCH	NY NY T-C T-C T-C GAT GAT	ES JOL JOL	T-C T-C 3R 3R 3R FLO FLO	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	SC SC NY NY NY

														~~···			
2022 OFFICIAL FRONTIER LEAGUE SCHEDULE																	
DATES	DAYS	QC	3R	OTT	ES	SC	NJ	NY	T-C	WSH	LE	FLO	EVN	WC	JOL	SCH	GAT
Aug. 15	Mon																
Aug. 16	Tues		QC			ES		NJ		FLO	SCH		WC		GAT		
Aug. 17	Wed		Q			ES		NJ	OTT	FLO	SCH		WC		GAT		
Aug. 18	Thurs		QC			ES		NJ	OTT	FLO	SCH		WC		GAT		
Aug. 19	Fri	OTT	T-C			NY	ES			EVN		SCH			LE		WC
Aug. 20	Sat	OTT	T-C			NY	ES			EVN		SCH			LE		WC
Aug. 21	Sun	OTT	T-C			NY	ES			EVN		SCH			LE		WC
Aug. 22	Mon																
Aug. 23	Tues		QC	T-C		ES	NY				WC		JOL			WSH	
Aug. 24	Wed		QC	T-C		ES	NY				WC		JOL			WSH	FLO
Aug. 25	Thurs		QC	T-C		ES	NY				WC		JOL			WSH	FLO
Aug. 26	Fri	SC	NJ	ES				T-C			WSH		FLO	JOL		GAT	
Aug. 27	Sat	SC	NJ	ES				T-C			WSH		FLO	JOL		GAT	
Aug. 28	Sun	SC	NJ	ES				T-C			WSH		FLO	JOL		GAT	
Aug. 29	Mon																
Aug. 30	Tues	NJ		3R				ES	SC	EVN		JOL		GAT		LE	
Aug. 31	Wed	NJ		3R				ES	SC	EVN		JOL		GAT		LE	
Sept. 1	Thurs	NJ		3R				ES	SC	EVN		JOL		GAT		LE	
Sept. 2	Fri	OTT	NY			NJ			ES	WC		EVN			SCH		LE
Sept. 3	Sat	OTT	NY			NJ			ES	WC		EVN			SCH		LE
Sept. 4	Sun	OTT	NY			NJ			ES	wc		EVN			SCH		LE

\* traditional double-header

^ day/night double-header

day game

## 2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE OFFICAIL PLAYOFF SCHEDULE

### WILD CARD GAME

Tuesday, September 6 – Third place teams @ Second place teams

**Divisional Series (Best 3 of 5)** 

Thursday, September 8 – Divisional Winners @ Wild Card Winners Friday, September 9 – Travel/Rain Date Saturday, September 10 – Wild Card Winners @ Division Winners Sunday, September 11 – Wild Card Winners @ Divisional Winners (if necessary)

<u>Championship Series (Best 3 of 5)</u> Tuesday, September 13 – Higher seed @ Lower seed Wednesday, September 14 – Higher seed @ Lower seed Thursday, September 15 – Travel/Rain Date Friday, September 16 – Lower seed @ Higher Seed Saturday, September 17 – Lower seed @ Higher Seed (if necessary) Sunday, September 18 – Lower seed @ Higher Seed (if necessary)



REGULAR	SEASON	FINAL S	TANDING	S
Atlantic Division	W	L	PCT.	GB
Quebec	52	44	0.542	-
Tri-City	50	46	0.521	2
New York	43	52	0.453	8.5
<b>Central Division</b>				
Schaumburg	51	45	0.531	-
Windy City	43	53	0.448	8
Lake Eirie	41	55	0.427	10
Joliet	39	56	0.411	11.5
Northeast Division				
Washington	56	40	0.583	-
Sussex County	49	46	0.516	6.5
New Jersey	39	56	0.411	16.5
West Division	57	20	0.600	_
Florence	57	38	0.594	0.5
Evansville	57	39 42	0.563	3.5
Southern Illinois	54	42	0.400	19
Gateway	38	57	0.100	17

## **2021 PLAYOFF RESULTS**

### **DIVISIONAL ROUNDS (BEST OF 5)**

Schaumburg defeated Florence (3 games to 1)

Washington defeated Quebec (3 games to 2)

### **CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)**

Schaumburg defeated Washington (3 games to 2)

### 2021 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION

Schaumburg Boomers

### **2021 GAME ATTENDANCE**

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Schaumburg	156,383	Evansville	100,051
Joliet	127,730	Florence	99,038
Gateway	112,252	Washington	90,638
Southern Illinois	101,441	Windy City	79,171
Lake Erie	100,915	River City	66,832

LEAGUE TOTAL: 1,028,721 Playoff Attendance 14 games): 15,706

## **LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS** (MINIMUM 236 PLATE APPERANCES)

Batter	Team	AV G	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Martin Figueroa	Sussex County	.352	236	54	83	16	4	5	53	25
Quincy Nieporte	Schau mburg	.343	274	51	94	21	0	17	65	2
Chuck Taylor	Sussex County	.340	359	74	122	26	4	11	63	27
L.P. Pelletier	Quebec	.328	372	85	122	27	7	7	37	40
Ruben Castro	Quebec	.325	308	58	100	18	4	6	51	29
Bralin Jackson	Washin gton	.323	347	48	112	19	2	7	68	12
Nolan Earley	Souther n IL	.321	346	59	111	20	0	13	66	5
Chad Sedio	Florenc e	.319	357	68	114	29	3	15	69	17
Kaleo Johnson	Sussex County	.317	243	43	77	19	1	9	44	1
Andres Regnault	Gatewa y	.317	265	32	84	9	0	13	46	4
J.R. Davis	Evansv ille	.316	342	54	108	18	1	8	56	4
Luis Pintor	Florenc e	.316	285	61	90	20	3	7	45	19
Jason Agresti	New Jersey	.316	269	47	85	15	2	8	39	0
Chase Dawson	Schau mburg	.312	349	78	109	14	9	10	68	25
Juan Silverio	Tri- City	.310	345	59	107	12	2	16	53	6
Connor Panas	Quebec	.310	261	42	81	17	1	7	47	4
David Glaude	Quebec	.308	377	79	116	27	2	13	75	31
Trevor Craport	Florenc e	.308	344	68	106	16	3	19	85	18
Santiago Chirino	New Jersey	.305	275	44	84	12	0	0	35	1
Audy Ciriaco	Sussex County	.303	343	58	104	20	3	10	61	13

## LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	IP	Н	BB	SO
Ryan Hennen	Washington	11-3	2.12	19	106.1	84	18	93
Braden Scott	Evansville	8-4	2.72	14	89.1	72	24	104
Ryan Feierabend	Lake Erie	8-5	2.79	18	100	98	12	108
Ryan O'Reilly	Evansville	5-4	2.89	14	84	67	29	72
Jared Cheek	Florence	8-1	2.94	28	79.2	80	10	74
Sam Curtis	Lake Erie	4-1	3.03	23	77.1	58	24	80
Chase Cunningha m	Southern IL	5-4	3.10	17	98.2	85	27	89
Ryan Middendorf	Schaumburg	11-5	3.15	19	117.1	11 6	23	90
Logan Wiley	Windy City	6-4	3.20	15	98.1	90	22	54
Zac Westcott	Southern IL	14-3	3.29	21	123	10 3	27	103
Kyle Arjona	Schaumburg	8-6	3.38	19	119.2	11 3	30	91
Tim Holdgrafer	Evansville	10-4	3.45	18	104.1	10 2	20	121
Tyler Thornton	Windy City	4-8	3.47	19	116.2	10 1	38	99
Polo Portela	Evansville	10-3	3.69	19	109.2	11 2	36	93
Daren Osby	Washington	6-4	3.76	19	103	11 2	28	96
Miguel Cienfuegos	Quebec	9-6	3.78	22	116.2	12 0	25	80
McKenzie Mills	Washington	3-5	3.82	17	92	84	35	67
Michael Austin	Southern IL	4-6	3.93	19	94	92	32	87
Danny Wirchansky	New York	4-5	4.08	20	106	97	58	105

REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS									
Eastern Division	w	L	PCT.	GB					
Lake Erie	52	42	0.563						
Schaumburg	47	49	0.490	7					
Windy City	42	54	0.438	12					
Joliet	40	56	0.417	14					
Washington	37	59	0.385	17					
Western Division	w	L	PCT.	GB					
Evansville	57	39	0.594						
Florence	57	39	0.594						
River City	54	42	0.563	3					
Southern Illinois	53	43	0.552	4					
Gateway	39	57	0.406	18					

### 2019 PLAYOFF RESULTS

### DIVISIONAL ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Florence defeated Lake Erie (3 games to 0)

River City defeated Evansville (3 games to 0)

### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

River City defeated Florence (3 games to 2)

#### 2019 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION

**River City Rascals** 

2019 GAME ATTENDANCE									
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL						
Schaumburg	156,383	Evansville	100,051						
Joliet	127,730	Florence	99,038						
Gateway	112,252	Washington	90,638						
Southern Illinois	101,441	Windy City	79,171						
Lake Erie	100,915	River City	66,832						

#### LEAGUE TOTAL: 1,028,721

Playoff Attendance (11 games): 15,706 All-Star Game at River City: 3,092

### 2019 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

- 1B Quincy Nieporte 2B – Aaron Hill 3B – Ryan Long SS – Emmanuel Marrero OF – Kyle Davis OF – Hector Roa OF – Ricky Ramirez, Jr. C – Nick Oddo DH – Nolan Meadows SP – Chase Cunningham
- RP Geoff Bramblett

Schaumburg Boomers Lake Erie Crushers Evansville Otters Lake Erie Crushers Southern Illinois Miners Washington Wild Things Florence Freedom Schaumburg Boomers River City Rascals Southern Illinois Miners Gateway Grizzlies

Morgan Burkhart Award	Ryan Long - Evansville Otters
Brian Tollberg Award Chas	e Cunningham - Southern Illinois Miners
Jason Simontacchi Award	Aaron Hill - Lake Erie Crushers
Rogers Hanners Award	Taylor Wright- Evansville Otters
Fran Riordan Award	Tyler Beardsley- Evansville Otters

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Batter	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Quincy Nieporte	Schaumburg	.315	324	46	102	26	0	13	71	1
Gianfranco Wawoe	Southern IL.	.306	337	49	103	15	0	10	43	0
Steven Kraft	Lake Erie	.293	300	42	88	22	1	2	38	25
Kyle Geirshaber	Evansville	.291	351	48	102	20	2	2	42	23
Jamey Smart	Southern IL.	.290	331	44	96	25	2	5	55	0
Ricky Ramirez, Jr.	Florence	.289	311	56	90	19	1	7	54	6
Hector Roa	Washington	288	382	58	110	21	6	18	70	8
Emmanuel Marrero	Lake Erie	.288	382	56	110	28	1	16	50	6
Jack Parenty	Schaumburg	.288	392	55	113	17	4	1	28	7
Ryan Long	Evansville	.285	347	54	99	26	4	14	78	9
David Cronin	Evansville	.285	358	65	102	18	2	3	34	20
Brynn Martinez	Windy City	.283	361	46	102	13	7	5	29	26
Andrew Penner	River City	.282	333	49	94	15	2	4	45	7
Kyle Davis	Southern IL.	.280	347	56	97	25	3	15	62	0
Riley Krane	Joliet	.280	368	52	103	14	3	8	31	6
Isaac Benard	Florence	.280	347	45	97	21	1	5	45	16
Carlos Castro	Evansville	.276	257	32	71	16	2	11	31	2
Braxton Martinez	River City	.275	309	60	85	24	1	13	75	2
Nick Oddo	Schaumburg	.274	307	30	84	13	0	5	34	2
Zach Racusin	Lake Erie	.274	358	31	98	18	1	2	33	6

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	IP	н	BB	so
Brandon Feldmann	River City	7-1	1.98	14	86.2	74	14	87
Jared Koenig	Lake Erie	7-2	2.24	20	104.1	87	34	133
Patrick Ledet	Lake Erie	6-4	2.34	19	119.1	93	27	109
Gunnar Kines	Schaumburg	6-6	2.36	17	103.0	85	20	112
Tyler Beardsley	Evansville	9-4	2.56	20	130.0	105	37	116
Mike Castellani	Florence	9-2	2.66	21	128.2	133	25	72
Tyler Thornton	Windy City	7-3	2.69	18	100.1	81	27	107
Tyler Vail	Evansville	5-5	2.78	18	81.0	60	29	84
Jake Welch	Evansville	8-5	2.93	20	129.0	125	37	127
Daren Osby	Joliet	4-6	2.95	18	116.0	101	30	122
Marty Anderson	Southern Illin	ois5-5	2.96	17	88.1	71	59	90
Matt Quintana	Joliet/Evansvi	ille 8-3	3.12	19	109.2	84	39	124
John Havird	Washington	6-7	3.19	17	104.1	96	30	93
Chase Cunningham	Southern Illin	ois 10-5	3.23	22	136.2	116	40	132
Scott Sebald	Florence	7-1	3.41	18	113.2	87	34	105
Tyler Jandron	Joliet	4-4	3.59	14	85.1	77	30	97
Aaron Rozek	Schaumburg	7-5	3.60	20	120.0	131	24	99
Chris Washington	Windy City	4-8	3.71	19	112.1	117	42	86
Chris Carden	Gateway	8-5	4.00	19	105.2	95	51	90

	TEAM BATTING									
Team	Avg.	G	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Florence	259	96	3060	458	793	146	16	59	418	159
Southern Illinois	.258	96	3196	440	824	163	13	60	398	29
Evansville	.256	96	3138	444	804	159	13	67	392	124
River City	.252	96	3087	464	779	152	11	88	437	77
Lake Erie	.249	96	3144	401	782	172	12	85	371	99
Schaumburg		96	3223	370	793	145	14	58	341	36
Gateway	.245	96	3196	383	782	138	9	73	361	117
Washington	.242	96	3255	416	787	148	20	76	384	59
Windy City	.227	96	3185	343	724	157	19	59	318	63
Joliet	.223	96	3060	293	683	108	10	44	256	81

## **TEAM PITCHING**

TEAM	ERA	W-L	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	so
Lake Erie	2.91	54-42	2	28	840.2	689	297	868
Evansville	3.30	57-39	8	28	838.1	734	324	868
Schaumburg	3.43	47-49	3	26	844.2	813	255	810
River City	3.65	54-42	8	26	816.0	774	315	834
Windy City	3.82	42-54	4	22	841.1	822	276	849
Southern Illinois	3.85	53-43	2	26	836.2	784	376	794
Joliet	3.92	40-56	5	27	825.2	763	319	753
Florence	3.96	59-39	5	29	830.0	789	291	681
Gateway	4.03	39-56	2	23	835.0	747	371	844
Washington	4.19	37-59	3	13	836.0	836	332	707

## TEAM FIELDING

TEAM	FLD	G	тс	РО	А	Е	DP	РВ	CS
Washington	.980	96	3430	2487	873	70	65	14	34
Windy City	.978	96	3386	2520	792	74	53	18	21
Lake Erie	.977	96	3383	2515	789	79	63	10	30
Florence	.977	96	3387	2474	834	79	78	14	22
Southern Illinois	.976	96	3435	2500	853	82	57	11	32
River City	.976	96	3322	2440	803	79	59	12	21
Evansville	.976	96	3306	2496	730	80	66	16	30
Joliet	.975	96	3416	2472	859	85	66	14	28
Gateway	.971	96	3447	2499	848	100	53	19	25
Schaumburg	.970	96	3467	2523	841	103	67	7	16

## CLUB RECORDS

	HOME RECO		ROAD RECORDS					
TEAM	w	L	PCT.	TEAM	w	L	PCT.	
River City	34	14	.708	Florence	28	20	.583	
Evansville	32	16	.667	Lake Erie	25	23	.521	
Lake Erie	29	19	.604	Evansville	25	23	.521	
Florence	29	19	.604	Southern IL	26	24	.520	
Schaumburg	29	20	.592	Washington	20	28	.417	
Southern IL.	27	19	.587	River City	20	28	.417	
Joliet	26	22	.542	Gateway	18	29	.383	
Windy City	24	24	.500	Schaumburg	18	29	.383	
Gateway	21	28	.429	Windy City	18	30	.375	
Washington	17	31	.354	Joliet	14	34	.292	

REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS										
EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB						
Washington	54	42	0.563							
Joliet	54	42	0.563							
Lake Erie	50	46	0.521	4						
Schaumburg	45	51	0.469	9						
Traverse City	44	51	0.463	9						
Windy City	41	54	0.432	12.5						
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB						
River City	52	44	0.542							
Evansville	51	45	0.532							
Florence	49	47	0.510	3						
Southern Illinois	48	47	0.505	3.5						
Normal	48	47	0.505	3.5						
Gateway	38	58	0.396	14						

### 2018 PLAYOFF RESULTS

### DIVISIONAL ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Washington defeated Evansville (3 games to 0) Joliet defeated River City (3 games to 2)

### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Joliet defeated Washington (3 games to 2)

#### 2018 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION Joliet Slammers

2018 GAME ATTENDANCE								
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL					
Schaumburg	149,255	Joliet	88,198					
Gateway	125,536	Traverse City	88,176					
Southern Illinois	109,691	Washington	87,534					
Florence	105,805	River City	85,036					
Lake Erie	101,229	Normal	81,716					
Evansville	94,498	Windy City	78,177					

### LEAGUE TOTAL: 1,194,851 Playoff Attendance (13 games): 15,356 All-Star Game at River City: 3,092

### 2018 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

1B – Chris Iriart	Normal CornBelters
2B - Jack Parenty	Schaumburg Boomers
3B - Ryan Long	Evansville Otters
SS - Santiago Chirino	Normal CornBelters
OF - Derrick Loveless	Normal ComBelters
OF – James Harris	Washington Wild Thing
OF - Andrew Godbold	Normal CornBelters
C - Skyler Ewing	Florence Freedom
DH - Paul Kronenfeld	River City Rascals
SP - Thomas Dorminy	Washington Wild Thing
RP-Cody Mincey	River City Rascals

Morgan Burkhart Award	James Harris - Washington Wild Things
Brian Tollberg Award	. Thomas Dorminy - Washington Wild Things
Jason Simontacchi Award	Aaron Hill - Lake Erie Crushers
Rogers Hanners Award	Jeff Isom- Joliet Slammers
Fran Riordan Award	Ben Moore- Southern Illinois Miners

Wild Things

Wild Things

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Batter	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI
Santiago Chirino	Normal	.367	373	68	137	25	2	4	59
Omar Obregon	Windy City	.366	295	45	108	12	2	1	31
Zack Weigel	Schaumburg	.330	261	55	86	16	1	10	52
Trenton Hill	Joliet	.330	315	55	104	15	1	1	47
Derrick Loveless	Normal	.326	350	64	114	22	5	14	66
Jack Parenty	Schaumburg	.324	358	57	116	12	2	0	27
Will Kengon	Traverse City	.311	373	58	116	30	3	13	60
Andrew Godbold	Normal	.309	353	50	109	29	3	11	79
Hector Roa	Washington	.309	369	52	114	11	7	12	69
Ty Moore	Schaumburg	.308	286	48	88	22	7	6	59
Dane Hutcheon	Lake Erie	.305	282	30	86	9	4	3	29
James Harris	Washington	.305	384	75	117	22	8	16	64
Axel Johnson	Windy City	.303	271	30	82	16	1	8	43
Travis Harrison	Evansville	.302	331	52	100	14	1	10	63
L.J. Kalawaia	Joliet	.300	263	35	79	12	0	1	32
Paul Kronenfeld	River City	.299	301	54	90	19	0	23	69
Roman Collins	Washington	.298	373	62	111	25	2	8	65
Aaron Hill	Lake Erie	.297	347	63	103	22	5	5	28
Caleb Lopes	Florence	.297	249	39	74	19	1	5	25
David Cronin	Evansville	.296	294	57	87	8	2	3	37
Joe Duncan	Southern IL.	.295	258	32	76	14	1	5	34
Ryan Long	Evansville	.292	346	59	101	15	7	12	55
Trae Santos	Gateway	.291	358	51	104	19	1	17	67
Jordan Brower	Florence	.291	278	46	81	13	0	8	46
Austin Wobrock	Florence	.285	316	38	90	15	1	11	28

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 76 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	IP	н	BB	so
Thomas Dorminy	Washington	9-5	2.45	21	132.1	112	39	109
Alex Romero	Lake Erie	11-6	2.77	19	123.1	97	40	105
Jonny Ortiz	River City	8-2	3.09	27	78.2	65	23	77
Liam O'Sullivan	Joliet	11-4	3.15	18	123.0	111	22	77
Dan Ludwig	River City	5-4	3.31	16	84.1	86	16	63
Jack Landwehr	Normal	8-3	3.32	15	81.1	83	19	61
Gene Encina	Southern IL.	5-8	3.32	19	124.2	128	29	108
Hector Hernandez	River City	10-7	3.46	19	117.0	112	49	107
Scot Hoffman	Joliet	8-5	3.51	20	115.1	109	41	84
Randy Wynne	Evansville	9-9	5.55	19	134.1	144	16	114
Max MacNabb	Gateway	9-9	3.64	30	128.2	132	38	114
Zac Westcott	Windy City	7-8	3.67	19	132.1	127	36	121
Jake Welch	Windy City	7-6	3.76	18	105.1	89	31	78
Sean Renzi	Lake Erie	7-5	3.81	14	85.0	77	37	90
Steven Ridings	Southern IL.	9-7	3.92	20	124.0	114	36	115
John Havird	Traverse City	4-9	3.93	18	105.1	102	34	89
Jordan Kraus	Florence	8-5	3.93	18	119.0	109	22	77
Kurt Heyer	Southern IL.	8-7	3.96	19	104.2	127	19	88
Mike Elwood	Gateway	6-8	4.12	19	115.2	117	39	99
Reinaldo Lopez	Traverse City	8-4	4.17	20	121.0	147	19	57
Christian DeLeon	Florence	7-5	4.17	24	77.2	72	23	48
Josh Kimborowicz	River City	6-4	4.18	18	103.1	101	36	97
Austin Nicely	Evansville	8-5	4.24	20	114.2	130	56	85
Payton Lobdell	Schaumburg	5-8	4.25	18	101.2	108	31	52
Patrick Ledet	Windy City	7-8	4.29	20	92.1	98	27	78

	TEAM BATTING											
Team	Avg.	G	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB		
Normal	277	95	3168	498	878	180	18	73	444	79		
Washington	.269	96	3276	511	880	151	26	82	479	93		
Evansville	.267	96	3128	459	836	146	19	60	425	80		
Schaumburg	.263	96	3253	423	856	158	17	47	380	63		
Florence	.263	96	3121	474	820	144	10	88	449	78		
River City	.257	96	3198	472	822	178	8	96	432	108		
Gateway	.257	96	3214	440	825	151	7	72	400	81		
Windy City	.251	95	3116	395	781	150	20	57	366	111		
Lake Erie	.250	96	3142	382	786	173	25	51	340	93		
Joliet	.250	96	3158	466	789	121	8	59	417	124		
Traverse City	.245	95	3122	415	764	144	16	81	375	90		
Southern Illinois	.241	95	3014	392	727	146	14	80	369	58		

### **TEAM PITCHING**

TEAM	ERA	W-L	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	so
Lake Erie	3.64	50-46	3	33	840.1	790	359	748
Joliet	3.68	54-42	6	23	840.0	771	318	692
Windy City	3.82	41-54	2	23	816.1	772	357	788
River City	3.89	52-44	3	26	839.0	801	332	731
Florence	3.94	48-47	6	23	822.0	819	221	673
Evansville	3.99	51-45	6	36	823.1	794	368	794
Washington	4.20	54-42	3	23	843.0	853	359	685
Schaumburg	4.24	45-51	3	19	838.0	807	346	670
Southern Illinois	4.33	48-47	6	21	806.0	859	275	692
Normal	4.44	48-47	5	22	809.1	815	351	657
Gateway	4.86	38-57	1	21	831.0	808	404	815
Traverse City	4.89	44-51	8	24	820.2	875	264	649

### TEAM FIELDING

TEAM	FLD	G	TC	PO	Α	E	DP
Traverse City	.981	95	3405	2453	887	65	68
Southern Illinois	.980	95	3362	2404	890	68	62
Windy City	.980	95	3266	2444	757	65	57
Normal	.979	95	3363	2417	874	72	81
Joliet	.979	96	3406	2510	825	71	63
Schaumburg	.979	96	3437	2497	868	72	74
River City	.975	96	3517	2513	917	87	81
Washington	.975	96	3489	2519	884	86	76
Gateway	.975	96	3351	2489	778	84	57
Evansville	.974	96	3374	2464	822	88	69
Lake Erie	.973	96	3420	2456	870	94	74
Florence	.972	96	3485	2485	931	99	69

### **CLUB RECORDS**

#### HOME RECORDS

### ROAD RECORDS

TEAM	w	L	PCT.	TEAM	w	L	PCT.
River City	31	18	.633	Lake Erie	30	19	.612
Florence	29	19	.604	Washington	26	22	.542
Evansville	29	20	.592	Joliet	26	22	.542
Joliet	28	20	.583	Traverse City	24	24	.500
Washington	28	20	.583	Normal	23	26	.469
Southern IL.	27	22	.551	Evansville	22	25	.468
Normal	25	21	.543	Southern IL.	21	25	.457
Schaumberg	25	23	.521	River City	21	26	.447
Gateway	23	25	.479	Windy City	20	28	.417
Windy City	21	26	.447	Schaumburg	20	28	.417
Traverse City	20	27	.426	Florence	20	28	.417
Lake Erie	20	27	.426	Gateway	15	33	.313

REGULAR S	EASON	FINAL S	TANDING	S
EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Schaumburg	66	30	0.688	
Washington	53	43	0.552	13
Windy City	51	45	0.531	15
Lake Erie	45	51	0.469	21
Joliet	42	54	0.438	24
Traverse City	37	59	0.385	29
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
Florence	61	35	0.635	
Evansville	52	44	0.542	9
River City	50	46	0.521	11
Normal	48	48	0.500	13
Southern Illinois	39	57	0.406	22
Gateway	32	64	0.333	29

### 2017 PLAYOFF RESULTS

### DIVISIONAL ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Schaumburg defeated Evansville (3 games to 1) Florence defeated Washington (3 games to 1)

### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Schaumburg defeated Florence (3 games to 1)

### 2017 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION Schaumburg Boomers

	2017 GAME	ATTENDANCE	
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Schaumburg	160,644	Florence	87,545
Southern Illinois	151,521	River City	94,958
Gateway	148,176	Lake Erie	94,035
Traverse City	119,544	Washington	77,233
Evansville	100,337	Windy City	78,585
Joliet	100,160	Normal	75,804

### LEAGUE TOTAL: 1,288,542 Playoff Attendance (13 games): 19.044 All-Star Game at Joliet: 2,199

### 2017 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

1B - Kane Sweeny	Washington Wild Things
2B – Josh Allen	Evansville Otters
3B – Jose Brizuela	Florence Freedom
SS – Santiago Chirino	Normal ComBelters
OF - Jeff Gardner	Evansville Otters
OF – David Harris	Schaumburg Boomers
OF - Coco Johnson	Windy City Thunder Bolts
C – Dane Phillips	Evansville Otters
DH – Blake Brown	Gateway Grizzlies
SP – Max Duval	Evansville Otters
RP-Brian Loconsole	Windy City Thunder Bolts
Morgan Burkhart Award	David Harris, Schaumburg Boomers
Brian Tollberg Award	Max Duval, Evansville Otters
Jason Simontacchi Award	Kyano Cummings, Evansville Otters
Rogers Hanners Award	Jamie Bennett, Schaumburg Boomers
Fran Riordan Award	Rashad Brown, Washington Wild Things

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Batter	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI
Santiago Chirino	Normal	357	395	60	141	26	4	3	60
David Harris	Schaumburg	.344	288	55	99	17	1	13	65
Dane Phillips	Evansville	.338	361	65	122	33	3	14	66
Jordan Brower	Florence	.335	358	58	120	31	0	8	63
Matt Hearn	Gateway	.331	296	51	98	2	4	0	23
Jimmy Kerrigan	River City	.328	250	47	82	17	2	10	47
L.J. Kalawaia	Lake Erie	.326	239	39	78	15	2	2	19
Will Kengor	Traverse City	.324	262	33	85	22	2	14	58
Ridge Hoopii-Haslam	Joliet	.321	315	59	101	22	3	9	47
Jose Brizuela	Florence	.321	280	49	90	15	3	13	59
Justin Fletcher	Normal	.318	340	42	109	15	2	3	44
John Schultz	Evansville	.317	322	55	102	20	1	11	61
Kyle Ruchim	Schaumburg	.315	365	83	115	22	7	5	40
Zack Weigel	Schaumburg	.315	286	59	90	14	5	8	53
Melvin Rodriguez	Joliet	.312	369	62	115	24	1	11	46
Steven Patterson	Traverse City	.311	344	60	107	17	2	16	56
Josh Allen	Evansville	.310	345	83	107	12	6	15	47
Aaron Dudley	Normal	.309	311	55	96	30	0	11	65
Blake Brown	Gateway	.300	340	62	102	19	2	18	69
Coco Johnson	Windy City	.297	374	60	111	19	5	7	48
Tim Zier	Windy City	.296	382	50	113	15	3	5	46
Kane Sweeney	Washington	.296	297	62	88	21	3	15	61
Terry McClure	Gateway	.295	312	40	92	14	1	6	41
Andre Mercurio	Florence	.295	305	53	90	14	1	6	52
Bralin Jackson	Washington	.294	388	61	114	17	3	6	76

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 76 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	IP	н	BB	so
Max Duval	Evansville	8-2	2.28	14	87.0	58	271	113
Jordan Kurokawa	Lake Erie	7-4	2.53	18	117.1	101	29	79
Jake Fisher	Windy City	10-7	2.80	20	138.0	126	29	120
Scott Sebald	Normal	9-2	2.89	22	109.0	104	29	87
Luc Rennie	Evansville	7-5	2.91	13	77.1	71	39	66
Shawn Blackwell	Normal	7-5	2.92	36	89.1	74	36	102
Trevor Foss	Washington	12-5	3.06	20	32.1	114	32	88
Cody Gray	Florence	10-4	3.24	18	114.0	110	26	94
Jordan Kraus	Florence	10-5	3.28	18	123.2	118	50	98
Lars Liguori	Schaumburg	9-4	3.44	18	99.1	101	31	82
Chase Cunningham	Washington	10-3	3.46	20	125.0	53	46	64
John Havird	Traverse City	5-7	3.54	18	104.1	114	31	81
Julio Vivas	Normal	5-4	3.58	14	88.2	86	36	99
Hector Hernandez	River City	8-8	3.65	19	121.0	105	50	117
Felix Baez	Evansville	5-4	3.69	15	85.1	75	39	104
Vince Molesky	Gateway	8-7	3.85	21	128.2	118	34	120
Clay Chapman	Windy City	5-6	3.87	20	121.0	113	50	113
Dan Ludwig	River City	6-4	3.92	19	105.2	119	22	76
Steve Hagen	LE/Florence	8-5	3.95	20	127.2	130	32	98
Conrad Wozniak	Schaum/Joliet	3-3	4.02	17	89.2	88	37	57
Duke vonSchamann	Joliet	5-6	4.06	19	122.0	140	23	89
Chris Washington	So. Illinois	3-6	4.18	15	84.0	108	18	47
Reinaldo Lopez	Traverse City	3-11	4.19	19	105.1	120	35	56
Kagen Hopkins	Schaumburg	9-5	4.19	18	103.0	104	38	86
Zac Wescott	Windy City	8-5	4.24	19	114.2	116	36	88

	TEAM BATTING									
Team	Avg.	G	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Schaumburg	289	96	3235	547	934	173	22	68	508	83
Florence	.280	96	3152	509	882	173	12	70	473	138
Normal	.280	96	3169	468	887	143	13	54	430	93
Evansville	.276	96	3178	519	876	159	17	99	480	80
Joliet	.270	96	3202	475	866	173	18	76	428	75
River City	.265	96	3181	501	843	172	16	93	466	162
Washington	.253	96	3168	497	803	151	32	89	463	93
Gateway	.251	96	3252	408	816	123	13	65	378	96
Windy City	.251	96	3199	434	803	160	22	66	394	151
Lake Erie	.242	96	3152	432	763	166	7	97	397	85
Southern Illinois	.241	96	3163	397	761	118	20	57	368	65
Traverse City	.237	96	3089	381	733	142	16	72	349	78

### TEAM PITCHING

TEAM	ERA	W-L	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	so
Schaumburg	3.58	66-30	4	32	839.0	771	350	821
Florence	3.77	61-35	10	31	826.2	789	324	662
Windy City	3.99	51-45	8	29	852.2	826	322	746
Washington	4.19	53-43	6	25	825.0	811	327	623
River City	4.23	50-46	3	21	830.0	852	344	652
Evansville	4.32	52-44	5	25	814.0	791	418	832
Lake Erie	4.32	45-51	8	23	835.1	838	306	689
Southern Ilinois	4.47	39-57	4	25	826.1	825	359	678
Normal	4.51	48-48	9	21	819.0	803	411	732
Joliet	4.88	42-54	4	27	816.1	887	324	659
Traverse City	4.93	37-59	6	25	814.1	919	347	627
Gateway	5.10	32-64	2	10	839.1	855	454	747

### TEAM FIELDING

TEAM	FLD	G	TC	PO	Α	Е	DP
River City	.981	96	3566	2483	1014	69	82
Washington	.977	96	3453	2466	907	80	87
Schaumburg	.976	96	3395	2508	807	80	64
Windy City	.975	96	3563	2548	926	89	80
Normal	.975	96	3421	2450	886	85	63
Florence	.975	96	3358	2456	818	84	60
Traverse City	.974	96	3410	2425	896	89	73
Lake Erie	.972	96	3488	2484	906	98	73
Evansville	.972	96	3349	2438	818	93	75
Gateway	.971	96	3526	2514	908	104	81
Joliet	.971	96	3369	2434	836	99	64
Southern Illinois	.969	96	3489	2470	911	108	73

### **CLUB RECORDS**

HOME RECORDS

### ROAD RECORDS

TEAM	w	L	PCT.	TEAM	w	L	PCT.
Schaumburg	34	15	.694	Schaumburg	32	15	.681
Florence	30	18	.625	Florence	31	17	.646
Evansville	29	19	.604	Washington	28	20	.583
River City	29	19	.604	Windy City	25	23	.521
Lake Erie	27	21	.563	Normal	23	25	.479
Joliet	26	22	.542	Evansville	23	25	.479
Windy City	26	22	.542	River City	21	27	.438
Washington	25	23	.521	Lake Erie	18	30	.375
Normal	25	23	.521	Traverse City	18	31	.367
Southern IL.	22	26	.458	Southern IL.	17	31	.354
Traverse City	19	28	.404	Joliet	16	32	.333
Gateway	19	29	.396	Gateway	13	35	.271

REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS											
EAST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB							
Joliet	51	45	0.531								
Lake Erie	48	48	0.500	3							
Washington	46	49	0.484	4.5							
Traverse City	42	52	0.447	8							
Windy City	42	53	0.442	8.5							
Schaumburg	41	55	0.427	10							
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB							
Southern Illinois	63	33	0.656								
Evansville	55	40	0.579	7.5							
River City	49	47	0.510	14							
Florence	46	49	0.484	16.5							
Normal	45	50	0.474	17.5							
Gateway	44	51	0.463	18.5							

### 2016 PLAYOFF RESULTS

### DIVISIONAL ROUND (BEST OF 5)

River City defeated Southern Illinois (3 games to 1) Evansville defeated Joliet (3 games to 1)

### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Evansville defeated River City (3 games to 2)

### 2016 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION Evansville Otters

2016 GAME ATTENDANCE										
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL							
Schaumburg	172,996	Florence	88,438							
Gateway	163,679	Evansville	82,412							
Southern Illinois	153,940	River City	82,061							
Traverse City	121,500	Lake Erie	81,835							
Normal	91,193	Washington	80,503							
Joliet	90,458	Windy City	76,870							

### LEAGUE TOTAL: 1,285,885

Playoff Attendance (13 games): 14,381

### All-Star Game at Florence: 3,462

### 2016 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

1B - Aaron Dudley	Normal ComBeleters					
2B - Josh Allen	Evansville Otters					
3B - Steve Marino	Southern Illinois Miners					
SS - Santiago Chirino	Normal ComBelters					
OF - Nolan Meadows	Normal Combelters					
OF - Shane Kennedy	Southern Illinois Miners					
OF - Andrew Godbold	Florence Freedom					
C – Mike Jurgella	River City Rascals					
DH - Craig Massey	Southern Illinois Miners					
SP - Trevor Foss	Washington Wild Things					
RP- Randy McCurry	Evansville Otters					
Morgan Burkhart Award	- Josh Allen, Evansville Otters					
Brian Tollberg Award	- Liam O'Sullivan, Joliet Slammers					
Jason Simontacchi Award	- Shane Kennedy, Southern Illinois Miners					
Rogers Hanners Award	- Jeff Isom, Joliet Slammers					
Fran Riordan Award	- Nick Kennedy, River City Rascals					

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Batter	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Kennedy, Shane	SIL	.363	273	68	99	24	1	5	47	34
Allen, Josh	EVN	.354	347	75	123	34	9	9	46	29
Chirino, Santiago	NOR	.334	398	53	133	17	0	4	41	4
Dudley, Aaron	NOR	.327	330	58	108	28	0	18	80	7
Oldham, Taylor	FLO	.324	330	71	107	16	3	14	65	25
Bell, Carter	JOL	.312	346	57	108	29	1	13	73	3
Kelly, Dylan	NOR	.311	338	34	105	20	0	3	36	0
Gaedele, Kyle	RIV	.308	302	60	93	17	2	14	50	24
Jurgella, Mike	RIV	.304	260	48	79	16	4	5	41	10
Vargas, Jose	TC	.298	329	47	98	20	5	13	13	0
Patterson, Steven	TC	.296	351	56	104	27	1	12	61	8
Massey, Craig	SIL	.295	295	58	87	12	7	5	40	19
Gronsky, Jake	JOL	.294	357	53	105	21	1	8	67	6
Merjano, Jason	RIV	.291	354	47	103	22	3	5	51	17
Earley, Nolan	SIL	.291	354	53	103	20	2	9	70	3
Gomez, Rolando	EVN	.290	317	54	92	13	6	5	30	33
Ludy, Josh	RIV	.289	339	31	98	16	1	4	45	2
Rodriguez, Ricky	WSH	.289	318	50	92	19	4	9	35	2
Gates, Aaron	SIL	.288	385	78	111	16	4	8	54	11
Mariano, Steve	SIL	.288	371	53	107	23	2	16	79	0
Godbold, Andrew	FLO	.287	314	59	90	21	1	13	59	22
Balog, Nik	EVN	.283	332	46	94	15	1	5	45	8
Popkins, David	WSH	.281	306	45	86	26	3	15	48	5
Rodriguez, Alfrede	JOL	.281	370	74	104	13	1	3	28	21
Rodriguez, Julio	EVN	.281	263	29	74	18	1	0	26	5

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 76 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	sv	IP	н	BB	so
Foss, Trevor	WSH	8-3	2.50	15	1	100.2	90	14	66
Champlin, Kramer	TC	5-7	2.81	19	0	125.0	112	23	95
Olson, Preston	EVN	7-3	2.90	13	0	80.2	56	29	66
Kines, Gunnar	SCH	5-6	2.96	18	0	112.2	81	37	104
Miller, Jarett	SIL	8-4	3.05	20	0	127.0	130	34	93
Vail, Tyler	EVN	6-3	3.12	17	0	101.0	91	36	94
Kraus, Jordan	FLO	7-8	3.15	18	0	120.0	95	38	70
Fraudin, Matt	WSH	7-8	3.17	19	0	113.2	101	46	94
Stoops, Dylan	TC	8-3	3.18	16	0	90.2	77	28	79
Chapman, Clay	WC	9-7	3.30	20	0	125.1	104	47	93
Fisher, Jake	WC	9-4	3.31	16	0	98.0	105	23	86
OSullivan, Liam	JOL	11-1	3.33	20	0	121.2	114	26	109
Hagen, Steve	LE	7-6	3.49	21	0	111.0	122	35	91
Weedman, Shane	EVN	7-3	3.52	30	0	76.2	60	40	72
Caballero, Juan	LE	5-1	3.54	27	0	81.1	74	32	54
Acosta, Horacio	NOR	9-4	3.64	26	0	96.1	92	17	67
Ludwig, Dan	RC	10-3	3.69	18	0	112.1	115	19	78
Homick, Max	NOR	4-6	3.69	21	0	83.0	73	42	66
Molesky, Vincent	GAT	5-8	3.70	18	0	116.2	111	25	110
Townsley, Sean	JOL	7-8	3.75	19	0	103.1	98	42	80
Ackerman, Hunter	EVN	7-2	3.77	19	0	117.0	124	29	87
Sneed, Zeb	RC	8-8	3.77	20	1	121.2	121	20	92
Hopkins, Kagen	SCH	5-6	3.84	20	0	98.1	106	31	71
Webster, Seth	SCH	8-9	3.91	20	0	126.2	140	20	108
Gooding, Jeremy	FLO	8-6	3.93	18	0	112.1	117	49	24
Kimes, Corey	GAT	4-6	3.96	18	0	104.2	100	50	71
Eggnatz, Adam	GAT	6-4	4.02	19	0	78.1	73	39	68

#### TEAM BATTING Team Avg. G AB R н 2B**3B** HR RBI SB River City .283 .275 Normal Joliet .274 Southern Illinois .271 Evansville .269 .269 Florence Gateway .247 Traverse City .247 .243 Lake Eric Windy City .239 Schaumburg .236 Washington .235

### **TEAM PITCHING**

TEAM	ERA	W-L	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	so
Lake Erie	3.77	48-48	3	24	835.0	807	302	636
Traverse City	3.77	42-52	9	12	815.2	793	291	611
Washington	3.89	46-49	11	11	798.0	750	298	604
Southern Illinois	3.93	63-33	6	28	843.2	839	337	614
Gateway	3.94	44-51	4	20	818.0	750	332	765
Evansville	3.97	55-40	4	24	820.1	754	353	721
Schaumburg	4.22	41-55	5	21	842.0	865	282	726
Windy City	4.24	42-53	6	23	815.1	797	324	666
River City	4.43	49-47	6	26	800.0	847	271	675
Florence	4.65	46-49	7	17	824.0	844	352	690
Normal	4.68	46-49	4	18	828.0	842	364	711
Joliet	4.79	50-46	4	22	830.0	818	425	657

### TEAM FIELDING

TEAM	FLD	G	TC	PO	Α	E	DP
Southern Illinois	.983	96	3575	2520	993	62	102
Windy City	.98	95	3500	2433	1001	66	75
Traverse City	.979	94	3350	2397	882	71	77
Normal	.978	95	3524	2466	980	78	78
Evansville	.977	95	3383	2450	855	78	66
Washington	.977	95	3388	2382	929	77	79
Joliet	.975	96	3413	2473	856	84	85
River City	.972	96	3325	2389	843	93	73
Schaumburg	.971	96	3480	2510	868	102	82
Gateway	.971	95	3423	2447	876	100	75
Lake Erie	.970	96	3426	2462	862	102	76
Florence	.968	95	3502	2459	932	111	55

### CLUB RECORDS

#### HOME RECORDS

#### ROAD RECORDS

TEAM	w	L	PCT.	TEAM	w	L	PCT.
Southern Illinois	32	16	.667	Southern Illinois	31	17	.646
Evansville	28	17	.622	Evansville	27	23	.540
Joliet	27	20	.574	Joliet	24	25	.490
Lake Erie	27	21	.563	Normal	23	24	.489
River City	27	22	.551	River City	22	25	.468
Gateway	27	22	.551	Washington	22	25	.468
Florence	25	22	.532	Florence	21	27	.438
Washington	24	24	.500	Lake Eric	21	27	.438
Windy City	24	24	.500	Traverse City	20	27	.426
Schaumburg	24	24	.500	Windy City	18	29	.383
Traverse City	22	25	.468	Gateway	17	29	.370
Normal	22	26	.458	Schaumburg	17	31	.354

### REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

EAST DIVISION Southern Illinois	W 63	L 33	PCT. 0.656	GB
Traverse City	56	38	0.596	6
Florence	49	47	0.510	14
Evansville	48	48	0.500	15
Washington	42	54	0.438	21
Frontier	40	56	0.417	23
Lake Erie	38	57	0.400	24.5
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
Normal	61	35	0.635	
River City	56	40	0.583	5
Rockford	49	47	0.510	12
Gateway	45	50	0.474	15.5
Joliet	42	54	0.438	19
Windy City	41	55	0.427	20
Schaumburg	40	56	0.417	21

### 2015 PLAYOFF RESULTS

#### WILD CARD GAMES

Traverse City defeated Rockford River City defeated Florence DIVISIONAL ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Traverse City defeated Normal (2 games to 0)

River City defeated Southern Illinois (2 games to 1)

CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Traverse City defeated River City (3 games to 0)

2015 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION TRAVERSEE CITY BEACH BUMS

### 2015 GAME ATTENDANCE

#### CLUB

Schaumburg Boomers Gateway Grizzlies Traverse City Evansville Southern Illinois Normal Lake Erie TOTAL 162,210 149,319 132,404 114,787 151,503 102,290 86,155 
 CLUB
 TOTAL

 Florence
 104,578

 Washington
 83,087

 Joliet
 95,673

 River City
 91,354

 Rockford
 44,674

 Windy City
 76,550

#### LEAGUE TOTAL 1,394,584

Playoff Attendance (11 Games) – 16,143 All-Star Game at Schaumburg– 6,572

### 2015 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

1B – Aaron Dudley 2B – Santiago Chirino 3B – Taylor Ard SS – Patrick McKenna OF – John Schultz OF – Michael Hur OF – Michael Earley C – Josh Ludy DH – Danny Canela SP – Adam Lopez RP – Edgar Lopez Normal CornBelters Normal CornBelters River City Rascals Normal CornBelters Evansville Otters Rockford Aviators Southern Illinois Miners River City Rascals River City Rascals Southern Illinois Miners Evansville Otters

Morgan Burkhart Award – Taylor Ard, River City Rascals Brian Tollberg Award – Adam Lopez, Southern Illinois Miners Jason Simontacchi Award – Brandon Tierney, Frontier Greys Rogers Hanners Award – Brooks Carey, Normal ComBelters Fran Riordan Award – Jordan Kraus, Frontier Greys

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Batter Hansen, Brian	Team RIV	Avg.	R 54	H 82	2B 14	3 <b>B</b> 3	HR 5	RBI 37	<b>SB</b> 25
Dudley, Aaron	NOR	.346	58	118	26	2	10	69	2
Gallagher, Austin	WIN	.338	55	96	25	1	16	63	4
Chirino, Santiago	NOR	.337	53	118	15	2	4	44	15
Schultz, John	EVN	.333	66	118	28	3	15	52	6
Hur, Michael	RCK	.331	56	119	20	õ	9	40	13
Earley, Micheael	SIL	.325	55	125	26	4	10	61	5
Rodriguez, Devon	RCK	.321	36	119	22	0	4	42	2
Jacobs, Brandon	TC	.320	57	101	21	1	17	54	7
Dean, Jordan	SCH	.317	44	84	19	2	4	29	10
Gates, Aaron	SIL	.316	73	115	17	7	7	41	11
Vargas, Jose	TC	.314	54	108	19	2	10	51	1
Micowski, Mark	NOR	.314	71	106	11	4	8	42	27
Ard, Taylor	RIV	.313	88	114	29	1	30	83	13
Redal, Curran	RIV	.311	67	125	14	3	3	50	9
Eberle, Sam	FLO	.309	60	111	22	2	10	49	4
Sabourin, Jerrud	SIL	.309	37	89	16	0	1	26	13
Livesay, Cody	GAT	.308	37	81	4	0	9	36	5
Slaid, Jakson	RIV	.308	51	88	16	2	2	39	5
Torres, Mike	WIN	.303	57	105	13	0	3	30	16
Hidalgo, Anderson	LE	.302	36	88	14	0	4	32	3
Barraza, Jose	LE	.294	63	101	29	2	5	47	1
Garza, Mike	JOL	.292	61	114	21	5	5	59	5
White, Max	WIN	.291	45	102	21	3	14	71	10

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 76 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Oliver, Will	EVN	9-2	1.59	13	0	90.1	74	26	88
Lopez, Adam	SIL	10-0	1.86	16	0	96.2	65	35	103
Champlin, Kramer	TC	10-6	2.05	17	0	114.0	89	20	65
Kubiak, David	JOL	7-6	2.16	33	1	95.2	75	32	92
Bywater, Matt	SIL	8-4	2.36	16	0	107.0	80	32	123
Carmain, Chris	NOR	8-2	2.49	16	0	104.2	78	13	90
Gooding, Jeremy	FLO	8-4	2.50	15	0	90.0	67	22	89
MacDougall, Ian	TC	10-6	2.51	18	0	122.0	125	19	67
Nieves, Efrain	EVN	8-2	2.68	14	0	77.1	67	16	41
Adkins, Hunter	LE	3-5	2.70	15	0	96.2	74	31	94
Walch, Trevor	EVN	8-8	2.77	20	0	133.1	122	58	83
Cody, Eddie	SCH	10-4	2.78	19	0	120.0	111	22	89
Teasley, Rick	SIL	9-4	2.78	20	0	126.1	116	33	105
Longfellow, Trevor	LE	5-10	2.86	52	14	88.0	63	37	73
Rizzotti, Tony	RCK	8-2	2.95	19	0	116.0	119	37	93
Kraus, Jordan	FG	5-5	2.98	17	0	102.2	97	34	80
Mabry, Brett	SCH	8-3	3.07	18	0	111.1	106	30	82
Schweiss, Michael	NOR	9-7	3.08	20	0	128.2	119	34	135
Tingle, Travis	WIN	7-7	3.12	21	1	121.1	127	22	94
Thompson, Tyler	GAT	5-5	3.20	26	7	87.1	79	28	74
Shreves, Michael	NOR	7-2	3.21	21	0	101.0	81	30	37
Weaver, Chuck	WIN	6-4	3.22	18	1	109.0	106	27	95
Duffy, Brad	LE	8-6	3.30	44	0	76.1	75	31	80
Wilkins, Luke	WSH	8-5	3.31	20	0	125.0	120	45	77
Devine, Mike	LE	3-4	3.33	60	4	78.1	72	17	83
Richards, Trevor	GAT	6-0	3.36	40	0	91.0	80	27	84
Johnson, Kevin	NOR	5-0	3.48	19	0	111.1	110	39	76

			TE	AM B	ATTIN	G				
Team	Avg.	G	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
River City	.289	96	3192	547	924	162	9	98	495	146
Normal	.276	96	3230	571	926	170	13	87	503	130
Southern Illinois	.270	96	3202	437	863	150	22	64	404	48
Rockford	.268	96	3199	422	858	172	11	56	375	66
Windy City	.259	96	3109	426	805	175	14	73	391	96
Evansville	.258	96	3085	448	795	160	14	75	397	67
Schaumburg	.258	96	3184	406	821	145	18	38	369	77
Joliet	.256	96	3151	432	808	115	10	52	365	85
Traverse City	.255	94	3008	402	766	139	19	68	342	77
Florence	.250	96	3058	411	766	139	17	48	371	146
Gateway	.250	95	3156	419	789	135	8	75	387	75
Lake Erie	.242	95	3100	324	751	137	16	33	292	69
Washington	.242	96	3107	364	752	152	22	70	333	113
Frontier Greys	.242	96	3211	372	m	145	15	61	332	39
					TCHIN					
Team	ERA	W-L	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	SO		
Evansville	3.22	58-38	12	29	809.0	749	324	664		
Southern Illinois	3.32	61-35	4	34	853.2	746	336	808		
Lake Erie	3.62	37-58	0	24	820.1	750	275	704		
Traverse City	3.56	55-39	5	31	799.2	781	248	533		
Florence	3.68	48-48	7	27	827.2	759	291	683		
Normal	3.74	60-36	8	26	835.2	773	284	744		
Washington	3.82	40-56	5	15	826.0	774	357	685		
Frontier Greys	4.22	40-56 56-40	6	23 20	793.1 826.0	786 870	410 268	640		
River City	4.35	40-56	5	20	839.2	900	200	683 657		
Schaumburg Rockford	4.39	40-30	4	27	827.0	889	322	655		
Windy City	4.43	40-56	7	19	820.2	854	350	710		
Joliet	4.44	42-54	3	22	822.2	869	337	629		
Gateway	4.82	44-51	2	20	827.2	871	327	697		
Galeway			-					001		
_					ELDIN					
Team	FLD	G	TC	PO	A	E	DP			
Florence	.982	96	3478	2479	935	64	81			
Windy City	.981	96	3519	2456	997	66	82			
Normal	.980	96	3653	2504	1076	73	93			
Southern Illinois	.980 .978	96 94	3556 3428	2556 2389	930 964	70 75	60 39			
Traverse City	.978	94	3448	2309	904	77	74			
River City		96	3549	2470	997	80	74			
Washington	.977 .976	96 95	3549	2472	997 997	85	82			
Gateway Rockford	.976	95 96	3494	2479	997	90	82 91			
Lake Erie	.974	95	3365	24/2	856	88	63			
Evansville	.974	96	3460	2418	952	90	92			
Frontier Greys	.971	96	3400	2374	945	98	80			
Schaumburg	.971	96	3581	2517	961	103	81			
Islist	000	00	2555	2462	000	443	00			

### CLUB RECORDS

.968 

Joliet

H	OME RE	CORD		RO	AD RE	CORDS	
TEAM	w	L	PCT.	TEAM	W	L	PCT.
Traverse City	33	16	.673	Southern Illinois	28	14	.667
Normal	34	18	.654	Normal	27	17	.614
Southern Illinois	35	19	.648	Rockford	28	18	.609
River City	31	19	.620	River City	25	21	.543
Gateway	30	24	.556	Florence	24	21	.533
Evansville	28	23	.549	Schaumburg	22	20	.524
Windy City	27	24	.529	Traverse City	23	22	.511
Florence	25	26	.490	Evansville	20	25	.444
Joliet	23	28	.451	Joliet	19	26	.422
Washington	23	28	.451	Washington	19	26	.422
Lake Erie	22	30	.423	Frontier	40	56	.417
Rockford	21	29	.420	Lake Erie	16	27	.372
				Gateway	15	26	.366
				Windy City	14	31	.311

RE	REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS									
EAST DIVISION	W 60	L 36	PCT. 0.625	GB						
Evansville	57	37	0.606	2						
Washington	57	39	0.594	3						
Lake Erie	52	43	0.547	7.5						
Florence	41	55	0.427	19						
Traverse City	38	58	0.396	22						
Frontier	29	66	0.305	30.5						
WEST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB						
River City	61	35	0.635							
Schaumburg	61	35	0.635							
Gateway	50	46	0.521	11						
Normal	48	47	0.505	12.5						
Rockford	40	56	0.417	21						
Joliet	40	56	0.417	21						
Windy City	35	60	0.368	25.5						

### 2014 PLAYOFF RESULTS

WILD CARD GAMES Washington defeated Evansville Schaumburg defeated Lake Erie DIVISIONAL ROUND (BEST OF 3) Schaumburg defeated Southern Illinois (2 games to 1) River City defeated Washington (2 games to 0) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Schaumburg defeated River City (3 games to 1) 2014 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION SCHAUMBURG BOOMERS

### 2014 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB TOTAL 157,393 Schaumburg Boomers Gateway Grizzlies 156,840 Traverse City 143,585 111,709 147,287 109,952 Evansville Southern Illinois Normal Lake Erie 106.009 LEAGUE TOTAL 1,444,322 Playoff Attendance (11 Games) - 13,913 All-Star Game at Gateway - 5,043

CLUB	TOTAL
Florence	105,539
Washington	84,533
Joliet	81,662
River City	81,662
Rockford	72,340
Windy City	74,481

539

### 2014 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

- 1B Sam Eberle 2B - Vincent Mejia 3B - Shayne Houck SS – Michael Wing OF – Mike Schwartz OF - Kyle Robinson OF - Sam Judah C – Tyler Shover DH – C.J. Beatty SP - Matt Bywater RP - Jonathan Kountis
- Florence Freedom Lake Erie Crushers **Evansville Otters** Gateway Grizzlies Normal CornBelters Windy City ThunderBolts Normal CornBelters Normal CornBelters Washington Wild Things Southern Illinois Miners Washington Wild Things

Morgan Burkhart Award - Shane Houck, Evansville Otters Brian Tollberg Award - Matt Bywater, Southern Illinois Miners Jason Simontacchi Award - Tanner Witt, Rockford Aviators Rogers Hanners Award - Andy McCauley, Evansville Otters Fran Riordan Award - Max Casper, Joliet Slammers

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

	-									_
Batter	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Robinson, Kyle	WIN	.366	309	52	113	20	1	13	70	12
DeBruin, Grant	JOL	.355	380	63	135	29	1	12	67	5
Eberle, Sam	FLO	.346	318	53	110	22	2	8	45	3
Schwartz, Mike	NOR	.336	348	79	117	24	3	16	68	11
Nelson, Mark	SCH	.323	310	53	100	19	3	4	55	1
Martinez, Frank	SOU	.317	312	57	99	20	5	9	64	5
Dudley, Aaron	NOR	.316	332	69	105	28	1	14	64	1
Mejia, Vincent	LER	.314	299	45	94	25	3	15	53	8
Vasquez, Justin	SCH	.312	340	62	106	16	6	7	49	8
Redal, Curran	RIV	.312	247	29	77	11	3	0	24	12
Crespo, Hector	RIV	.310	332	62	103	15	5	6	47	38
Vazquez, Niko	SIL/GAT	.309	333	76	133	22	1	13	67	6
Cavan, Ryan	SIL	.309	333	67	103	15	0	5	44	14
Poma, Daniel	WSH	.308	312	52	96	22	3	2	22	30
Judah, Sam	NOR	.307	361	62	111	27	0	13	82	1
Monger, Carneron	FG	.307	300	46	92	12	4	2	19	8
Houck, Shayne	EVN	.307	349	66	107	21	0	23	66	2
Witt, Tanner	RCK	.305	367	58	112	19	1	4	39	5
Morales, Johnny	RIV	.302	308	62	93	14	2	2	39	5
Hertler, Craig	LE	.302	311	59	94	13	2	2	40	15
Hall, Gerard	SCH	.302	235	47	71	12	4	8	43	9
Cordino, Edgar	RCK	.302	371	63	112	12	6	11	51	10
Chirino, Santiago	NOR	.300	380	61	114	19	4	2	31	9
Kalamar, Scott	WSH	.300	283	45	85	26	2	9	48	17

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 76 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	so
Kirby, Todd	LER	6-2	2.12	15	0	80.2	70	31	75
Fuesser, Zac	WSH	9-2	2.26	21	ĭ	95.2	88	32	74
Bywater, Matt	SOU	8-4	2.37	21	ó	129.1	86	60	114
Snodgrass, Jessie	WIN	3-1	2.61	48	3	76.0	57	34	62
Weaver, Chuck	FLO	7-6	2.65	17	ŏ	108.2	93	28	77
Henn, Casey	FLO	9-6	2.72	19	ŏ	122.2	91	52	111
Olson, Preston	EVN	9-3	2.72	17	ŏ	109.1	82	41	106
Cody, Eddie	SCH	8-1	2.86	15	ŏ	78.2	81	23	65
Treece, Zac	LER	7-3	2.97	31	ŏ	97.0	73	30	88
Zimmerman, Ryan	RCK	9-6	3.21	21	ŏ	112.1	89	47	87
Delgado, Casey	TC	7-6	3.25	19	ŏ	116.1	115	31	118
MacDougall, Ian	TC	6-4	3.25	22	ő	108.0	107	29	60
Dunn. Scott	WSH	8-5	3.25	19	0	107.0	110	29	59
Webster, Seth	SCH	7-5	3.26	19	0	118.0	119	24	59 87
				17					
Mendoza, Tommy	RIV	9-3	3.40		0	87.1	91	25	63
Teasley, Rick	SIL	11-5	3.57	20	0	116.0	106	33	81
Carden, Michael	SIL	6-4	3.57	20	8	108.1	113	36	55
West, JaVaun	GAT	7-3	3.62	16	0	102.0	89	31	116
Blackwell, Shawn	WSH	10-4	3.70	21	0	99.2	101	39	75
Walch, Trevor	EVN	5-3	3.73	18	0	89.1	81	37	87

				TEA	M BATT	ING					
Team		Avg.	G	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Normal		290	95	3243	549	939	203	14	83	486	60
River City		287	96	3230	571	926	170	13	87	503	130
Schaumburg		282	96	3219	562	909	165	24	66	501	81
Evansville		272	94	3046	473	828	146	14	90	415	61
Southern III		272	96	3240	513	881	149	21	61	467	101
Rockford	-	264	96	3155	395	834	157	12	46	351	75
Lake Erie		262	95	3190	449	835	155	17	56	417	87
Joliet		260	96	3234	438	840	146	9	53	399	67
Washington		258	96	3049	450	787	165	16	79	408	162
Windy City		255	95	3114	389	795	138	14	38	347	92
Gateway		255	96	3252	471	828	169	18	82	437	90
Traverse Cit		251	96 95	3136 3237	412 397	788 800	158 152	12 21	66 81	371 353	90 59
Frontier Gre Florence		247 240	95 96	2995	397	719	152	19	67	342	95
Fiorence		240	90				127	19	0/	392	90
					M PITCH						
TEAM	ERA		W-L	CG	SV	IP	н		в		SO
Evansville	3.30		57-37	9	21	788.0	662		-	77	788
Southern Illinois			60-36	2	25	869.2	765			43	685
Lake Erie	3.52		52-43	3	18	833.1	773		-	14	676
Washington	3.56		57-39	3	36	816.1	784 886		_	42	648
Schaumburg	4.02		61-35 38-58	4	30 23	838.0 818.2	860			00 48	649 624
Traverse City Florence	4.10		38-58 41-55	5	23	801.1	764			29	619
Rockford	4.34		41-55	6	18	811.1	801			29 92	737
River City	4.48		61-35	2	31	834.1	878			92	715
Normal	4.65		48-47	6	19	821.0	845			31	723
Joliet	4.76		40-56	ă.	16	845.2	930		-	59	664
Gateway	4.83		50-46	1	23	853.2	875		4		705
Windy City	4.95		35-60	6	15	811.2	933			22	704
Frontier Greys	5.85		29-66	3	17	789.2	953		42	23	538
				TEA	M FIELD	NING					
TEAM	FLD		G	TC	PO		4		E		DP
Washington	.980		96	3451	2429		954		6		90
River City	.977		96	3510	2493		937		8		72
Evansville	.976		94	3324	2356		887		8		67
Normal	976		95	3527	2449		993		8		80
Schaumburg	.975		96	3660	2509		1060		9	-	84
Southern Illinois	.975		96	3714	2601		1020	)	93	3	94
Gateway	.974		96	3685	2556		1035	5	9	4	91
Lake Erie	.972		95	3501	2447		955	5	99	9	73
Joliet	.972		96	3636	2523		1012	2	10	01	92
Rockford	.971		96	3418	2419		900	)	99	9	79
Florence	.969		96	3440	2399		933			08	71
Traverse City	.968		96	3586	2451		1020			15	62
Windy City	.968		95	3419	2427		884			08	78
Frontier Greys	.967		95	3363	2350		903	}	11	10	80
				CLU	B RECO	RDS					

### J

	HO	ME RECOR		RO	AD RECO	RDS	
TEAM	w	L	PCT.	TEAM	w	L	PCT.
Schaumburg	40	11	.784	River City	26	20	.565
Southern Illinois	39	15	.722	Washington	24	20	.545
River City	35	15	.700	Evansville	25	21	.543
Evansville	32	16	.667	Southern Illinois	21	21	.500
Washington	33	19	.635	Gateway	22	24	.478
Lake Erie	31	19	.620	Schaumburg	21	24	.467
Normal	32	21	.604	Lake Erie	21	24	.467
Gateway	28	22	.560	Rockford	18	26	.409
Florence	28	26	.519	Normal	16	26	.381
Windy City	24	27	.471	Joliet	16	27	.372
Joliet	24	29	.453	Traverse City	15	30	.333
Traverse City	23	28	.451	Florence	13	29	.310
Rockford	22	30	.423	Frontier Greys	29	66	.305
				Windy City	11	33	.250

### 2013 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Lake Erie	56	40	.583	
Traverse City	55	41	.573	1.0
Florence	53	43	.552	3.0
Evansville	51	45	.531	5.0
Southern Illinois	50	46	.521	6.0
Washington	41	55	.427	15.0
Frontier Greys	33	62	.347	22.5
WEST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Schaumburg	59	37	.615	
Gateway	53	43	.552	6.0
River City	50	46	.521	9.0
Windy City	50	46	.521	9.0
Normal	46	50	.479	13.0
Joliet	38	57	.400	20.5
Rockford	36	60	.375	23.0

#### 2013 PLAYOFF RESULTS

### FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Schaumburg defeated Florence (3 games to 0) Lake Erie defeated Traverse City (3 games to 2) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Schaumburg defeated Lake Erie (3 games to 1)

2013 Frontier League Champion Schaumburg Boomers

#### 2013 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	то
Traverse City	164,915	Florence	112
Gateway	162,572	Joliet	93
Schaumburg	150,254	River City	92
Evansville	140,786	Rockford	87
Normal	126,367	Washington	87
Southern Illinois	126,084	Windy City	74
Lake Erie	122.097		

#### LEAGUE TOTAL - 1,541,169

Playoff Attendance (12 games) - 16,586 All-Star Game at Washington - 2,952

#### 2013 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

 IB – Russell Moldenhauer
 Lake Eric Crushers

 2B – C.J. Beatty
 Washington Wild Things

 3B – Jacob Tanis
 Florence Freedom

 SS – Patrick McKenna
 Normal ComBelters

 OF – Jon Myers
 Gateway Grizzlies

 OF – Daniel Bowman Lake Eric Crushers
 OF – Daniel Bowman Lake Eric Crushers

 C – Landon Hernandez
 Gateway Grizzlies

DH - Steve McQuail Schaumburg Boomers

SP - Scott Dunn Traverse City Beach Bums

RP - Eric Massingham Evansville Otters

Morgan Burkhart Award – Jacob Tanis, Florence Freedom Brian Tollberg Award – Scott Dunn, Traverse City Beach Bums Jason Simontacchi Award – Danny Canela, River City Rascals Roger Hanners Award – Jamie Bennett, Schaumburg Boomers Fran Riordan Award – Cannon Lester, Southern Illinois Miners

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	38	HR	RBI	SB
Canela, Danny	RC	.360	225	38	81	14	0	12	53	0
Kremer, Jeff	RCK	.357	266	36	95	12	1	3	41	5
Mendez, Carlos	SIL	.337	380	57	128	20	3	4	50	3
Hamilchak, Cory	SIL	.332	211	45	70	10	0	5	33	20
McClendon, Chris	GAT	.327	309	66	101	21	1	7	49	14
Rhoney, Corey	SIL	.321	240	40	77	11	2	7	40	4
Mahley, Sean	SCH	.312	266	39	83	19	3	0	44	17
Bowman, Daniel	LE	.309	366	73	113	25	8	9	53	21
Beatty, C.J.	WSH	.305	351	65	107	26	3	18	66	7
Greener, Matt	RCK	.305	347	53	106	21	1	7	47	2
Akins, Nick	JOL	.302	248	41	75	11	1	21	62	1
Crawford, Evan	RC	.301	259	41	78	12	3	1	26	30
Aakhus, Zach	WC	.301	322	47	97	15	1	6	38	8
Riley, Marquis	JOL	.301	332	53	100	14	3	5	50	11
Schwaner, Nick	EVN	.301	352	49	106	18	1	13	61	15
ljames, Stewart	WSH	.297	316	50	94	29	3	16	45	2
Hertler, Craig	LE	.296	321	60	95	17	5	1	35	18
McQuail, Steve	SCH	.296	345	62	102	25	1	20	58	5
Mozingo, Chad	SCH	.295	244	36	72	10	1	5	31	10
Redal, Curran	RC	.291	374	43	109	14	1	2	48	25
Manago, Keoni	NOR	.291	327	40	95	18	0	1	25	12

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 76 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	88	so
Oros, Michael	FLO	7-5	2.16	21	1	87.1	73	39	80
Demmin, Ryan	NOR	6-5	2.20	14	0	98.0	77	23	90
Phelan, Chris	SCH	7-2	2.21	19	0	106.0	87	29	62
Rein, Matt	LE	8-6	2.37	20	0	121.2	99	34	89
Middendorf, Dave	LE	12-7	2.60	21	0	138.1	102	32	94
Dunn, Scott	TC	15-1	2.61	20	0	124.1	120	29	73
Nation, Blake	SL	11-2	2.61	19	0	117.1	84	66	78
Kuna, Matt	SCH	6-3	2.81	26	0	77.0	77	22	49
Rucinski, Drew	RCK	4-6	2.88	15	0	100.0	86	27	101
DeSimone, Daniel	FLO	8-4	2.92	47	2	86.1	83	21	57
Sanford, Shawn	SCH	10-6	2.97	21	0	130.1	116	39	100
Brown, Tim	GAT	13-3	2.97	19	0	136.1	133	24	72
West, Javaun	GAT	8-3	3.02	17	0	104.1	93	42	71
Provence, Drew	NOR	6-6	3.06	18	0	111.2	100	42	81
Quist, Dayne	SILWSH	8-4	3.16	27	0	88.1	81	33	59
Sabol, Jake	TC	10-6	3.19	21	0	127.0	131	29	65
Zeller, Joe	FG	8-7	3.23	18	0	106.0	93	40	72
Harden, Trevor	RCK	2-4	3.28	22	2	82.1	84	23	77
Kaminsky, Alex	LE	7-5	3.28	19	0	109.2	100	40	79
Omahen, Johnny	TC	8-9	3.37	21	0	115.0	103	41	78
Zielinski, Matt	EVN	9-7	3.40	20	0	124.1	117	39	114

### 2013 FRONTIER LEAGUE TEAM BATTING

			TEA	M BAT	TING				
Team	Avg	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Southern III.	.271		455	879	143	29	45	396	80
Evansville	.269	3199	424	862	170	25	63	376	73
Schaumburg	.265		452	844	175	25	51	406	88
Gateway	.265		500	849	174	6	106	453	81
River City	.262		443 419	822	147	10	56	388	123
Windy City Lake Erie	.257		419	817 826	123 158	23 28	43 54	372 378	117 96
Rockford	.256		414	818	146	17	38	346	73
Florence	.253		479	782	158	18	80	430	109
Washington	.251	3143	406	788	161	21	84	371	97
Traverse City	.245	3164	469	774	177	28	76	429	84
Normal	.245		417	775	143	16	70	372	105
Greys	.244		407	779	135	31	61	357	83
Joliet	.237	3112	400 TEAN	737 1 PITC	139 HINC	12	59	363	68
			IEAN						
Team	W-L		CG	SV	IP	н	BB	SO	
Traverse City Lake Erie	55-4		5	28	841.0	770	280	601	
Normal	56-4 46-5		7	23 21	857.1 839.2	736 767	324 352	646	
Schaumburg	59-3		4	30	846.2	824	331	696 637	
Windy City	50-4		7	29	845.2	837	317	713	
Evansville	51-4		10	22	831.2	837	340	666	
Florence	53-4	3 4.04	3	32	826.1	847	337	605	
Washington	41-5	i5 4.06	8	15	828.2	773	358	638	
Gateway	53-4		7	23	832.2	810	361	585	
Southern III.	50-4		5	25	845.0	811	397	617	
River City Joliet	50-4 38-5		3	31	836.1	865	250	653	
Greys	33-6		1	21 13	817.1 794.1	806 802	372 369	711	
Rockford	36-6		4	16	835.2	867	339	620 720	
								120	
			TEAN		HING				
Team	PCI	G				TC	DP		
Team Lake Erie	PC1		PO 2557	A 1052	HING E 77	TC 3686	DP 95		
		96	PO	Α	E	-			
Lake Erie	.979	96 96	PO 2557	A 1052	E 77	3686	95		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illino Traverse City	.979 .979 ois .978 .977	96 96 96 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517	A 1052 1127 1038 1098	E 77 76 82 86	3686 3697 3655 3701	95 103 81 81		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illino Traverse City River City	.979 .979 ois .978 .977 .976	96 96 96 96 96 96 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936	E 77 76 82 86 83	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521	95 103 81 81 58		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illins Traverse City River City Windy City	.979 .979 bis .978 .977 .976 .976	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836	E 77 76 82 86 83 89	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455	95 103 81 81 58 61		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illins Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg	.979 .979 .978 .978 .977 .976 .974 .974	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2530	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654	95 103 81 81 58 61 80		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illino Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal	.979 .979 ois .978 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986	E 77 82 86 83 89 96 95	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illins Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg	.979 .979 .978 .978 .977 .976 .974 .974	9 96 9 96 9 96 9 96 9 96 1 96 1 96 1 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2530	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654	95 103 81 81 58 61 80		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illins Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence	.979 .979 .978 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .973	9 96 96 96 7 96 6 96 1 96 1 96 1 96 1 96 2 96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2517 2471	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055	E 77 82 86 83 89 96 95 96	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illins Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet	.979 .978 .978 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .974 .973 .972	96         96           96         96           7         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96           9         96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2517 2471 2482	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622 3603	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illine Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville	.979 .979 .977 .977 .977 .977 .974 .974	96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 96 96 96 100 100 100 106 113	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3654 3698 3622 3603 3499 3504 3529	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illins Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet	.979 .979 .977 .976 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .973 .972 .971 .970	96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1052 1052 1052 1052 1052 1052 1052 1052	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 113 117	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3504	95 103 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illine Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville	.979 .979 .977 .977 .977 .977 .974 .974	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 9	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 113 117	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3654 3698 3622 3603 3499 3504 3529	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81		
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys	.975 .975 .977 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .973 .972 .971 .972 .966 .966 .966	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 9	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2500 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379 <b>TEAN</b>	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 113 117 HING	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3504 3529 3423 <b>RO</b> /	95 103 81 81 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 <b>D RECORD</b>	)	
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team	.975 .975 .977 .977 .977 .974 .974 .974 .974 .974	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 95 95 95 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2379 TEAN PCT.	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 113 117 HINC Team	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3504 3529 3423 <b>RO/</b> W	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 81 58	0	PCT. 667
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys	.975 .975 .977 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .973 .972 .971 .972 .966 .966 .966	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 9	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2500 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379 TEAN	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1025 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 113 117 HING	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3504 3529 3423 <b>RO</b> /	95 103 81 81 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 <b>D RECORD</b>	)	PCT. .667
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern II.	.975 .975 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .974 .973 .972 .971 .972 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .96	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 9	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2500 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2379 TEAN PCT. 685 648 647	A 1052 1127 1038 1096 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 106 113 117 HING Etam Schaumburg Forence Traverse City	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20	95 103 81 81 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 0 RECORE L 15 21 22	)	.667 .533 .476
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern III. River City	.975 .975 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 95 95 95 8 <b>RECORD</b> L 17 19 18 18	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2379 <b>PCT.</b> .685 .648 .647 .647	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 101 103 113 117 Florence Florence Florence City Gateway	3686 3697 3655 3701 3455 3632 3633 3499 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20 21	95 103 81 81 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 <b>AD RECORE</b> L 15 21 22 24	)	.667 .533 .476 .467
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illino Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern II, River City Gateway	.975 .975 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 9	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2537 2517 2451 2482 2505 2451 2482 2505 2451 2485 2379 TEAN PCT. .685 .648 .647 .647 .627	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 1021 986 1021 986 1021 986 1021 986 1021 987 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 96 96 96 96 100 100 100 100 100 100 113 117 Team Schaumburg Florence Traverse City Cateway Lake Erie	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3654 3654 3654 3654 3654 3654	95 103 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 <b>D RECORL</b> 15 21 22 22 24 23	)	.667 .533 .476 .467 .452
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern III. River City	.975 .975 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977	96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 95 95 95 8 <b>RECORD</b> L 17 19 18 18	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2379 <b>PCT.</b> .685 .648 .647 .647	A 1052 1127 1038 1096 936 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 101 103 113 117 Florence Florence Florence City Gateway	3686 3697 3655 3701 3455 3632 3633 3499 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20 21	95 103 81 81 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 <b>AD RECORE</b> L 15 21 22 24	)	.667 .533 .476 .467
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern II. River City Gateway Normal Evansville Windy City	.975 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977	<ul> <li>96</li> <li>9</li></ul>	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2505 2451 2485 2379 <b>PCT.</b> .685 .648 .647 .647 .647 .647 .688 .647	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 836 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 100 100 100 100 100 101 113 117 Florence Florence City City Evensville River City	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3654 3598 3654 3598 3654 3503 3499 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20 21 19 20 20 17	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 81 58 81 58 81 58 81 58 81 21 22 24 23 25 24 25 28	)	.667 .533 .476 .467 .452 .444 .444 .378
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern II. River City Gateway Normal Evansville Windy City Schaumburg	.975 .977 .977 .977 .974 .974 .974 .974 .977 .970 .970 .968 .966 <b>HOME I</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>3</b> 7 .35 .33 .32 .31 .31 .30 .29	<ul> <li>96</li> <li>95</li> <li>96</li> <li>9</li></ul>	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2517 2471 2485 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379 TEAN PCT. .685 .648 .647 .647 .627 .608 .608 .608 .608 .569	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 96 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 113 117 117 Team Schaumburg Florence Florence Florence City Gateway Schaumburg Scha	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3521 3653 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3423 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20 21 19 20 20 21 71 71 71	95 103 81 58 61 80 77 93 54 71 81 58 <b>D RECORE</b> L 158 21 22 24 24 23 25 25 25 26 28 28	)	.667 .533 .476 .467 .452 .444 .444 .378 .378
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern II. River City Gateway Normal Evansville Wondy City Schaumburg Florence	.975 .975 .977 .976 .974 .974 .974 .973 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .975 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33 .33	<ul> <li>96</li> <li>9</li></ul>	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2500 2537 2517 2471 2482 2485 2471 2485 2451 2485 2379 TEAN PCT. .685 .645 .647 .647 .648 .647 .648 .647 .648 .648 .647 .648 .648 .647 .608 .608 .568 .569	A 1052 1127 1038 1096 936 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 96 95 96 90 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 113 117 HINCE Exam Schaumburg Forence Traverse City Southern II. Joliet	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3521 3653 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3423 3504 3504 3504 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20 20 20 20 20 21 17 17	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 <b>D RECORD</b> L 15 22 24 22 24 22 24 22 24 22 25 25 26 28 28 28 28	)	.667 .533 .476 .467 .452 .444 .444 .378 .378 .378
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Southern II. River City Gateway Normal Evansville Windy City Schaumburg	.975 .977 .977 .977 .974 .974 .974 .974 .977 .970 .970 .968 .966 <b>HOME I</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>W</b> <b>3</b> 7 .35 .33 .32 .31 .31 .30 .29	<ul> <li>96</li> <li>95</li> <li>96</li> <li>9</li></ul>	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2517 2471 2485 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379 TEAN PCT. .685 .648 .647 .647 .627 .608 .608 .608 .608 .569	A 1052 1127 1038 1096 936 836 1021 986 1025 1021 894 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 96 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 113 117 117 Team Schaumburg Florence Florence Florence City Gateway Schaumburg Scha	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3521 3653 3654 3598 3622 3603 3499 3423 3504 3529 3423 W 30 24 20 21 19 20 20 21 71 71 71	95 103 81 58 61 80 77 93 54 71 81 58 <b>D RECORE</b> L 158 21 22 24 24 23 25 25 25 26 28 28	)	.667 .533 .476 .467 .452 .444 .444 .378 .378
Lake Erie Gateway Southern Illinc Traverse City River City Windy City Schaumburg Normal Florence Washington Rockford Joliet Evansville Greys Team Lake Erie Traverse City Gateway Normal Evansville Windy City Schaumburg Florence Washington	.975 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .977 .972 .971 .972 .971 .972 .968 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .966 .965 .965	96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           96         96           97         96           98         96           99         95           8         96           97         97           8         18           19         20           20         21           22         22           27         27	PO 2557 2494 2535 2517 2502 2530 2537 2517 2471 2482 2555 2451 2485 2451 2485 2379 <b>PCT.</b> .685 .648 .647 .647 .608 .588 .588 .569 .500	A 1052 1127 1038 1098 936 1021 986 1055 1021 894 947 931 927 A PITC	E 77 76 82 86 83 89 96 95 96 96 100 100 100 100 100 100 113 117 FilmCG Forence Flore	3686 3697 3655 3701 3521 3455 3654 3598 3654 3598 3654 3559 3459 3459 3459 3450 3559 3423 3423 3423 20 21 19 20 20 21 17 17 33	95 103 81 81 58 61 80 77 93 79 54 71 81 58 0 RECORE 15 21 15 21 15 21 15 21 15 21 22 24 23 25 25 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28	)	.667 .533 .476 .467 .452 .444 .378 .378 .378 .378 .378 .347

### **REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS**

EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB	
Traverse City	64	32	.667		
Florence	57	39	.594	7.0	
Southern Illinois	55	39	.585	8.0	
Lake Erie	53	42	.558	10.5	
Evansville	45	50	.474	18.5	
Washington	44	52	.458	20.0	
London	25	35	.417	21.0	
Road Warriors	9	27	.250	25.0	
WEST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB	
Gateway	57	39	.594		
Windy City	54	42	.563	3.0	
Schaumburg	54	42	.563	3.0	
River City	45	50	.474	11.5	
Rockford	41	55	.427	16.0	
Joliet	37	58	.389	19.5	
Normal	29	67	.302	28.0	

### 2012 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Southern Illinois defeated Traverse City (3 games to 0) Florence defeated Gateway (3 games to 2) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Southern Illinois defeated Florence (3 games to 1) 2012 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION SOUTHERN ILLINOIS MINERS

20	D12 GAME	ATTENDANCE	
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Traverse City	175,284	River City	107,986
Gateway	150,745	Joliet	104,019
Southern Illinois	129,936	Rockford	97,453
Schaumburg	128,287	Florence	97,382
Lake Erie	127,124	Windy City	86,178
Evansville	120,819	Washington	81,836
Normal	117,599	London	21,985
EAGUE TOTAL	1,546,6	33	

Playoff Attendance (12 games) - 17,862

All-Star Game at Normal - 5,251

### **2012 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS**

1B - Chase Burch - Traverse City Beach Burns

2B - Ryan Still - Traverse City Beach Bums

- 3B Jose Vargas Traverse City Beach Bums
- SS Junior Arrojo Florence Freeodm
- OF Javier Herrera Southern Illinois Miners
- OF Chad Mozingo Schaumburg Boomers OF – Jeff Flagg – Traverse City Beach Burns
- C Landon Hernandez Gateway Grizzlies
- DH Chad Cregar Windy City ThunderBolts
- SP Mike Recchia Windy City ThunderBolts
- RP Jonathan Kountis Lake Erie Crushers

Morgan Burkhart Award – Jose Vargas, Traverse City Beach Bums Brian Tollberg Award – Mike Recchia, Windy City ThunderBolts Jason Simontacchi Award – Zac Treece, Gateway Grizzlies Roger Hanners Award – Gregg Langbehn, Traverse City Beach Bums Fran Riordan Award – Gary Lee, Washington Wild Things

	LEA	DING	BAT	TINC	i QUA	LIFI	ERS			
	(MI	NIMUN	259	PLATE	APPEA	RANC	ES)			
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Brodin, Joash	Lon	.370	238	49	88	18	1	11	54	10
Nieves, Abel	Jol	.320	322	56	103	19	2	8	44	3
Herrera, Javier	SIL/Rck	.319	358	61	111	23	3	14	78	7
Mozingo, Chad	Sch	.313	319	69	100	22	7	11	54	23
Heck, Andrew	Wsh	.310	252	42	78	14	3	2	27	20
Synan, Jeremy	RC	.307	339	56	104	23	2	7	50	11
Pfister, Frank	Sch	.306	395	58	121	21	2	13	58	8
Greener, Matt	Rck	.306	340	51	104	32	0	5	44	0
Redal, Curran	RC	.305	256	49	78	8	2	4	28	8
Burch, Chase	TC	.304	358	66	109	18	0	17	76	6
Arrojo, Junior	Flo	.302	331	76	100	10	0	5	30	28
Still, Ryan	TC	.301	286	82	83	11	5	4	34	12
Wade, Chris	WC	.301	345	48	104	11	1	5	37	20
Rodriguez, Eddie	Flo	.300	313	51	94	14	1	15	56	17
Hur, Michael	Rck	.298	369	56	110	18	1	15	57	0
Noris, Rogelio	Gat/LE	.297	320	52	95	15	0	21	74	3
Torres, Michael	WC	.296	388	60	115	19	3	1	36	36
Johnson, Jonathan	Gat	.295	352	79	104	20	3	3	38	20
Patton, Jason	RC	.292	342	47	100	18	1	8	53	6
Cregar, Chad	WC	.291	374	64	109	20	1	31	93	6

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Brown, Tim	Gat	12-2	2.28	20	0	150.0	139	40	66
Recchia, Mike	WC	11-3	2.51	24	1	150.1	107	56	177
Corley, Tyson	WC	5-8	2.52	31	8	100.0	73	34	69
Calhoun, Daniel	SIL	7-4	2.52	13	0	85.2	69	12	62
Richmond, Jamie	Lon	6-3	2.61	12	0	89.2	85	16	68
Hall, Cody	SIL	9-1	2.63	14	0	78.2	72	30	39
Lee, Gary	Wsh	7-5	2.90	17	0	115.0	93	27	60
Smith, Chris	Wsh	9-6	2.92	19	0	129.1	106	52	116
Clem, Jacob	TC	7-4	3.02	20	0	128.1	103	35	59
Harden, David	SIL	10-5	3.05	19	0	135.2	137	20	78
Champion, Adam	Evn	8-5	3.06	23	0	100.0	96	40	69
Rucinski, Drew	Rck	7-4	3.13	22	1	103.2	96	26	91
Marsala, Tony	RC	5-7	3.26	15	0	91.0	90	34	58
Kelly, Reid	TC	10-3	3.27	18	0	110.0	84	28	106
Longfellow, Trevor	LE	11-2	3.35	28	0	99.1	90	34	75
Fagan, Paul	LE	7-9	3.39	22	0	132.2	122	43	94
Donovan, Robby	Sch	11-5	3.45	19	0	122.2	108	55	86
Belter, Brooks	TC	10-3	3.52	20	0	107.1	88	59	86
Mathes, Brandon	Flo	4-0	3.61	35	4	94.2	88	38	78
Barnes, Casey	Wsh	6-7	3.66	19	0	118.0	109	31	66
Schepel, Kyle	Rck	4-7	3.66	16	0	78.2	67	43	72

TEAM BATTING												
Team Avg. AB R H 2B 3B HR RBI SB												
Rockford	.211	3284	481	911	17	5 13	58	418	98			
London	.270	1668	248	451	86	9	40	229	60			
Traverse City	.267	3287	571	876	16	8 22	118	532	59			
River City	.266	3109	476	826	14	7 10	59	418	83			
Florence	.262	3193	521	836	15	2 21	92	483	130			
Southern III.	.262	3158	470	828	15	8 18	78	421	97			
Gateway	.261	3246	530	848	16		98	479	74			
Schaumburg	.259	3244	473	839	14	2 24	73	434	89			
Windy City	.257	3262	445	837	15	9 13	75	404	125			
Lake Erie	.256	3171	439	811	15		61	391	89			
Evansville	.245	3087	382	755	14	3 15	60	340	105			
Joliet	.241	3124	387	754	14	3 13	56	338	59			
Normal	.237	3109	326	738	13		47	287	97			
Washington	.227	3084	397	699	12		43	343	107			
Road Warriors	.226	1505	191	340	61	16	11	151	51			
		TEA	M	ITCH		2						
Team	W		RA	06	SV	IP	H	88	S0			
Traverse City				68								
	64.			4	27	957.2	727	206	614			
	64-		52 56	4	37	857.2	727	296	614			
Lake Erie	53-	42 3.	56	4	28	842.0	801	293	622			
Lake Erie Gateway	53- 57-	42 3. 39 3.	56 57	4	28 25	842.0 855.2	801 761	293 351	622 598			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III.	53- 57- 55-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3.	56 57 59	4 6 4	28 25 26	842.0 855.2 828.1	801 761 815	293 351 244	622 598 612			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington	53- 57- 55- 44-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3.	56 57 59 73	4 6 4 7	28 25 26 23	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0	801 761 815 767	293 351 244 315	622 598 612 673			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City	53- 57- 55- 44- 54-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3.	56 57 59 73 74	4 6 4 7 16	28 25 26 23 27	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0	801 761 815 767 785	293 351 244 315 377	622 598 612 673 838			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence	53- 57- 55- 44- 54- 57-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3. 39 3.	56 57 59 73 74 91	4 6 4 7 16 8	28 25 26 23 27 31	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0	801 761 815 767 785 773	293 351 244 315 377 330	622 598 612 673 838 548			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence Evansville	53- 57- 55- 44- 54- 57- 45-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3. 39 3. 50 3.	56 57 59 73 74 91 96	4 6 4 7 16 8 5	28 25 26 23 27 31 26	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1	801 761 815 767 785 773 784	293 351 244 315 377 330 379	622 598 612 673 838 548 674			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence	53- 57- 55- 44- 54- 57- 45- 54-	42 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3. 39 3. 50 3. 42 4.	56 57 59 73 74 91	4 6 4 7 16 8	28 25 26 23 27 31	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1 856.0	801 761 815 767 785 773	293 351 244 315 377 330	622 598 612 673 838 548			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence Evansville Schaumburg London	53- 55- 55- 44- 54- 54- 54- 25-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3. 39 3. 50 3. 42 4. 35 4.	56 57 59 73 74 91 96 00 38	4 6 4 7 16 8 5 4	28 25 26 23 27 31 26 28	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1 856.0 439.2	801 761 815 767 785 773 784 851 426	293 351 244 315 377 330 379 347 184	622 598 612 673 838 548 674 630 333			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence Evansville Schaumburg	53- 57- 55- 44- 54- 57- 54- 54- 25- 45-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 52 3. 52 3. 52 3. 50 3. 50 3. 42 4. 35 4. 50 4.	56 57 59 73 74 91 96 00 38 54	4 6 4 7 16 8 5 4 3	28 25 26 23 27 31 26 28 10 18	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1 856.0 439.2 821.1	801 761 815 767 785 773 784 851 426 845	293 351 244 315 377 330 379 347 184 353	622 598 612 673 838 548 674 630 333 736			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence Evansville Schaumburg London River City	53- 55- 55- 44- 54- 54- 54- 25-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3. 39 3. 50 3. 42 4. 35 4. 50 4. 55 4.	56 57 59 73 74 91 96 00 38	4 6 4 7 16 8 5 4 3 4	28 25 26 23 27 31 26 28 10	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1 856.0 439.2	801 761 815 767 785 773 784 851 426	293 351 244 315 377 330 379 347 184	622 598 612 673 838 548 674 630 333			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence Evansville Schaumburg London River City Joliet	53- 55- 55- 55- 54- 54- 54- 54- 25- 45- 37- 37-	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 42 3. 39 3. 50 3. 42 4. 35 4. 50 5. 50	56 57 59 73 74 91 96 00 38 54 61	4 6 4 7 16 8 5 4 3 4 4	28 25 26 23 27 31 26 28 10 18 20	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1 856.0 439.2 821.1 829.1	801 761 815 767 785 773 784 851 426 845 825	293 351 244 315 377 330 379 347 184 353 353	622 598 612 673 838 548 674 630 333 736 658			
Lake Erie Gateway Southern III. Washington Windy City Florence Evansville Schaumburg London River City Joliet Normal	53, 55, 55, 54, 54, 54, 54, 54, 25, 45, 37, 29, 41,	42 3. 39 3. 39 3. 52 3. 52 3. 52 3. 50 3. 50 3. 50 3. 50 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50 4. 50 5. 5. 5. 5. 5. 5. 5. 5. 5. 5.	56 57 59 73 74 91 96 00 38 54 61 89	4 6 4 7 16 8 5 4 3 4 4 5	28 25 26 23 27 31 26 28 10 18 20 17	842.0 855.2 828.1 847.0 855.0 837.0 816.1 856.0 439.2 821.1 829.1 829.1	801 761 815 767 785 773 784 851 426 845 825 825 847	293 351 244 315 377 330 379 347 184 353 353 353 418	622 598 612 673 838 548 674 630 333 736 658 683			

### TEAM FIELDING

	1			110				
Team	PCT.	G	PO	A	E	TC	DP	
Southern Illinois	.980	94	2482	972	69	3523	59	
Lake Erie	.977	95	2496	1005	83	3584	69	
Traverse City	.977	96	2571	1069	84	3724	82	
Gateway	.976	96	2560	1070	90	3720	95	
Washington	.975	96	2534	960	88	3582	66	
Windy City	.974	96	2558	901	93	3552	67	
Florence	.974	96	2475	1104	97	3676	94	
Joliet	.974	95	2483	931	90	3504	75	
Road Warriors	.969	36	1109	417	49	1575	39	
Schaumburg	.696	96	2564	1069	117	3750	88	
London	.966	60	1299	494	64	1857	33	
River City	.964	95	2460	937	126	3523	56	
Rockford	.964	96	2510	925	128	3563	57	
Evansville	.963	95	2466	967	130	3543	67	
Normal	.962	96	2447	947	135	3529	57	

### CLUB RECORDS

	HOME REC	ORD		ROA	D REC	DRD	
Team	W	L	PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.
Traverse City	37	14	.725	Traverse City	27	18	.600
Gateway	33	15	.688	Florence	27	18	.600
Schaumburg	34	17	.667	Lake Erie	26	18	.591
Southern III.	28	18	.609	Southern III.	27	21	.563
Florence	30	21	.588	Windy City	27	22	.551
Windy City	27	20	.574	Gateway	24	24	.500
River City	29	22	.569	Washington	21	26	.447
Evansville	28	23	.549	Schaumburg	20	25	.444
Rockford	27	24	.529	Joliet	19	29	.396
Lake Erie	27	24	.529	Evansville	17	27	.386
London	14	13	.519	River City	16	28	.364
Washington	23	26	.469	London	11	22	.333
Joliet	18	29	.383	Rockford	14	31	.311
Normal	18	30	.375	Road Warriors	9	27	.250
				Normal	11	37	.229

**REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS** 

EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Joliet	56	40	.583	
Lake Erie	51	44	.537	4.5
Traverse City	51	45	.531	5.0
Windy City	48	48	.500	8.0
Washington	42	53	.442	13.5
Rockford	37	59	.385	19.0
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
River City	68	27	.716	
Southern Illinois	58	38	.604	10.5
Normal	46	50	.479	22.5
Gateway	39	56	.411	29.0
Evansville	39	57	.406	29.5
Florence	39	57	.406	29.5

### 2011 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Joliet defeated Lake Erie (3 games to 0) River City defeated Southern Illinois (3 games to 1) **CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)** Joliet defeated River City (3 games to 1) 2011 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION JOLIET SLAMMERS

### 2010 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB Southern Illinois Washington Traverse City Evansville Gateway Rockford

TOTAL 181,576 104.635 169.739 97,937 166.072 97,678

CLUB Lake Erie Windy City Normal Florence Joliet. **River City** 

TOTAL 128.628 86,727 114,917 83,436 108.610 71,958

### LEAGUE TOTAL

1.411.913 Playoff Attendance (11 games) - 17,153 All-Star Game at Lake Erie - 5.257

### 2011 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

1B - Logan Parker - River City Rascals/Gateway Grizzlies

- 2B Will Block Southern Illinois Miners
- 3B Chris Curley Florence Freedom
- SS Andrew Davis Lake Erie Crushers
- OF Stephen Holdren River City Rascals
- OF J.T. Hall Traverse City Beach Burns
- OF Alvaro Ramirez Normal CornBelters
- C Landon Hernandez Gateway Grizzlies
- DH Charlie Lisk Gateway Grizzlies SP - Josh Lowey - River City Rascals
- RP Ryan Quigley Joliet Slammers

Morgan Burkhart Award - Stephen Holdren, River City Rascals Brian Tollberg Award - Josh Lowey, River City Rascais Jason Simontacchi Award - Casey Barnes, Washington Wild Things Roger Hanners Award - Bart Zeller - Joliet Slammers Fran Riordan Award - Danny Sawyer - River City Rascals

	LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)										
	(MI	NIMUN	259	PLATE	APPEA	RANC	ES)				
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	<b>2B</b>	38	HR	RBI	SB	
Eigsti, Jake	Rck	.340	355	53	114	22	2	12	74	14	
Davis, Andrew	LE	.339	363	48	123	39	3	12	87	1	
Parker, Logan	RC/Gat	.333	348	71	116	27	3	16	86	12	
Holdren, Stephen	RC	.332	346	75	115	17	1	21	84	17	
Shah, Asif	Nor	.331	359	50	119	26	1	11	63	0	
Ramirez, Alvaro	Nor	.328	378	65	124	24	7	2	43	23	
Spiers, Joe	Evn	.323	300	46	97	11	3	5	40	50	
Torres, Mike	WC	.322	348	62	112	14	2	2	45	35	
Pellot, Hector	Jol	.319	226	41	72	16	1	4	29	10	
Patton, Jason	RC	.317	338	42	107	17	2	9	54	14	
Aakhus, Zach	WC	.311	318	53	99	20	0	4	64	14	
Miles, Cole	Flo	.308	302	54	93	12	9	2	30	40	
Martinez, Frank	Nor	.305	374	80	114	25	4	14	65	12	
Thennis, Doug	Wsh	.304	286	43	87	23	0	8	33	7	
Lis, Erik	Jol	.302	344	51	104	17	1	20	77	0	
Shepherd, Devin	WC/Jol	.301	319	42	96	15	4	10	63	5	
Brodin, Joash	RC	.300	343	71	103	25	0	14	66	19	

	LEAD					FIERS			
		(MIN	IMUM 7	77 INN	INGS)				
Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	P	H	BB	SO
Brackman, Mark	Gat	7-5	2.15	15	0	100.1	92	23	78
Edwards, Justin	Wsh	5-3	2.16	14	0	91.2	64	35	72
Barnes, Casey	Wsh	5-5	2.34	13	0	84.2	75	19	51
Lowey, Jason	RC	11-2	2.44	20	0	129.1	123	46	114
Campbell, Thomas	LE	4-3	2.53	21	0	85.1	59	36	61
Dunn, Scott	TC	9-3	2.58	33	1	83.2	75	27	60
Sheldon, Ryan	Nor	12-5	2.82	21	0	140.2	115	39	134
Harden, David	SIL	7-5	2.91	19	0	120.2	109	17	67
Sterner, Zack	RC	10-3	3.04	19	0	124.1	99	44	73
Banes, Bryan	TC	10-4	3.07	22	0	117.1	112	40	60
Renshaw, Jake	Jol	13-4	3.09	19	0	128.0	105	40	90
Lavigne, Tyler	Nor	7-9	3.17	21	0	133.2	120	70	115
Lewis, Alec	Flo	4-7	3.21	19	0	89.2	75	31	76
Hall, Justin	Wsh	10-7	3.22	20	0	145.1	131	22	104
Risser, Travis	LE	3-5	3.32	35	6	76.0	77	20	51
Pritchett, Bobby	Nor	9-5	3.57	19	0	123.2	110	45	109
Lisi, Don	RC	8-2	3.69	17	0	85.1	79	24	57
Jernstad, Matt	WC	8-11	3.71	24	1	140.2	131	50	116
Clark, Andy	Flo	10-5	3.73	20	0	125.1	119	33	101
Motoya, Jhonny	Wsh	4-7	3.77	20	0	117.0	113	51	83
Deminsky, David	TC	6-3	3.84	13	0	82.0	72	23	49
Joy, Shawn	SIL	6-4	3.92	18	0	105.2	95	26	56
Roberts, Josh	LE	10-6	3.97	23	0	143.0	141	35	95

		u 11 E	<i>(</i> <b>1 1 1</b>					
Avg.	AB	R	н	28	38	HR	RBI	SB
.282	3216	569	907	171	14	107	525	132
.269	3335	512	898	178	17	85	471	70
.268	3202	482	858	150	21	79	444	91
.268	3166	470	848	151	17	32	408	146
.266	3164	445	843	151	14	62	395	134
.264	3146	466	832	164	34	88	428	105
.262	3170	450	829	151	18	63	398	127
.261	3173	437	829	160	27	41	393	80
.260	3252	521	844	168	18	104	493	69
.254	3174	458	805	155	26	92	421	83
.245	3180	452	780	145	20	74	412	124
.239	3135	389	749	143	21	66	357	110
	.262 .269 .268 .266 .264 .262 .261 .260 .254 .245	Avg.         AB           .282         3216           .269         3335           .268         3202           .268         3166           .266         3164           .262         3170           .261         3173           .260         3252           .254         3174           .261         3173           .260         3252           .254         3174           .245         3180	Avg.         AB         R           .282         3216         569           .269         3335         512           .268         3202         482           .268         3166         470           .266         3164         445           .264         3146         466           .262         3170         450           .261         3173         437           .260         3252         521           .254         3174         458           .245         3180         452	Avg.         AB         R         H           282         3216         569         907           269         3335         512         898           268         3202         482         885           268         3166         470         848           266         3164         445         843           264         3146         466         832           262         3170         450         829           261         3173         437         829           260         3252         521         844           254         3174         458         805           245         3180         452         780	Avg.         AB         R         H         2B           .282         3216         569         907         171           .269         3335         512         898         178           .268         3202         482         858         150           .268         3166         470         848         151           .266         3164         445         843         151           .264         3146         466         832         164           .261         3173         437         829         160           .260         3252         521         844         168           .254         3174         458         805         155           .245         3180         452         780         145	Avg.         AB         R         H         28         38           .282         3216         569         907         171         14           .269         3335         512         898         178         17           .268         3202         482         858         150         21           .268         3166         470         848         151         17           .266         3146         466         832         164         34           .262         3170         450         829         151         18           .261         3173         437         829         160         27           .260         3252         521         844         168         18           .254         3174         458         805         155         26           .245         3180         452         780         145         20	282         3216         569         907         171         14         107           269         3335         512         898         178         17         85           268         3202         482         858         150         21         79           268         3166         470         848         151         17         32           266         3164         445         843         151         14         62           264         3146         466         832         164         34         88           262         3170         450         829         151         18         63           261         3173         437         829         160         27         41           260         3252         521         844         168         18         104           254         3174         458         805         155         26         92           245         3180         452         780         145         20         74	Avg.         AB         R         H         2B         38         HR         RBI           .282         3216         569         907         171         14         107         525           .269         3335         512         898         178         17         85         471           .268         3202         482         858         150         21         79         444           .268         3166         470         848         151         17         32         408           .266         3164         445         843         151         14         62         395           .264         3146         466         832         164         34         88         428           .262         3170         450         829         151         18         63         398           .261         3173         437         829         160         27         41         393           .260         3252         521         844         168         18         104         493           .261         3174         458         805         155         26         92         421

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	H	BB	S0
Washington	43-53	3.62	12	17	840.2	791	335	650
Lake Erie	51-44	3.76	4	32	842.2	787	257	598
River City	68-27	3.87	5	34	840.2	790	336	760
Normal	46-50	3.92	8	19	854.1	840	366	700
Joliet	56-40	4.06	5	34	836.2	783	362	648
Southern III.	58-38	4.06	4	28	849.1	820	284	578
Traverse City	51-45	4.21	7	24	840.1	818	346	520
Windy City	48-48	4.34	10	20	841.2	863	336	754
Florence	39-57	4.55	5	17	834.2	857	343	581
Gateway	39-56	5.16	4	14	840.0	883	439	656
Evansville	39-57	5.20	2	26	835.1	889	425	696
Rockford	37-59	5.34	2	20	825.2	903	410	560

### TEAM FIELDING

Team	PCT.	G	PO	A	E	TC	DP
Southern Illinois	.977	96	2538	1005	82	3625	69
Traverse City	.976	96	2515	1024	87	3626	20
Windy City	.975	96	2513	926	87	3526	71
Lake Erie	.975	95	2510	994	89	3593	73
Joliet	.975	96	2505	992	91	3588	91
River City	.975	95	2516	926	87	3529	73
Rockford	.970	96	2471	1008	109	3588	89
Florence	.970	96	2494	1034	110	3638	94
Normal	.970	96	2534	918	106	3558	73
Washington	.969	95	2513	1056	113	3682	77
Gateway	.969	95	2516	992	112	3620	88
Evansville	.967	96	2500	950	119	3569	71

### CLUB RECORDS

HOME RECORD				ROA	ROAD RECORD						
Team	W	L	PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.				
River City	37	10	.787	River City	31	17	.546				
Southern III.	33	15	.688	Joliet	27	21	.563				
Traverse City	30	18	.625	Southern III.	25	23	.521				
Windy City	29	19	.604	Lake Erie	24	23	.511				
Joliet	29	19	.604	Normal	23	25	.479				
Lake Erie	27	21	.563	Evansville	22	26	.458				
Washington	24	24	.500	Traverse City	21	27	.438				
Rockford	23	25	.479	Gateway	19	29	.396				
Normal	23	25	.479	Windy City	19	29	.396				
Florence	21	27	.438	Washington	18	29	.383				
Gateway	20	27	.426	Florence	18	30	.375				
Evansville	17	31	.354	Rockford	14	34	.292				

**REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS** 

EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Windy City	56	38	.596	
Traverse City	55	41	.573	2
<b>Oakland County</b>	53	43	.552	4
Lake Erie	50	46	.521	7
Washington	38	57	.400	18.5
Kalamazoo	28	68	.292	29
WEST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Southern Illinois	64	32	.667	
River City	57	38	.600	6.5
Gateway	54	40	.574	9
Normal	44	52	.458	20
Florence	38	58	.396	26
Evansville	35	59	.372	28

### 2010 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Traverse City defeated Windy City (3 games to 1) River City defeated Southern Illinois (3 games to 2) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) River City defeated Traverse City (3 games to 1) 2010 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION RIVER CITY RASCALS

### 2010 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Traverse City	204,440	River City	113,431
Southern Illinois	204,181	Florence	112,844
Gateway	186,147	Evansville	110,711
Lake Erie	159,580	Windy City	92,240
Normal	132,309	Kalamazoo	56,342
Washington	116,722	Oakland County	9,114

### LEAGUE TOTAL

Playoff Attendance (13 games) – 27,185 All-Star Game at Southern Illinois – 4,426

### **2010 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS**

1,498,061

1B	Joash Brodin	Oakland Co
2B	Gilberto Mejia	Windy City
38	Daniel Cox	Normal Cor
SS	Stephen Shults	Florence Fr
OF	Stephen Holdren	<b>River City F</b>
OF	Jereme Milons	Southern II
OF	Jason Patton	Gateway G
C	Charlie Lisk	Gateway G
DH	Chase Burch	Traverse Ci
SP	Joe Augustine	Southern II
RP	P.J. Zocchi	Oakland Co
khart Award	Charlie Lisk	Gateway Grizz
rg Award	Joe Augustine	Southern Illin

Morgan Burkhart Award Brian Tollberg Award Jason Simontacchi Award Roger Hanners Award Fran Riordan Award Charlie Lisk Joe Augustine Dustin Williams Gera Alvarez Drew Saylor Oakland County Cruisers Windy City ThunderBolts Normal CornBelters Florence Freedom River City Rascals Southern Illinois Miners Gateway Grizzlies Gateway Grizzlies Traverse City Beach Bums Southern Illinois Miners Oakland County Cruisers

Gateway Grizzlies Southern Illinois Miners Windy City ThunderBolts Oakland County Cruisers Lake Erie Crushers

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)													
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	28	3B	HR	RBI	SB			
Aakhus, Zach	WC	.330	267	48	88	18	1	4	40	5			
Cox, Daniel	Nor	.323	350	61	113	23	2	15	78	6			
Hall, Nate	SIL	.318	336	62	107	20	4	9	50	5			
Shah, Asif	Nor	.316	316	44	100	19	1	4	34	6			
Curry, Caleb	Riv	.315	235	55	74	11	2	0	24	28			
Brown, Matt	TC	.313	345	71	108	19	6	2	43	30			
Maddox, Chad	Riv	.311	331	55	103	25	4	7	55	3			
Shults, Stephen	Flo	.309	314	59	97	13	1	23	65	5			
Torres, Michael	WC	.307	303	44	93	11	0	0	30	22			
Holdren, Stephen	Riv	.305	334	68	102	23	2	16	72	11			
Parker, Logan	Gat	.305	348	67	106	28	1	13	77	16			
Patton, Jason	Gat	.304	329	54	100	19	1	10	57	22			
Lisk, Charlie	Gat	.303	373	63	113	23	2	21	88	9			
Restko, J.T.	WC	.303	294	34	89	13	3	10	58	0			
Welch, John	Flo	.303	307	55	93	13	1	14	46	7			
Basham, Ryan	WC	.302	252	34	76	19	1	3	39	10			
Brodin, Joash	00	.301	355	55	107	25	1	9	62	29			
Peters, Brandon	Gat	.301	246	59	74	11	1	10	34	- 4			
Baker, Jimmy	OC/Flo	.300	310	61	93	17	2	17	60	5			
Sidick, Chris	Wsh	.300	250	46	75	13	5	4	21	32			

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	P	н	BB	S0
Augustine, Joe	SL	10-3	1.97	17	0	114.1	86	30	121
Cinadr, Jeff	LE	4-3	2.21	41	8	77.1	48	27	52
Sheldon, Ryan	Nor	9-5	2.21	20	0	126.1	92	26	121
Williams, Dustin	WC	7-3	2.39	16	0	101.2	73	47	90
Roberts, Josh	LE	10-5	2.62	21	0	137.1	112	36	78
Rolon, Alberto	LE	3-4	2.65	32	7	95.0	66	32	90
Moran, Gary	Riv	10-4	2.68	19	0	111.0	107	22	98
Risser, Travis	LE	8-4	2.70	20	0	113.1	98	30	58
Kitchens, Wayde	00	5-7	2.77	19	0	97.1	75	67	91
Solich, Brent	WC	8-4	2.86	21	0	130.0	124	34	89
Lechuga, Enrique	TC	10-3	2.88	20	0	125.0	114	46	83
Platt, Ryan	TC	8-3	2.92	18	0	108.0	96	56	117
Sonnenberg, Jeff	Wsh	6-7	2.97	16	0	103.0	87	18	67
Barrett, Richard	Gat/WC	8-3	3.01	23	1	83.2	89	28	66
Brackman, Mark	Gat	13-4	3.18	21	0	152.2	136	39	118
Asselin, Kevin	00	9-3	3.28	23	0	134.1	127	51	89
Moore, Michael	TC	9-6	3.28	18	0	98.2	85	48	56
Bravo, Jonny	TC	5-2	3.29	22	0	90.1	80	52	59
Werner, Andrew	Evn/WC	11-5	3.35	19	0	118.1	110	47	97
Clark, Andy	Flo	9-4	3.41	19	0	116.0	114	35	93
Clubb, Tim	Gat	8-6	3.42	19	0	118.1	104	54	77

Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	28	3B	HR	RBI	SB	
Windy City	.277	3125	475	865	146	28	36	409	140	
Gateway	.275	3296	608	908	168	13	122	563	120	
River City	.272	3156	504	857	163	18	65	454	121	
Southern III.	.268	3214	539	862	160	26	73	489	141	
Florence	.264	3271	473	862	162	16	109	438	85	
Normal	.257	3236	447	832	145	13	71	404	88	
Traverse City	.253	3216	494	813	142	26	58	430	76	
Oakland Co.	.250	3133	409	783	147	19	47	359	152	
Washington	.248	3082	389	763	127	18	44	349	106	
Evansville	.243	3149	427	764	130	5	66	389	64	
Kalamazoo	.242	3199	400	774	135	12	49	354	103	
Lake Erie	.229	3105	377	710	125	24	49	336	110	

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Southern III.	64-32	3.50	3	23	864.0	805	327	690
Lake Erie	50-46	3.56	3	26	856.0	729	345	607
Traverse City	55-41	3.56	6	24	857.1	822	349	618
Windy City	56-38	3.63	8	23	822.2	761	354	691
River City	57-38	3.65	10	28	828.1	834	292	688
Oakland Co.	53-43	3.87	9	29	830.0	754	391	677
Gateway	54-40	4.02	7	20	842.1	756	414	735
Normal	44-52	4.10	7	18	850.0	812	379	734
Washington	38-57	4.71	4	22	818.0	822	362	650
Evansville	35-59	4.87	2	14	813.2	846	374	642
Florence	38-58	5.09	3	17	846.2	916	416	652
Kalamazoo	28-68	5.58	3	16	833.1	936	363	677

### TEAM FIELDING

Team	PCT.	G	PO	A	E	TC	DP					
Lake Erie	.980	96	2561	1093	76	3730	114					
Southern Illinois	.979	96	2580	1012	78	3670	78					
Normal	.973	96	2528	888	95	3511	81					
Windy City	.972	94	2456	938	97	3491	90					
Oakland County	.971	96	2470	896	102	3468	66					
Washington	.970	95	2441	918	103	3462	76					
River City	.970	95	2477	1035	107	3619	106					
Evansville	.968	94	2418	919	111	3448	54					
Gateway	.968	94	2513	929	115	3557	98					
Traverse City	.968	96	2561	992	118	3671	78					
Florence	.967	96	2526	1045	122	3693	82					
Kalamazoo	.965	96	2490	925	125	3540	71					

### CLUB RECORDS

	HOME REC	ORD		ROA	ROAD RECORD					
Team	W	L	PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.			
Southern III.	35	13	.729	Southern III.	29	19	.604			
Windy City	35	15	.700	Traverse City	23	16	.590			
River City	33	17	.660	Gateway	25	19	.568			
Oakland Co.	11	7	.611	Oakland Co.	42	36	.538			
Lake Erie	33	21	.611	River City	24	21	.533			
Gateway	29	21	.580	Windy City	21	23	A77			
Traverse City	32	25	.561	Normal	19	26	.422			
Normal	25	26	.490	Lake Erie	17	25	.405			
Washington	23	28	.451	Florence	16	28	.364			
Florence	22	30	A23	Evansville	17	31	.354			
Kalamazoo	18	27	.400	Washington	15	29	.341			
Evansville	18	28	.391	Kalamazoo	10	41	.196			

**REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS** 

EAST DIVISION	W 58	L 38	PCT.	GB
Lake Erie	57	38	.600	0.5
Florence	49	47	.510	9
Washington	43	53	.448	15
Traverse City	42	53	.442	15.5
Midwest	42	54	.438	16
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
River City	56	38	.596	
Windy City	56	40	.583	1
Southern Illinois	56	40	.583	1
Rockford	44	50	.468	12
Gateway	40	54	.426	16
Evansville	28	66	.298	28

### 2009 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Lake Erie defeated Kalamazoo (3 games to 2) River City defeated Windy City (3 games to 0) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Lake Erie defeated River City (3 games to 2) 2009 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION LAKE ERIE CRUSHERS

### 2009 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Southern Illinois	209,477	Lake Erie	153,654
Evansville	104,829	River City	89,776
Gateway	175,720	Washington	133,881
Windy City	103,129	Kalamazoo	70,499
Traverse City	170,358	Rockford	110,565
Florence	102,086	Midwest	20,252

LEAGUE TOTAL 1,444,226 Playoff Attendance (13 games) – 44,102 All-Star Game at Rockford – 5,582

### 2009 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

-	

3B

SS

0F

0F

0F

C

ĎH

SP

RP

Ernie Banks

Gilberto Mejia Andrew Davis Tony Roth Jason James Joey Metropolous Chad Maddox Charlie Lisk Jacob Dempsey Paul Fagan Jason Lowey

Morgan Burkhart Award Brian Tollberg Award Jason Simontacchi Award Roger Hanners Award Fran Riordan Award Joey Metropolous Paul Fagan Vinnie Scarduzio Chad Parker Gordon Gronkowski Washington Wild Things/ River City Rascals Windy City ThunderBolts Lake Erie Crushers Southern Illinois Miners Rockford RiverHawks Southern Illinois Miners River City Rascals Gateway Grizzlies Washington Wild Things Lake Erie Crushers River City Rascals

Southern Illinois Miners Lake Erie Crushers Windy City ThunderBolts River City Rascals Lake Erie Crushers

					i QUA					
	(MI	NIMUM	259	PLATE	APPEA	RANC	ES)			
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	28	3B	HR	RBI	SB
James, Jason	Rck	.374	345	60	129	26	0	14	48	18
Short, Josh	Kz0	.360	225	41	81	16	1	9	46	0
Banks, Ernie	Wsh-RC	.353	289	65	102	15	2	24	75	1
Restko, J.T.	WC	.334	344	51	115	23	1	18	76	4
Ramon, Amos	Kzo	.327	278	49	91	21	- 4	8	59	4
Davis, Andrew	LE	.327	367	74	120	25	7	15	68	7
Mejia, Gilberto	WC	.324	377	83	122	19	10	9	55	47
Alonso, John	TC	.319	270	43	86	18	2	15	52	3
Wehrle, Ryan	RC	.317	252	48	80	16	0	- 4	37	12
Metropolous, Joey	SL	.317	344	76	109	22	0	31	82	1
Ramos, Joe	Kz0	.315	365	76	115	19	1	12	62	31
Basham, Ryan	FL0	.313	377	61	118	25	0	16	64	5
Holdren, Stephen	Gat-SIL	.311	363	84	113	25	2	20	56	3
Baker, Jimmy	Mid	.310	261	50	81	18	1	16	53	2
Robinson, Scott	Riv	.309	278	55	86	17	1	13	57	10
Maddox, Chad	Riv	.307	342	66	105	31	5	14	67	12
Gronkowski, Gordon	LE	.305	311	62	95	19	2	19	79	4
Batten, JoJo	Riv	.305	318	61	97	21	2	- 4	43	11
Martinez, Guillermo	WC	.304	293	59	89	16	3	3	31	28
Pace, Zack	Mid	.304	359	71	109	17	1	- 4	30	37
Roth, Tony	SIL	.302	308	65	93	23	3	9	41	15
Saylor, Drew	LE	.302	381	70	115	26	2	10	62	3
Andrus, Erold	Flo	.302	348	56	105	20	3	9	48	15
Binkoski, Tim	LE	.300	260	33	78	9	1	4	36	8

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Wright, Kyle	Rck	10-6	2.24	20	0	144.2	120	41	129
Jernstad, Matt	WC	7-4	2.31	44	1	78.0	55	23	97
Fagan, Paul	LE	14-3	2.70	22	0	140.0	114	33	83
Lowey, Josh	Riv	9-2	2.94	24	3	101.0	98	43	75
Stout, Ross	WC	13-5	2.94	21	0	143.2	134	35	138
Bird, Ryan	SIL	9-7	3.48	18	0	106.0	86	32	97
Brownell, John	KZ0	11-5	3.48	20	0	134.1	118	46	106
Augustine, Joe	SIL	7-5	3.50	19	0	110.2	110	43	84
Durant, Brett	Rck	10-6	3.81	21	1	130.0	139	23	110
Bostelman, Brett	Tra	7-8	3.81	19	0	111.0	107	47	53
Pease, Dustin	WC	12-7	3.85	30	0	133.1	127	38	106
Scarpetta, Brett	SIL	7-4	3.86	16	0	95.2	96	32	48
DiPietro, Joe	Kzo	8-7	3.90	19	0	120.0	117	30	92
Nathanson, David	Tra	6-9	3.91	21	0	138.0	157	18	94

		1-6	A WI D	ALLI	nц				
Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	28	38	HR	RBI	SB
Windy City	.285	3217	540	918	183	28	97	492	179
River City	.281	3204	558	899	181	14	93	495	161
Midwest	.275	3236	488	891	177	20	66	439	97
Lake Erie	.275	3222	580	887	147	26	91	515	88
Rockford	.275	3070	485	844	172	11	77	427	127
Kalamazoo	.271	3228	534	876	166	14	97	502	130
Florence	.271	3251	555	882	168	15	122	514	113
Southern III.	.267	3158	568	843	165	19	97	523	110
Washington	.263	3211	548	843	160	28	128	506	74
Gateway	.259	3268	603	846	179	18	150	544	74
Evansville	.253	3173	444	802	127	23	61	401	56
Traverse City	.249	3131	411	781	147	19	66	369	109

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Kalamazoo	58-38	4.18	6	23	844.0	815	358	674
Windy City	56-40	4.19	10	22	829.2	808	338	810
Traverse City	42-53	4.21	6	23	825.2	843	284	586
Lake Erie	57-38	4.22	3	31	839.1	760	365	587
Rockford	44-50	4.38	11	19	792.2	804	333	661
Southern III.	56-40	4.38	4	22	825.1	843	323	640
River City	56-38	4.87	2	32	820.0	895	332	681
Florence	49-47	5.01	6	17	833.2	821	422	672
Midwest	42-54	5.52	3	21	824.0	900	382	634
Washington	43-53	5.59	4	17	829.2	859	427	637
Evansville	28-66	5.66	6	15	802.0	948	352	590
Gateway	40-54	6.47	6	18	836.1	1016	428	754

### TEAM FIELDING

Team	PCT.	G	PO	A	E	TC	DP	
Lake Erie	.975	95	2518	1009	90	3617	95	
Southern Illinois	.975	96	2476	967	89	3532	71	
Kalamazoo	.974	96	2532	971	94	3597	84	
Midwest	.972	96	2472	903	97	3472	66	
Windy City	.972	96	2489	939	100	3528	70	
River City	.970	94	2460	926	103	3489	76	
Traverse City	.970	95	2477	1060	108	3645	90	
Rockford	.965	94	2378	962	120	3460	65	
Washington	.964	96	2489	969	128	3586	83	
Florence	.964	96	2501	902	127	3530	80	
Evansville	.959	94	2406	990	146	3542	64	
Gateway	.957	94	2509	886	153	3548	70	

### **CLUB RECORDS**

	HOME RE(	ORD		ROA	d rec	ORD	
Team	W	L	PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.
Windy City	34	14	.708	River City	27	20	.574
Kalamazoo	32	16	.667	Kalamazoo	26	22	.542
Lake Erie	34	17	.667	Lake Erie	23	21	.523
Southern III.	31	17	.646	Southern III.	25	23	.521
River City	29	18	.617	Midwest	26	28	.481
Traverse City	28	22	.560	Florence	23	25	.479
Rockford	26	21	.553	Windy City	22	26	.458
Florence	26	22	.542	Washington	19	29	.396
Gateway	24	24	.500	Rockford	18	29	.383
Washington	24	24	.500	Gateway	16	30	.348
Evansville	19	27	.413	Traverse City	14	31	.311
Midwest	16	26	.381	Evansville	9	39	.188

REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Kalamazoo	60	36	.625	
Traverse City	50	46	.521	10
Washington	48	48	.500	12
Florence	47	49	.490	13
Chillicothe	39	57	.406	21
Midwest	29	67	.302	31
WEST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
Windy City	60	36	.625	
Southern Illinois	58	38	.604	2
Gateway	51	45	.531	9
Rockford	48	48	.500	12
River City	47	49	.490	13
Evansville	39	57	.406	21

### 2008 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Windy City defeated Southern Illinois (3 games to 1) Kalamazoo defeated Gateway (3 games to 1) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Windy City defeated Kalamazoo (3 games to 0) 2008 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION WINDY CITY THUNDERBOLTS

### 2008 GAME ATTENDANCE

67,253 138.234 119.645 218,191 106,707 193,724

TOTAL

CLUB Gateway Washington Kalamazoo Windy City River City "Midwest was road team

TOTAL 190,892 154,444 83.157 90,619 106,114

### LEAGUE TOTAL

1.468.977 Playoff Attendance (11 games) All-Star Game at Traverse City

15.903

6.032

### **2008 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS**

2B     Joe Anthonsen       3B     Kelly Hunt       SS     Wes Long       OF     Jason James       OF     Joey Metropolous       OF     Angel Molina       C     Charlie Lisk       DH     (tie) Mike Breyman       DH     (tie) Jacob Dempsey       SP     Ryan Bird       RP     Brandon Parillo
---

Morgan Burkhart Award Brian Tollberg Award Jason Simontacchi Award Roger Hanners Award Fran Riordan Award

Phil Hawke Ryan Bird Brendan Murphy Fran Riordan Steve Young

Windy City ThunderBolts Rockford RiverHawks Florence Freedom Windy City ThunderBolts **Rockford RiverHawks** Southern Illinois Miners Florence Freedom **Gateway Grizzlies Gateway Grizzlies** Washington Wild Things Southern Illinois Miners Kalamazoo Kings

Windy City ThunderBolts Southern Illinois Miners Kalamazoo Kings Kalamazoo Kings Traverse City Beach Burns

					i QUA					
	(MI)	IIMUM	259	PLATE	APPEA	RANC	ES)			
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	28	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Anthonsen, Joe	Rck	.352	384	79	135	17	3	2	50	29
James, Jason	Rck	.350	380	55	133	30	2	13	74	11
Murphy, B.	Kz0	.332	331	46	110	24	1	16	77	2
Long, Wes	WC	.331	369	66	122	20	0	11	71	16
Molina, Angel	Flo	.327	349	74	114	22	1	22	71	14
Knapp, Robbie	Wsh/Rck	.317	312	50	99	21	2	8	57	1
Sweet, Andrew	Riv	.316	310	55	98	17	0	5	48	1
Metropoulos, J.	SL	.315	340	74	107	21	0	20	66	1
Goetz, Mike	Tra	.314	245	46	77	14	1	0	22	14
Mochizuki, G.	Evn	.314	293	41	92	9	1	- 4	26	19
Lisk, Charlie	Gat	.313	326	63	102	12	2	24	64	6
Sidick, Chris	Wsh	.311	379	77	118	16	9	11	45	21
Dutton, Brad	Rck	.311	341	48	106	19	1	- 4	49	11
Sullivan, Mike	Evn/WC	.310	303	61	94	18	4	- 4	40	14
Dempsey, Jacob	Wsh	.310	365	68	113	31	4	17	88	0
Hawke, Phil	WC	.309	343	69	106	16	0	22	73	3
Hunt, Kelly	Flo	.308	295	50	91	8	2	26	73	1
Barganier, Luke	Riv	.304	372	54	113	20	5	5	55	5
McKinney, G.	Flo	.303	370	83	112	17	4	18	65	28
Akashian, B.	SL	.302	205	36	62	13	1	1	32	2
Mottram, Billy	Flo	.300	327	48	98	19	3	10	53	6

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Team	W-L	ERA	-			H	BB	SO
Tra	12-4	2.28	17	0	114.1	99	20	67
SIL	13-3	2.48	21	0	123.1	97	45	152
WC	11-3	2.57	19	0	133.1	104	40	122
Tra	5-9	2.71	19	0	126.0	118	32	69
SIL	9-4	2.90	20	0	121.0	106	35	94
Mid	4-5	2.92	19	0	89.1	74	38	85
Rck	10-6	2.98	21	0	148.0	114	78	151
Kal	7-5	3.28	21	0	107.0	95	40	65
Wsh	2-6	3.32	14	0	81.1	82	22	58
Flo	10-2	3.36	19	1	83.0	60	26	79
Gat	7-4	3.65	17	0	88.2	92	33	62
Riv	3-5	3.76	31	9	91.0	86	37	87
Tra	6-5	3.81	19	0	106.1	101	45	63
SIL	9-3	3.81	15	0	87.1	83	30	73
Kal	9-4	3.83	20	0	124.2	130	36	57
Kal	11-2	3.87	19	0	118.2	118	45	86
Gat	7-5	3.90	16	0	87.2	87	31	49
WC	7-6	3.91	32	0	89.2	72	42	110
Wsh	9-6	3.95	21	0	114.0	101	29	84
WC	10-3	4.04	19	0	118.0	116	55	83
	SIL WC Tra SIL Rck Kal Gat Kal Kal Kal Gat WC WSh	Tra         12-4           SIL         13-3           WC         11-3           Tra         5-9           SIL         9-4           Mid         4-5           Rok         10-6           Kal         7-5           Wsh         2-6           Flo         10-2           Gat         7-4           Riv         3-5           Tra         6-5           SIL         9-3           Kal         9-4           Kal         11-2           Gat         7-5           WC         7-6           Wsh         9-6	Tra         12-4         2.28           SIL         13-3         2.48           WC         11-3         2.57           Tra         5-9         2.71           SIL         9-4         2.90           Mid         4-5         2.92           Rok         10-6         2.98           Kal         7-5         3.28           Wsh         2-6         3.32           Flo         10-2         3.36           Gat         7-4         3.65           Riv         3-5         3.76           Tra         6-5         3.81           SIL         9-3         3.81           Kal         9-4         3.83           Kal         11-2         3.87           Gat         7-5         3.90           WC         7-6         3.91           Wsh         9-6         3.95	Tra         12-4         2.28         17           SIL         13-3         2.48         21           WC         11-3         2.57         19           Tra         5-9         2.71         19           SIL         9-4         2.90         20           Mid         4-5         2.92         19           Rok         10-6         2.98         21           Kal         7-5         3.28         21           Wsh         2-6         3.32         14           Flo         10-2         3.36         19           Gat         7-4         3.65         17           Riv         3-5         3.76         31           Tra         6-5         3.81         19           SIL         9-3         3.81         15           Kal         9-4         3.83         20           Kal         11-2         3.87         19           Gat         7-5         3.90         16           WC         7-6         3.91         32           Wsh         9-6         3.95         21	Tra         12-4         2.28         17         0           SIL         13-3         2.48         21         0           WC         11-3         2.57         19         0           Tra         5-9         2.71         19         0           SIL         9-4         2.90         20         0           Mid         4-5         2.92         19         0           Rok         10-6         2.98         21         0           Kal         7-5         3.28         21         0           Wsh         2-6         3.32         14         0           Flo         10-2         3.36         19         1           Gat         7-4         3.65         17         0           Riv         3-5         3.76         31         9           Tra         6-5         3.81         19         0           SIL         9-3         3.81         15         0           Kai         9-4         3.83         20         0           Kai         11-2         3.87         19         0           Gat         7-5         3.90         16	Tra         12-4         2.28         17         0         114.1           SIL         13-3         2.48         21         0         123.1           WC         11-3         2.57         19         0         133.1           Tra         5-9         2.71         19         0         126.0           SIL         9-4         2.90         20         0         121.0           Mid         4-5         2.92         19         0         89.1           Rok         10-6         2.98         21         0         148.0           Kal         7-5         3.28         21         0         148.0           Kal         7-5         3.28         21         0         148.0           Kal         7-5         3.28         21         0         107.0           Wsh         2-6         3.32         14         0         81.1           Flo         10-2         3.36         19         1         83.0           Gat         7-4         3.65         17         0         88.2           Riv         3-5         3.76         31         9         91.0	Tra         12-4         2.28         17         0         114.1         99           SIL         13-3         2.48         21         0         123.1         97           WC         11-3         2.57         19         0         133.1         104           Tra         5-9         2.71         19         0         126.0         118           SIL         9-4         2.90         20         0         121.0         106           Mid         4-5         2.92         19         0         89.1         74           Rok         10-6         2.98         21         0         107.0         95           Wsh         2-6         3.32         14         0         81.1         82           Flo         10-2         3.36         19         1         83.0         60           Gat         7-4         3.65         17         0         88.2         92           Riv         3-5         3.76         31         9         91.0         86           Tra         6-5         3.81         19         0         106.1         101           SIL         9-3 <t< td=""><td><math display="block">\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc</math></td></t<>	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	2B	38	HR	RBI	SB
Southern III.	.284	3298	587	938	164	21	102	536	75
Windy City	.284	3286	608	933	166	14	100	548	103
Florence	.279	3314	556	926	162	17	128	517	74
Rockford	.279	3313	516	925	164	15	68	462	143
Kalamazoo	.267	3180	594	850	154	21	113	554	139
Washington	.267	3238	560	864	160	32	73	512	106
River City	.267	3238	497	864	160	12	90	466	68
Evansville	.266	3204	462	853	164	11	62	415	80
Gateway	.264	3215	532	850	151	19	121	493	70
Traverse City	.249	3166	441	788	150	19	46	401	123
Chillicothe	.246	3138	430	773	139	16	51	385	102
Midwest	.234	3232	397	756	138	17	59	363	89

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	н	88	SO
Traverse City	50-46	3.57	6	24	857.1	786	312	583
Southern III.	58-38	3.81	2	23	854.2	798	325	734
Kalamazoo	60-36	4.21	11	25	840.0	810	387	585
Windy City	60-36	4.51	10	24	852.1	800	408	739
Gateway	51-45	4.52	1	23	831.2	800	416	654
Rockford	48-48	4.68	6	23	845.0	847	458	693
Florence	47-49	4.74	8	17	852.1	893	337	709
Evansville	39-57	4.78	3	20	833.0	953	355	661
Washington	48-48	4.87	7	12	847.0	893	349	635
River City	47-49	5.13	4	25	840.1	932	406	743
Chillicothe	39-57	5.31	4	19	830.0	862	401	632
Midwest	29-67	5.76	4	18	809.2	946	469	700

### TEAM FIELDING

Team	PCT.	G	PO	A	Ε	TC	DP	
Traverse City	.979	96	2572	1143	79	3794	79	
Chillicothe	.973	96	2490	1071	100	3661	77	
Southern III.	.972	96	2564	1028	103	3695	69	
Washington	.971	96	2541	977	106	3624	76	
Kalamazoo	.970	96	2520	992	108	3620	80	
Gateway	.970	96	2495	958	107	3560	83	
Rockford	.968	96	2535	979	117	3631	75	
Windy City	.968	96	2557	1017	119	3693	80	
River City	.965	96	2521	933	127	3581	72	
Evansville	.964	96	2499	958	128	3585	67	
Florence	.964	96	2557	956	133	3646	72	
Midwest	.962	96	2429	885	131	3445	58	

### CLUB RECORDS

	HOME REC	ORD		ROA	d rec	ORD	
Team	W	L	PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.
Kalamazoo	37	16	.698	Southern III.	30	15	.667
Gateway	32	19	.627	Windy City	28	17	.622
Windy City	32	19	.627	Traverse City	23	19	.548
Washington	32	22	.593	Kalamazoo	23	20	.535
Rockford	30	21	.588	Florence	20	22	.476
River City	28	23	.549	Evansville	19	26	.422
Southern III.	28	23	.549	Gateway	19	26	A22
Chillicothe	27	27	.500	River City	19	26	.422
Florence	27	27	.500	Rockford	18	27	.400
Traverse City	27	27	.500	Washington	16	26	.381
Evansville	20	31	.392	Midwest	29	66	.305
Midwest	0	1	.000	River City	12	30	.286

### **REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS**

EAST DIVISION	W	L	PCT	GB
WASHINGTON	55	40	.579	
CHILLICOTHE	47	49	.490	8.5
FLORENCE	42	54	.438	13.5
SLIPPERY ROCK	29	66	.305	26.0
CENTRAL DIVISION	W	L	PCT	GB
WINDY CITY	68	28	.708	
ROCKFORD	52	43	.547	15.5
KALAMAZOO	51	45	.531	17.0
TRAVERSE CITY	46	50	.479	22.0
WEST DIVISION	W	L	PCT	GB
GATEWAY	64	29	.688	
SOUTHERN ILLINOIS	49	47	.510	16.5
RIVER CITY	36	60	.375	29.5
EVANSVILLE	34	62	.354	31.5

### 2007 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Windy City defeated Rockford (3 games to 0) Washington defeated Gateway (3 games to 0) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Windy City defeated Washington (3 games to 2)

### 2007 FRONTIER LEAGUE CHAMPION WINDY CITY THUNDERBOLTS

### 2007 GAME ATTENDANCE

TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
259,392	River City	100,556
196,134	Florence	99,333
206,102	Windy City	81,586
155,894	Chillicothe	84,383
131,707	Kalamazoo	54,950
113,930	Slippery Rock	19,253
1,503,220		
(11 games)	18,232	
ndance at Florence	4,483	
	259,392 196,134 206,102 155,894 131,707 113,930 1,503,220 (11 games)	259,392 River City 196,134 Florence 206,102 Windy City 155,894 Chillicothe 131,707 Kalamazoo 113,930 Slippery Rock 1,503,220 (11 games) 18,232

### 2007 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

18	Mike Breyman	Gateway Grizzlies
2B	Ralph Santana	Southern Illinois Miners
3B	Joe Ramos	Kalamazoo Kings
SS	Travis Garcia	Chillicothe Paints
OF	Jon Armitage	Gateway Grizzlies
OF	Mike Coles	Windy City ThunderBolts
OF	Jason James	<b>Rockford RiverHawks</b>
C	Mike Russell	Kalamazoo Kings
DH	Dustin Roberts	Gateway Grizzlies
SP	Aaron Ledbetter	Washington Wild Things
RP	Matt Petty	Windy City ThunderBolts
Morgan Burkhart Award	Travis Garcia	Chillicothe Paints
Brian Tollberg Award	Aaron Ledbetter	Washington Wild Things
Jason Simontacchi Award	Ryan Basham	Florence Freedom
Roger Hanners Award	Andy Haines	Windy City ThunderBolts
Fran Riordan Citizenship Award	Steve Brook	River City Rascals

		DING								
	(MI	NIMUN	259	PLATE	APPEA	RANC	ES)			
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	38	HR	RBI	SB
Watson, Reggie	Flo	.357	221	45	79	14	3	2	28	28
James, Jason	Rck	.345	322	44	111	23	1	7	61	5
Santana, Ralph	SL	.342	368	67	126	21	2	3	47	25
Armitage, Jon	Gat	.336	304	56	102	22	2	18	59	11
Hagen, Matt	Rck	.335	352	59	118	23	1	13	62	27
Long, Wes	WC	.334	353	74	118	36	3	7	67	31
Breyman, Mike	Gat	.331	335	70	111	22	0	22	70	1
Coles, Mike	WC	.330	342	68	113	16	5	9	69	27
Hall, Chris	SL	.318	349	62	111	20	3	13	55	1
Sauls, Matt	Rck	.318	233	50	74	10	3	7	44	14
Blacken, Beau	Flo	.316	361	76	114	26	2	15	73	3
Grose, Jeff	Kal	.314	344	65	108	14	3	5	45	13
Holdren, Steve	Gat	.311	331	72	103	16	8	23	73	0
Carter, Josh	Kal	.311	351	65	109	21	1	12	75	6
Scanzano, Mike	SL	.309	291	45	90	7	0	1	21	3
Orr, Sam	TC	.309	288	58	89	20	0	6	44	5
Garcia, Travis	Chi	.307	391	73	120	27	2	19	70	12
Knapp, Robbie	Wsh	.306	310	54	95	24	1	13	66	5
Ledbetter, Curtis	TC	.306	304	46	93	19	1	6	44	1
Messner, Nathan	Wsh	.306	324	62	99	19	0	10	51	3
Kalter, Zach	TC	.304	368	49	112	21	4	3	51	8
Cantu, Adrian	Chi	.303	330	60	100	18	1	13	61	1
Horn, Josh	WC	.302	301	64	91	19	0	7	53	9
Ramos, Joe	Kal	.302	378	70	114	34	7	5	52	32
Roberts, Dustin	Gat	.301	356	88	107	19	0	29	73	6

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	H.	BB	SO
Flanigan, Ryan	Chi	9-2	1.28	40	4	77.1	41	9	56
Watson, Tanner	Rck	11-3	2.17	15	0	103.2	64	31	77
McCullogh, Brian	Flo/Chi	5-3	2.20	31	0	77.2	65	32	51
Phillips, Shawn	WC	8-4	2.45	19	0	121.1	107	12	100
Ledbetter, Aaron	Wsh	14-2	2.71	21	0	129.2	108	25	103
Hunton, Brock	WC	10-6	2.96	21	0	100.1	74	36	98
Dessau, Erik	Gat	14-2	3.07	20	0	138.0	140	31	91
Phillips, William	WC	8-5	3.09	20	0	116.1	120	33	80
Cline, Zach	SR	10-6	3.10	19	0	110.1	98	42	85
Jordan, Justin	Evn	6-8	3.13	19	0	123.2	126	23	96
Fussell, Eric	WC	12-2	3.26	19	0	113.1	108	26	66
Hollenbeck, Jon	Wsh	6-4	3.41	22	0	95.0	83	20	74
Bruns, Josh	Flo	5-2	3.65	15	0	91.1	85	34	86
Mann, Sam	Kal	6-2	3.65	15	0	86.1	88	26	55
Little, Chris	Gat/SIL	8-8	3.80	22	0	109.0	106	36	82
Tisone, Nick	SIL	8-3	3.82	19	0	127.1	121	36	79
Long, Jeff	Kal	11-5	3.85	20	0	140.1	140	40	78
Fogelson, Scott	Kal/Flo	6-7	3.90	19	0	92.1	102	47	69
Cochran, Tom	Wsh	6-8	3.90	20	0	115.1	99	51	93
Cunningham, Perry	Chi	11-5	3.98	21	0	126.2	141	31	76

		16/	111 1		пu				
Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Gateway	.286	3244	598	928	167	20	164	566	49
Southern Illinois	.282	3317	506	936	162	17	73	446	62
Rockford	.279	3172	484	886	178	18	59	438	120
Windy City	.279	3248	566	905	182	19	61	494	160
Florence	.277	3316	512	917	168	17	65	472	60
Kalamazoo	.270	3248	536	877	185	21	88	491	104
River City	.270	3201	485	863	166	14	85	442	70
Traverse City	.264	3226	494	853	158	19	46	437	90
Washington	.264	3079	496	812	144	35	89	453	136
Chillicothe	.259	3256	480	843	185	18	73	431	89
Evansville	.241	3114	405	750	132	13	43	353	104
Slippery Rock	.238	3079	321	732	129	11	47	290	43

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Windy City	68-28	3.63	4	33	843.0	767	330	698
Washington	55-40	4.00	5	28	817.1	766	342	705
Rockford	52-43	4.14	7	27	813.1	765	372	626
Gateway	64-29	4.26	2	24	823.0	865	324	618
Chillicothe	47-49	4.35	6	25	845.0	800	357	574
Evansville	34-62	4.35	7	19	826.2	902	292	687
Traverse City	46-50	4.37	4	10	848.1	886	306	628
Kalamazoo	51-45	4.65	11	22	832.2	868	378	617
Southern Illinois	49-47	4.70	6	20	852.0	913	355	529
Florence	42-54	4.81	7	7	861.1	967	409	704
Slippery Rock	29-66	4.98	3	17	790.0	841	388	508
River City	36-60	5.61	10	22	814.1	962	407	622

### TEAM FIELDING

Team	PCT.	G	PO	A	E	TC	DP
Windy City	.976	96	2529	965	85	3579	77
Southern Illinois	.974	96	2556	1074	97	3727	56
Evansville	.973	96	2480	1000	97	3577	74
Washington	.972	95	2452	938	97	3487	79
Chillicothe	.972	96	2535	1065	105	3705	76
Gateway	.968	93	2469	1028	115	3612	91
Traverse City	.968	96	2545	1099	122	3766	82
Florence	.967	96	2584	1010	122	3716	84
Kalamazoo	.967	96	2498	995	120	3613	89
Slippery Rock	.965	95	2370	974	121	3465	68
Rockford	.962	95	2440	1040	138	3618	82
River City	.959	96	2443	942	144	3529	68

### CLUB RECORDS

HOME RECORD				ROAD	ROAD RECORD					
Team	W	L	PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.			
Gateway	36	12	.750	Windy City	34	14	.708			
Windy City	34	14	.708	Gateway	28	17	.622			
Washington	35	15	.700	Kalamazoo	26	21	.553			
Chillicothe	30	18	.625	Rockford	22	25	.468			
Rockford	30	18	.625	Washington	20	25	.444			
Southern III.	31	21	.596	Southern III.	18	26	.409			
Florence	28	22	.560	Traverse City	18	27	.400			
Traverse City	28	23	.549	Chillicothe	17	31	.354			
Kalamazoo	25	24	.510	Florence	14	32	.304			
River City	25	26	.490	Slippery Rock	19	46	.292			
Evansville	21	27	.438	Evansville	13	35	.271			
Slippery Rock	10	20	.333	River City	11	34	.244			

### 2006 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

59 58 57 47	L 37 37 39 49	.615 .611 .594 .490	GB .5 2.0 12.0
38	56	.404	20.0
<b>W</b> 49	L 47	PCT.	GB
46 42 41 40	50 52 54 56	.479 .447 .432 .417	3.0 6.0 7.5 9.0
	59 58 57 47 38 <b>W</b> 49 46 42	59         37           58         37           57         39           47         49           38         56           W         L           49         47           46         50           42         52           41         54	58         37         .611           57         39         .594           47         49         .490           38         56         .404           W         L         PCT.           49         47         .510           46         50         .479           42         52         .447           41         54         .432

### 2006 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5) Chillicothe defeated Washington (3 games to 1) Evansville defeated Rockford (3 games to 2) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Evansville defeated Chillicothe (3 games to 0) 2006 Frontier League Champion Evansville Otters 2006 GAME ATTENDANCE CLUB TOTAL CLUB TOTAL

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Chillicothe	86,682	River City	109,816
Evansville	130,212	Rockford	115,776
Florence	89,969	Traverse City	203,574
Gateway	182,124	Washington	152,805
Kalamazoo	119,530	Windy City	70,907

### LEAGUE TOTAL - 1,261,395

Playoff Attendance (12 games) – 21,349 All-Star Game at Evansville – 4,853

### 2006 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

- 1B Jeff Goldbach Evansville Otters
- 2B Paul Rutgers Chillicothe Paints
- 3B Pat Peavey Washington Wild Things
- SS Travis Garcia Chillicothe Paints
- OF Chris Carter Washington Wild Things
- OF Ian Church Kalamazoo Kings
- OF Chris Sidick Washington Wild Things
- C Lance Koenig Washington Wild Things
- DH Justin Carroll Kalamazoo Kings
- SP Tony Casoli Traverse City Beach Bums
- RP Brian Beuning Windy City ThunderBolts

Morgan Burkhart Award – Ian Church – Kalamazoo Kings Brian Tollberg Award – Tony Casoli – Traverse City Beach Burns Jason Simontacchi Award – Kurt Hartfelder – Chillicothe Paints Roger Hanners Award – John Massarelli – Washington Wild Things Fran Riordan Award – Mike Breyman – Gateway Grizzlies

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Baker, Casey	Kal	.333	264	30	88	18	2	2	25	7
Church, Ian	Kal	.317	379	77	120	38	1	31	78	5
Carter, Chris	Wsh	.314	309	61	97	9	6	8	48	7
Breyman, Mike	Gat	.310	294	48	91	17	2	12	55	2
Johnson, Nick	Rck	.307	349	40	107	26	3	3	47	17
Goldbach, Jeff	Evn	.306	353	56	108	21	1	17	69	11
Sidick, Chris	Wsh	.300	393	64	118	12	16	6	41	31
Edwards, Matt	Evn	.300	327	51	98	26	4	12	54	3
Johnson, Taylor	Gat/Chi	.299	321	50	96	28	1	7	56	13
Wirth, Rob	Gat	.296	270	43	80	12	0	12	44	2
Vericker, Brad	TC	.294	228	37	67	13	0	9	44	3
Batkoski, Nick	TC	.291	358	54	104	17	1	7	68	10
Garcia, Travis	Chi	.289	350	48	101	26	1	11	66	7
Cooksey, Matt	Chi/Flo	.288	250	55	72	8	1	1	21	38
Anthonsen, Joe	Rck	.287	342	45	98	16	2	0	39	22
Seratelli, Anth.	WC	.286	248	48	71	7	7	6	39	28
Pirman, Pete	Kal	.286	360	58	103	25	1	11	46	27
Rutgers, Paul	Chi	.285	281	42	80	12	3	7	36	14

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	sv	IP	н	BB	so
Hartfelder, Kurt	Chi	10-5	1.67	18	0	118.1	103	27	67
Spragg, Stephen	Wsh	6-7	2.09	43	4	81.2	63	33	37
Cunningham, Perry	Chi	9-6	2.30	20	0	129.0	95	33	83
Casoli, Tony	TC	13-3	2.44	19	0	144.0	131	25	85
Ledbetter, Aaron	RC/Wsh	8-7	2.53	21	0	156.2	141	28	97
Pillsbury, Chris	Evn	6-4	2.71	18	0	109.2	112	53	96
Stanley, Pat	Wsh	8-4	2.72	22	0	135.2	101	53	111
Moenter, Curtis	Flo/Chi	10-7	2.75	37	7	85.0	65	51	75
Roper, Derek	Rck	6-7	2.79	19	0	125.2	115	25	101
Bauer, Garrett	Rck	6-5	2.82	19	0	121.1	94	55	85
Watson, Tanner	Rck	8-5	2.85	17	0	107.1	99	27	66
Gehring, Ryan	TC	7-5	2.98	18	0	120.2	126	26	57
Palmer, Luke	Chi	4-3	3.04	24	1	91.2	73	41	73
Restivo, Matt	Evn	5-5	3.16	15	0	88.1	93	36	58
Cochran, Tom	Wsh	8-5	3.25	22	0	127.1	111	44	105
Bowlin, Jason	Flo	5-9	3.28	19	0	129.0	107	46	71
McClellan, Robbie	TC	8-5	3.31	18	0	100.2	85	30	80
Roush, Nathan	Gat	6-5	3.49	19	1	118.2	99	38	73
Fogelson, Scott	Kal	6-4	3.53	25	0	91.2	86	39	84
Soja, Steve	Gat	8-7	3.55	20	0	129.1	134	41	54
Haggerty, Jake	Evn	5-4	3.67	20	0	98.0	97	52	68
Shippey, Steve	TC	8-5	3.77	20	3	90.2	85	23	61
Simms, Preston	WC	5-9	3.80	19	0	116.0	123	61	69
Trevino, Toro	WC	7-3	3.86	15	0	95.2	85	31	68
Devalk, Dane	Kal	7-5	3.92	20	0	124.0	127	29	92
Goins, Mitch	Flo	7-7	3.95	20	0	120.2	128	44	61

### 2006 FRONTIER LEAGUE TEAM BATTING

		16.6	N D	ALL	me				
Team	Avg.	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Washington	.272	3348	524	912	149	58	58	477	120
Kalamazoo	.266	3247	465	865	167	17	109	424	100
Gateway	.262	3123	433	818	150	14	67	389	76
Traverse City	.260	3187	443	828	132	14	41	401	113
River City	.258	3164	437	815	147	12	56	387	90
Rockford	.255	3189	407	813	143	11	43	362	158
Evansville	.251	3176	401	797	132	14	56	361	87
Chillicothe	.250	3014	417	754	137	18	61	376	131
Windy City	.245	3164	415	774	127	23	40	372	157
Florence	.240	3101	361	743	125	10	36	324	69

### TEAM PITCHING

W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
58-37	2.84	8	29	829.0	683	345	609
46-50	3.28	- 4	21	842.0	792	373	663
49-47	3.31	6	22	857.1	819	307	605
59-37	3.45	7	27	862.0	790	338	607
57-39	3.75	12	26	848.0	839	248	570
38-56	4.11	7	15	831.2	789	415	556
41-54	4.31	2	27	846.2	853	450	667
40-56	4.39	9	20	823.1	877	307	524
42-52	4.47	8	28	814.2	816	379	575
47-49	4.63	5	23	835.2	861	389	601
	58-37 46-50 49-47 59-37 57-39 38-56 41-54 40-56 42-52	58-37         2.84           46-50         3.28           49-47         3.31           59-37         3.45           57-39         3.75           38-56         4.11           41-54         4.31           40-56         4.39           42-52         4.47	58-37         2.84         8           46-50         3.28         4           49-47         3.31         6           59-37         3.45         7           57-39         3.75         12           38-56         4.11         7           41-54         4.31         2           40-56         4.39         9           42-52         4.47         8	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	58-37         2.84         8         29         829.0           46-50         3.28         4         21         842.0           49-47         3.31         6         22         857.1           59-37         3.45         7         27         862.0           57-39         3.75         12         26         848.0           38-56         4.11         7         15         831.2           41-54         4.31         2         27         846.2           40-56         4.39         9         20         823.1           42-52         4.47         8         28         814.2	58-37         2.84         8         29         829.0         683           46-50         3.28         4         21         842.0         792           49-47         3.31         6         22         857.1         819           59-37         3.45         7         27         862.0         790           57-39         3.75         12         26         848.0         839           38-56         4.11         7         15         831.2         789           41-54         4.31         2         27         846.2         853           40-56         4.39         9         20         823.1         877           42-52         4.47         8         28         814.2         816	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

TEAM FIELDING											
Team	PCT.	G	PO	Α	E	TC	DP				
Traverse City	.979	96	2544	1151	79	3774	85				
Washington	.976	96	2586	1064	88	3738	87				
Florence	.973	95	2495	969	97	3561	64				
Windy City	.970	95	2540	1002	110	3652	79				
Rockford	.969	96	2572	1012	114	3698	88				
Kalamazoo	.969	96	2507	1033	114	3654	74				
Evansville	.966	96	2526	1072	125	3723	84				
River City	.966	96	2470	1032	125	3627	74				
Chillicothe	.966	95	2487	956	123	3566	68				
Gateway	.964	95	2444	1032	128	3604	88				

### CLUB RECORDS

HOME	RECO	RD	ROAD RECORD						
Team	W	L PCT.	Team	W	L	PCT.			
Chillicothe	37	13 .740	Washington	27	21	.563			
Traverse City	32	16 .667	Traverse City	25	23	.521			
Washington	32	16 .667	Chillicothe	21	24	.467			
Evansville	31	17 .646	Kalamazoo	22	26	.458			
River City	27	21 .563	Rockford	22	26	.458			
Rockford	27	21 .563	Gateway	21	28	.429			
Florence	26	21 .553	Windy City	20	28	.417			
Kalamazoo	25	23 .521	Evansville	15	33	.313			
Gateway	21	24 .467	River City	13	35	.271			
Windy City	21	26 .447	Florence	12	35	.255			

## 2005 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

EAST DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
Washington	62	32	.663	
Chillicothe	53	42	.558	10.0
Florence	53	42	.558	10.0
Evansville	52	43	.547	11.0
Ohio Valley	46	49	.484	17.0
Richmond	39	56	.411	24.0
WEST DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Kalamazoo	53	43	.552	
Rockford	51	45	.531	2.0
Gateway	49	47	.510	4.0
River City	42	52	.447	10.0
Windy City	39	57	.406	14.0
Mid-Missouri	31	63	.330	21.0

2005 PL AYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Chillicothe defeated Washington (3 games to 2) Kalamazoo defeated Rockford (3 games to 1) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Kalamazoo defeated Chillicothe (3 games to 2) 2005 Frontier League Champion

#### Kalamazoo Kings

#### 2005 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Chillicothe	85,667	Ohio Valley	11,066
Evansville	136,941	Richmond	47,417
Florence	94,191	River City	108,928
Gateway	177,353	Rockford	103,248
Kalamazoo	132,909	Washington	159,857
Mid-Missouri	46,617	Windy City	78,011

LEAGUE TOTAL - 1,182,205

Playoff Attendance (14 games) – 26,539 All-Star Game at Washington – 3,595

#### 2005 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

- 1B Thomari Story-Harden -Gateway Grizzlies
- 2B Nick Batkoski Ohio Valley Redcoats
- 3B Travis Garcia Ohio Valley Redcoats
- SS Jose Rodriguez Chillicothe Paints
- OF Mike Arbinger Washington Wild Things
- OF Mike Galloway Florence Freedom
- OF Pete Pirman --Kalamazoo Kings
- C Ben Margalski Gateway Grizzlies
- B Justin Schuda Windy City ThunderBolts
- SP John Martinez Chillicothe Paints
- RP Jim Popp Washington Wild Things

MORGAN BURKHART AWARD – Pete Pirman – Kalamazoo BRIAN TOLLBERG AWARD – John Martinez – Chillicothe JASON SIMON TACCHI AWARD – Nick Batkoski – Ohio Valley ROGER HANNERS AWARD – Mark Mason – Ohio Valley FRAN RIORDAN CITIZENSHIP AWARD – Randy McGarvey – Washington

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 259 PLATE APPEARANCES)												
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB		
Rodriguez, Jose	CHC	.380	379	71	144	23	3	5	36	17		
Rosario, Olmo	RCK	.373	330	69	123	17	6	11	52	11		
Bonilla, Clemente	WCY	.371	286	47	106	22	1	2	35	20		
Breyman, Mike	GWY	.365	296	58	108	21	0	18	72	4		
Story-Harden, Thomari	MMS-GWY	.355	293	78	104	22	0	18	75	5		
Pirman, Pete	KZO	.347	409	82	142	21	3	23	100	35		
Galloway, Mike	FLO	.344	349	73	120	18	1	24	71	10		
Downing, Juan	EVN-CHC	.340	262	44	89	19	0	9	61	3		
Metheny, Brent	MMS	.336	351	74	118	28	1	12	77	15		
Batkoski, Nick	OHV	.336	262	58	88	19	2	16	56	0		
Madrid, Mike	RIV	.334	356	54	119	17	0	18	85	2		
Garcia, Travis	OHV	.332	374	72	124	39	0	12	70	7		
Reese, Mike	RIC	.328	338	67	111	21	3	10	41	11		
Koenig, Lance	WSH	.323	387	77	125	26	4	3	56	18		
Brown, Tim	KZO	.323	347	71	112	31	0	16	71	4		
Johnson, Nick	WCY-RCK	.322	382	64	123	27	1	10	72	3		
Arbinger, Mike	WSH	.317	366	72	116	29	8	12	88	6		
Ramistella, John	CHC	.317	357	83	113	20	4	20	73	32		
Hall, Trevor	FLO	.316	380	70	120	28	0	23	79	0		
Schutt, Doug	RCK-WCY	.316	380	82	120	20	3	10	42	45		
Gravley, Nathan	RIC	.314	283	48	89	17	2	5	29	11		
Martin, Steve	EVN-CHC	.312	346	71	108	22	3	12	41	23		
Blacken, Beau	CHC-EVN	.310	348	62	108	16	0	13	57	6		

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 77 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Beuning, Brian	KZO	5-2	2.59	54	1	90.1	77	24	77
Blackard, Cody	EVN	6-4	2.93	12	0	80.0	77	29	49
Ledbetter, Aaron	RIV	12-5	2.93	19	0	135.0	138	34	114
Simpson, Andre	EVN	7-5	2.99	18	0	111.1	100	56	138
Foster, Ben	EVN	9-5	2.99	20	0	141.1	123	41	108
Martinez, John	CHC	16-4	3.11	23	0	159.0	163	20	91
Beshears, Josh	KZO	13-3	3.12	19	0	130.0	112	40	136
Posey, Joel	FLO	8-2	3.14	20	0	132.0	118	65	144
Douglass, Ryan	WSH	11-3	3.25	19	0	119.0	124	16	63
Kroll, Brian	EVN	6-5	3.45	20	1	99.0	104	39	76
Soja, Steve	MMS	5-8	3.48	22	0	95.2	106	26	58
Smith, Brandon	GWY	12-5	3.55	19	0	131.2	123	43	119
Bowlin, Jason	FLO	10-4	3.66	18	0	118.0	127	43	84
Moenter, Curtis	RIC-FLO	5-4	3.79	35	0	109.1	109	42	118
Keating, Brian	RIV	3-9	3.79	18	0	111.2	103	49	107
Renault, Nick	MMS	9-7	3.85	26	0	138.0	155	63	145
Casoli, Tony	RIC	8-6	3.89	20	0	134.1	155	24	109
Pillsbury, Chris	EVN	8-7	3.90	17	0	113.0	109	39	85
Dennison, Mike	FLO	9-7	3.94	22	0	141.2	163	36	103
Cunningham, Perry	CHC	10-6	3.98	22	0	140.1	151	27	92
Olson, Justin	RCK	6-5	3.99	21	0	115.0	118	29	114

### 2005 FRONTIER LEAGUE TEAM BATTING

		TEA		ATT	1112				
Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR		SB
WASHINGTON	.298	3357	645	999	166	46	68	567	140
CHILLICOTHE	.293	3241	536	950	159	17	96	487	115
ROCKFORD	.292	3372	564	986	190	20	68	504	56
KALAMAZ00	.284	3358	576	955	187	19	82	519	128
GATEWAY WINDY CITY	.280 .279	3265 3371	565 502	914 939	161 173	9 11	112 78	516 460	63 128
MID-MISSOURI	.279	3231	512	898	171	7	77	400	57
EVANSVILLE	.275	3270	514	898	160	14	80	459	86
RICHMOND	.273	3314	534	906	166	15	111	475	68
OHIO VALLEY	.268	3253	525	873	167	19	81	462	49
RIVER CITY	.266	3205	511	854	172	9	89	461	100
FLORENCE	.263	3272	521	861	182	12	124	482	42
		TEAN	ИΡ	TCH	ING				
Team	W-L	ERA	_	SV	IP	H		BB	SO
EVANSVILLE	52-43	3.44	8	24	849.2	80		331	703
WASHINGTON	63-32	4.22	5	34	851.1	92	2	257	533
ROCKFORD	51-45	4.25	6	23	840.2	89	1	281	679
KALAMAZ00	53-43		12	15	851.2	86	5	359	738
FLORENCE	53-42	4.35	2	25	852.0	91		371	769
CHILLICOTHE	53-42		10	17	832.2	93		308	587
RIVER CITY	42-52	4.77	5	14	812.0	91		330	632
RICHMOND	39-56	5.13	8	15	836.2	96		314	642
OHIO VALLEY WINDY CITTY	46-49 39-57		11 3	17 17	818.0 848.0	91 93		361 434	546 577
GATEWAY	49-47		12	21	831.0	95		369	650
MID-MISSOURI	31-63	6.25	10	11	815.0	10		424	613
		TEA							
				1772					
Teen		0.7	0	00				70	00
Team EVANSVILLE		PCT.	<b>G</b> 05	P0	A	2 1	E	<b>TC</b> 3774	DP 103
EVANSVILLE		970	95	2549	111		113	3774	103
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY	-	970 970	95 96	2549 2493	111 922	2 1	113 107	3774 3522	103 84
EVANSVILLE	-	970	95	2549	111	2 1	113	3774	103
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE		970 970 969	95 96 95	2549 2493 2556	111 922 107	2 1 7 1 18 1	113 107 115	3774 3522 3748	103 84 101
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO		970 970 969 968	95 96 95 96	2549 2493 2556 2555	111 922 107 100	2 1 7 1 18 1 6 1	113 107 115 117	3774 3522 3748 3680	103 84 101 84
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY		970 970 969 968 967 964 963	95 96 95 95 95 95 94	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436	111 922 107 100 926	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 3 1	113 107 115 117 114 131	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494	103 84 101 84 91 92 62
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON		970 970 969 968 967 964 963 963	95 96 95 95 95 95 94 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554	111 922 107 100 926 963 980 108	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 3 1 3 1 3 1	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 131	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND		970 969 968 967 964 963 963 963 959	95 96 95 95 95 95 94 95 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2510	111 922 107 100 920 963 980 108 108	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 7 1 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY		970 970 969 968 967 964 963 963 963 959 958	95 96 95 95 95 95 94 95 95 95 96	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2554 2510 2544	111 922 107 100 926 965 980 108 103 100	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI		970 969 968 967 964 963 963 959 959 958 957	95 96 95 95 95 94 95 95 95 95 96 94	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2510 2544 2455	111 922 107 100 926 962 980 108 103 100 986	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 6 1 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156 153	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 89
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY		970 970 969 968 967 964 963 963 959 959 958 957 957	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 94 96	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2554 2544 2445 2522	1111 922 107 100 926 980 108 103 100 982 980	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 6 1 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI		970 969 968 967 964 963 963 959 959 958 957	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 94 96	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2510 2544 2455	1111 922 107 100 926 980 108 103 100 982 980	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 6 1 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156 153	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 89
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD	RECOR	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 959 958 957 957 957 957	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 94 96	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2554 2544 2445 2522	1111 922 107 100 926 980 108 103 100 980 980 980	2 1 7 1 8 1 6 1 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 141 152 156 153 158	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 89 90
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team	RECOR	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 959 958 957 957 957 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	95 96 95 95 95 94 95 95 95 96 94 96 96	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2510 2544 245 2522 000	1111 922 107 100 963 980 108 103 100 982 980 <b>105</b>	2 1 77 1 18 1 6 1 3 1 3 1 10 1 13 1 11 1 10 1 2 1 1 0 1 2 1 7 7 8 0 1 1 7 8 0 1 1 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 153 155 155 158	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580 3660	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 89 90 <b>PCT.</b>
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON	RECOR W 35	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 959 958 957 957 957 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 94 95 95 96 94 96 94 96 96	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2510 2544 2455 2522 COC Tear WAS	111 922 107 100 926 980 108 103 100 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 9	2 1 77 1 18 1 6 1 3 1 3 1 13 1 13 1 10 1 2 1 0 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 152 155 155 158 <b>D RE</b> 28	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580 3660 3580 3660	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 89 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE	RECOR W 35 32	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 959 958 957 957 <b>CLUI</b> <b>CLUI</b> 15 .70 19 .62	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 94 95 95 96 94 95 96 <b>3</b> R	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2510 2544 2445 2522 CO CO Tear WAS KAL/	111 922 107 100 926 980 108 103 100 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 9	2 1 77 1 18 1 6 1 3 1 3 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 13 1	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> <b>W</b> 28 21 2 2	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580 3660 3660	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 89 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE	RECOR W 35 32 31	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 959 959 959 957 957 0 0 0 0 0 15 .70 15 .70 15 .20 .60	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 94 96 <b>7</b> 8	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2510 2544 2445 2522 CO Tear WAS KAL/ CHIL	1111 922 107 100 926 980 108 103 100 980 980 108 980 100 980 980 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1	2 1 77 1 18 1 65 1 65 1 73 1 13 1 11 1 10 1 2 1 10 1 2 1 10 1 10 1 10 1	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 26 21 22 2	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580 3660 3580 3660 <b>CORD</b> <b>/</b> L 8 17 8 18 5 19	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 .568
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 1	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 963 959 959 959 957 957 0 <b>CLUI</b> 15 15 .70 10 .62 20 .60 10 .56 <sup>8</sup>	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 94 95 96 94 96 94 96 96 7 8 5 5	2549 2493 2555 2454 2454 2436 2555 2454 2510 2544 2510 2544 2522 CO C	1111 922 107 100 926 963 980 108 103 100 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 9	2 1 77 1 18 1 65 1 65 1 73 1 13 1 11 1 10 1 2 1 10 1 2 1 10 1 10 1 10 1	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> <u>W</u> 28 21 22 22 22 22	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580 3660 <b>CORD</b> <b>/</b> L 8 17 8 18 5 19 3 21	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> 622 609 568 523
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 1 28	970 970 969 967 964 963 963 959 958 957 957 <b>CLUI</b> <b>CLUI</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 20 .56 23 .54	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 94 95 95 94 95 96 94 96 94 96 7 8 5 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2436 2554 2554 2554 2554 2522 2500 2544 2445 2522 2500 2544 2455 2522 2500 2544 2455 2522 2500 2544 2456 2555 2454 2456 2554 2456 2554 2456 2554 2456 2554 2456 2554 2554	111 922 107 100 926 980 980 103 100 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 9	2 1 77 1 18 1 56 1 33 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 10 1 10 1 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 26 21 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3778 3693 3700 3580 3660 <b>CORD</b> <b>L</b> 8 17 8 18 5 19 3 21 3 22	103 84 101 84 91 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 .523 .511
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE ROCKFORD	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 13 128 28	970 970 969 967 963 963 963 959 958 957 957 <b>CLUI</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 10 .56 23 .54 24 .53	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 94 95 95 96 94 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2498 2498 2498 2554 2554 2554 2554 2552 2522 COC Tean WAS KAL/ CHUC CHUC CATE EVAN	111 922 107 100 926 980 980 103 100 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 980 9	2 1 77 1 18 1 56 1 33 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 10 1 10 1 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 131 141 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 26 21 22 22 22 22 21 22 22 22 22 22 22	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3592 3592 3592 3593 3778 3693 3778 3693 3580 3580 3580 3580 5600 <b>/ L</b> 8 17 8 18 5 19 3 22 1 23	103 84 101 84 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 5.68 .523 .521 .477
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE ROCKFORD GATEWAY	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 13 28 28 26	970 970 969 969 967 964 963 959 958 957 957 <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 10 .56 23 .54 24 .53 25 .51	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 94 95 96 94 95 95 96 94 95 95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2498 2498 2498 2554 2552 2522 2522 2522 2522 2522 252	1111 922 1077 1000 926 968 988 103 100 988 103 100 988 988 103 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	2 17 18 1 18 1 18 1 10 10 1 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3592 3592 3592 3592 3592 3592 3592	103 84 101 84 92 62 83 75 89 89 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 .568 .523 1.477 .477
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE ROCKFORD GATEWAY KALAMAZOO	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 1 28 26 25	970 970 969 969 967 964 963 963 959 959 957 <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 10 .56 23 .54 24 .53 25 .51 25 .50	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2452 2522 2522 2522 2522 2522 252	1111 922 107 100 926 963 986 108 103 100 986 986 986 986 986 986 986 986 986 986	2 1 77 1 18 1 66 1 33 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 13 1 10 1 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 22 23 22 22 21 21 3	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3572 3778 3693 3770 3580 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3690 3690 3690 3690 3690 3690 369	103 84 101 84 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 .568 .523 .511 .477 .475
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE ROCKFORD GATEWAY KALAMAZOO RIVER CITY	RECOR 35 32 31 13 1 28 28 26 25 23	970 970 969 969 967 964 963 959 959 957 <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 10 . 56 23 .54 24 .53 25 .50 23 .50	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 96 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2436 2554 2554 2554 2552 2554 2552 2554 2552 2554 2554 2552 2554 2554 2554 2555 2555 2555 2555 2555 2454 2456 2555 2555	1111 922 1077 1000 926 968 988 103 100 988 103 100 988 988 103 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	2 1 77 1 18 1 66 1 33 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 141 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 22 23 22 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3700 3693 3693 3700 3690 3600 <b>V L</b> 8 17 8 18 8 17 8 18 8 17 8 18 12 3 21 22 3 22 29 9 29	103 84 101 84 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 .568 .523 .511 .477 .478 .396
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE ROCKFORD GATEWAY KALAMAZOO	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 13 13 28 26 25 23 21	970 970 969 969 967 964 963 963 959 959 957 <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 10 .56 23 .54 24 .53 25 .51 25 .50	95 96 95 95 95 94 95 95 94 95 96 94 95 96 94 95 96 97 85 98 0 0 7 7 8 5 98 0 0 0 7 7	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2498 2498 2498 2498 2554 2554 2554 2554 2554 2554 2554 255	1111 922 107 1000 926 966 986 108 103 100 986 986 108 103 100 986 986 986 108 100 986 108 108 100 986 108 108 100 986 108 100 986 108 108 100 986 108 108 108 100 100 986 108 108 108 109 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	2 17 17 18 18 16 13 11 10 11 13 11 10 12 13 11 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 22 23 22 22 21 21 3	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3693 3770 3693 3770 3580 3693 3700 3580 3660 <b>/ L</b> 8 17 8 18 5 19 3 21 1 23 3 22 1 23 1 23 3 3 99 9 29 9 7 28	103 84 101 84 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> .622 .609 .568 .523 .511 .477 .475
EVANSVILLE GATEWAY FLORENCE KALAMAZOO OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE RIVER CITY WASHINGTON RICHMOND WINDY CITY MID-MISSOURI ROCKFORD HOME Team WASHINGTON FLORENCE EVANSVILLE OHIO VALLEY CHILLICOTHE ROCKFORD GATEWAY KALAMAZOO RIVER CITY RICHMOND	RECOR W 35 32 31 13 13 13 28 28 28 28 28 28 26 25 23 21 22	970 970 969 968 967 964 963 959 959 957 <b>CLU</b> <b>CLU</b> 15 .70 19 .62 20 .60 10 . 56 23 .54 24 .53 25 .51 25 .5	95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 96 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95	2549 2493 2556 2555 2454 2498 2498 2498 2498 2498 2554 2554 2554 2554 2554 2554 2554 255	1111 922 1077 100 926 963 986 986 986 988 988 988 988 988 988 988	2 17 17 18 18 16 13 11 10 11 13 11 10 12 13 11 10	113 107 115 117 114 131 152 156 153 158 <b>D RE</b> 22 23 22 21 21 3 3 19 17	3774 3522 3748 3680 3494 3592 3547 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3770 3693 3700 3580 3660 <b>/ L</b> 8 18 8 18 5 19 3 21 1 23 3 22 1 23 3 22 1 23 3 29 9 29 9 7 28 8 3 30	103 84 101 84 92 62 83 75 89 90 90 <b>PCT.</b> 622 609 568 523 511 477 477 477 478 836 6378

### 2004 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

W L Club PCT. GB Washington 62 34 .646 Rockford 59 37 .615 3.0 Gateway 56 38 .596 5.0 Evansville 54 42 .563 8.0 51 43 .543 10.0 River City Springfield/Ozark 52 44 .542 10.0 Kalamazoo 51 45 .531 11.0 Chillicothe 48 48 .500 14.0 Richmond 43 53 19.0 .448 Windy City 37 .394 24.0 57 Florence 31 65 .323 31.0 Mid-Missouri 28 66 .298 33.0

2004 PL AYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Evansville defeated Washington (3 games to 0) Rockford defeated Gateway (3 games to 2) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5) Rockford defeated Evansville (3 games to 0)

2004 Frontier League Champion Rockford Riverhawks

#### 2004 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Chillicothe	82,183	Richmond	46,019
Evansville	121,733	River City	185,333
Florence	68,250	Rockford	103,140
Gateway	217,500	Springfield/Ozark	67.028
Kalamazoo	135,654	Washington	154,963
Mid-Missouri	45,511	Windy City	67,397

#### LEAGUE TOTAL - 1,294,711

Playoff Attendance (11 games) 22,527 All-Star Game at River City – 4,630

#### 2004 ALL-STAR TEAM & AWARD WINNERS

- 1B Phil Warren Gateway Grizzlies
- 2B Brian Stoecklein Washington Wild Things
- 3B Greg Stevens Gateway Grizzlies
- SS Adrian Gascon Chillicothe Paints
- OF Richard Austin Rockford RiverHawks
- OF Jack Headley Washington Wild Things
- OF Fehlandt Lentini Kalamazoo Kings
- C Tony Cosentino Chillicothe Paints
- DH Trevor Hall Richmond Roosters
- SP Grant Williams Evansville Otters
- RP Chad Sosebee Richmond Roosters

MORGAN BURKHART AWARD – Richard Austin – Rockford RiverHawks BRIAN TOLLBERG AWARD – Chad Sosebee – Richmond Roosters JASON SIMON TACCHI AWARD – Kevin White – Richmond Roosters ROGER HANNERS AWARD – John Massarelli – Washington Wild Things FRAN RIORDAN CITIZENSHIP AWARD – Darryl Blaze – Kalamazoo Kings

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)												
Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB		
Austin, Richard	RCK	.359	290	71	104	20	1	15	77	22		
McEachran, Aaron	RCK	.332	331	67	110	23	1	11	62	1		
Williams, Patrick	WCY	.332	247	54	82	21	1	11	43	17		
Brisson, Dustin	CHC	.330	348	48	115	27	1	14	65	5		
Headley, Jack	WSH	.325	311	58	101	15	4	3	38	18		
Dreher, Doug	CHC	.324	370	52	120	28	0	2	51	6		
White, Kevin	RIC	.322	289	57	93	8	5	11	37	4		
Reese, Mike	RIC	.319	348	60	111	14	4	4	42	32		
Warren, Phil	GWY	.314	357	71	112	20	0	23	66	0		
Conner, Michael	RIV	.313	233	57	73	18	1	11	52	21		
Brown, Kevin	RIC	.311	305	67	95	18	0	23	68	12		
Hall, Trevor	WCY-RIC	.310	306	48	95	16	1	15	66	0		
Lentini, Fehlandt	KZO	.310	342	57	106	16	9	7	60	28		
Gascon, Adrian	CHC	.309	375	51	116	23	0	2	66	6		
Jackson, Brody	RIV	.309	333	66	103	20	3	12	54	51		
Elkouri, Shaff	RCK	.305	236	43	72	12	1	6	35	8		
Klosterman, Chris	RIV	.303	343	45	104	27	2	7	52	7		
Baker, Brian	WCY	.303	274	56	83	16	4	18	62	19		
Madrid, Mike	CHC-RIV	.299	334	55	100	19	0	19	86	5		
Hillman, Dustin	MMS	.299	331	56	99	16	2	6	47	10		
Arbinger, Michael	WSH	.299	355	71	106	27	2	6	51	6		
Blaze, Darryl	KZO	.298	356	74	106	12	5	2	25	27		
Trujillo, David	EVN	.297	300	41	89	18	3	6	53	1		
Stoecklein, Brian	WSH	.295	322	65	95	21	5	10	43	9		

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM67 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP H	BB	<b>S</b> 0	)
Sosebee, Chad	RIC	12-4	2.02	52	7	89.0	62	37	81
Hamilton, Mark	CHC	4-5	2.25	11	0	88.0	71	30	95
Lewis, Jeremy	EVN	9-4	2.47	20	0	134.2	132	29	120
Tomsu, Joshua	RCK	10-3	2.64	18	0	119.1	106	39	79
James, Frank	RCK	7-3	2.65	16	0	78.0	65	30	47
Dooley, Joe	GWY	10-3	2.75	19	0	127.2	116	47	102
Brook, Steven	RIV	10-2	2.95	22	1	106.2	89	22	92
Williams, Grant	EVN	10-2	2.97	19	0	130.1	95	47	119
Kesten, Michael	CHC	7-8	3.02	19	0	128.1	104	47	141
Beshears, Joshua	KZO	11-3	3.03	19	0	113.0	100	37	113
Naplin, Lee	KZO	7-3	3.08	19	1	96.1	91	39	80
Gits, Mike	CHC	6-3	3.11	47	2	81.0	92	19	49
Modica, Gregory	RIV	11-3	3.20	19	0	129.1	109	22	91
Wiltshire, Greg	KZO	7-5	3.23	30	1	92.0	88	43	80
Palmer, Adam	RCK-WSH	5-5	3.38	17	0	77.1	76	18	32
Schweitzer, Matt	RIC	6-5	3.40	29	5	79.1	73	20	70
Bennett, Jamie	SOZ	10-5	3.70	19	0	121.2	113	33	110
Fisher, Cody	SOZ	7-8	3.79	19	0	123.1	141	34	82
Villarreal, Luis	SOZ-WCY	6-5	3.84	17	0	98.1	107	42	82
Cunningham, Perry	CHC	7-4	3.98	20	1	101.2	114	26	74

### 2004 FRONTIER LEAGUE TEAM BATTING

		I E/A		ALL					
Team	Avg.	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Rockford	.289	3329	578	962	191	19	58	516	125
River City	.289	3227	592	931	189	18	112	547	185
Chillicothe	.285	3300	488	942	195	15	51	448	63
Gateway	.279	3226	525	899	179	12	113	485	76
Washington	.275	3174	544	872	156	23	71	492	66
Richmond	.274	3269	526	897	160	16	97	468	86
Evansville	.268	3157	495	846	143	22	64	443	76
Kalamazoo	.262	3181	487	835	155	22	70	443	108
Springfield/Ozark		3194	498	824	146	13	73	442	104
Windy City	.258	3087	465	796	154	15	70	407	145
Mid-Missouri	.252	3142	457	792	141	23	66	422	95
Florence	.249	3161	404	788	122	13	69	364	88
		TEAN	M PI	TCH	IING				
Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	H		BB	SO
Rockford	59-37	3.47	3	23	844.0	78	5	374	706
Chillicothe	48-48	4.02	17	22	842.2	89	2	286	721
Washington	62-34	4.06	4	33	813.2			265	585
Springfield/Ozark	52-44	4.10	5	21	833.1	85	9	325	695
Kalamazoo	51-45	4.13	8	23	833.2			382	720
Evansville	54-42	4.26	12	24	824.1	83	5	348	699
Gateway	56-38	4.30	5	27	825.0	82	6	334	785
River City	51-43	4.37	8	16	818.0	85	0	265	684
Richmond	43-53	5.21	5	17	827.0	90	0	371	646
Windy City	37-57	5.44	1	17	784.1	87	6	357	688
Florence	31-65	5.60	4	17	810.2	93	7	454	609
Mid-Missouri	28-66	6.49	5	11	799.1	99	0	414	641
		TEAI	ΜE	Ыſ	IING				
Teach									00
Team Carina Field (Oracle		PCT.	G	P	0	A 1090		E	DP
Springfield/Ozark		PCT. .973	<b>G</b> 96	P 25	0	1086		101	76
Springfield/Ozark Gateway		PCT. .973 .971	<b>G</b> 96 94	P 25 24	0 00 75	1086 854		101 99	76 77
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo		<b>PCT.</b> .973 .971 .971	<b>G</b> 96 94 96	25 24 25	0 00 75 01	1086 854 953		101 99 104	76 77 78
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville		<b>PCT.</b> .973 .971 .971 .971	<b>G</b> 96 94 96 96	25 24 25 24	0 00 75 01 73	1086 854 953 984		101 99 104 108	76 77 78 80
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969	<b>G</b> 96 94 96 96 94	25 24 25 24 25 24 24	0 00 75 01 73 54	1086 854 953 984 927		101 99 104 108 107	76 77 78 80 72
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969	<b>G</b> 96 94 96 96 94 96	25 24 25 24 25 24 24 24	0 00 75 01 73 54 41	1086 854 953 984 927 979		101 99 104 108 107 109	76 77 78 80 72 89
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .967	<b>G</b> 96 94 96 96 94 96	25 24 25 24 24 24 24 25	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003		101 99 104 108 107 109 120	76 77 78 80 72 89 77
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .967 .963	<b>G</b> 96 96 96 96 96 96	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 24 25 24	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963	6 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 24 24	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 24 25	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953	<b>G</b> 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 24 25 23	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28 98	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe		PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951	<b>G</b> 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 23 23 23	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri		PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953	<b>G</b> 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 24 25 23	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri	RECOR	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI	<b>G</b> 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 23 23 23	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53 <b>315</b> <b>53</b>	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City		PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 23 23 23	0 00 775 01 773 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53 53	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896		101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b>	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City	W	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUJ	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94	P 25 24 25 24 24 25 24 25 23 23 23 <b>CO</b>	0 00 775 01 773 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53 53	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	DRE	101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b>	76 77 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 81 68 76 52
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team	W 33	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI L PC1	G 96 94 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 8	P 25 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 23 5 CO 5 CO 5 Tea Was	0 00 775 01 773 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53 53	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REI	101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 18	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b>
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford	W 33 33	PCT. .973 .971 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .963 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI CLUI 15 .68	6 96 94 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 93 94 94 94 94 94 95 95 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	P 25 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 23 20 5 5 0 0 1 7 Ea CO 1 7 Ea CO 1 7 CO 1 7 CO 1 7 CO 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53 70 53 81 53 81 53 81 53 81 53 81 53 81 81 70 81 70 81 70 81 70 81 70 81 75 81 75 81 75 81 75 81 75 81 75 81 75 81 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )	101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 18 19	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> .617
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville	W 33 33 32	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI CLUI 15 .68 16 .67 16 .66	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 94 7 7	P 25 244 25 24 24 24 24 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 50 0 50 0 50 0 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	0 00 75 01 73 54 41 38 32 81 28 98 53 53 <b>115</b> <b>m</b> thington licothe away	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REU 29 28 26	101 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 <b>L</b> 9 18 9 19 9 20	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> .617 .596 565
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington	W 33 33 32 30	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI CLUI 15 .68 16 .67 16 .66 18 .62	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 95 75	P 255 24 25 24 24 24 25 23 23 23 23 (CO) Tea Was Chill Gate Roci	0 00 175 101 173 154 41 138 132 138 132 141 138 132 141 138 132 141 141 154 141 154 141 158 158 158 158 158 158 158 15	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REU 29 28 26 26	001 99 104 108 107 109 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CCORD</b> 1 <b>L</b> 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 183 19 5 20 5 22	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> .617 .565 .542
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo	W 33 33 32 30 29	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI CLUI 15 .68 16 .67 16 .66	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 95 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	P 255 24 25 24 24 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 25 00 Tea Was Chill Gate Roci Sprii	0 00 175 175 173 154 141 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REU 29 28 26 26	01 99 104 108 107 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 <b>L</b> ) 18 ) 18 ) 18 ) 18 ) 20 () 22 () 22 () 25 ) 25	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> .617 .596 565
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo River City	W 33 33 32 30 29 29	PCT. .973 .971 .971 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .961 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI CLUI CLUI CLUI CLUI CLUI CLUI	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94	P 255 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23	0 00 175 175 173 154 141 138 132 132 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 132 138 138 132 138 132 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REI 29 28 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	101 99 104 108 107 120 130 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 18 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 18 19 5 20 5 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> .617 .596 5.542 .479 .478
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo River City Springfield/Ozark	W 33 33 32 30 29 29 29	PCT. .973 .971 .971 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .963 .963 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI DL PC1 15 .68 16 .67 16 .66 18 .62 19 .60 19 .60	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94	P 255 24 25 24 25 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23	0 00 175 175 173 154 141 138 132 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REI 29 28 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	101 999 104 107 109 120 133 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 <b>L</b> 1 <b>B</b> 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 <b>E</b> 1 <b>CORD</b> 1 <b>E</b> 1 <b>E</b> 1 <b>E</b> 2 <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b> <b>E</b>	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> .617 .596 5.542 5.542 4.79 4.78 4.58
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo River City Springfield/Ozark Richmond	W 33 33 32 30 29 29 29 29 29 29 24	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .963 .963 .953 .951 CLUI CLUI CLUI CLUI 15 .68 16 .67 16 .66 18 .62 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 23 .51	G 96 94 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94	P 255 244 255 244 245 244 245 244 245 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 25 00 <b>Tea</b> Wass Chill Gate Rocci Sprii Gate Rocci Sprii Rive Evar Kala	0 00 175 175 173 154 141 138 132 181 138 132 181 138 138 138 138 138 138 138	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REI 29 28 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	101 999 104 107 109 120 133 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 <b>L</b> 9 18 9 19 9 20 6 22 9 24 2 26 2 26	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> 617 596 5.542 479 4.78 4.58 4.58
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo River City Springfield/Ozark Richmond Windy City	W 33 32 30 29 29 29 29 29 29 24 22	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .963 .963 .963 .951 CUU CUU CUU 15 .68 16 .66 18 .62 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 23 .51 24 .47	G 96 94 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 8 3 7 5 4 4 4 4 1 8	P 255 244 255 244 244 244 255 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233	0 00 175 175 173 173 154 141 138 132 181 128 198 133 128 198 133 128 198 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 13	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REI 29 28 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	101 999 104 107 109 120 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 183 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 183 195 20 5 22 24 22 24 22 24 22 24 23 25 24 20 30 30 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> 617 596 565 542 479 478 458 388
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo River City Springfield/Ozark Richmond Windy City Mid-Missouri	W 33 32 30 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 24 22 20	PCT. 973 971 970 969 969 963 963 963 961 953 951 CLU CLU CLU 15 .68 16 .67 16 .66 18 .62 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 23 .51 24 .47 26 .43	6 96 94 96 96 96 96 96 96 94 94 94 94 8 7 5 4 4 4 4 4 1 8 5	P 255 244 255 244 244 254 244 255 23 23 23 23 23 25 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	0 00 175 173 173 173 154 141 138 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 198 128 128 128 128 128 128 128 12	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAL</b>	D REI 29 28 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	101 999 104 107 109 120 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 18 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 1 18 19 5 2 20 5 2 24 2 26 2 26 2 26 2 26 2 26 2 3 3 3 3 3	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 52 <b>PCT.</b> 617 596 565 542 479 478 458 388 313
Springfield/Ozark Gateway Kalamazoo Evansville River City Washington Rockford Florence Richmond Chillicothe Mid-Missouri Windy City HOME I Team Rockford Washington Evansville Gateway Kalamazoo River City Springfield/Ozark Richmond Windy City	W 33 32 30 29 29 29 29 29 24 22 20 20 20	PCT. .973 .971 .970 .969 .969 .963 .963 .963 .963 .963 .963 .951 CUU CUU CUU 15 .68 16 .66 18 .62 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 19 .60 23 .51 24 .47	G 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	P 255 244 245 24 24 255 24 24 25 23 23 23 29 20 0 10 5 20 5 24 24 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 24 24 24 24 25 24 24 24 24 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 25 24 24 25 24 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 25 24 26 25 24 26 25 24 26 25 24 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	0 00 175 175 173 173 154 141 138 132 181 128 198 133 128 198 133 128 198 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 13	1086 854 953 984 927 979 1003 974 976 1009 952 896 <b>ROAI</b>	D REI 29 28 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	101 999 104 107 109 120 130 133 133 143 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 18 18 165 167 <b>CORD</b> 18 19 5 22 24 26 2 26 2 26 2 33 35	76 77 78 80 72 89 77 88 81 68 76 52 <b>PCT.</b> 617 596 565 542 479 478 458 388

### 2003 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS										
CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB						
Chillicothe	54	31	.635							
Washington	54	34	.614	1.5						
Evansville	51	37	.580	4.5						
Gateway	50	38	.568	5.5						
Richmond	50	39	.562	6.0						
Rockford	48	42	.533	8.5						
Kenosha	47	42	.528	9.0						
River City	43	47	.478	13.5						
Cook County	42	48	.467	14.5						
Kalamazoo	33	56	.371	23.0						
Mid-Missouri	33	57	.367	23.5						
Florence	27	61	.307	28.5						
20	103 DI AN	OFE DE	SI II TS							

2003 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Evansville defeated Chillicothe (2 games to 1) Gateway defeated Washington (2 games to 0) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Gateway defeated Evansville (3 games to 0)

#### 2003 Frontier League Champion Gateway Grizzlies

#### 2003 GAME ATTENDANCE

-											
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL								
Chillicothe	58,755	Kenosha	25,499								
Cook County	60,481	Mid-Missouri	75,589								
Evansville	116,028	Richmond	51,210								
Florence	18,623	River City	163,114								
Gateway	168,067	Rockford	88,570								
Kalamazoo	127,198	Washington	156,276								

#### LEAGUE TOTAL - 1,109,410

Playoff Attendance (8 games) 18,450

All-Star Game at Gateway - 5,267

#### 2003 ALL-STAR TEAM

- Darin Kinsolving Chillicothe Paints 1B -
- 2B -Tony Coyne - Gateway Grizzlies
- 3B Juan Downing Evansville Otters - Adrian Gascon Jr. - Chillicothe Paints SS
- OF -
- Michael Conner River City Rascals OF - Chris Carter - Kalamazoo Kings
- OF Jake Whitesides Mid-Missouri Mavericks
- С
  - Josh Loggins Washington Wild Things
- DH Jay Coakley Washington Wild Things
- SP Chris Spigner – Richmond Roosters

RP - Matt Schweitzer – Richmond Roosters

MORGAN BURKHART AWARD – Josh Loggins – Washington Wild Things

BRIAN TOLLBERG AWARD - Chris Spigner - Richmond Roosters JASON SIMONTACCHI AWARD – Amad Stephens – Evansville Otters

ROGER HANNERS AWARD – Greg Jelks – Evansville Otters FRAN RIORDAN CITIZENSHIP AWARD – David Griffin – Evansville Otters

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player	Team	Avg.	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Carter, Chris	Kal	.364	220	38	80	16	6	5	36	10
Kinsolving, Darin	Chil	.336	295	52	99	19	1	15	76	0
Loggins, Josh	Wsh	.331	290	63	96	13	5	24	72	15
Hollingsworth, Josh	Ric	.324	238	29	77	12	1	2	27	2
Coyne, Tony	Gat	.313	332	56	104	18	2	6	43	9
Haven, Tory	Kal-Rck	.310	229	41	71	17	2	14	52	0
Miller, Drew*	Ric	.309	311	48	96	15	3	6	36	3
Leathers, Todd	Ken	.307	306	46	94	17	0	15	77	0
Gascon, Adrian	Chil	.301	286	51	86	20	1	8	51	8
Greenwell, Bill	Mmo	.300	330	45	99	21	2	6	78	2
Blaze, Daryl*	Kal	.300	210	40	63	4	3	1	15	25
Degroote, Casey	Rck-Kal	.298	191	26	57	4	2	4	25	5
Radwan, Jason	Evn	.298	292	50	87	22	1	11	61	1
Whitesides, Jacob*	Mmo	.298	319	68	95	23	11	4	49	22
Ury, Josh*	Flo-Riv	.295	308	39	91	13	1	3	44	19
McCay, Matt	Chil	.295	305	75	90	12	0	6	35	8
Warren, Phil	Gat	.295	312	45	92	16	0	13	56	2
Hall, Trevor	Rck-Ric	.294	238	29	70	24	2	3	30	1
Conner, Michael	Riv	.293	338	64	99	21	2	19	53	39
Cates, Zach*	Wsh	.288	302	58	87	10	3	13	48	20
Creighton, Tom#	Flo	.288	205	28	59	15	2	2	29	8
Cosentino, Tony	Chil	.287	261	28	75	12	0	3	41	0
Cahill, Jon	Wsh	.287	338	55	97	15	0	4	34	2
Huling, Andrew*	Ken	.287	293	53	84	9	5	0	26	14
Fuess, Brian*	Riv-Gat	.286	252	25	72	13	0	5	28	2

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 67 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Shelley, Jason	Rck	7-1	0.85	10	0	74.0	49	21	82
Tomsu, Josh	Rck	8-5	1.71	17	1	110.2	81	40	65
Spigner, Chris	Ric	11-4	2.12	21	0	140.0	101	54	134
McWatters, David	Kal	8-4	2.62	17	0	123.2	124	28	100
Bradley, David	Wsh	10-5	2.77	17	0	113.2	97	32	118
Laratta, E.J.	Riv	6-3	2.78	12	0	74.1	76	25	43
Patterson, Scott	Gat	8-3	2.92	20	0	129,2	119	24	120
Henry, Mike	Ric	7-6	2.93	24	1	76.2	58	35	74
Skrukrud, Mark*	Chil	4-3	2.94	16	1	67.1	66	11	56
James, Frank*	Rck	6-4	2.99	13	0	72.1	71	29	42
McDonnell, Matt	Wsh	10-4	2.99	16	0	96.1	99	30	39
Ally, Ben	Wsh	9-7	3.02	19	0	134.0	111	33	124
Ewasko, Todd	Evn	10-4	3.08	18	0	117.0	111	25	93
Hunter, Jeff	Chil	5-3	3.15	15	0	71.1	67	11	61
Palmer, Adam	CC	6-7	3.20	18	0	115.1	117	32	47
Simpson, Andre	Evn	7-6	3.22	19	0	117.1	114	41	78
Gann, Jake	Ric	8-1	3.29	27	0	68.1	73	29	65
Stephens, Brett	CC	6-5	3.41	17	1	111.0	117	25	87
Jeremy Lewis*	Evn	3-6	3.49	16	0	87.2	86	21	71
Graves, Bobby*	Flo	7-10	3.56	20	0	131.1	114	60	83

\* Denotes Lefthanded

#Denotes switch hitter

### 2003 FRONTIER LEAGUE TEAM BATTING

		TE	AM	BAT	N	6			
Team	Avg.	AB	R	H		2B 3B	HR	RBI	
Washington	.278	2994	488	83		22 25	85	431	118
Chillicothe	.271	2747	464	74		36 14	64	413	-
Gateway	.269	2909	430	78		39 18	72	400	
Kalamazoo	.268	3005 2951	411 404	80- 77		16 22	63 61	367 354	
Evansville River City	.203	2951	404	76		23 12 57 8	53	367	
Kenosha	.256	2993	401	76		46 18	42	368	
Florence	.254	2819	310	71		15 12	13	276	
Rockford	.253	2882	369	73		26 17	29	324	
Richmond	.253	3005	395	75	9 1	32 13	41	356	73
Cook County	.252	2914	427	73		34 22	48	388	128
Mid-Missouri	.251	3020	405	75	71	60 27	36	363	77
		TE/	AM P	ITC	HIN	G			
Team		W-L	ERA	CG	SV	IP	Н	BB	SO
Richmond	50	)-39	2.96	6	25	782.1	714	323	740
Washington	54	1-34	3.11	11	20	772.0	695	252	616
Evansville	51	-37	3.31	5	22	778.1	758	217	617
Rockford		3-42	3.49	12	24	774.1	696	333	595
Chillicothe		-31	3.69	7	26	714.1	742	244	556
Gateway	-	)-38	3.72	11	24	767.1	717	284	678
River City		3-47	4.09	7	23	781.2	742	349	589
Kenosha		7-42	4.17 4.18	3 21	27 12	796.2	818 838	264 269	536 465
Cook County Kalamazoo		2-48 3-56	4.10	10	13	766.1 763.2	828	327	400 595
Florence		7-61	4.80	7	12	727.2	792	370	503
Mid-Missouri		3-57	4.94	4	13	776.1	829	326	594
					<u>JN</u>		020	020	
Teacer								-	00
Team Rockford				PCT.	G 90	PO	A 1000	E	DP
				.975	90 88	2323	1022 863	87 87	69
Washington				.973 .970		2316			67 65
Kenosha					89	2390	1005		
Gateway				.968	88	2302	851	105	70
Richmond				.965	89	2347	962		71
Evansville Divers City				.963	88	2335	900		63
River City				.961 .961	90 90	2345 2299	949 916		71
Cook County Chillicothe				.901	90 85	2299	851	130 131	62 61
Kalamazoo				.956	89	2291	1037		78
Mid-Missouri				.956	90	2329	968		79
Mild Mildsouth		01					300	100	10
		ίL	UB R	EGU	нı	5			
	E RECO						O REC		
Team	W		PCT.		еат		W	L	PCT.
Chillicothe	28		700			cothe	26	19	.578
Washington	31		689	V	Vast	ington	23	20	.535
Gateway	30	15 .	667	F	River	City	22	20	524
Evansville	29	15 .	659	E	van	sville	22	22	.500
Richmond	29	15 .	659	F	Richr	nond	21	24	.467
Rockford	28	18 .	609	6	Gatev	vay	20	23	.465
Kenosha	26	17 .	605	K	(eno	sha	21	25	.457
Cook County	23	21	523	F	lock	ford	20	24	.455
Kalamazoo	23		511			County		27	.413
Florence	20		465			Missour		31	.311
River City	21		438			nazoo	10	34	.227
Mid-Missouri	19		422		lore		7	38	.156
inina ininaauditi		20 .	12.6		.010			00	

### 2002 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

REGULAR GEAGORT INAE GTAIDINGG										
CLUB	w	L	PCT.	GB						
Washington	56	28	.667							
Richmond	53	31	.631	3						
Dubois County	52	32	.619	4						
Kalamazoo	46	38	.548	10						
Rockford	45	39	.436	11						
Canton	41	43	.488	15						
Cook County	40	44	.476	16						
River City	39	45	.464	17						
Chillicothe	35	49	.417	21						
Gateway	34	50	.405	22						
Evansville	33	51	.393	23						
Johnstown	30	54	.357	26						

#### 2002 PLAYOFF RESULTS

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Washington defeated Kalamazoo (2 games to 0) Richmond defeated Dubois Co. (2 games to 1) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Richmond defeated Washington (3 games to 1) 2002 Frontier League Champion

**Richmond Roosters** 

2002 GAME ATTENDANCE									
CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL						
Canton	30,971	Chillicothe	67,452						
Cook County	66,214	Dubois County	35,592						
Evansville	88,585	Gateway	92,819						
Johnstown	35,208	Kalamazoo	103,880						
Richmond	46,245	River City	162,597						
Rockford	86,842	Washington	132,901						
League Total	949,306								
Playoff attendand	ce (9 games	) 18,780							
All-Star Game at	Kalamazoo	4,495							
	2002 ALL-S	STAR TEAM							
		chmond Roosters							
		ckford RiverHawks							
		County Cheetahs							
SS - Brad	Hensler - Wa	ashington Wild Wing	S						

- OF Brody Jackson River City Rascals
- OF Adam Olow Dubois County Dragons
- OF Phil Willingham Richmond Roosters
- C Shaun Argento Washingto Wild Things
- DH Joe Gerber Kalamazoo Kings
- SP Jared Howton Washington Wild Things
- RP Robert Garvin Washington Wild Things

MORGAN BURKHART MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Phil Willingham - Richmond

BRYAN TOLLBERG MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - Jared Howton - Washington JASON SIMONTACCHI ROOKIE OF THE YEAR AWARD - Phil

JASON SIMONTACCHI ROOKIE OF THE YEAR AWARD - Phil Willingham - Richmond

ROGER HANNERS MANAGER OF THE YEAR AWARD - Jeff Isom - Washington

STARS OF STARS AWARD - (Overal Statistical Excellence) Phil Willingham - Richmond (Overall Statistical Excellence)

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)

(MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)										
Player	Team	Avg	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Balet, Frederico	CC	.405	304	56	123	18	2	6	64	0
*Willingham, Phil	RIC	.360	364	75	131	19	8	15	86	36
Argento, Shaun P.	WSH	.352	290	47	102	20	5	5	62	10
Loggins, Joshua M.	WSH	.347	242	40	84	18	0	5	45	4
Olow, Adam	DC	.345	264	71	91	15	2	10	59	22
Marple, C. Scott	RIC	.344	209	33	72	16	0	4	34	7
Fjelland, Ben	RCK	.344	346	63	119	25	2	9	70	7
*Schmitz, John	CC	.343	274	59	91	19	1	5	32	12
Leverett, David B.	RIC	.333	330	60	110	13	1	0	48	12
*Fuess, Brian	RIV	.331	338	54	112	17	0	- 9	65	4
*Tranum, Josh	DC	.330	261	56	86	16	0	9	62	2
Carter, Chris	KZO	.329	255	30	84	11	1	4	26	11
*Piatt, Ben	RIV	.328	229	34	75	13	0	1	31	4
*Ury, John	JHN	.325	292	34	95	17	2	0	37	7
Pigott, Anthony	RCK	.323	322	54	104	13	4	8	57	35
*Gerber, Joe	KZO	.322	301	57	97	15	2	19	67	1
McCay, Matt	CHC	.322	326	60	105	15	2	7	50	7
#Shea, Adam	RIV	.318	211	37	68	11	0	5	30	0
Warren, Phil C.	CHC	.314	242	31	76	12	2	35	41	0
Edwards, Willie	CHC	.317	274	47	86	15			43	7
Riordan, Francis P.	RIC	.314	357	67	112	22	0	11	81	17
Hensler, Bradley G.	WSH	.313	300	60	94	25	4	8	54	15
Zachry, Drew	JHN	.310	248	35	77	19	1	5	55	6
Edwards, John S.	EVN	.308	234	40	72	21	2	10	45	11
Jackson, Brody	RIV	.306	310	70	95	19		15	44	36
Rittenhouse, Adam	CAn	.304	247	34	75	19	0	2	26	10
Rea, Brad	GWY	.303	244	33	74	12	0	10	36	0
*Huling, Andrew	DC	.303	307	61	93	11	1	2	33	29
Ehrnsberger, Chad	WSH	.302	291	40	88	14	1	- 9	54	4
Stegbauer, Rick	CC	.302	252	29	76	14	0	1	36	35
*Sledd, Aaron	KZO	.300	223	34	67	15	2	3	39	
*Vanlderstine, Ben	CAN	.300	280	34	84	10	3	3	36	14
*Austin, Richard U.	RCK	.300	247	50	74	19	0	11	38	3

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 67 INNINGS)

Pitcher	Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	Н	BB	SO
*Howton, Jared A.	WSH	11-3	1.89	17	0	109.1	86	38	89
Batthauer, Bryan	RCK	9-4	.245	17	1	121.0	111	44	118
Hickman, Benjaman W.	CAN	3-4	2.66	23	1	67.2	67	22	58
Clelland, James S.	CC	7-5	2.80	16	0	112.2	110	29	88
Baca, Enriques	RIC	10-4	2.87	18	0	119.0	111	38	110
Gaines, Jamal	DC	8-2	3.06	17	0	103.0	103	14	93
Kuiper, David	DC	7-2	3.14	16	0	83.0	88	21	63
Buck, Pete	GWY	7-5	3.35	19	0	126.1	126	35	93
Moenter, Curtis	RIC	5-3	3.36	16	0	85.2	79	38	90
Jelovcic, Richard S.	RIC	7-5	3.44	20	2	99.1	115	21	78
Gunderson, Matthew R.	KZO	8-5	3.45	15	0	88.8	74	41	54
Kojak, Phill	CAN-KZ	0 6-8	3.46	17	0	109.1	100	34	81
Shelley, Jason P.	RCK	9-5	3.53	18	0	119.2	98	59	156
Bradley, David S.	WSH	11-4	3.55	18	0	114.0	105	55	94
Pape, Stace W.	RIV	4-5	3.61	24	2	89.2	82	29	61
Baber, Matt	WSH	8-7	3.63	27	3	73.2	56	23	61
Rollandini, David H.	CAN	2-4	3.67	27	3	73.2	59	23	61
*Bennett, Jamie	DC	7-4	3.75	17	0	98.1	99	29	77
*Miller, Kevin	RCK	4-5	3.76	21	0	91.0	76	58	72
Foss, Brad	JHN	3-7	3.79	23	0	76.0	72	31	69
McWatters, David	KZo	5-6	3.80	14	0	92.1	93	23	99
Buckle, Matt	CAN	7-6	3.83	15	0	96.1	101	22	55
*Fry, Nolan M.	EVN	2-8	3.93	12	0	71.0	80	27	46

		TEA	MВ	ALI	R1				
Team	Avg	AB	R	Н	2		HR	RBI	SB
Richmond	.300	3045	573	912	16		60	511	112
Washington	.292	2896	501	845	14		56	458	109
Dubois County Cook County	.289	2921 2939	527 456	844 842	15 16		41 51	466 406	153 61
River City	.286	2936	479	839	17		62	400	96
Johnstown	.280	2842	385	797	16		20	349	111
Rockford	.273	2875	444	785	15		54	388	116
Chillicothe	.271	2873	433	780	14	7 17	55	392	40
Canton	.263	2747	379	722	12		32	335	158
Kalamazoo	.260	2868	409	747	11		53	370	58
Evansville	.258	2850	373	736	12		46	326	87
Gateway	.244	2896	343	706	11		51	301	47
		TEAN	/ PI	TCH	11	G			
Team	-				SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Washington			.62		24	736.1	715	315	597
Rockford			.85		17	741.0	757	338	637
Kalamazoo			.01	-	24	742.2	763	267	597
Richmond Cook County	53		.06	-	19 14	751.0 741.0	815 766	302 296	645 561
Dubois County			19	-	25	745.0	835	246	605
Canton			27		18	729.2	769	303	563
River City	39		51		13	735.2	757	318	558
Evansville	33-	-51 4	58	6	13	739.2	809	346	564
Gateway			.88		22	745.2	819	339	594
Chillicothe			.09		22	735.0	863	347	611
Johnstown	30		.39		19	722.0	887	297	535
		TEA			IN				
Team	Pc	-	G	P		A		E	DP
Washington	.96	-	84 84	220		84 97	-	100 109	76
Kalamazoo Richmond	.90		04 84	22		86	-	109	85 67
River City	.90		84	220		87	-	107	63
Cook County	.96		84	222		91	-	111	83
Johnstown	.96	-	84	210		87		116	57
Evansville	.96	2	84	22	19	86	4	122	76
Canton	.96		84	218		80	-	120	59
Dubois County	.96		84	223		85		128	58
Gateway	.96		84	223		84		129	65
Chillicothe Rockford	.95 .94	-	84 84	220		84 92	-	141 169	72 73
HUCKIUIU	.34							103	10
		CLU	5 KE	CO					
HOME	REC	ORD				ROAD	REC	ORD	
Team	W	L	Pct	Tea	m		W	L	Pct
Washington	30	12	714	Was	hino	iton	26	16	.619
Dubois County	28	14	667	Kala			25	17	.595
Richmond	28	14	.67	Rich	mor	nd	25	17	.595
Canton	25	17	595	Dub	ois (	County		18	.571
River City	24		571	Rock			23	19	.548
Cook County	23	19	548	Gate	way		19	23	.452
Rockford	22		524			unty	17	25	.405
HOCKIUIU							16		
Evansville	21	21 .	500	Cant	оп		10	26	.381
	21 21		500	Cant		he	16	26	.381
Evansville		21			icot				
Evansville Kalamazoo	21	21 . 23 .	500	Chill	icot r Cit	ty	16	26	.381
Evansville Kalamazoo Chillicothe	21 19	21 . 23 . 24 .	500 452	Chill Rive	icot r Cit svil	ty le	16 15	26 27	.381 .357

### REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB
Chillicothe	51	33	.607	
Richmond	49	35	.583	2
Dubois County	48	36	.571	3
Canton	47	37	.560	4
River City	46	38	.548	5
Springfield	45	39	.536	6 7
Johnstown	44	40	.524	7
Evansville	44	40	.524	7
Gateway	37	44	.457	12.5
London	37	47	.440	14
Cook County	28	53	.345	21.5
Kalamazoo	25	59	.298	26
2001 PL/	VOEE	DES	III TO	

#### 2001 PLAYOFF RESUL

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Chillicothe defeated Canton (2 games to 1) Richmond defeated Dubois Co. (2 games to 1) **CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)** 

Richmond defeated Chillicothe (3 games to 0) 2001 Frontier League Champion

**Richmond Roosters** 

#### 2001 GAME ATTENDANCE

CLUB	TOTAL	CLUB	TOTAL
Canton	29,703	Chillicothe	60,163
Cook County	65,627	Dubois County	23,302
Evansville	90,948	Gateway	28,898
Johnstown	43,184	Kalamazoo	103,031
London	42,061	Richmond	42,976
River City	153,905	Springfield	35,424

Total

719,222

Playoff attendance (9 games) 8,186 All-Star Game at Cook County 2,853

#### 2001 ALL-STAR TEAM

IB	-	Fran Riordan - Richmond Roosters
2B	-	Kevin Connacher - Chillicothe Paints
3B	-	(Tie) Brian Fuess - River City Rascals
		Johnny Poss - Johnstown Johnnies
SS	-	Clay Snellgrove - Canton Crocodiles
OF	-	Kirk Taylor - Johnstown Johnnies
OF	-	Jon Weber - Canton Crocodiles
OF	-	Jeremy Coronado - Evansville Otters
C	-	(Tie) Adam Patterson - Chillicothe Paints
		Chuck Van Robays - Johnstown Johnnies
DH	-	Steve Mitrovich - Richmond Roosters
SP	-	Rick Blanc - Chillicothe Paints
RP	-	Brian Partenheimer - Dubois County Dragons
MOST Mana	VAI Gef	LUABLE PLAYER - Kirk Taylor - Johnstown LUABLE PITCHER - Rick Blanc - Chillicothe OF THE YEAR - Greg Tagert - Dubois County STARS" AWARD - Kirk Taylor - Johnstown

(Overall Statistical Excellence)

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)

			_						
Player, Team	Avg	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Snellgrove, Clayton D., CAN	.364	343	49	125	21	1	3	45	8
*Coronado, Jeremy, EVN	.354	297	53	105	14	3	1	40	31
Taylor, Kirk J., JHN	.350	331	65	116	22	6	17	73	19
McCay, Matt, CHC	.345	325	62	112	14	0	1	48	8
*Vanlderstine, Ben, LON	.338	269	42	91	11	2	5	38	9
Robertson, Michael D., RIV	.335	218	46	73	11	3	14	46	6
*Sellier, Brian S., GWY	.332	295	56	98	13	6	11	49	26
*Delucchi, Dustin, DC	.331	236	44	78	16	0	6	41	22
*Patterson, Adam, CHC	.328	238	44	78	8	0	5	33	1
*Graham, Daniel C., SPR	.328	232	43	76	18	2	14	57	10
Kinsolving, Darin, CHC	.327	306	55	100	20	2	10	62	0
*Schmitz, John, RIC	.326	233	51	76	19	0	4	36	11
*Colameco, Joseph D., CHC	.325	289	64	94	17	2	10	60	7
Van Robays, Charles, JHN	.323	260	41	84	10	1	1	31	3
#Murphy, Sean, LON	.318	274	43	87	18	3	3	34	19
T#Delgado, Gabriel, LON-EVN	.313	256	49	80	10	2	2	39	12
#Doakes, Schuyler M., KZO	.311	328	45	102	11	2	3	35	48
*Weber, Jonathan B., CAN	.307	329	60	101	15	7	18	69	16
Poss, John P., JHN	.307	352	57	108	22	2	4	37	1
Deike, Mike, JHN	.307	313	39	96	15	2	4	44	1
Rinne, James W., CC	.304	286	43	87	21	0	4	37	9
Mitrovich, Steve, RIC	.304	283	42	86	20	1	12	65	1
Runnells, Thomas W., RIV	.304	247	46	75	14	1	2	38	16
*Fuess, Brian, RIV	.302	324	46	98	236	1	7	64	6
*Sledd, Aaron G., RIC	.302	252	54	76	13	2	13	61	3
*Morse, Dan, JHN	.300	313	54	94	20	2	4	42	17
Riordan, Francis P., RIC	.299	335	55	100	17	3	14	74	8

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 67 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	<b>SO</b>
*Thomas, Joseph F., CAN	9-0	1.36	11	0	86.0	82	22	55
			17	-				
Baber, Matt, CAN	8-3	2.33		0	120.0	98	32	96
*Schweitzer, Matt, RIC	5-3	2.64	39	3	71.2	58	20	79
Brand, Cliff, EVN	4-4	2.73	17	0	95.2	97	25	80
Welch, Chris, JHN	8-3	3.08	14	0	84.2	98	28	61
*Lamarsh, Robert G., RIV	8-7	3.19	17	0	118.1	120	28	74
Berry, Matt, RIC	7-4	3.22	14	0	81.0	73	2	79
Blanc, Rick, CHC	13-1	3.24	18	0	119.1	117	26	95
Yee, Damon, DC	6-6	3.28	17	0	93.1	85	33	70
*Fisher, Cody A., DC	6-3	3.30	19	1	87.1	89	21	71
*Takach, Ryan J., KZO	6-8	3.43	17	0	112.2	113	28	91
Rowlan, Carl L., RIV	11-4	3.44	18	0	104.2	103	34	77
Bair, Dennis J., CAN	8-5	3.51	13	0	92.1	92	31	82
Mosher, Craig, LON	2-3	3.53	25	0	74.0	54	36	71
*Miller, Thomas B., EVN	9-5	3.70	18	0	112.0	120	27	87
Kojak, Phill, LON	8-3	3.71	20	0	119.0	109	53	101
*Fry, Nolan M., EVN	8-3	3.74	16	0	98.2	92	44	59
Smuin, Shane, EVN	9-3	3.81	22	1	80.1	60	47	100
Meyer, Dave, CAN	4-6	3.88	15	0	72.0	72	27	77
*Carver, Steven, RIC	10-3	3.91	16	0	103.2	108	33	90
Gaines, Jamal, DC	7-5	3.91	17	0	103.2	120	24	77
McWatters, David, KZO	2-7	3.95	18	0	82.0	89	20	85
Buckle, Matt, LON	7-7	3.97	17	0	104.1	108	27	56

		TEA	ΜВ	ATT	ING				
Team	Avg	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Johnstown	.301	2994	468	902	182	18	45	422	50
Richmond	.288	2899	547	835	151	18	80	496	68
Chillicothe	.286	2862	482	818	142	15	68	430	82
River City	.274	2813	450	771	141	15	54	389	125
Evansville	.274	2814	448	771	120	18	43	386	119
Canton	.275	2810	405	764	136	14	45	363	96
Dubois Count		2772	424	747	106	10	43	393	127
London	.266	2912	406	776	141	9	44	351	96
Springfield	.262	2905	455	761	160	17	88	420	94
Gateway	.254	2724	421	693	108	19	60	393	84
Kalamazoo	.249	2739	321	683	105	10	42	286	101
Cook County	.240	2681	329	644	108	8	49	285	76
		TEAI	MPI	TCH	IINC	;			
Team	W-L	ERA		SHO	SV	IP	Н	BB	SO
Canton	47-37	3.41	13	7	17	720.2	725		581
Evansville	44-40	4.05	8	3	18	725.0	725		574
Dubois County	y 48-36	4.14	4	3	27	727.2	760	235	610
River City	46-38	4.16	6	4	27	725.0	705	307	564
Chillicothe	51-33	4.20	12	4	20	730.0	761	314	617
Cook County	28-53	4.42	1	3	13	697.0	701	318	602
Richmond	49-35	4.43	6	7	20	725.2	767	276	650
Gateway	37-44	4.53	8	2	20	695.1	766		515
Springfield	45-39	4.83	5	2	17	747.0	788		554
London	37-47	4.86	14	4	13	745.2	801	335	622
Kalamazoo	25-59	4.88	13	1	8	719.1	814		590
Johnstown	44-40	4.99	8	3	25	741.0	829	325	645
		TEA	MFI	ELD	ING	3			
Team	Pc	t	G	PC	)	Α		E	DP
Canton	.96	8	84	216	52	857		99	75
Johnstown	.96	8	84	222	23	909		105	80
Evansville	.96	5	84	217	75	860		110	59
River City	.96	4	84	217	75	896		114	67
Chillicothe	.96		84	219		820		112	65
Richmond	.96	-	84	217		886		116	59
Springfield	.96		84	224		973		128	69
London	.96		84	223		926		133	59
Dubois Count		-	84	218		952		137	65
Kalamazoo	.95	-	84	215		881		139	62
Cook County	.95	-	81	209		784		135	60
Gateway	.94	-	81	208		774		127	53
		CLU	B RE	CO					
HOM	E REC	ORD			R	OAD	REC	ORD	
Team	w	L	Pct	Tear	n	1	N	L	Pct
Chillicothe	30		714				23	19	.547
Richmond	29		690		ngfiel		22	20	.524
Canton	29		667		icothe		21	20	.524
Canton	20	14 .	00/	Unill	come			21	.500

Canton	28	14	.667	Chillicothe	21	21	.500
Johnstown	26	16	.619	Evansville	20	22	.476
River City	26	16	.619	Richmond	20	22	.476
Dubois County	25	17	.595	River City	20	22	.476
Evansville	24	18	.571	Canton	19	23	.452
Springfield	23	19	.548	Johnstown	18	24	.429
Gateway	20	19	.513	London	18	24	.429
London	19	23	.452	Gateway	17	25	.405
Cook County	19	24	.429	Cook County	10	29	.256
Kalamazoo	19	26	.381	Kalamazoo	9	33	.214

### 2000 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

ILEQUEATIOEA			UTANDI	140	
CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB	
Johnstown	48	36	.571		
River City	46	36	.561	1	
London	46	37	.554	1.5	
Evansville	45	38	.542	2.5	
Chillicothe	42	40	.512	5	
Richmond	40	43	.482	7.5	
Cook County	38	46	.452	10	
Canton	38	46	.452	10	
Springfield	37	46	.446	10.5	
Dubois County	35	47	.427	12	

2000 PLAYOFF RESULTS

#### FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Johnstown defeated London (2 games to 0) Evansville defeated River City (2 games to 0) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 5)

Johnstown defeated Evansville (3 games to 1)

2000 Frontier League Champion Johnstown Johnnies

2000 GAME A	TTENDANCE				
CLUB	TOTAL				
Canton	25,123				
Chillicothe	61,413				
Cook County	70,205				
Dubois County	31,270				
Evansville	78,126				
Johnstown	45,243				
London	58,547				
Richmond	37,127				
River City	157,922				
Springfield	43,340				
Total	608,316				
2000 ALL-S	TAR TEAM				
IB - Fran Riordan - I					
2B - Billy Bone - Spr					
3B - Brian Fuess - Ri					
SS - Geoff McCallum					
OF - Scott Marple - D OF - Rick Nadeau - L					
OF - Kirk Taylor - Joh					
C - Sean Argento -					
DH - Chris Gavriel - L					
SP - Ryan Bauer - Ri					
RP - Drew Thomas -					
MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - R	lick Nadeau - London				

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Rick Nadeau - London MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - Ryan Bauer - River City MANAGER OF THE YEAR - Mike Moore - Johnstown "STAR OF STARS" AWARD - Rick Nadeau - London (Overall Statistical Excellence Presented By Howe SportsData)

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player, Team	Ava	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Robertson, Michael D., RIV	.401	197	58	79	19	1	10	44	11
Marple, C. Scott, DC	.343	245	32	84	12	0	1	31	11
Gavriel, Chris P., LON	.337	285	32	84	12	0	1	31	11
*Edwards, Dytarious, LON	.336	211	45	71	11	2	0	18	32
Nadeau, Richard S., LON	.330	312	78	103	21	1	19	71	11
*Strickland, Gregory, CHC	.330	294	56	97	18	4	4	29	20
*Fuess, Brian, RIV	.327	324	48	106	14	3	12	70	6
*Copley, Travis W., CAN	.322	264	39	85	12	3	3	50	3
*Faulken, Matt, EVN	.322	230	28	74	15	1	1	52	0
*Moore, Ryan T., RIV	.319	288	46	92	20	1	- 9	61	8
James, Tony W., EVN	.318	201	37	64	20	2	3	24	17
*Mosley, Trevor, JHN	.316	196	36	62	15	0	5	26	1
Baker, Jason S., CHC	.315	235	47	7	20	1	8	42	17
Taylor, Kirk J., JHN	.316	196	36	62	15	0	- 5	26	1
Riordan, Francis P., DC	.314	277	32	87	13	1	7	59	4
Pilger, Michael J., JHN	.314	318	58	100	27	2	15	68	25
Graham, Justin R., CHC	.312	266	41	83	17	5	6	34	2
*Schmitz, John, DC	.312	234	44	73	10	3	2	33	5
*Wydner, Dan, RIC-LOW	.312	266	41	83	17	5	6	34	2
#Bartolucci, Paul M., EVN	.310	284	39	88	17	3	0	50	17
Esposito, Paul A., JHN	.306	310	51	95	16	2	2	44	7
*Sledd, Aaron G., RIC	.306	271	54	83	17	2	13	58	5
Whitmer, Joe, CAN	.306	310	51	95	16	2	2	44	7
Argento, Shaun P., CAN	.305	275	46	84	18	2	1	42	2
Girod, Anthony D., LON	.301	206	37	62	10	1	1	27	7
Ferres, David M., JHN	.301	296	52	89	13	5	7	54	5

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 67 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Bauer, Ryan G., RIV	9-3	2.15	16	0	117.0	95	34	94
Sheets, Matthew J., JHN	9-6	2.50	19	1	108.0	85	33	72
Blitstein, Jeffrey M., EVN	6-6	2.88	19	0	103.0	95	16	84
Gaines, Jamal, DC	7-6	3.01	16	0	113.2	105	37	87
Lee, S. Andrew, CHC	5-5	3.10	18	0	113.1	120	24	126
Pipes, Joey L., RIV	9-3	3.17	17	0	117.1	123	39	111
Boesch, Sean, CHC	7-7	3.19	22	0	107.1	115	37	63
*Wallace, Justin, CAN	3-6	3.31	17	0	117.0	122	43	77
Brand, Cliff, EVN	7-3	3.40	21	1	82.0	85	28	74
Harden, Antonio M., SPR	5-8	3.44	16	0	123.0	125	25	106
Jelovcic, Richard S., RIC	7-6	3.46	17	0	106.2	116	27	73
*Carver, Steven, RIC	5-6	3.49	14	0	88.0	84	25	63
*Levy, Tye L., JHN	6-5	3.51	15	1	82.0	92	17	43
*Mendoza, Juan, CC	7-7	3.61	17	0	112.1	108	28	59
Donavan, Thomas J., JHN	9-6	3.61	17	0	112.1	111	42	67
Eversgerd, Randy J., RIV	5-2	3.62	11	0	82.0	85	12	92
Bradley, Brian S., DC	4-7	3.75	11	0	69.2	67	30	51
Baber, Matt, CAN	6-6	3.88	16	0	104.1	128	22	67
*McKoin, Heath E., SPR	6-7	3.98	15	0	81.1	75	41	78
Takuro, Seki, JHN	10-5	4.06	16	0	106.1	103	35	124
Kelley, Brenton, R., EVN	6-6	4.15	16	0	91.0	92	40	67
*Lamarsh, Robert G., RIV	7-4	4.21	17	0	104.2	100	30	73

### TEAM BATTING

Team	Avg	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
London	.298	2830	549	843	155	17	63	470	105
Johnstown	.290	2857	469	829	164	19	55	414	106
Chillicothe	.287	2792	454	800	157	24	67	407	71
River City	.276	2901	460	802	144	12	67	409	96
Canton	.275	2797	418	768	121	23	24	372	98
Dubois County	.272	2644	382	719	120	7	25	336	74
Richmond	.270	2778	444	749	132	16	65	389	62
Evansville	.268	2778	410	745	137	18	25	378	112
Cook County	.257	2825	398	727	126	16	55	346	166
Springfield	.255	2686	377	685	147	10	67	336	95

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SHO	SV	IP	н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Evansville	45-38	3.58	7	6	18	728.0	705	248	591
Johnstown	48-36	3.82	22	7	12	724.0	722	321	556
River City	46-36	3.93	10	6	19	741.1	747	263	588
Chillicothe	42-40	4.24	10	4	16	702.2	766	303	606
Richmond	40-43	4.32	5	3	18	716.1	764	296	601
Springfield	37-46	4.50	19	4	13	698.2	737	310	567
London	46-37	4.53	11	6	17	711.2	709	362	720
Canton	38-46	4.74	6	3	16	717.1	810	369	522
Cook County	38-46	5.03	12	2	13	748.0	904	312	490
Dubois County	35-47	5.17	14	3	15	669.2	803	323	508

## TEAM FIELDING

Team	Pct	G	PO	Α	E	DP
Johnstown	.973	84	2172	893	85	86
River City	.966	82	2224	864	109	67
Dubois County	.960	82	2009	834	117	71
Evansville	.960	82	2184	938	130	62
Richmond	.960	83	2149	890	127	61
Springfield	.959	83	2096	852	127	58
Chillicothe	.959	82	2108	739	123	59
London	.958	83	2135	809	129	68
Canton	.956	84	2152	846	139	56
Cook County	.946	84	2244	932	181	76

## **CLUB RECORDS**

### HOME RECORD

#### ROAD RECORD

Team	w	L	Pct	Team	w	L	Pct
Chillicothe	29	13	.690	Johnstown	22	20	.524
London	27	15	.643	River City	20	21	.488
River City	26	15	.634	Cook County	20	22	.476
Canton	26	16	.619	Evansville	20	22	.476
Johnstown	26	16	.619	London	17	22	.463
Evansville	25	16	.610	Richmond	18	23	.439
Springfield	24	17	.585	Dubois County	15	27	.357
Richmond	22	20	.524	Chillicothe	13	27	.325
Dubois County	20	20	.500	Springfield	13	29	.310
Cook County	18	24	.429	Canton	12	30	.286

### 1999 FRONTIER LEAGUE REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB
London	54	30	.663	
Chillicothe	45	38	.542	8.5
Johnstown	43	41	.512	11
Evansville	43	41	.512	11
Dubois County	42	42	.500	12
Cook County	41	43	.488	13
Richmond	40	43	.482	13.5
Springfield	39	45	.464	15
River City	39	45	.464	15
Canton	33	51	.393	21

**1998 PLAYOFF RESULTS** 

#### FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

London defeated Johnstown (2 games to 0) Chillicothe defeated Evansville (2 games to 1) CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 3)

London defeated Chillicothe (2 games to 0)

1999 Frontier League Champion London Werewolves

1999 GAME ATT	ENDANCE
CLUB	TOTAL
Canton	50,295
Chillicothe	61,249
Cook County	86,248
Dubois County	35,690
Evansville	111,039
Johnstown	57,529
London	60,546
Richmond	47,976
River City	151,661
Springfield	53,503
Total	711,736

**1999 ALL-STAR TEAM** 

- IB Scott Pinoni, Chillicothe
- 2B Joe Pass, Dubois County
- 3B Chance Melvin, Chillicothe
- SS Dalphie Correa, London
- OF Rick Nadeau, London
- OF Shane Hopper, Johnstown
- OF Steve Barningham, Springfield
- C Tony Girod, Johnstown
- DH Jason Kinchen, Richmond
- SP Tom Becker, Cook County
- RP John Oestreich, Dubois County

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Scott Pinoni, Chillicothe MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - John Oestreich, Dubois County MANAGER OF THE YEAR - Andy McCauley, London "STAR OF STARS" AWARD - Scott Pinoni (Overall Statistical Excellence)

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 227 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player, Team	Avg	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Pinoni, Scott, CHC	.377	265	59	100	13	0	22	74	2
Hopper, Shane, JHN	.372	328	65	122	27	- 3	8	83	12
Kinchen, Jason, RIC	.357	280	65	100	19	0	27	78	2
Headley, Justin, JHN	.352	310	71	109	19	1	5	37	1
Barningham, Steven, SPR	.351	319	76	112	21	11	5	60	44
Nadeau, Richard, LON	.348	339	69	118	32	6	8	82	17
Villacres, Gary, DC	.345	264	50	91	16	6	0	33	24
Corea, Dalphie, LON	.344	323	79	111	15	0	1	38	39
Pollard, Brandon, CC	.341	302	67	103	17	3	- 9	53	30
Degraffenreid, Todd, LON	.340	200	44	68	9	1	8	43	11
Bichelmeyer, Jason, RIC	.333	261	60	87	14	- 9	7	50	7
Memmert, Gabriel, JHN	.332	205	34	68	15	0	5	43	2
Pass, Joseph, DC	.328	323	56	106	16	1	1	31	5
Crothers, K.C., RIC	.328	305	60	100	19	1	5	59	6
Foster, Brian, EVN	.325	289	52	94	15	2	18	73	4
Girod, Anthony, JHN	.324	256	45	83	20	1	1	26	4
McDonald, Robert, SPR	.319	310	46	99	24	0	11	67	0
Voshell, Key, RIC	.317	259	50	82	15	1	2	42	6
Payne, Joseph, LON	.316	237	51	75	10	2	3	32	6
Robertson, Michael, RVC	.314	293	55	92	15	3	13	59	12
Cervenak, Michel, CHC	.306	301	59	92	17	4	3	46	6
Sledd, Aaron, RIC	.303	261	66	79	24	2	8	44	2
Marple, C. Scott, DC	.303	238	47	72	16	0	7	49	11
Mongiardo, Christopher, CAN	.302	288	39	87	13	0	2	48	2
Graham, Daniel, RVC	.302	192	39	58	13	2	6	30	10
Clark, Jason, EVN	.301	306	61	92	15	4	6	45	28
Mazurek, Brian, CC	.300	253	36	76	14	1	6	40	0
Riordan, Francis, DC	.300	293	51	88	16	2	11	51	4

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 67 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G	sv	IP	H	BB	<b>SO</b>
Becker, Thomas, CC	9-4	2.54	24	4	95.2	88	30	107
Silock, Matthew, EVN	10-3	2.70	14	0	90.0	81	26	52
Meurer, Josh, CAN	6-4	3.03	17	0	116.0	100	31	108
Pulizzano, Timothy, CC	6-7	3.29	24	4	98.1	112	25	69
Kvasnicka, Jonathon, CC	6-4	3.37	17	0	115.0	94	46	82
Brown, Jeremy, SPR	4-7	3.49	31	2	80.0	69	20	55
Loonam, Richard, SPR	7-2	3.58	15	0	150.2	107	26	57
Byrd, Stephen, CHC	9-4	3.60	18	0	110.0	107	49	92
Hessler, Landon, JHN	7-5	3.72	41	0	77.1	67	34	51
Scarcello, Brian, CHC	5-2	3.80	15	0	73.1	71	34	57
Lee, S. Andrew, CHC	6-5	3.88	14	0	92.2	94	37	84
Tipton, Jeremiah, EVN	7-2	3.95	21	1	82.0	92	30	69
Turberville, Kristopher, LON	5-3	3.96	31	2	91.0	84	55	90
Deubel, Ronald, CAN	3-6	4.01	23	3	83.0	88	39	79
Gray, Brett, LON	9-5	4.18	19	0	125.0	141	29	129
Knollin, Christopher, CC-EVN	7-6	4.27	17	0	190.2	94	51	111
Kelley, Brenton, EVN	5-5	4.37	16	0	101.0	102	34	79
Davis, Jason, CC	5-5	4.38	19	0	86.1	79	43	88
Kojack, Phill, JHN-RIC	7-2	4.41	13	0	79.2	71	34	93
Pipes, Joey, RVC	4-6	4.46	11	1	68.2	71	19	54
Sokol, Trad, CC	5-4	4.48	24	1	74.1	71	26	49
Long, Lee, DC	4-7	4.50	16	0	112.0	139	32	61

### TEAM BATTING

Team	Avg	AB	R	H	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
London	.304	3029	612	920	175	19	79	550	155
Johnstown	.293	2985	519	876	188	14	51	453	65
Richmond	.290	2914	555	846	162	18	73	491	75
Dubois Co.	.284	2900	487	825	139	13	52	424	114
Chillicothe	.282	2917	504	824	138	18	79	471	85
Springfield	.282	2879	510	812	165	33	59	448	90
River City	.276	2866	499	790	150	20	98	454	114
Cook Co.	.275	2858	451	785	124	20	47	393	173
Evansville	.269	2717	467	732	119	22	71	403	130
Canton	.266	2896	410	770	118	18	28	355	123

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SHO	SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Cook Co.	41-43	4.53	14	4	14	734.2	765	325	624
Chillicothe	45-38	4.54	7	3	24	727.2	745	397	655
London	54-30	4.66	14	3	23	749.0	851	301	704
Evansville	43-41	4.87	10	7	19	701.0	779	288	581
Springfield	39-45	4.95	11	1	11	726.0	799	296	497
Johnstown	43-41	4.96	2	1	16	738.0	842	339	574
Canton	33-51	4.99	7	4	13	739.2	795	356	618
Dubois Co.	42-42	5.81	4	2	26	735.2	880	356	533
Richmond	40-43	5.91	14	3	10	714.0	843	366	678
River City	39-45	6.00	13	1	17	724.1	880	321	560

### TEAM FIELDING

Team	Pct	G	PO	A	E	DP
Johnstown	.969	84	2214	931	99	82
Evansville	.969	84	2103	854	95	63
Cook Co.	.961	84	2204	873	126	61
Canton	.959	84	2219	804	129	50
Chillicothe	.959	83	2183	900	133	70
Dubois Co.	.958	84	2207	887	134	76
River City	.957	84	2173	834	136	60
Springfield	.955	84	2178	913	144	62
Richmond	.955	83	2142	793	137	60
London	.955	84	2247	835	144	46

### CLUB RECORDS

### HOME RECORD

#### ROAD RECORD

Team	W	L	Pct	Team	W	L	Pct
London	33	9	.786	Chillicothe	21	21	.500
Evansville	27	15	.643	London	21	21	.500
Cook Co.	26	16	.619	Dubois Co.	20	22	.476
Springfield	25	17	.595	Johnstown	19	23	.452
Chillicothe	24	17	.585	River City	18	24	.429
Johnstown	24	18	.571	Richmond	16	25	.390
Richmond	24	18	.571	Evansville	16	26	.381
Dubois Co.	22	20	.524	Cook Co.	15	27	.357
River City	21	21	.500	Springfield	14	28	.333
Canton	20	22	.476	Canton	13	29	.310

REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS									
CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB					
Springfield	48	29	.623						
Richmond	49	31	.613	.5					
Chillicothe	48	31	.608	1					
Evansville	43	36	.544	6					
Canton	41	38	.519	8					
Johnstown	34	43	.442	14					
Ohio Valley	26	52	.333	22.5					
Kalamazoo	25	54	.316	24					

#### **1998 PLAYOFF RESULTS**

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

I

Chillicothe defeated Canton (2 games to 1) Springfield defeated Evansville (2 games to 1)

#### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Springfield defeated Chillicothe (2 games to 1)

#### 1998 Frontier League Champion Springfield Capitals

1998	1998 GAME ATTENDANCE							
CLUB	TOTAL	AVERAGE						
Evansville	88,259	2,453						
Chillicothe	71,782	1,841						
Canton	64,519	1,744						
Springfield	52,889	1,391						
Johnstown	45,447	1,262						
Kalamazoo	41,331	1,088						
Richmond	39,978	1,052						
Ohio Valley	23,933	665						

#### 1998 ALL-STAR TEAM

- IB Morgan Burkhart Richmond
- 2B Travis Gray Evansville
- 3B Mitch House Chillicothe
- SS Keith Habig, Richmond
- OF Gator McBride Chillicothe
- OF Kirk Taylor Ohio Valley
- OF Willie Edwards Kalamazoo
- C Pat Evans Springfield
- DH Scott Pinoni Chillicothe
- SP Jason Simontacchi Springfield
- RP Sean House Springfield

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Morgan Burkhart, Richmond MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - Jason Simontacchi, Springfield MANAGER OF THE YEAR - John Cate, Richmond

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 216 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player, Team	Avg	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Burkhart, Morgan, RIC	.404	280	97	113	18	1	36	98	13
McBride, Gator, CHI	.403	243	58	98	29	1	12	63	4
Brown, Bobby, CAN	.363	320	58	116	28	2	9	63	13
Hemme, Justin, CAN	.361	227	45	82	15	5	8	42	1
Herman, Josh, OV	.357	210	43	75	13	0	12	48	0
Habig, Keith, Ric	.356	289	87	103	19	4	25	89	7
Cruz, Paul, SPR	.356	191	47	68	10	3	5	39	1
Ronca, Joe, SPR	.344	317	56	109	21	0	16	77	1
Joseph, Eric, EVN	.336	214	39	72	16	3	2	37	20
Evans, Pat, SPR	.335	272	56	91	17	1	14	49	8
Swinton, Jermaine, CAN	.333	297	59	99	25	2	19	83	14
Vasquez, Danny, JHN	.332	313	53	104	19	10	16	65	22
Bush, Darren, SPR	.332	304	63	101	22	5	16	66	1
Dalton, David, CHI	.330	221	45	73	16	0	7	39	5
Hobbs, Jay, KAL	.330	267	44	88	19	4	8	47	3
Edwards, Willie, KAL	.329	298	65	98	21	3	18	71	11
Buckholz, A.J., SPR	.324	253	52	82	15	2	11	52	2
Beyna, Terry, RIC	.324	241	42	78	21	1	3	46	3
Taylor, Kirk, OV	.321	290	56	93	18	3	21	62	29
Pass, Joe, RIC	.317	290	45	92	19	0	1	34	0
Costantino, Tony, CHI	.311	212	50	66	11	6	0	21	22
Pinoni, Scott, CHI	.309	304	69	94	17	1	25	98	1
Robinson, David, EVN	.308	227	50	70	17	1	5	38	9
Riccio, John, JHN	.305	249	44	76	21	1	10	49	3
Gray, Travis, EVN	.302	281	40	85	16	1	7	60	9
Droptini, Bryan, CAN	.302	212	46	64	5	3	3	30	24
Higgins, Bert, OV	.300	260	32	78	9	1	1	20	10

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 64 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	H BB	<b>SO</b>
Harden, Tony, RIC	10-1	2.36	13	0	91.2	83 32	66
Simontacchi, Jason, SPR	10-2	2.95	16	0	110.0	103 21	92
Fidge, Darren, KAL	5-6	3.06	17	0	106.0	115 39	79
Arcement, Cody, CAN	7-3	3.34	15	0	102.1	100 30	62
Spears, Bob, CHI	10-5	3.38	17	0	117.1	107 55	124
Irving, Jamie, JHN	10-4	3.41	31	2	147.2	176 34	88
Roberts, Mike, CHI	7-1	4.22	13	0	70.1	81 20	50
Waller, Jerry, KAL	4-6	4.41	15	0	81.2	80 48	59
Schlee, Jeremy, EVN	6-3	4.42	16	0	89.2	117 40	59
Prenzlin, Gregg, CAN	7-3	4.52	21	0	75.2	84 25	44
Gray, Brett, KAL	6-7	4.55	16	0	114.2	118 23	91
Finken, Brad, SPR	5-6	4.57	16	0	90.2	98 33	90
Scarcello, Brian, CHI	13-1	4.57	16	0	102.1	120 39	65
Masching, Bill, JHN	2-9	4.70	17	0	105.1	124 49	68
Peck, John, CHI	7-4	4.75	15	0	72.0	94 31	35
Denly, Greg, SPR	703	4.85	15	0	72.1	86 32	59
Woodman, Hank, SPR	5-5	4.91	12	0	69.2	71 41	64
McAdoo, Jed, RIC	10-4	5.03	19	0	105.2	121 40	63
Perry, Tista, EVN	7-5	5.07	17	0	110.0	136 18	62
Rodgers, Mike, EVN	4-5	5.08	17	0	95.2	110 44	60

## TEAM BATTING

Team	Avg	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Richmond	.306	2768	606	847	160	16	101	533	88
Springfield	.298	2697	509	805	136	19	91	469	46
Canton	.295	2706	475	799	148	20	59	434	124
Chillicothe	.294	2709	536	796	151	13	89	491	78
Evansville	.283	2678	481	758	142	19	43	419	116
Ohio Valley	.282	2659	426	749	124	15	85	374	93
Johnstown	.275	2663	426	731	149	25	61	374	129
Kalamazoo	.272	2721	423	740	124	17	78	376	73

## TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	CG	SHO	SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Chillicothe	48-31	4.51	8	3	21	677.0	699	340	550
Springfield	48-29	4.59	6	3	21	674.0	719	305	567
Evansville	43-46	4.71	4	2	16	691.1	784	262	500
Canton	41-38	5.05	9	3	16	684.2	754	294	425
Johnstown	34-43	5.33	12	0	13	666.2	795	311	458
Richmond	49-31	5.78	6	4	21	689.1	795	368	546
Ohio Valley	26-52	5.89	9	0	11	661.1	834	313	502
Kalamazoo	25-54	6.42	18	2	5	688.0	845	369	460

## TEAM FIELDING

Team	Pct	G	PO	A	E	DP
Richmond	.965	80	2068	795	103	78
Johnstown	.962	77	2000	914	116	84
Chillicothe	.960	79	2031	836	119	70
Springfield	.959	77	2022	821	121	65
Evansville	.959	79	2074	813	123	75
Canton	.959	79	2054	843	125	83
Ohio Valley	.957	79	1984	821	127	82
Kalamazoo	.953	80	2064	855	145	60

## CLUB RECORDS

#### HOME RECORD

#### ROAD RECORD

Team	w	L	Pct	Team	w	L	Pct
Richmond	28	12	.700	Springfield	22	15	.595
Chillicothe	27	13	.675	Evansville	22	18	.550
Springfield	26	14	.650	Chillicothe	21	18	.538
Johnstown	22	16	.579	Richmond	21	19	.525
Canton	22	17	.564	Canton	19	21	.475
Evansville	21	18	.538	Ohio Valley	13	27	.325
Kalamazoo	15	25	.375	Johnstown	12	27	.308
Ohio Valley	13	25	.342	Kalamazoo	10	29	.256

REGULAR SEASO	DN FI	NAL	STANDI	NGS	
CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB	
Johnstown	47	33	.588		
Evansville	46	33	.582	.5	
Canton	45	35	.563	2.0	
Richmond	43	37	.538	4.0	
Springfield	42	37	.532	4.5	
Chillicothe	41	38	.519	5.5	
Kalamazoo	33	46	.418	13.5	
Ohio Valley	21	59	.263	26.0	

#### **1997 PLAYOFF RESULTS**

FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Canton defeated Johnstown (2 games to 0) Evansville defeated Richmond (2 games to 1)

#### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Canton Defeated Evansville (2 games to 0)

#### 1997 Frontier League Champion Canton Crocodiles

1997	GAME ATTE	NDANCE	
CLUB	TOTAL	AVERAGE	
Evansville	91,018	2,395	
Canton	75,503	1,936	
Johnstown	59,768	1,615	
Chillicothe	56,070	1,602	
Kalamazoo	55,421	1,386	
Richmond	46,178	1,184	
Springfield	44,219	1,164	
Ohio Valley	20,604	528	

#### **1997 ALL-STAR TEAM**

- IB Mitch House, Chillicothe
- 2B Don DeDonatis, Kalamazoo
- 3B Mike Garner, Kalazamoo
- SS Keith Habig, Richmond
- OF Jackie Jempson, Chillicothe
- OF Danny Johnson, Canton
- OF Joe Ronca, Springfield
- C Jeff Uccello, Johnstown
- DH Morgan Burkhart, Richmond
- SP Mike Arner, Canton
- RP Randy Bromley, Johnstown

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Morgan Burkhart, Richmond MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - Mike Arner, Canton MANAGER OF THE YEAR - Mike Burton, Canton

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 216 PLATE APPEARANCES)

(minimum eror ente nir entimoeo)											
Player, Team	Avg	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB		
Habig, Keith, RIC	.353	295	68	104	18	2	9	51	8		
Ronca, Joe, SPR	.341	293	54	100	23	6	17	72	4		
Herman, Josh, OV	.339	218	22	74	12	0	4	31	3		
Johnson, Dan, CAN	.337	291	67	98	17	4	4	38	33		
Williams, Rodney, CAN	.332	274	43	91	19	3	4	50	10		
Aspeslet, Preston, CAN-JHN	1.332	208	40	69	10	0	2	39	11		
Wisely, Mike, KAL	.331	323	52	107	18	5	2	39	18		
Gamer, Mike, KAL	.330	261	36	86	15	2	11	56	1		
DeDonatis, Don, KAL	.328	314	64	103	20	3	1	34	65		
Bryant, Matt, CAN	.326	224	40	73	15	1	5	53	5		
Pass, Joe, RIC	.325	280	44	91	13	1	1	38	4		
Burkhart, Morgan, RIC	.323	285	76	92	22	0	24	74	8		
Robinson, Dave, EVN	.322	233	58	75	17	7	7	50	22		
Caston, Bernard, EVN	.321	209	44	67	10	3	2	34	34		
House, Mitch, CHI	.319	260	57	83	20	1	15	62	5		
Britt, Shane, RIC	.319	273	57	87	9	6	2	33	21		
Imrisek, Jason, EVN	.318	192	33	61	13	2	7	37	6		
Briller, Chris, CAN	.314	287	61	90	23	5	1	53	21		
Cano, Matt, EVN	.310	245	43	76	11	1	1	38	4		
Zerbe, Mike, KAL	.309	220	35	68	23	0	- 9	34	3		
Fatzinger, Darrell, OV	.308	286	51	88	29	0	14	60	2		
Anderson, Patrick, CHI	.307	205	25	63	13	0	3	29	2		
Harris, James, SPR	.307	293	62	90	21	0	14	62	1		
Glenn, Brandon, JHN	.307	202	41	62	4	2	1	21	12		
Klam, Jason, CAN	.304	276	63	84	24	1	- 9	65	25		

#### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 64 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Arner, Michael, CAN	6-2	2.28	12 0	79.0	76	30	58
Duff, Matthew, SPR	7-4	2.71	14 0	79.2	70	27	76
Spears, Robert, CHI	8-6	3.05	16 0	112.0	102	31	92
Schlee, Jeremy, EVN	6-2	3.09	33 1	64.0	65	27	50
Schultz, Eric, CAN	6-2	3.14	11 1	66.0	64	20	63
Nelson, Ronald, RIC	7-3	3.40	13 0	84.2	83	19	53
Neese, Joshua, SPR	8-1	3.51	18 0	107.2	97	38	84
Slattery, Alex, KAL	5-3	3.56	25 1	73.1	64	50	48
Perri, Tista, EVN	7-2	3.62	16 0	82.0	87	21	41
Jacobson, Kelton, KAL	6-4	3.67	15 0	100.2	100	61	67
Montfort, Jeffery, RIC	8-6	3.68	16 0	102.2	102	67	117
Gieras, Kevin, JHN	9-3	3.71	17 0	94.2	93	43	93
Heineman, Richard, CHI	5-4	3.73	17 0	99.0	101	48	75
Williams, Lawrence, RIC	5-3	3.76	11 0	69.1	60	32	89
Foster, Cliff, CAN	4-2	3.99	13 0	70.0	63	32	48
Abbott, Jim, JHN	5-5	4.03	15 0	82.2	83	26	70
Crawford, Danny, CAN	6-3	4.23	20 1	78.2	84	20	50
McAninch, Sam, CHI	7-4	4.32	16 0	91.2	106	47	64
Magrini, Paul, JHN	8-5	4.33	16 0	99.2	107	36	85
Collins, Richard, KAL	6-5	4.41	13 0	83.2	87	26	45
Brown, Mike, SPR	4-3	4.44	13 0	73.0	80	27	50
Irving, Jamie, JHN	5-4	4.64	24 1	77.2	76	30	48
Pollack, Dave, EVN	3-2	4.76	15 1	79.1	84	20	65
House, Sean, SPR	8-6	4.78	19 0	111.1	137	28	74

## TEAM BATTING

Team	Ava	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Canton	.292	2783	514	813	157	22	47	474	171
Richmond	.291	2731	485	796	139	23	68	435	85
Chillicothe	.291	2714	460	790	152	12	66	415	69
Evansville	.284	2672	476	759	128	27	36	399	157
Springfield	.281	2668	488	755	152	22	81	445	46
Kalamazoo	.277	2741	408	758	132	18	53	364	156
Johnstown	.275	2700	503	742	152	21	56	448	56
Ohio Valley	.256	2672	388	685	131	10	64	350	73

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	Н	BB	SO
Springfield	42-37	4.29	80	14	690.0	755	276	542
Richmond	43-37	4.35	80	16	692.2	709	347	632
Chillicothe	41-38	4.50	79	14	686.2	741	348	542
Evansville	46-33	4.53	79	20	693	731	270	533
Canton	45-35	4.58	80	16	695.0	732	352	494
Johnstown	47-33	4.80	80	19	689.1	773	309	547
Kalamazoo	33-46	5.32	80	12	702.0	800	384	431
Ohio Valley	21-59	6.83	80	8	681.1	857	386	491

## TEAM FIELDING

Team	Pct	G	PO	A	E	DP
Richmond	.965	80	2078	826	104	64
Johnstown	.962	80	2068	868	115	84
Kalamazoo	.961	80	2106	921	124	83
Evansville	.960	79	2080	826	122	75
Canton	.959	80	2085	865	126	79
Springfield	.958	80	2070	789	125	67
Ohio Valley	.953	80	2044	863	142	70
Chillicothe	.951	79	2060	819	148	76

## **CLUB RECORDS**

#### HOME RECORD

#### ROAD RECORD

Team	W	L	Pct	Team	W	L	Pct
Evansville	28	12	.700	Johnstown	23	17	.575
Canton	27	13	.675	Evansville	18	21	.462
Springfield	27	13	.675	Canton	18	22	.450
Richmond	26	14	.650	Richmond	17	23	.425
Chillicothe	24	15	.615	Chillicothe	17	23	.425
Johnstown	24	16	.600	Springfield	15	24	.385
Kalamazoo	22	17	.564	Kalamazoo	11	29	.275
Ohio Valley	11	29	.275	Ohio Valley	10	30	.250

#### REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

CLUB	W	L	PCT.	GB
Chillicothe	48	26	.649	
Zanesville	41	33	.554	7
Johnstown	41	33	.554	7
Springfield	39	35	527	9
Richmond	39	35	.527	9
Evansville	34	40	.459	18
Ohio Valley	30	44	.405	18
Kalamazoo	24	50	.324	24

**1996 PLAYOFF RESULTS** 

#### FIRST ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Chillicothe defeated Johnstown (2 games to 1) Springfield defeated Richmond (2 games to 1)

#### CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 3)

Springfield Defeated Chillicothe (2 games to 0)

#### 1996 Frontier League Champion Springfield Capitals

1996	1996 GAME ATTENDANCE							
CLUB	TOTAL	AVERAGE						
Evansville	84,492	2,347						
Kalamazoo	62,331	1,731						
Johnstown	61,575	1,811						
Richmond	55,510	1,586						
Chillicothe	51,419	1,390						
Springfield	47,854	1,329						
Ohio Valley	30,248	864						
Zanesville	24,190	733						

#### 1996 ALL-STAR TEAM

- IB Morgan Burkhart, Richmond
- 2B Joe Pass, Richmond
- 3B Mitch House, Chillicothe
- SS Matt Reimer, Chillicothe
- OF Gerald Bolden, Johnston
- OF Marty Watson, Evansville
- OF Jackie Jempson, Chillicothe
- C Jorge Melendez, Springfield
- DH Scott Pinoni, Chillicothe
- SP Matt Baxter, Zanesville
- RP Terry Pearson, Zanesville

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Morgan Burkhart, Richmond MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - Matt Baxter, Zanesville MANAGER OF THE YEAR - Roger Hanners, Chillicothe

LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 200PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player, Team	Avg	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Pinoni, Scott, CHI	.384	281	59	108	19	2	11	65	1
Burkhart, Morgan, RIC	.357	266	60	95	27	1	17	64	22
Holt, Kevin, JHN	.345	255	35	88	11	0	4	48	3
Bolden, Gerald, JHN	.344	247	42	85	8	0	3	32	10
Jempson, Jackie, CHI	.340	262	45	89	18	2	13	57	4
Brown, Derek, JHN	.332	310	41	103	26	1	0	47	1
Pass, Joe, RIC	.330	297	43	98	15	1	1	30	2
McDonnell, Tim, JHN	.329	228	33	75	18	0	4	32	4
Watson, Marty, EVN	.324	296	66	96	26	4	8	55	15
Johnson, Kevin, EVN	.320	231	29	74	14	3	1	35	12
Britt, Shane, RIC	.318	211	35	67	11	6	3	33	28
Davenport, Shane, EVN	.317	287	38	91	14	1	6	53	1
Harris, James, SPR	.315	260	33	82	12	0	1	56	1
Wilcox, Troy, CHI	.314	210	33	66	6	4	1	35	23
House, Mitch, CHI	.305	249	63	76	9	0	18	53	3
Murphy, Sean, EVN	.304	237	43	72	9	3	2	25	23
Fluck, Jesse, CHI	.298	312	56	93	9	6	1	33	20
Sutaris, Tom, O,V.	.297	232	52	69	18	4	8	38	9
Rockmore, Thurston, JN	.296	189	21	56	6	5	0	25	13
Fatzinger, Darrell, O.V.	.296	247	27	73	10	1	10	42	3

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINI MUM 59 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G	sv	IP	н	BB	so
Baxter, Matt, ZAN	9-2	2.47	16	0	102.0	94	49	60
House, Sean, SPR	7-4	2.51	14	0	89.2	94	22	55
DeVries, Andy, SPR	7-2	2.73	16	0	102.1	97	33	54
Edmondson, Reenn, CHI	9-3	2.82	16	1	83.0	55	31	63
Franek, Tom, ZAN	8-6	2.87	17	0	113.0	107	38	95
Smith, Jarod, EVN	8-7	2.93	19	2	116.2	87	37	98
Knobitt, Andrew, EVN	3-5	2.94	17	1	70.1	60	32	69
Brantley, Jim, SPR	4-3	2.97	31	1	66.2	63	28	41
Crowley, Torn, ZAN	3-2	3.15	25	3	68.2	72	22	60
Gieras, Kevin, JHN	6-1	3.23	13	0	78.0	76	47	64
Linder, Richie, ZAN	8-5	3.33	16	0	97.1	111	32	48
Leystra, Jeff, EVN	7-4	3.50	15	0	103.0	101	24	109
Williams, Larry, ZAN	4-7	3.51	14	0	59.0	62	24	48
Cancel, Rob, CHI	6-4	3.51	16	0	82.0	85	20	68
Hacker, Scott, RIC	6-8	3.68	16	0	93.0	119	10	47
Sheridan, Tim, CHI	4-3	3.69	11	0	63.1	61	34	40
Abbott, Jimmy, OV	6-2	3.70	17	0	90.0	73	41	76
Hess, Christian, EVN	7-4	3.81	15	0	78.0	79	41	61
Hinkle, Jon, CHI	8-2	3.93	16	0	103.0	106	18	46
Reeder, Russell, SPR	0-5	3.97	13	0	65.2	75	19	54

## TEAM BATTING

Team	Avg	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Johnstown	.300	2473	399	743	121	14	26	347	77
Chillicothe	.297	2538	433	753	106	23	49	373	124
Richmond	.279	2488	385	695	133	17	53	350	88
Evansville	.278	2504	388	697	123	20	31	342	90
Kalamazoo	.262	2523	304	662	106	9	25	271	67
Zanesville	.257	2349	297	603	98	7	11	257	134
Ohio Valley	.254	2406	334	612	95	21	47	291	83
Springfield	.254	2411	355	613	107	13	31	314	51

### TEAM PITCHING

Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	<b>S</b> 0
Springfield	39-35	3.27	74	19	636.1	630	243	469
Zanesville	41-33	3.31	74	23	633.0	677	244	457
Chillicothe	48-26	3.46	74	21	639.1	620	228	446
Evansville	34-40	4.09	74	12	647.0	666	286	557
Johnstown	41-33	4.39	74	13	625.1	696	337	464
Richmond	39-35	4.56	74	12	632.0	708	267	417
Ohio Valley	30-44	4.76	74	9	629.2	658	345	402
Kalamazoo	24-50	5.05	74	8	645.2	723	281	454

## TEAM FIELDING

Team	Pct	G	PO	A	E	DP
Johnstown	.966	74	1876	782	94	67
Chillicothe	.965	74	1918	836	100	73
Kalamazoo	.964	74	1937	841	103	66
Ohio Valley	.963	74	1889	870	106	67
Richmond	.962	74	1896	858	108	77
Zanesville	.960	74	1899	797	113	45
Evansville	.960	74	1941	737	113	56
Springfield	.959	74	1909	809	115	54

## **CLUB RECORDS**

#### HOME RECORD

#### ROAD RECORD

Team	w	L	Pct	Team	w	L	Pct
Chillicothe	30	7	.811	Johnstown	19	18	.514
Springfield	23	14	.622	Chillicothe	18	19	.486
Zanesville	23	14	.622	Richmond	18	19	.486
Johnstown	22	15	.595	Zanesville	18	19	.486
Richmond	21	16	.568	Springfield	16	21	.432
Ohio Valley	20	17	.541	Evansville	15	22	.405
Evansville	19	18	.514	Ohio Valley	10	27	.270
Kalamazoo	16	21	.432	Kalamazoo	8	29	.216

## **1995 FRONTIER LEAGUE** REGULAR SEASON FINAL STANDINGS

Club	w	L	Pct.	GB
Johnstown	46	23	.667	
Newark	39	29	.574	6.5
Zanesville	37	31	.544	8.5
Richmond	38	32	.543	8.5
Ohio Valley	36	34	.514	10.5
Evansville	31	38	.449	15.0
Portsmouth	28	41	.406	18.0
Chillicothe	21	48	.304	25.0

### **1995 PLAYOFF RESULTS**

First Round (best of three)

Johnstown defeated Richmond (2 games to 0) Zanesville defeated Newark (2 games to 0)

Championship Round (best of three) Johnstown defeated Zanesville (2 games to 0)

#### 1995 Frontier League Champion Johnstown Steal

1995 GAME ATTENDANCE								
Club	Total	Average						
Evansville	90,943	2,675						
Johnstown	67,167	1,976						
Richmond	47,714	1,403						
Chillicothe	31,128	916						
Zanesville	25,515	729						
Newark	21,309	666						
Ohio Valley	21,093	620						
Portsmouth	11,931	385						

### **1995 ALL-STAR TEAM**

1B	Morgan Burkhart	Richmond
2B	Mark Johnson	Newark
3B	Steve Ruckman	Richmond
SS	Robert Camarillo	Portsmouth
OF	Thurston Rockmore	Johnstown
OF	Jeff Snyder	Portsmouth
OF	Mark Soto	Johnstown
С	Stoney Burke	Richmond
DH	Johnny Booker	Richmond
SP	Sean Hogan	Johnstown
RP	Don Wolfe	Zanesville

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER – Mark Soto – Johnstown MOST VALUABLE PITCHER – Don Wolfe – Zanesville MANAGER OF THE YEAR – John Pacella – Newark

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 189 PLATE APPEARANCES)

Player, Team	Avg	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Snyder, Jeff, Psm	.398	221	39	88	13	2	1	34	20
James, Neill, Psm	.349	241	45	84	16	2	4	39	2
Goble, Rodney, Jhn	.345	197	37	68	8	3	1	25	22
Ruckman, Steve, Ric	.342	237	38	81	10	1	2	32	6
Alkire, Ryan, New	.333	177	27	59	9	2	2	28	15
Yuen, Franz, Evn	.332	224	27	81	19	5	6	33	3
Burkhart, Morgan, Ric	.330	282	58	93	28	1	9	70	16
Rockmore, Trurston, Jhn	.327	251	59	82	14	3	5	50	20
Coats, John, Jhn	.320	206	36	66	20	3	6	38	4
Angulo, Gabby, Chc	.320	222	27	71	12	0	1	26	1
Camarillo, Robert, Psm	.320	172	30	55	12	1	3	27	3
Slone, Greg, Ric	.319	185	34	59	8	1	2	18	19
Soto, Mark, Jhn	.313	272	62	85	22	5	12	62	2
Range, Jeff, OV	.311	206	44	64	12	2	0	27	2
Hernandez, Carlos, New	.310	203	26	63	9	0	3	35	0
Zaragoza, Tony, Jhn	.310	168	36	52	12	2	3	28	2
Johnson, Mark, New	.307	283	53	87	9	4	4	28	14
Venneman, Kurt, Zan	.307	254	43	78	11	2	3	34	4
Gabbart, Christopher, OV	.306	219	49	67	12	3	10	60	8
Foss, Dirk, OV	.305	249	54	76	12	2	4	40	30
Bolton, Douglas, Ric	.302	205	40	62	5	3	0	25	7
Alligood, Rusty, Zan	.302	245	39	74	6	1	0	25	37
Drabik, Jeff, Ric	.302	169	31	51	12	1	1	24	3

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 56 INNINGS)

Pitcher, Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Bonelli, Ralph, New	6-2	2.45	14	0	102.2	100	35	47
Hogan, Sean, Jhn	7-1	2.48	15	0	94.1	85	43	86
Ainsworth, C., New	3-2	2.48	13	0	58.0	56	24	43
Arnold, Chad, Psm	6-3	2.74	24	0	82.0	84	21	66
Mercado, Fernando, OV	8-4	2.82	15	0	105.1	97	32	91
Copp, Matthew, Chc	6-6	2.88	15	0	100.0	101	38	67
Boebert, Michael, Jhn	7-5	2.94	15	0	95.0	87	55	84
Bakner, Brett, Ric	2-1	3.07	15	0	58.2	61	29	36
McGill, Ronald, Evn	4-6	3.14	15	0	91.2	90	44	69
Pearson, Terry, Zan	6-2	3.23	14	0	83.2	80	37	55
Cancel, Rob, Zan	6-4	3.26	24	0	69.0	61	24	54
Bellows, Michael, Psm	4-3	3.26	16	0	60.2	65	19	43
Smart, Kasey, New	5-4	3.28	14	0	90.2	96	16	69
Guehne, Dan, Evn	6-3	3.32	11	0	76.0	87	7	51
Williams, Billy, Jhn	9-4	3.32	15	0	100.1	107	36	64
Conlin, Sean, Zan	3-4	3.41	27	1	58.0	51	26	50

## TEAM BATTING

Team	Avg	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Johnstown	.301	2444	456	735	154	22	36	403	78
Richmond	.292	2481	425	725	135	14	35	382	106
Portsmouth	.289	2326	360	672	114	10	26	316	87
Ohio Valley	.279	2440	470	681	104	18	42	397	121
Zanesville	.272	2291	348	624	101	10	12	295	137
Newark	.271	2350	344	638	84	18	24	297	129
Evansville	.260	2349	329	610	102	9	28	300	111
Chillicothe	.256	2344	275	601	85	15	19	240	91

### **TEAM PITCHING**

Team	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	SO
Johnstown	46-23	3.39	69	15	616.0	612	283	488
Zanesville	37-31	3.96	69	22	598.1	609	274	447
Newark	39-29	4.28	68	15	605.2	642	264	395
Evansville	31-28	4.39	69	16	608. <mark>1</mark>	681	275	443
Ohio Valley	36-34	4.42	71	8	612.1	675	297	420
Chillicothe	21-48	4.69	69	11	600.2	676	328	407
Portsmouth	28-41	4.79	69	7	596.0	658	330	437
Richmond	38-32	4.80	70	11	624.0	733	292	375

## TEAM FIELDING

Team	Pct	G	PO	A	E	DP
Richmond	.966	70	1872	788	94	64
Johnstown	.965	69	1848	721	93	56
Newark	.958	68	1817	789	115	59
Ohio Valley	.955	71	1837	765	124	56
Zanesville	.954	69	1795	756	123	62
Evansville	.950	69	1825	726	134	42
Portsmouth	.949	69	1788	722	136	48
Chillicothe	.947	69	1802	752	142	61

## CLUB RECORDS

#### HOME RECORD

#### ROAD RECORD

Team	W	L	Pct	Team	W	L	Pct
Newark	24	9	.727	Johnstown	21	13	.618
Johnstown	25	10	.714	Richmond	17	18	.486
Ohio Valley	21	14	.600	Zanesville	16	17	.485
Richmond	21	14	.600	Ohio Valley	15	20	.429
Zanesville	21	14	.600	Newark	15	20	.429
Portsmouth	20	14	.588	Evansville	12	22	.353
Evansville	19	16	.543	Chillicothe	8	27	.229
Chillicothe	13	21	.382	Portsmouth	8	27	.229

#### FINAL STANDINGS

1ST HALF				
NORTHERN DIVISION	w	L	PCT.	GB
Ohio Valley	26	8	.764	_
Erie	20	14	.588	6.0
Zanesville	16	13	.552	7.5
Newark	12	19	.387	12.5
SOUTHERN DIVISION	W	L	PCT.	GB
Chillicothe	17	16	.515	_
Portsmouth	13	17	.433	2.5
Kentucky	12	21	.364	5.0
Lancaster	10	20	.333	5.5
2ND HALF				
2ND HALF Northern Division	w	L	PCT.	GB
	<b>W</b> 24	L 9	PCT. .727	GB
NORTHERN DIVISION		_		
NORTHERN DIVISION Ohio Valley	24	9	.727	_
NORTHERN DIVISION Ohio Valley Erie	24 22	9 11	.727	2.0
NORTHERN DIVISION Ohio Valley Erie Zanesville	24 22 19	9 11 15	.727 .667 .559	2.0 6.5
NORTHERN DIVISION Ohio Valley Erie Zanesville Newark	24 22 19 14	9 11 15 18	.727 .667 .559 .438	2.0 6.5 9.5
NORTHERN DIVISION Ohio Valley Erie Zanesville Newark SOUTHERN DIVISION	24 22 19 14 <b>W</b> 16 15	9 11 15 18 <b>L</b> 18 19	.727 .667 .559 .438 <b>PCT.</b> .471 .441	2.0 6.5 9.5 <b>GB</b> 1.0
NORTHERN DIVISION Ohio Valley Erie Zanesville Newark SOUTHERN DIVISION Chillicothe	24 22 19 14 <b>W</b> 16	9 11 15 18 <b>L</b> 18 19	.727 .667 .559 .438 <b>PCT.</b> .471	2.0 6.5 9.5 GB

#### PLAYOFFS

#### **1ST ROUND (BEST OF 3)**

Erie defeated Ohio Valley 2 games to none. Lancaster defeated Chillicothe 2 games to 1.

#### **CHAMPIONSHIP ROUND (BEST OF 3)**

Erie defeated Lancaster 2 games to none.

#### 1994 Frontier League Champion Erie Sailors

	ATTENDAN	CE.	
CLUB	TOTAL	AVERAGE	
Erie	64,355	1,893	
Newark	44,910	1,361	
Chillicothe	32,808	965	
Ohio Valley	24,402	739	
Zanesville	19,178	639	
Kentucky	12,803	388	
Portsmouth	10,717	325	
Lancaster	7,055	243	

#### ALL-STAR TEAM

- IB Darrell Fatzinger, Ohio Valley
- 2B Dan Bartolomeo, Portsmouth
- 3B Steve Ruckman, Newark
- SS Andy Srebroski, Ohio Valley
- OF Joe Miller, Portsmouth
- OF Corey Morris, Ohio Valley
- OF Scott Pagano, Ohio Valley
- C Jason Moore, Chillicothe
- DH Robbie Robertson, Erie
- RHP Jim Knight, Erie
- LHP Joe Fushey, Newark
- RP Brad Keely, Ohio Valley

MOST VALUABLE PLAYER - Corey Morris, Ohio Valley MOST VALUABLE PITCHER - Jim Knight, Erie MANAGER OF THE YEAR - Greg Le Master, Ohio Valley

### LEADING BATTING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 184 PLATE APPEARANCES)

PLAYER	TEAM	AVG	AB	R	н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Miller, Joe	PSM	.402	194	45	78	9	0	10	45	5
Morris, Corey	OV	.394	231	67	91	22	2	19	63	21
Pagano, Scott J.	OV	.384	232	62	89	19	1	7	31	53
Thompson, Allen	ERI	.347	236	46	82	22	0	9	61	0
Bartolomeo, Dan	PSM	.341	170	32	58	7	0	0	25	6
Ronevich, Jeff	ZAN	.341	220	42	75	10	0	1	36	3
Venneman, Kurt	CHI	.341	223	29	76	10	0	4	42	0
Avery, Mark T.	CHI	.333	234	41	78	11	1	9	42	2
Fatzinger, Darrell	OV	.332	244	43	81	15	2	11	57	6
Ruckman, Steve	NEW	.332	217	42	72	14	0	4	51	1
Horner, Warren	PSM	.332	217	35	72	6	0	2	42	12
Srebroski, Andy	ov	.325	206	37	67	13	2	5	30	11
Smedes, Mike	ERI	.323	251	39	81	12	2	6	51	0
Randall, Robert	NEW	.313	182	29	57	7	3	1	21	15
Brice, Billy T.	KEN	.310	232	32	72	10	0	8	38	3
Robinson, Joe	ZAN	.310	187	42	58	6	2	2	16	11
Montiel, Dave	LAN	.302	199	31	60	5	3	0	21	23
Venditti, Mark	ZAN	.301	229	46	69	19	4	7	48	2
Chesnut, Brandon	LAN	.301	229	24	69	9	0	1	35	0
Robertson, Robert S	S. ERI	.301	249	56	75	10	2	11	52	6

### LEADING PITCHING QUALIFIERS (MINIMUM 54 INNINGS)

PITCHER	TEAM	W-L	ERA	G	SV	IP	н	BB	<b>SO</b>
Seymour, Matt	ZAN	5-6	1.81	14	0	74.2	59	30	41
Wesley, Chris	LAN	5-1	2.00	15	2	67.1	58	36	53
Fushey, Joe	NEW	7-2	2.08	12	0	86.1	75	33	45
Fletcher, J. Paul	OV	6-2	2.52	19	2	60.2	45	29	59
Knight, Jim	ERI	9-1	2.54	15	0	95.2	78	37	56
McAlester, John	ERI	8-5	2.55	14	0	102.1	84	27	57
Alexander, Robby	ZAN	6-1	2.83	17	1	76.1	77	12	35
Tollberg, Brian	CHI	7-4	2.85	13	0	94.2	90	27	69
Mason, Troy	OV	5-3	2.85	13	0	75.2	56	34	41
Underwood, Wm A	. OV	7-2	2.98	13	0	81.2	71	37	52
Fennessy, Jeff	PSM	6-3	3.21	10	0	70.0	74	37	39
Crowley, Tom V.	ZAN	6-4	3.36	12	0	67.0	58	15	67
Seljan, Todd	ZAN	5-2	3.43	11	0	60.1	54	28	40
Gammon, Bryce	KEN	8-3	3.56	15	0	86.0	92	29	37
Frazier, R. Bradley	OV	8-1	3.63	14	1	67.0	65	30	58
Brown, Craig	CHI	4-4	3.96	13	0	91.0	99	34	42

# **1994 Statistics**

### TEAM BATTING

TEAM	AVG	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
OHIO VALLEY	.287	2165	411	621	115	12	66	348	139
CHILLICOTHE	.281	2256	339	633	90	7	29	297	61
ERIE	.280	2239	398	628	110	10	51	354	57
PORTSMOUTH	.280	2018	323	565	80	5	29	284	66
ZANESVILLE	.274	2030	342	557	98	11	18	281	60
NEWARK	.268	2037	313	546	81	9	20	280	78
LANCASTER	.268	2123	303	569	74	7	23	274	76
KENTUCKY	.249	2080	282	517	81	5	29	241	76

TEAM PITCHING									
TEAM	W - L	ERA	G	SV	IP	Н	BB	<b>SO</b>	
OHIO VALLEY	50-17	3.38	67	23	570.2	505	258	471	
ZANESVILLE	35-28	3.72	63	14	527.2	515	201	376	
ERIE	42-25	4.12	67	16	571.2	545	284	365	
CHILLICOTHE	33-34	4.36	67	10	571.2	602	308	342	
NEWARK	26-37	4.88	63	13	520.0	587	263	297	
KENTUCKY	24-41	5.14	65	8	549.1	641	309	305	
PORTSMOUTH	24-38	5.30	62	12	514.2	618	304	321	
LANCASTER	25-39	5.35	64	10	544.2	623	329	357	

### TEAM FIELDING

TEAM	PCT	G	PO	Α	Ε	DP
OHIO VALLEY	.967	67	1712	655	82	70
ERIE	.963	67	1715	750	95	61
ZANESVILLE	.960	63	1583	658	93	45
CHILLICOTHE	.955	67	1715	748	116	68
PORTSMOUTH	.953	62	1544	640	107	47
KENTUCKY	.950	65	1648	706	124	59
NEWARK	.945	63	1560	689	130	49
LANCASTER	.945	64	1634	662	133	57

### CLUB RECORDS

## HOME RECORD

TEAM	W	L	PCT	W	L	PCT
OHIO VALLEY	25	8	.758	25	9	.735
ERIE	24	10	.706	18	15	.545
ZANESVILLE	20	10	.667	15	18	.455
CHILLICOTHE	20	14	.588	13	20	.394
KENTUCKY	17	16	.515	7	25	.219
LANCASTER	12	17	.414	13	22	.371
NEWARK	13	20	.394	13	17	.433
PORTSMOUTH	10	23	.303	14	15	.483

ROAD RECORD

## **1993 Statistics**

STANDINGS									
FIRST HALF									
EAST	W	L	PCT	GE	WEST	W	L	PCT	GE
KENTUCKY	17	9	554		ZANESVILLE	18	11	.621	
OHIO VALLEY	15	14	.517	3.5	CHILLICOTHE	14	15	.483	4
PORTSMOUTH	10	16	.357	8	LANCASTER	14	16	.467	4.5
WEST VIRGINIA	3	7	.300	8	TRI-STATE	5	6	.455	4
SECOND HALF									
EAST	W	L	PCT	GE	WEST	W	L	PCT	GE
OHIO WALLEY	14	8	.638		ZANESVILLE	17	6	.739	-
PORTSMOUTH	10	13	.434	4.5	CHILLICOTHE	11	12	.478	6
KENTUCKY	10	14	.415	5	LANCASTER	6	17	.320	10

WestVirginia and Tri-State franchises withdrew from league.

CHAMPIONSHIP SERIES: Zanesville defeated Ohio Valley 2-0 in best of 3 game series.

#### 1993 Frontier League Champion Zanesville Greys

INDIVIDUAL BATTING LEADERS (Minimum 125 AT-BATS)									
PLAYER, CLUB	AVG	AB	R	Н	2B	3B	HR	RBI	SB
Shade, Kyle, Zane	.378	193	42	73	19	0	6	42	0
O'Conner, Pat, Lanc	.354	130	30	46	14	2	2	23	9
Brice, Billy, Kent	.349	152	28	53	11	1	5	32	1
Sutaris, Thomas, O.V.	.349	175	41	61	11	1	3	23	2
Cosmo, Nick, O.V.	.343	181	36	62	7	1	3	15	8
Rollyson, Jeff, Zane	.336	128	35	43	8	1	4	18	11
Wambach, James, Zane	.335	170	29	57	8	1	10	35	3
Buso, Steve, Port	.332	167	36	52	11	1	6	30	6
Ramion, Shawn, Port	.331	136	19	45	10	0	4	25	1
Scruggs, Ricky, Lanc	.322	174	23	56	13	0	5	38	5
Smith, Adam, Kent	.320	126	13	41	8	0	6	32	3
Kennaw, Matt, Port	.318	171	20	54	10	1	1	27	0
McGuire, Mike, Zane	.316	158	19	50	6	0	4	28	7
Zunich, Chris, Zane	.311	167	40	52	7	2	6	34	1
Karris, Tim, O.V.	.307	153	28	47	10	0	7	42	0

#### INDIVIDUAL PITCHING LEADERS (MINIMUM 50 INNINGS)

						-				_
PLAYER, CLUB	W	L	ERA	0	SV	IP	Н	BB	SO	
Crowley, Tom, Zane	7	1	2.05	11	0	88	80	15	76	
Newman, Jeff, O.V.	5	4	2.41	15	0	78	61	31	66	
Pate, Cory, Chil	5	3	3.01	11	0	81	72	39	52	
Lantz, Mick, Zane	5	1	3.02	8	0	54	52	12	27	
Conkling, Bill, O.V.	7	3	3.13	11	0	75	71	32	67	
Brown, Jeff, Port	7	5	3.28	16	1	88	89	31	76	
Puente, Ulpiano, Zane	8	1	3.31	13	0	88	88	23	39	
McLaury Mike, Kent	7	3	3.33	13	0	78	83	17	33	
Ybarra, Jaimie, Kent	2	5	3.34	11	0	65	71	37	44	
Ertel, Will, Lanc	5	4	3.35	14	1	81	87	19	52	

### FRONTIER LEAGUE AWARD WINNERS

Most Valuable Player: Kyle Shade, Zanesville Most Valuable Pitcher: Tom Crowley, Zanesville Manager of the Year: Tom Venditelli, Zanesville



### FRONTIER LEAGUE RECORDS

#### INDIVIDUAL BATTING

AVERAGE:	.405, Pichi Balet, Cook Co., 2002
AT-BATS:	410, Jose Vargas, Traverse City, 2012
HITS:	144, Jose Rodriguez, Chillicothe, 2005
DOUBLES:	39, Travis Garcia, Ohio Valley, 2005
TRIPLES:	16, Chris Sidick, Washington, 2006
HOME RUNS:	36, Morgan Burkhart, Richmond, 1998
RBI:	100, Pete Pirman, Kalamazoo, 2005; Jose Vargas, Traverse City, 2012
TOTAL BASES:	253, Ian Church, Kalamazoo, 2006
EXTRA BASE HITS:	70, Ian Church, Kalamazoo, 2006
BASE ON BALLS:	110, Ryan Still, Traverse City, 2012
STRIKEOUTS:	140, Brandon Cohen, Evansville/Florence, 2010
GAMES PLAYED (SEASON):	96, several
CONSECUTIVE GAMES	339, Mike Torres, Windy City, 6/1/2011-7/29/2014
PLAYED: STOLEN BASES:	71, Darian Sandford, Southern Illinois/Washington, 2012
SLUGGING PERCENTAGE:	.861, Morgan Burkhart, Richmond, 1998
ON-BASE PERCENTAGE:	.557, Morgan Burkhart, Richmond, 1998
SACRIFICE HITS:	21, Steve Young, Traverse City, 2006; Chris Wade, Windy City, 2011
SACRIFICE FLIES:	14, Rico Santana, Rockford, 2004
HIT BY PITCH:	38, Junior Arroyo, Florence, 2013
CONSECUTIVE GAME HIT STREAK:	40, Jason James, Rockford, 2009
HOME RUNS/GAME:	3, Several, last - Trey Hair, Sussex County, 6/1/2021
RBI/GAME:	10, Quincy Nieporte, Schaumburg, 8/21/2015
STOLEN BASES/GAME:	5, 3 players, Last - Jonathan Johnson, Gateway, 8/25/2012
GRAND SLAM HOME RUNS:	3, 5 players, Last - Jereme Milons, Southern Illinois, 2009
HIT FOR CYCLE:	Several, Last - Matt McGarry, Schaumburg, 6/18/2021
MOST HITS GAME	6, 11 times, last - Tyler Straub, Windy City, 7/6/2018

#### INDIVIDUAL PITCHING

WINS	16	John Martinez, Chillicothe, 2005
LOSSES	14	Will Anderson, Gateway, 2017
EARNED RUN AVERAGE	0.85	Jason Shelley, Rockford, 2003
WINNING PERCENTAGE	1.000	Tim Koons, River City, 2015 (11-0)
GAMES	65	Patrick Crider, River City, 2014
GAMES STARTED	22	Tom Cochran, Washington, 2006
		Andy Polk, Chillicothe, 2008
		Everett Saul, Florence, 2009
		Kevin Reese, Traverse City, 2010
		Paul Fagan, Lake Erie, 2012
COMPLETE GAMES	9	Matt Sheets, Johnstown, 2000
		Tony Harden, Springfield, 2000
SHUTOUTS	5	Mike Recchia, Windy City 2012
CONSECUTIVE SCORELESS INNINGS	38.1	Alex Romero, Lake Erie, 2018
INNINGS PITCHED	159.0	John Martinez, Chillicothe, 2005

SAVES	32
STRIKEOUTS	177
RUNS ALLOWED	99
EARNED RUNS ALLOWED	87
HITS ALLOWED	176
WILD PITCHES	21
BALKS	6

CONSECUTIVE SCORELESS INNINGS 35

Matt Helfer, Portsmouth, 1995 Tony Casoli, Traverse City, 2006

Jonathan Kountis, Washington 2014 Mike Recchia, Windy City 2012 Joe DiPietro, Kalamazoo, 2010 Joe DiPietro, Kalamazoo, 2010 Jamie Irving, Johnstown, 1998 Jerry Waller, Kalamazoo, 1998 Anthony Vitale, Kalamazoo/Richmond, 1998

#### FRONTIER LEAGUE RECORDS

#### TEAM BATTING

.306, Richmond, 1998 3372, Rockford, 2005 645, Washington, 2005 999, Washington, 2005 1527, Gateway, 2007 203, Normal, 2014 58, Washington, 2006 164, Gateway, 2007 567, Washington, 2005 438, Southern Illinois, 2014 840, Florence, 2010 204, Windy City, 2021 96, Normal, 2010 .502, Gateway, 2007 .406, Richmond, 1998

#### TEAM PITCHING

Windy City, 2007; River City, 2011
 Kalamazoo, 2010
 Kalamazoo, 2010
 S4, Chillicothe, 2006
 Johnstown, 2000
 Traverse City, 2012
 869.2, Southern Illinois, 2014
 1,021, Mid-Missouri, 2005
 Gateway, 2009
 Gateway, 2009
 Gateway, 2009
 Gateway, 2008
 S43, Evansville, 2021

#### TEAM FIELDING

.983, Southern Illinois, 2016 2,586, Washington, 2006 1,151, Traverse City, 2006 181, Cook County, 2000 3,794, Traverse City, 2008 114, Lake Erie, 2010 41, Mid-Missouri, 2005

#### GAME RECORDS

 Windy City 4, Washington 3, June 1, 2013
 5:53, Windy City 4, Washington 3, June 1, 2013
 31, London (vs Dubois County), June 18, 1999
 15, Southern Illinois (at Normal), June 4, 2017, 4th inning Evansville (vs. Traverse City), June 25, 2017, 4th inning

AVERAGE: AT-BATS: RUNS: HITS: TOTAL BASES: DOUBLES: TRIPLES: HOME RUNS: RBI: BASE ON BALLS: STRIKEOUTS: STOLEN BASES: HIT INTO DP: SLUGGING PERCENTAGE: ON-BASE PERCENTAGE:

#### WINS:

- LOSSES: EARNED RUN AVERAGE: COMPLETE GAMES: SAVES: INNINGS PITCHED: HITS ALLOWED: RUNS ALLOWED: EARNED RUNS ALLOWED: BASE ON BALLS: STRIKEOUTS:
- FIELDING PERCENTAGE: PUTOUTS: ASSISTS: ERRORS: TOTAL CHANCES: DOUBLE PLAYS: PASSED BALLS:

LONGEST GAME (INNINGS): LONGEST GAME (TIME): MOST RUNS IN A GAME: MOST RUNS IN AN INNING:

#### FRONTIER LEAGUE INDIVIDUAL CAREER OFFENSIVE RECORDS

#### GAMES PLAYED

1. Santiago Chirino	632
2. Chris Sidick	588
3. Mike Torres	565
4. Andrew Davis	545
5. Charlie Lisk	531

#### AT-BATS

1. Santiago Chirino	2,291
2. Chris Sidick	2,225
3. Mike Torres	2,081
4. Andrew Davis	2,075
5. Charlie Lisk	2,042

#### RUNS SCORED

1. Chris Sidick	434
2. Stephen Holdren	
3. Santiago Chirino	
4. Charlie Lisk	
5. Mike Torres	338

#### HITS

1Santiago Chirino	809
2. Chris Sidick	635
3. Mike Torres	611
4. Andrew Davis	606
5. Charlie Lisk	572

#### HOME RUNS

1. Charlie Lisk	127
2. Stephen Holdren	100
3. Morgan Burkhart	86
4. Jose Vargas	84
5. Mike Breyman	82

#### RUNS BATTED IN

1. Charlie Lisk	442
2. Andrew Davis	387
3. Jose Vargas	360
4. Stephen Holdren	351
5. Fran Riordan	312
Mike Breyman	312

#### FRONTIER LEAGUE INDIVIDUAL CAREER PITCHING RECORDS

#### GAMES

1. Nick Kennedy	. 256
2. Patrick Crider	.242
3. Matt Schweitzer	. 196
4. Zac Treece	193
5. Chandler Jagodzinski	. 192

### INNINGS PITCHED

1. Aaron Ledbetter	2
2. Chase Cunningham	4
3. Tyler Lavigne	1
4. Perry Cunningham	2
5.JaVaun West	2

#### GAMES STARTED

1.Aaron Ledbetter	. 98
2.Chase Cunningham	97
3. Tyler Lavigne	82
4.Perry Cunningham	
5.Jake Fisher	72

#### WINS

1. Aaron Ledbetter	51
2. Chase Cunningham	39
3. Scott Dunn	38
4Andy Clark	37
Perry Cunningham	

#### SAVES

1.Zach Strecker	. 74
2.Eric Massingham	70
3. Jonathan Kountis	. 62
4.Bobby Chandler	56
5.Gabe Shaw	55

#### STRIKEOUTS

1. Aaron Ledbetter	522
2. JaVaun West	468
3. Matt Schweitzer	434
4.Gunnar Kines	420
5. Jake Fisher	412

## 1993-2021 ALL-TIME FRONTIER LEAGUGE WIN-LOSS PERCENTAGES

Teams are ranked by win percentage Years in League ()

RANK	CLUB	w	L	РСТ.	TITLES
1	Erie Sailors (1)	42	25	.627	1
2	Zanesville Grevs (4)	148	109	.576	1
3	Oakland County Cruisers (1)	53	43	.575	0
4	Southern Illinois Miners (14)	770	571	.574	1
5	London Werewolves (3)	137	114	.546	1
6	Washington Wild Things (19)	949	795	.544	0
7	Schaumburg Boomers (9)**	464	400	.537	4
8	Springfield/Ozark Ducks (1)	52	44	.542	0
9	Equipe Quebec/Capitales (1)	52	44	.542	?
10	Dubois County Dragons (4)	177	157	.530	0
11	Kenosha Mammoths (1)	47	42	.528	Õ
12	River City Rascals (20)	1027	921	.527	1
13	Johnstown Johnnies/Steal (8)	333	303	.524	2
14	Chillicothe Paints (16)	688	628	.523	0
15	Tri-City ValleyCats (1)	50	46	.521	?
16	Springfield Capitals (6)	250	231	.520	2
17	Lake Erie Crushers (12)	595	552	.518	1
18	Richmond Roosters (11)	483	453	.516	2
19	Sussex County Miners (1)	49	46	.516	?
20	Traverse City Beach Bums (13)	637	605	.513	1
21	Evansville Ötters (26)	1170	1177	.499	2
22	Canton Crocodiles (5)	204	207	.497	1
23	Newark Buffaloes/Bison (2)	62	66	.496	0
24	Cook County Cheetahs/	1156	1191	.493	2
	Windy City Thunderbolts (22)				
25	Gateway Grizzlies (20)	912	958	.488	1
26	Canton Coyotes (1)	41	43	.488	0
27	Rockford RiverHawks/Aviators (13)	599	628	.488	1
28	Kalamazoo Kings (10)	452	477	.487	1
29	Normal CornBelters (9)	432	446	.487	0
30	Florence Freedom/Y'alls (17)	<b>816</b>	<b>881</b>	.482	0
31	Joliet Slammers (8)	400	462	.461	2
32	Ohio Valley Redcoats (7)	238	273	.462	0
33	Tri-State Tomahawks *	238 5	6	.402	0
34	New York Boulders (1)	43	52	.453	?
35	Kentucky Rifles (2)	<b>4</b> 3 51	52 64	.443	0
36	London Rippers *	25	35	.443	0
37	New Jersey Jackals (1)	23 39	56	.411	?
38	Portsmouth Explorers (3)	72	108	.400	0
39	Lancaster Scouts (2)	45	72	.385	0
40	Midwest Sliders (2)	43 71	121	.385	0
41	Frontier Greys (3)	102	184	.357	0
42	Kalamazoo Kodiaks (3)	85	150	.353	0
43	Mid-Missouri Mavericks (3)	83 92	130	.333	0
44	Slippery Rock Sliders (1)	29	66	.305	0
45	West Virginia Coal Sox *	29 3	7	.303	0
46	Road Warriors *	9	27	.300	0
	Roud Wallors	,	21	.230	0

## FRONTIER LEAGUE ALL-TIME WINS BY MANAGER

RANK	MANAGER	YEARS	WINS	RECORD	PCT.	TITLES
1	Mike Pinto	14 years	780	780-669	.538	1
2	Andy McCauley	14 years	660	660-591	.539	2
3	Fran Riordan	13 years	625	625-537	.538	3
4	Phil Warren	13 years	606	606-632	.489	0
5	Jeff Isom	12 years	560	560-502	.527	1
6	Steve Brook	10 years	542	542-415	.566	2
7	Jamie Bennett	8 years	464	464-400	.537	4
7	Gregg Langbehn	9 years	457	457-405	.530	0
8	John Massarelli	8 years	420	420-346	.548	0
9	Greg Tagert	9 years	412	412-336	.551	0
10	Jamie Keefe	9 years	374	374-435	.462	0
11	Greg Jelks	7 years	313	313-337	.482	1
12	Roger Hanners	8 years	303	303-281	.519	0
13	Brooks Carey	6 years	287	287-286	.501	0
14	Dennis Pelfrey	5 years	262	262-217	.547	0
15	Mal Fichman	6 years	260	260-194	.573	4

Bold = active at the beginning of the 2022 season

## 1993-2021 ALL-TIME FRONTIER LEAGUE POSTSEASON WIN-LOSS RECORD

RANK	CLUB	W-L	PCT.	APP.	TITLES
1	Erie Sailors	4-0	1.000	1	1
2	Schaumburg Boomers	24-7	.774	4	4
3	Springfield Capitals	8-3	.727	2	2
4 (tie)	London Werewolves	4-2	.667	2	1
4 (tie)	Zanesville Greys	4-2	.667	2	1
6	Windy City Thunderbolts	13-7	.650	4	2
7	Joliet Slammers	13-8	.636	3	1
8	Canton Crocodiles	6-4	.600	3	1
9	Johnstown Johnnies/Steal	10-7	.589	5	2
10	River City Rascals	34-28	.548	9	1
11	Travers City Beach Bums	12-10	.545	4	1
12	Richmond Roosters	7-7	.500	5	2
13	Kalamazoo Kings	11-12	.478	4	1
14	Gateway Grizzlies	10-12	.455	5	1
15	Washington Wild Things	23-29	.442	10	0
16	Evansville Otters	23-32	.439	12	2
17	Southern Illinois Miners	13-17	.433	7	1
18	Rockford River	9-12	.429	5	1
	Hawks/Aviators				
19	Florence Freedom/Y'alls	14-19	.424	5	0
20	Chillicothe Paints	19-26	.422	8	0
21 (tie)	Lancaster Scouts	2-3	.400	1	0
21 (tie)	Equipe Quebec/Capitales	2-3	.400	1	0
23 (tie)	Lake Erie Crushers	8-16	.333	5	1
23 (tie)	Dubois County Dragons	2-4	.333	2	0
25 (tie)	Newark Bison	0-2	.000	1	0
25 (tie)	Normal CornBelters	0-2	.000.	1	0
25 (tie)	Ohio Valley Redcoats	0-4	.000	2	0

## 1993-2021 ALL-TIME FRONTIER LEAGUE HOMERUN TOTALS

RANK	CLUB	TOTAL
1	Gateway Grizzlie	1,891
2	River City Rascals	1,688
3	Evansville Otters	1,636
4	Washington Wild Things	1,415
5	Florence Freedom/Y'alls	1,394
6	Cook County Cheetahs/	1,271
Ũ	Windy City Thunderbolts	-,_, -
7	Southern Illinois Miners	1,029
8	Chillicothe Paints	946
9	Traverse City Beach Bums	807
10	Richmond Roosters	784
11	Kalamazoo Kings	760
12	Lake Erie Crushers	739
13	Rockford	717
	RiverHawks/Aviators	
14	Joliet Slammers	622
15	Normal Cornbelters	590
16	Schaumburg Boomers	523
17	Springfield Capitals	417
18	Ohio Valley Redcoats	385
19	Johnstown Johnnies/Steal	350
20 (tie)	Canton Crocodiles	203
20 (tie)	Frontier Greys	203
22	Mid-Missouri Mavericks	179
23	London Werewolves	166
24	Dubois County Dragons	161
25	Kalamazoo Kodiaks	156
26	Midwest Sliders	125
27	Tri-City ValleyCats	114
28	New York Boulders	103
29	Zanesville Greys	89
30	New Jersey Jackals	86
31	Portsmouth Explorers	83
32	Equipe Quebec/Capitales	79
33	Springfield/Ozark Ducks	73
34	Sussex County Miners	72
35	Kentucky Rifles	69
36	Lancaster Scouts	57
37	Erie Sailors	51
38 (tie)	Slippery Rock Sliders	47
38 (tie)	Oakland County Cruisers	47
40	Newark Buffaloes/Bison	44
41	Kenosha Mammoths	42
42	London Rippers	36
43	Canton Coyotes	32
44	Road Warriors	11
45	West Virginia Coal Sox	N/A
46	Tri-State Tomahawks	N/A

### **2022 FRONTIER LEAGUE UMPIRES**

Drew Ashcraft Sean Backus David Bailey Calvin Baker Matt Beaver Justin Bertsche David Blanchet Jacob Botek Kurt Branin Noah Brophy Nate Caldwell Shane Cannon Eric Carmona Melvin Chettum Bryan Childe Preston Childers Kevin Claycomb Cedric Coleman Matt Criss Joe Cruz Charlie Curcio Robert Davis Federico De Jesus William Decker Chris Deichman Wes Dunkel Eric Eckert Kris Engstrand **Timothy Farwig** Sal Fernandez Mike Fichter Justin Franz Joseph Giaccio Sal Giacomantonio Tony Gisondi

Manny Gonzalez John Grasso James Grillo John Hastings Grant Henderson Connor Hoagland Tre Hudson Joseph Iglio Anthony Inzero Frank Iurilli Lou Kammermeier Richard Katz Joseph Kimbrew Trevor Klostermann Jonathan Lamattina Steven Leonardo Ben Levin Alan Libardoni Dominick Longbucco Cary Lyle Brad Marti Mike Martin Silvio Martinez Jr Tim McCaffrey Bryce McCalla Patrick McMorris Patrick McConville Michael McGloon Mike McGrath Brian Miller Steve Miller Derek Moccia Clark Morgan Warren Nicholson Pearson Nunez

Todd Odell Mike O'Leary Chad Ozee **Roberto Pattison** Thomas Perko Anthony Precurato Alex Perry Phil Pupillo Keith Rogowski Nicholas Saxton Jim Schalv Matt Schaufert Mark Schmidt Jason Schneider David Sherman Dave Simon Jason Smith Brandon Spevak Jeff Spisak Tom Swoboda Tyler Thurmond JB Torres Erik Turngren Ty Unthank Dave Van Zummeren Carl Villanueva Mike Weinstein Ron Whiting **Ronnie Whiting** Kevin Wilke Mike Williams Brad Wilson Kevin Wirth Scott Wyckoff



### FRONTIER LEAGUE 2022 EXTRA INNING TIE-BREAKER

During the regular season, the International Tiebreaker will be utilized for the 10th inning for 9-inning games and the 8th inning for 7-inning games. If the game remains tied after one inning of International Tie Breaker play, a half-inning of sudden death play will be used to determine the winning and losing team.

Following the ITB inning, the two field managers will meet with the umpires, and the home manager will determine if he wants offense or defense.

For the team on offense, they will start the half-inning with a runner on 1st base and no outs.

If a run scores before three outs are recorded, then the offensive team will win the game.

If three outs are recorded before a run scores, then the defensive team will win the game.

As with the ITB inning, a run scored by the runner starting on base will be unearned.

The last pitcher of record for the winning team will get a win.

If the defensive team wins, then there will not be a losing pitcher.

This rule was first proposed by former Florence field manager Dennis Pelfrey. It was refined by a committee of field managers including Evansville's Andy McCauley, Ottawa's Bobby Brown, and Quebec's Pat Scalabrini.

